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Retail

specialists

Qur vision is to e the best owner-maomager
cnd developer of retail property within Europe.

Our properties bring together the best in
physical and digital retail environments
to give the consumer the most enjoyable

shopping experience.

We cre retail specialists and our strategy
to deliver exceptiondl retail destinctions is
underpinned by our six unique areas of focus:

Hommerson delivers
the best @ retail

@ Read more on page 10

Hoammerson centres are
entertaining & exciting

@ Read more on page 12

Hammerson centres cre
interactive & engaging

@ Read more on page 14

Hammerson centres are
convenient & easy

@ Read more on page 16

Hammerson develops
iconic destinations

@ Read more on page 18

Hammerson crecries
Positive Places

@ Read more onh page 24
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

WHAT WE DO

We are an owner, manager and developer of retail destinations in Europe with a portfolio of around

£7 7 billlon with investments in 22 prime shopping centres, 22 convenient retall parks and investments
In 15 European premium outlet willages Together they provide a total of 2 2 million m? of retail space

SHOPPING CENTRES RETAIL PARKS PREMIUM OUTLETS
- UK and France 2™ largest direct owner of retail We are active i the European outlet
. 22 prime shopping centres parks in the UK market through our investments in

luxury designer Villages with Value

Providing over 500,000m? of space
Y P Retall and our joint venture VIA Qutlets

+ Around 250 mullion wisitors each year

WHERE WE DO IT
We operate prime
shopping centres and
retall parks in the UK and
France with investments
N premium outlets In
locations across Europe

For a full hist of locaticns
please visit our website at
WWwW hammerson com

@ Shopping cenires
A Retall parks

B Premium cutlets
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HOW WE DO IT

We have three strategic priorities, shown below, which guide our operating model,

capital deployment and financial management and which we believe drnive sustained

financial outperformance over the longer term

HIGH-QUALITY PROPERTY

Our aim Is to create and manage leading retall destinations which are attractive to both retailers and consumers The retall
environment 15 constantly evolving and our venues must respond to this challenge We do this by applying a framework of

S unigue focus areas

BEST @ RETAIL ENTERTAINING

& EXCITING

We create new
reasons for
consumers to visit
our centres through
awinning retail

and leisure offer
enhanced by
axciting avents

and entertainment

O ® ®

INTERACTIVE
& ENGAGING

We support the
shopping journey
with outstanding
customer service
and digital
engagement,
creating enjoyable
and modern spaces

Strong refationships
with our retailers
allow us to offer the
best brand line-up

for our shoppers
across the portfolio

CONVENIENT
& EASY

We aim to provide
facilities that make
life simple and
stress free. We
constantly strive
toimprove and
renew our centres

ICONIC
DESTINATIONS

We develop and
manage iconic
destinations that
enhance thelocal
environment
through outstanding
architecture and
provide the best
experience for both
visitors and residents

O] ®

More on page '8

POSITIVE
PLACES

Our Positive

Places framewaork
supports the
creation of retail
destinations which
lead the sector
environmentally,
sociallyand
eccnomically

®

More on page 24

1HOdIH DID31VELS

More on page 10 Mote on page 12 More on page 14 Mare on page 16

INCOME GENERATION
We actively manage our properties to generate sustainable income growth We recognise the importance of strong retailer
relationshups and the requirement for tenant rotation to enhance the vibrancy of the consumer expenence

CAPITAL STRENGTH

We maintain a strong balance sheet with our pnme property portfolio underpinned by a robust capital base of bank borrowing,
hond debt and shareholder equity Our financing structure provides us with the capacity and flexibility to delwver our business
objecuves and take advantage of opportunistic investments to further enhance the Group’s performance

DELIVERING STRONG PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL KPIs
TOTAL PROPERTY GROWTH IN GROWTH IN EPRA COST
RETURNS LIKE-FOR-LIKE NRI ADJUSTED EPS RATIO
13.6% 2.1% 3.5% 23.4%
OPERATIONAL KPIs

OCCUPANCY LEASING ACTIVITY GLOBAL EMISSIONS INTENSITY RATIO
Q7.5% £20.5m 18 OthOze /5m

@ Further details of the Groups XPis are on pages 36-38

www hammerson com




CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

EXCEPTIONAL RETURNS
AND GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

4
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2014 Highlights
ctt a glance:

£306m

NET RENTAL INCOME!

£703m

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

23.9o

ADJUSTED EPS

£6.33

EPRA NAV PER SHARE

3 4%

LOAN TOVALUE

24.7%

TOTAL SHAREHCLDER RETURN

1 Including share of Property jaint ventures




with David Atkins

2014 has been a year of momentum for
Hammerson Our retail focus i1s now fully
immersed across the business and our
strategIC Investment activity has accelerated
our future growth ambttions Here, David
answers some key questions

Q What have been the highlights for the
businessin 20147

A The year has been marked by a number of achievements,
and | believe the strong numbers we have delivered
reflect the progress we have made across the business
Key 2014 highlights include

The successful opening of Les Terrasses du Pert in
Marsellle whuch resulted in £107 million profit on
cost for the business The 62,800m? shopping and
leisure developmeant combines cur best design and
operattonal expertise and the posiuve response from

consumers and retailers has been truly cverwhelming,

with over 8 million wisitors to date

- Notable progress across our development pipeline
with planning approval granted at Brent Cross
Crncklewood, and at our Whitgift JV in Croydon
and starts on site at both Victora Gate in Leads
and WestQuay Watermark in Southampton

+ Secunng robust shareholder support for our
£399 million share placing A significant portion
of the proceeds has been deployed to acquire
the rematring 40% of Highcross, Leicester from
our JV partner

- Extending our strategic exposure to the European
outlet sector with a £100 millien investment in the
newly created VIA Qutlets venture The 47% stake
was financed through the share placing

How have consumer and occupier markets
evolved over the past 12 months?

A year ago we saw the first tentative signs of growing
consumer confidence and increasing retatter demand for
physical space | am pleased to report that in the UK we
have seen significant improvement over the year in retall
sales growth which was up 2 6% across our centres This
momentum i consumer spending 1s now driving stronger
demand from retailers for our pnime retall space, which i
starting to reflect positively in rental values

1HOd3Y J1931VHLS

Importantly this story of renewed consurmer growth

and occupier demand 15 not Just London centric We

have seen strong perfarmance in our centres in mMajor cities
acioss the UK Dunng 2014 we signed 413 leases totalling
179,000m? of retall space Like-for-like net rental income for
the year was 2 1% up on 2013 and occupancy remained
strong at 97 5% Despite continuing econemic challenges
In France, the success of Les Terrasses du Part indicates that
consumer demand remains strong for the nght retailling
proposiions At Le Jeu de Paume in Beauvais we are
encouraged by the letting progress of the development,
with 62% already pre-let The centre will provide 23,800m?
of retailing and leisure facilmes and 1s on track to open

later this year

Q

Will your investment tn the luxury and outlet
markets continue to grow?

A

Global appetite for designer and luxury goods continues,
with research from our Considered Consumer report
indicating that one third of shoppers spent more on luxury
purchases in 2014 compared with the preceding 12 month
periad We are the only REIT with strategic exposure to

the sector and we continue to see good growth from

our investment in Value Retail

The newly created VIA Qutlets venture with our partners
Value Retail, APG and Meyer Bergman further increases
our scale in European outlets The newly acquired portfolio
In major European cities has the potential to deliver

strong returns through the combined experuise of this
unigue partnership

There is a clear and growing requirement for premium
outlet space from retalers and we are encrmously
excited by the new opportunities that this opens up
for Hammerson

wiwww hammerson com 5




CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT CONTINUED

Q Sustainability underpins the focus for the
business, What have been the standout
achievements in the past 12 months?

A We have made significant sustamability progress dunng
2014 We achieved BREEAM Excellent at Les Terrasses
du Port, our first shopping centre development in France
In the UK we have been working with retail customers
delivering much needed apprenticeships at Highcross
In Leicester 2014 also saw the launch of the Big Positive
Weekend, our first national sustainability roadshow, which
reached nine cities In over nine weekends across the
UK portfolio

Q How has the team evolved to enable the
business to deliver strong performance?

A During 2014 we introduced a number of new iniiatives
and targets to support our objective of promoting diversity
and nclusion within the business These targets are
detaled on page 35 of the Report

We have welcomed additional talent to the business

with a number of new colleagues joining the team from
non-property backgrounds While we are sull a property
company the business has been significantly ennched
through the skills and knowledge of experts from different
sectors who have bolstered our retail and digital expertise
and provided a fresh approach

At the end of 2014 we opened a new office in Reading,
which 1s the operational hub for the UK business 2015 wall
see us relocate to a new head office in King's Cross The
maove signals a continued commitment towards our retail
focus and, along with enhancing operational efficiency
and reducing costs, | believe it will foster more creativity
and collaboration across the teams

Q Which qualities differentiate Hammerson's
shopping destinations from the competition?

A We believe the key 1o winning in retail property 15 1o own
and manage destinations which excel against each of our
siX unique areas of focus, set out on page 3 of the Report

By applying a ngorous approach to this Product Framework,
we ensure that our shopping centres and retail parks bring
together the best In physical and digital retailing to offer
consumers the most enjayable shopping experience

Q What are the business priorities and outlook
for 20157

Planning for, and the development of, major retall schemes
in Leeds and London will continue to be a focus for the
teamn 2015 Including Croydon and Brent Cross, these
projects will deliver over 400,000m? of new retail space
over the coming years Our plans to redevelop the

Whitgift Centre and Centrale in partnership with Westfield
moved a step closer when the outline application for the
development was formally consented in February 2014

>

Our strategic focus on the luxury sector will continue In
2015 as we look to Increase our exposure to prermium
outlets alongside our partners in the VIA Cutlets venture

OUTLOOK

The recovery in UK consumer sentiment has continued to strengthen
as economic indicators have iImproved With diverse regional exposure
through our portfolio of pnme retailing destinations, | believe that
Hammerson 15 well-placed to benefit from this continuing trend

In France, the overwhelming success of our new scheme in Marsellle,
together with improving footfall figures, give us confidence that
consumer demand remains strong for the nght retail proposition
Despite continuing economic challenges, we expect trading in

France to remain stable in 2015

It 15 anticipated that growing demand from global investors for
high-guality retail assets will continue In 2015, potentially compressing
yields and boosting capital values further Against thus backdrop,

I am confident that Hammerson will continue to deliver strong

returns for its shareholders

READ MY INTRODUCTION TO THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT ON PAGE 60

Reflecting on my first full year as Charrman, | am pleased we are able to report that the business has achieved
strong returns in 2014 My role 1s to help ensure that the Board creates maximum value for shareholders over

the long term, working effectively in support of the Group's strategy You can read more about how the Board
operates i the Governance Report that starts on page 60

Dawvid Tyler, Chairman
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OUR MARKETS

LEADER IN THE RETAIL REAL

ESTATE MARKET

INTRCDUCTION

2014 was a strong year for the performance of the retail real estate
marketin the UK and Europe

Retall property offers a number of fundamental attractions versus
other categornies of commercial real estate, including sustainable

and long-term returns, with lower volatiity and a granular and diverse
tenant mix which mitigates certain nsks

Hammerson's assets are in the sub sectors of pnme shopping cenires,
retail parks and premium cutlet villages We aim to be among the
market leaders in each of our sub sectors so as to cap'talise on the
favourabte market trends identfied and exeraise scale efficiencies

MARKET DESCRIPTION AND POSITION
Prime Shopping Centres

Prime shopping centres are those that are dominant in therr
catchment, iInclude large anchor stores and flagshup urits, and
offer consumers a lifestyle expenence alongside therr shopping
wvisit The relative attractiveness of prime shopping centres, against
other secondary cenires or high street locations, drives growing
demand from retall tenants

Chaat Fig 1

Largest owners of the top 30 UK shopping centres
(including JVs) (Number of centres)

(Total UK space 179 million m?)

Chart Figy 2

Largest owners of the top 30 French shopping
centres {including JVs) (Number of centres)
{Total France space 156 million m?)

Source Company merger of Klepierre/Corio receved shareholder approval January 2015

1HOd3Y JI1931VHLS

The renis achievable at shopping centres are driven by their
size, location, demegraphic catchment and competing centres
High tenant demand and low vacancy drives growth in ERY
{estimated rental value)

In France, leases are linked to a price inflaton index and this 1s also
reflected in the rental performance and portfolio value in France

With ownership stakes In 22 pnme shopping centres across the UK
and France and a total of 11 milhen square metres of retall and leisure
space, Hammerson is a leading European player Hammerson is a top
3 owner of large shopping centres in the UK and France We have over
200 different internanonal retall brands in our shopping centres and
13% of our space 15 let 1o catenng and leisure

Retail Parks

Retall parks are predominantly situated 1n out of town locations which
are most easily accessible by car Unuts are on average larger and rents
are lower per square metre than in shopping centres Retaiters'demand
for efhicient space 1o meet consurners growing need for convenient
and accessible shopping locations drives renial growth in retail parks

Harmmerson is the second largest direct owner of retail parks in the
UK with 500,000 square metres across 21 assets The total UK market
comprises 11 million square metres and 1s a fragmented rmarket '

Premium Qutlets

There are approximately 200 outlet centres across Eurcpe Ownership is
fragmented and the largest three operators Value Retall, McArthur Glen
and Neinver together account for around 25% of the market

The premium outlets market in Europe compnses cutlet centres which
are of an institutiona! Investment guality, and this market can be broadly
categonsed according to the type of customer it serves At the high end
there are outlet cenires that attract luxury and fashion consumers, the
middle segment caters to the mainstream fashion custormer, and the
third segment to the high street customer

Value Retall, in which Harmmmerson (s a major investor, 15 positioned at
the top level, with its unique shopping-tounsm Villages serving the
international luxury and fashion consumer It has nine Villages serving
mayor Ciies across Europe

Hammerson is also Invested with a 47% stake in VIA Qutlets VIA Qutlets
currently owns six centres which predominantly cater to custormers in
the mainstream fashion segment

Demand for outlet space 1s drven by retallers'desire to sell excess
Inventory while marntaining brand eguity The supply of new outlet
centres 1s imited by planning consents and the availlability of excess
inventory to sell

Quitlet centre rents are usually directly linked to tenant sales Sales
growth far outlet centres has been 7-9% per annum over the last five
years (source Cushman &Wakefield) Investment yields for outlet
centres are high, around 6-7% across Europe

www hammerson com 7




OUR MARKETS CONTINUED

GROWING DEMAND
FOR PRIME RETAIL SPACE

In 2014, an improvement in consumer confidence and spending supported demand for space

In our prime retail locations in the UK, and the French consumer backdrop stabilised QOur tenants’
strategies in retall, food & beverage and leisure continue to evolve and we are adapting with
them to match their needs with the needs of the consumer

OCCUPIER MARKETS

Consumer trends - The Considered Consumer
Consumers’habits are evolving Our research shows they are taking a
more ‘tonsidered’ approach browsing, researching, and comparing for
longer The internet plays an increasing role for retail transactions and
as a result when consumers visit shopping centres they expect more
exciternent and entertamment

Online orders now account for 11% of retall sales in the UK, up from
6% 1n 2009 The role of physical retail space is changing as a result
Retallers are rationalising store portfolios requiring fewer, larger,
better-ranged stores o support therr digital platform

Fulfillment of onling orders 15 driving strong growth in ¢lick & collect

Retallers recogruse that a multi-channel strategy I1s essential to meet
customer needs Physical retall space 1s ¢ntical for brand interaction,
which 1s supported by the whole shopping centre experience

Retailers such as John Lewis now see more online purchases collected
in store than delivered to home The intensity of online promotional
actwity around Black Friday in Novernber served to highlight the
logistical challenges of servicing growing online demand Retail parks’
traditional strengths of converience, accessibility, free parking and
proximity to food stores makes thern ideal to support chck & collect

Online sales are growing in France but wath less penetration than
in the UK The click & collect modelis popular in France, however
shoppers favour a locker model versus collecting in store

8 Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014

Chart Fig 3
Consumer confidence survey index

CONSUMER RECOVERY

The recavery In consumer confidence In 2014 was significant in
the UK and stable in France The combination of supportive berign
domestic econcmic factors In the UK — low interest rates, lower
energy prices, real wage stabihsation and strong GOP growth -

is driving consumer confidence

“Spending power at record

highs” — Lloyds Bank
Spending Power Report

As a result, retal sales volumes grew 3 8% in the UK in 2014, the
strongest annual growth since 2004 and the market saw the longest
penod of sustained monthly growth since November 2007 Retall
sales growth was more evenly spread across all regions of the UK




Chort Fig 4

In France, retail sales volumes grew 0 696 across the year but
demonstrated monthly volatlity

Chart Fig &

TENANT DEMAND

Retailers are reporting a confident outlook A BRC survey in the UK
revealed 76% of retallers expect sales to improve in 2015 compared
with last year, while 67% said their investment levels were set to Increase

Administration levels of UK retallers are runming tower than previous
years imiting the drag which new vacancies have on rents

Thus retaller confidence translated into ERY growth, which in
2014 turned posttive for the first tme since the financial ¢nsis,
accarding to PMA

UK shopping centre ERV growth was 0 7% in 2014 ERV trands also
reflect changing retailer demand wath large pnime shopping centres
outperforming secondary and also smaller pnme shopping centres

UK retall park ERV growth was 0 1% 10 2014 As well as traditional bulky
goods retallers, fashion and high street brands {eg M&5, Debenhams)
are taking space in parks, resulting in higher market ERY growth at
these type of fashion parks’

INVESTMENT MARKET

The persistence of a low interest rate environment 1s dnving record
Investment INte direct property the so-called hunt for yield’ Forecast
muted economic growth across Europe and low inflation could
mean European property continues to look very attractively priced
through into 2015

Direct investment in UK shopping centres was at levels not seen
since 2006 As well as domestc transactions (70%), Asian Investors
accounted for 13% of total volurme and North Amencan investors 10%

Chaat Fig 6

UK shopping centre investment volurnes were at record levels
as shown in the chart above

Transaction volumes In retall parks exceeded £20bn in 2014
{2013 £1 5bn) with 43 transactions (2013 44)

French retail property markets saw a record level of transactions
In 2014, up 45% on 2013 This was driven by four major portfolio
transactions which together represented 51% of the total volume

The weight of capital pushed investment yields lower across all
retall sub-sectors

OUTLOCK

With low interest rates, low inflation and lower energy prices expected
to persist through 2015, consumer spending power in the UK1s
forecast to continue rsing, dnving further growth in retall sales

The economic outlook in France 1s still not supportive of a definitive
upturn in cansurmer confidence

Driven by the continued growth of online sales and rationalsation
of retallers’ portfelios, there will be greater polansation in

demand for prermium UK retail space which favours rents across
Harmmersen's portfolio

Indexation of rents in France was 0 8% in 2014 and will be flat in 2015

Yield compression, leading 1o increased capital values, i1s expected
to continue I the UK and France 1n 2015, although not at the same
rates as in 2014

Consumer Retail Capital
confidence sales ERVs values
UK T T T T
France - -> - T
European premium outlets T T N T

Source Company

www hammerson com 9
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Pg10  Pg12 Pgld  Pgl6  Pgls  Pg24

Hommerson delivers

the best @ retail

We create retall destinations where leading and emerging brands

want to be Our focus on continually reinvigorating our leisure and retall
mix means we are able to offer consumers the leading line-up in the
catchment. This means thinking creatively, using our customer insight
and responding to consumer demand to create space where shoppers
return again and again

IAIN MITCHELL

UK Commercial Director

bk Curam istobe top of the list when retailers are
locking for new space We have an exceptional
portfolio with strong consumer loyalty This combined
with our extensive depth of expertise and disciplined
analysis of consumer spending habits, means we
are able to support our retail brands and help them
achieve their growth potential 59

2 3%

INCREASE IN LEASING
ACTIVITY IN 2014*

* by income

27

RETAILERS OPENING THEIR
FIRST SHOPPING CENTRE
STORE IN FRANCE

NEW BRANDS INTRODUCEDTO
THE UK AND FRENCH PORTFOLIOS

I0 Hammerson pic Annual Report 2014




Photos from Les Terrasses du Port, Marsellle, Bullring, Birmingham, and WestQuay, Southampton

You can read more about our shopping centres
in the Property Portfcho secuan on page 164

wwiw hammerson com
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Pg 10 Pg 12 Pg 14 Pg16 Pg18 Pg 24

Hommmerson centres cre
entertaining & exciting

We want to push the boundaries of what a shopping centre can

be Our centres aim to energise and uphft the consumer, creating
destinations that add another dimension to their shopping trip

Our retall mix, integrated leisure and dining offer and programme

of events are designed to delight and surprise our shoppers, meaning
there 15 always something new to capture their attention and drive
frequency of visits

UKHead of Marketing 500,000

(11 VISITORS
In 2014 we introduced portfoluo Attracted to our exclusive student nights

wide events Our intiatives included across the portfolio
“Dine til 9, cur extension of dining
hours, student nights and fashion

& beauty themed events such as

Spring and Autumn Fashion Fix S;]_ I | ]

These campaigns enhanced centre SALES INCREASE
performance and gave us the During the‘Dine il 9" event at
opportunity to engage further Brent Cross and WestQuay

with our shoppers and retallers 1]

+17°%

FOOTFALL INCREASE
During Black Friday events across
the portfohio

12 Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014




Phatos from Summer Dine at Highcross, Leicester, Autumn Fashion Fix at Bullning, Birmingham and
Student Night at WestQuay, Southampton

www hammerson com
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Pg 10 Pg 12 Pg 14 Pg 16 Pg 18 Pg 24

Hommmerson centres are
interactive & engaging

Engaging with our consumers before, during and after their
shopping experience 1s key to gaining their loyalty and increasing
spend Our digital infrastructure, which includes Wi-F, loyalty apps
and our soclal media channels, connects with shoppers to ensure
their visit 1s tailored to their individual needs and delivers meaningful
Insight for our retailers

SOPHIE ROSS
Group Head of Multichannel

k€ Hammerson's digital insight team has its finger on the pulse of shifting
consumer patterns, guiding how shoppers want to consume Qur Insight
enables us to offer the best possible experience, across physical locations
and digital platforms 59

1 LION +24*

FACEBOOK FOLLOWERS ACROS5 FOOTFALL GENERATED
THE PORTFOLIO BY WESTQUAY'S STUDENT EVENT

150,000

TOTAL NUMBER OF WiFi USERS PER MONTH*
* (UK Partfolio)

14  Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014




Photos from Les Terrasses du Port, Marsellle, Highcross, Leicester, and Bullnng, Birmingham

wyww hammerson com
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Pgl0  Pg12  Pgla  Pgi6  Pg18  Pg24

Hoammerson centres are

convenient & easy

Our retall parks and shopping centres are designed to make life simple
and the customer experience stress free From family frnendly parking to
best-in-class customer service, our aim 1S to make shoppers'lives easier
We have responded to consumer demand for click & collect, convenient
“grab and go"catering and delivered improved facilities such as
enhanced parking, créches and family lounges

ANDREW BERGER-NORTH %
Director of Retail Parks 34 °©
11 The convenience shopper 1s no less of convenience shoppers are

shopping far fashion items dunng

discerming than those spending a day thexr convenience shop

out with the family at our centres We are

increasingly bnnging new fashion retailers
to retail parks, responding to the demands
of the convenience shopper who wants
more fashion, catering and high-quality

facilities from their shop yy 61 %

of convenience shoppers use
chek & collect

é é%

say that the brand line-up 1s key
to thew convenience shop

16 Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014




Photos from Brent Cross, London, WestQuay, Southampton, ltalie Deux, Pans, The Oracle, Reading,
Manor Walks, Cramlington, and Fife Central Retail Park, Kirkcaldy

www hammerson com
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Pgi0  Pgl2  Pgl4  Pgls  Pgl8  Pgl4

Hammerson develops

iconic destincitions

Hammerson has been creating and managing some of the most iconic
retall destinations for over 60 years, combining world-class architecture,
flexible retall space and technology tc create venues for retailers to
thrive and places where shoppers want to spend time Delivering
complex regeneration projects, our schemes bring transformational
change to towns and cities, enhance their surrounding environments
and become a focal point for the wider community

MARTIN PLOCICA
Director of UK Shopping Centres

(1 Bullnng's distinctive design has become an internationally
recognised symbol of Birmingham and a major attraction
within the region Its iconic architecture and constantly
evolving brand line-up are widely viewed as having raised
the city’s prestige and retall offer 59

MICHAEL FARBOS

Director of Investment and Asset Management, France

11 Striking architecture and intelligent retail design are key
to ensunng our schemes enhance the environment and the
retail reputation of the area Les Terrasses du Port in Marseille
1s a great example of this It has become an important
leisure destination for both residents and visitors 5y

18 Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014




Photos from Union Square, Aberdeen, Les Terrasses du Port, Marseille, Bullnng, Birrmingham, and Highcross, Leicester

Read rnore aboyt owr Property Parifolio on page 164

www hammerson com
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Hammerson's development programme, shown here, including our most recently completed
schemes, will create some of the most exciting retail destinations of the future

Completed

LES TERRASSES DU PORT MONUMENT MALL ABBOTSINCH RETAIL PARK
MARSEILLE NEWCASTLE PAISLEY

SIZE SIZE SIZE

62,800m? @,500m?2 5,000m?2
PROFIT ON COST PROFIT ON COST PROFIT ON COST
€107m £16m €7m

As at 31 December 2014

On-site

WESTQUAY WATERMARK VICTORIA GATE LE JEU DE PAUME
SOUTHAMPTON LEEDS BEAUVAIS

SIZE SIZE SIZE

17,000m? 34,300m? 23,800m?

ESTIMATED ANNUAL INCOME

£5m

ESTIMATED ANNUAL INCOME

£10m

ESTIMATED ANNUAL INCOME

£5m

Pipeline

CROYDON TCOWN CENTRE BRENT CROSS EXTENSION THE GOODSYARD
SOUTH LONDON LONDON, NW4 LONDON, E1

SIZE SIZE SIZE
200,000m? ?0,000m? 260,000m?
EARLIEST START ON SITE EARLIEST START ON SITE EARLIEST START ON SITE
2016 2017 2016

20 Hammerson plc Annuat Report 2014




LES TERRASSES DU PORT

MARSEILLE

62,800

LETTABLE AREA

150,000

VISITORS AT OPENING WEEKEND

260m

RESTAURANT TERRACE

AWORLD CLASS EUROPEAN
RETAIL DESTINATION

Les Terrasses du Port 15 located in the heart

of the largest urban regeneration programme
n Southern Europe and was our first major
shopping centre development in France The
centre 1s home to 190 stores and has a unigue
location overlooking the Mediterranean Sea
which includes a 260 metre long restaurant
terrace Anchored by Printemps, taking their
first store outside Pans for over 30 years,

the centre 1s home to high-end designers
including Michael Kors, Sandro, Bose, G-Star
and Maje The centre also hosts the best

POSITIVE TRADING

COMPLETED

2014

mternational brands ranging from Zara,
H&M and Mango to Pull & Bear and Uniglo

tesTerrasses du Port was the first of our
centres to launch the integrated digstal
systerm using the *Plus”app, allowing
consumers to access real-time content
and offers via the app, website and kiosks

Since opening, the scheme has had over
8 million visitors with an average dwell
trme of 92 minutes and we have received
extrermnely posiive trading reports from
our retall customers

i Above expectations yy -z

kEVery good results, above targets gy -Undio
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VICTORIA GATE
LEEDS

34,300m:

LETTABLE AREA

£104m

ESTIMATED COSTTO COMPLETE

£10m

ESTIMATED ANNUAL INCOME
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A LUXURY RETAIL DESTINATION
The Victona Gate development 1s an exciting
addition to the vibrant shopping scene in
Leeds Delivering John Lewis’s first store In the
city and a range of high-quality and premium
brands, the scheme will capture the hentage
of Victona Quarter, acquired in 2012, which i
anchored by Harvey Nichols and 1s home to
leading luxury designers including Mulberry
and Vivienne Westwood

The scheme’s design will build on the aity's
arcade history to provide a 21st century-
inspired retail arcade, offening 30 retall and
catenng units together with a new 21,000m?
flagship John Lewis departrment store wath

a striking fagade drawing on Leeds'textile
hertage The scheme will also include a
multi-storey car park for up to 800 cars

COMPLETION

2016

Planning approval was granted in Septernber
2013 and construction of the £150 million
development began in Apnl 2014

As well as regenerating the physical space, the
scheme will also deliver up te 1,000 retall and
hospitality jobs and 1,000 construction jobs

Victoria Gate represents a huge opportunity
for retallers with £540 million of additional
sales avallable from the highly affluent areas
of Harrogate, lIkley and York as well as
attracting the city’s fashion conscious
shoppers, international visitors and students
Proposals are in place for a further phase

of up to 73.000m? of retall scheme




CROYDON TOWN CENTRE

SOUTH LONDON

200,000m?

LETTABLE AREA

£625-750m

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST (50%)

2016

ANTICIPATED START ON SITE

THE RETAIL OPPORTUNITY

The redevelopment of the Whitgift Centre
offers the chance to capture the south
London corrnidor, attracting over £1billion

of retall spend and creating a diverse,
vibrant and well connected town centre
The mixed-use development will lead the
transformation of the certtre of Croydon and
restore the town 1o 1ts rightful place as one
of the UK's leading shopping destinations

The Croydon Partnershp was formed in
January 2013 between Hammerson and
Westfield and achieved outhne planning
consent in Febrnuary 2014 The scherne has
been designed specifically to fit in with the
1own's hentage Including the Allders fagade

COMPLETION

2019/2020

and existing streetscape, reinstating North
End’s role as the town centre’s main retail
sireet The refurbishment of the existing
Centrale shopping centre together with

a new Whitgift will provide Croydon with

a new retatl core of over 200,000m? of retad
and leisure space

Home 1¢ the best high street brands and
international retallers, the new shopping
destination will be anchored by M&S and a
maor new department store which, when
combined with Debenhams and House of
Fraser at Centrale, will create a new retail
arcuit for Croydon

140d3H J1D31VHLS
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Hommerson crectes

Positive Places

QOur Positive Places programme has continued to deliver great outputs
during 2014 Our retall park and shopping centre developments set

high sustainability standards; we have handed over the B&Q Eco-Learning
Store at Merthyr Tydfl, are delivering a new, low carbon EcoPod for Costa
Coffee at Wrekin, Telford and achieved design stage BREEAM Excellent

at both Les Terrasses du Port and Le Jeu de Paume in France.

Other major projects delivered this year include our sustainability
road show, the Big Positive Weekend, and an extensive materiality
and stakeholder engagement exercise that Informed the setting of
our new sustainability targets More detail of our 2014 performance
and new targets Is provided below and on the Positive Places pages

at www hammerson com
Hammerson’s Global
CO.e emissions (mtCO,e)
29,671
LOUISE ELLISON

Head of Sustainability

k€ Consumer awareness of supply chain ethics and
environmental Impacts has never been higher
Our Positive Places strategy Is designed to directly
support our retailers in responding to this by o
providing the most sustainable shopping centres 20 Jo
and retall parks we can and by engaging with all

REDUCTION IN LIKE-FOR-LIKE
our stakeholders to continue raising our game 1]

CARBON EMISSIONS SINCE 2010

£420,000

www.hammerson.com SAVINGS IN ENERGY AND CARBON
for more on our sustainability initiatives COSTS THROUGH OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCIES IN 2014
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST OUR 2010 - 2015 SUSTAINABILITY TARGETS

Maeasure Target and date Progress 2014 Performance  Commants

Reduce like-for-like 2015 Achieved 20% Combined gocd management practices and

carbon emissions ahead of target targeted investment are continuing to deliver

from 2010 by 20% substantial carbon savings across our portfolios

Reduce water 2015 Achieved -59% France Limited sub-metering of water data conzinues

consumption ahead of target +349% UK to make consumption management challenging

from 2010 by 12% -26% Global Combined with the increase In catering across
the portfolio makes our underperformance here
disappointing but not unexpected It s an area we
are targeting through installat:on of sub-metering
alongside our water efficient fit outs

Biodiversity action 2015 On track 34 UK, Qur bio diversity action plans will be reviewed

plans at all retail assets 5 France dunng 2015

Community plans 2014 Achieved 41 Our UK cornmunity plans are due for revision in

for all developments on target 2015 We will use this opportunity to Improve

and managed assets consistency across the busmess

75% of community 2014 Not achieved 31% Clobal New relationships have developed during 2014

activity to be leng-term as development activity has increased, reducing

community Investment ratio of long term

45% of suppliers 205 Achieved 71% Our supply chain survey and annual Suppher

by value to be engaged ahead of target Report ate recognising and encouraging

{questionnaire(£/100k) improved performance across the supply chain

All employees Ongaing On track 68% UK trained  Role specific CR training 1s provided across

to compleie CR
training biannually

in-house teams on an ongoing basis

Hammerson participates in a range of Industry benchmarks including

www hammerson com 25
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

REVIEWING OUR MAJOR SUSTAINABILITY IMPACTS

As our medium-term targets end in 2015, in 2014 we carried out a review of our major
sustatnability impacts to inform our new sustainability targets and refresh our strategy Energy,
waste, water and materials remain our major environmental impacts Our social impacts and
relevance are increasingly important to our stakeholders

www.hammerson.com

A summary of the findings from our matenality study 1s available on the Positive Places pages on our website

Working closely with JLL Upstream and Forum for the Future, Bk Hammerson's embedded
our impacts review involved:
- Extensive stakeholder engagement across our five stakeholder groups drives environmental

Review of our pregress against targets

A study of a key environmental, soctal and economic Impacts

» A peer review and reflection on where we want our sustainability journey to take us

approach ta sustainability

efficiencies in asset
management and
development, as well as
enhanced customer and
community relationships

Key findings Our stakeholder groups ft1s this approach that is
now unlocking commercial

Key stakeholder messages CUSTOMERS opportunities for the
Hammerson 1s expected to maintain its leadership position ultimate benefit of
as 8 sustanability Innovator by, for example SUPPLIERS Hammerson's shareholders yy
- Supporting tenants In meeting their sustainability targets INVESTORS
-+ Actively managing energy supply and pncing nisks COMMUNITIES SOPHIE WALKER
+ Dnving high sustainability standards with supplers EMPLOYEES Director, Upstream

Sustainability Services

Top 5 environmental and social issues raised
- Energy secunty and demand

- Minimising waste
» Water
+ Community engagement investment and relevance

- Materials use and procurement

Peer review
The JLL study identified Hammerson as a secter leader on
sustainability with particular strengths 1in’

Leadership and Governance

Everyone Understands Sustainability
+ Sustainabibty Delivers Value

Value Chain

» Culture of Innovation

1 Findings based on the JLL Sustainability Journey Model @

26
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Charts 7, 8 and ¢ show our performance in carbon, water and waste
management Further information s available on pages 28-30

Chert Pig 7
Like-for-like scope 1 and 2 CO,e for
Hammerson's retail portfolios (mtCQ,e)




OUR RESPONSE

Building on these findings we have developed an ambitious set of new sustamability targets
designed to take the business to a new level in terms of sustainability leadership The targets are
arranged under seven key themes drawn from the findings of the matenality study

Lead & challenge

The transiion 10 a sustainable business
mode! requires leaders to challenge
current practice We aim to lead the
way, working with our retadlers,
communities and supplers to change
the status quo Key target areas will be
whale Iife costing , the links between
sustainability, value and risk and
understanding the carbon footprint
of our business

Protect & enhance

We recogrise our responsibility to
protect the envircnment by minimising
our resource consumpticn but also to
enhance it through restorative projects
and renewables Key targets include
209 reduction in our hike-for-like

CQ, emissions by 2020 and installing
2mwWh of renewabile capacity across
the portfolio

Monitor & evolve

Innovate & learn

To create the retall desunations of the
future, we have to invest in tralling
new approaches Key targets under this
theme include establishing a pertfolic
of *Pioneer Places™to showcase and

test Innovative sustainability solutions
before successes are mainstreamed
across the pertfolios

Serve & invest

Qur assets deliver important sccial
value In our communities, measured in
Jabs, skills, civic pride and investment
We have set ambitious new targets

1o understand and maximise these
place-making impacts as we strive

to ensure all our assets are truly
Positive Places

Partner & collaborate

Systemic change requires active
collabaration with like-minded
partners Our stakeholder-led approach
reflects this and key targets have

been set for each group These include
establishing a sustamability learning
group with our customers, an
engagement programme for our
investors and further development

of our supply chain survey

Develop & inspire

We are investing in developing

the skills of cur people, as well as
recognising and rewarding those
delivering change New approaches
will be supported with role

specific training and ensuring
personal objectives are linked

to sustainability outcomes

Measurement, monitoring and transparency are key to progress We will publish annual targets that support our five-year targets
and continue 1o report our progress annually Our internal governance structure will support the evolution of our approach to
sustanability as our teams tearn from each other, our stakeholders and our results

Our curreni targets run untll the end of the 2015 calendar year Cur new targets will take effect from 1 January 2016

140d3Y J1931vHLS
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY CONTINUED

KEY STAKEHOLDER OUTPUTS 2014

CUSTOMERS

One of our biggest sustainability events for 2014 was The Big Positive
Weekend, our sustainability road show This was our first consumer
facing event and the first sustainabuiity road show ever to be taken
across a whole shopping centre portfolio

The event generated over 200,000 positive actions and connected
with 24 million people to raise awareness of their own power to
make a positive change Sponsorship from Nationwde, Eon, Renault,

Sealife Centres and H&M 15 a clear indication of the appetite amongst
the censumer facing brands for a platform to communicate their
sustainability iniatves

67% OF PURCHASES DRIVEN
BY ETHICAL SUPPLY CHAIN"

2011 2012 2013 2014
Top 75 customers engaged on sustainabibity (96) UK n/a 24 32 28
Number of green leases in portfolio UK/Fr 896 1,250 1,401 1,637

SUPPLIERS

In 2014, 62 new suppliers completed our sustainable supply chain
survey, three of them achieving platnum status Detalled results
are avallable in our Annual Supplier Report

In 2015 we will update the supply chain survey as part of our ongoing
monitoring The increasingly scphisticated approaches to these 1ssues
adopted by many of our suppliers to these 1ssues makes It important
to refresh our questions

87% OF OUR SUPPLIERS HAVE
DEVELOPED A CORPORATE
RESPONRIBILITY POLICY

201 2012 2013 2014
Percentage of total suppliers by value engaged on sustainability (%) UK n/a 100 71 71
Number of suppliers over £100k by contract value UK 107 302 165 148
Value of contracts with suppliers we engaged on sustainability (£m) UK 86 193 87 87

INVESTORS

Active engagerment with our shareholders during 2014 confirmed
strong interest in sustainability amongst our major investors and
an expectation that we will continue to perfarm as industry leaders
Inthis area

Working with our Joint Venture partners we have agreed forward
funding of major mvestment in LED hghting at Bullnng Once installed
this will defiver immediate returns i reduced carbon emissions and

15 expected 1o pay for itself in under five years Dunng 2015 we will

be investing in further LED lighting projects across the portfolio

A new way to communicate with investors

The launch of our Positive Places web pages this year has established
a more dynamic, engaging way of communicating with our investors
Our performance against targets and our Global Reporung Initiative
(GRI) and EPRA comphant reporting remain a key element of our
communications and are avaiable alongside regularly updated
information on Positive Places actvities

2011 2012 2013 2014

Direct number of investors with whom we had collective
or Indwvidual meetings

UK/Fr 25 13 1 12

Total number of shares held by the top 20 investors (31 12 14) (m)

417 395 407 451

Total number of shares held by those top 20 investors with
whom Hammerson engaged on sustamabitity (31 12 14) (m)

148 170 108 184

*  Big Positive weekend consumer survey
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GREENHOUSE GAS (GHG) EMISSIONS 2014

Reporting period and methodology Reporting boundaries

In tine with requirernents set out in ihe Companies Act 2006 (Strategic We have adopted operational control as our reporting approach GHG
Report and Directors Report) Regulations 2013, this statement reports emissions data 1s provided for those assets where we have authonty to
the Company's GHG ermissions for the reporting period 1 October 2013 introduce and implement operating policies This includes properties
1o 30 Septernber 2014 A different reporuing penod from our financial held in joint ventures where M Board approval 1s required We have
reporting year has been selected, in accordance with the DEFRA reported 100% of GHG emissions dasa for these reported assets
Ermironmental Reporuing Guidance, 1o avoid the use of estimated

utiity consumption data The data has been calculated and recorded Adetarled basis of reporting statement and full list of operating entities

and assets included within the reporting boundary can be found
on the Posiive Place pages of our www hammerson com

in accordance with the GHG Protocol and 15O 14064

Baseline year 1/10/12 - 30/09/13

Boundary summary All assets and facilines under Hammerson direct operaticnal control are included
Consistency with Financial Statements  Varniauions from the financial statements are set out above

Emissions factor data source 2014 DEFRA GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting for UK assets for all emissions

excluding electricity and Combined Heat and Power at WestQuay, Southampton
IEA GHG emissions factors for electricity
Cofely data for the combined heat and power plant at WestQuay, Southampton

Assessment methodclogy GHG Protocol and 150 14064 (2006)

Materiality threshold Activities generating emissions of <5% relative to total Group emissions have been excluded

Intensity ratto Adjusted profit before tax 1/10/13 - 30/09/14

Target 20% reduction in life-for-like carbon emissions against 2010 baseline by 2015

Independent assurance Scope 1, 2 & 3 GHG emissions data, indicated by an " have been independently assured by
Deleitte LLP The independent assurance stalement 15 available on the sustainability pages of
our website

* Prolt before tax denved from unaudited ranagemment accounts

GHG Emissions Analysis
Global emissions

Global emissions UK ermisstons  France emissions Intensity
Source {(m1COze) ImitCOze) (rniCO:e) {miC0.e/Em)
Total GHG emissions metnc tonnes {mt)* 31,488 24,525 6,963 180
Scope 1 Direct emissions from owned/controlled operations
a Direct emissions from stationery combustion 4,344 2,457 1,887 25
b Direct ermissions from mobile combustion 399 13 386 2
¢ Direct emussions from process sources 0 0 0 0
d Direct emissions from fugitive sources 220 220 0 1
Totals 4,963 2,690 2,273 28
Scope 2. Indirect emissions from the use of purchased electricity, steam, heating and cooling
a Indirect emisstons from purchased/acquired electricity 22701 20,498 2,203 130
b Indirect emissions from purchased/acquired steam 0 0 0 Q
¢ Indirect emissions from purchased/acquired heating 1,388 151 1,237 8
d Indirect emissions from purchased/acquired cooling 49 49 0 ¢
Totals 24,138 20,698 3,440 138
Scope 3 Upstream emissions
a Business travel 587 322 265 3
b Waste 1,520 660 860 9
c Water 280 155 125 2
Totals 2,387 1,137 1,250 14

www.hammerson.com

Our connected reporting framework on pages 28-30 and on the Positive Places pages on our website contain
further details of our sustainability performance in 2014

www hammerson com 29
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OUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY CONTINUED

CONNECTED REPORTING FRAMEWORK

A CONSISTENT REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Hammerson has reported extensively on its sustainability performance since 2008 For the past six years Bammerson reporting has
complied with Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards In doing so, we aim te provide data and disclosures that facilitate companison
with other real estate companies and enable stakeholders to gain an objective view of our approach and performance All our data are

available on the Sustainability pages of our website

Energy (Hammerson global)

2011 2012 2013 2014

Cost of landlord obtained energy (£000) 9,707 9,404 7,025 6,604
Estimated energy savings (£000) 1,231 1,032 407 an
Energy efficiency investment (£000) 1,157 3,616 1,854 637
Carbon
Year-on-year CO,e emissions building intensity by portfolio

2011 2012 2013 2014
UK shopping centres kgCO;e per m? cornmon parts/year 100 84 99 96
UK retall parks kgCOse per car parking space/year 96 79 90 85
French shopping centres kgCO.e per m? common parts/year 102 97 71 53
Water (Hammerson global)

2011 2012 2013 2014
Cost of landlord obtained water (£000) 1,896 1,751 1,305 717
Investment in water management improvements (£000) 16 312 27 30
Esumated water savings (£000) 218 191 280 588
Waste

2011 2012 2013 2014
Total waste UK shopping centres tonnes (000} 19 19 23 25
Total waste French shopping centres tonnes (000} 6 10 5 9
Total cost of waste disposal UK and French shepping centres fm 20 18 20 21
Percentage recycled UK shopping centres % 59 64 77 75
Percentage recycled French shopping centres % 42 27 40 3
Percentage diverted from landfill UK % 70 83 89 95
Percentage diverted from landfll France % 67 40 67 49
Percentage diverted from landfill Glebal % 70 71 86 84

* Note Histonic figures restated due to more accurate waste streams
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COMMUNITIES

Qur community engagement pragramme focuses on four key areas

Skills and employment
+ Health and wellbeing

+ Young people
» Regeneration

Let’s Talk Shop

At Brent Cross Shopping Centre the Let's Talk Shop initigtive
supported by London Borough of Barnet and National Skalls
Academy for Retall has placed 18 people into jobs at the

Centre By providing a single point of contact for retalers and
traiming support for apphcants this intiative has streamlined the
application process, making it easier for employers to alert
potential employees to forthcoming roles

Somewhereto_

Somewhereto_ at High Cross inks young people with underused spaces It has
created enlivenment for the centre while supporting enterprising young people
Read more about our work with Somewhereto_ on

htip//sustainabiiiy hammerson corn

Retail pathways

Highcross in Leicester 15 one of five centres across the UK piloting
the Retail Pathways project led by the BCSC Education Trust
Three young people have taken up apprenticeships and will be
working with six different retailers and the centre management
tearn over a 12- month placernent The training they receive
through this innovative scheme wall provide a firm foundaton
for therr future careers

Lives not knives

The Lives Not Knives unit at Centrale has supported 108 young people into employment
or training dunng its fist year, saving over £150k in public spending Read rore about our
Lives not knives programme gn hitp//sustainability hammerson.com

2011 2012 2012 2014
Direct contributions (£000) 932 599 431 1,700
Indirect contnibuiions (£000) 366 446 299 407
Number of organisations that benefited from Hammerson's dwect and indirect contributions 389 347 398 332

EMPLOYEES

Achieving our ambition of creating Positive Places relies on the skills
and enthusiasm of our employees During 20714 we have mantained
our sustainability training obyjectives delivenng a range of role specific
training 1n addition to the basic training provided through corporate
induction This includes sustainability away-days, learning lunches

and breakfast briefings All new joiners also receive role specific tranng
with a member of the sustainability team Qur Cenire-based staff
receive regular, role appropriate training on environmental
management 1ssuas and systems

Investment in employee training

Making sure our staff remnain inspired and enthusiastic 1s supported
by providing opportunities 1o tackle sormething outside the routine,
especially whilst raising money or contributing practically to a good
cause 2014 saw many such events, iIncluding our annua) Community
Day, a Pans to Marsellle bike nde, and a trip to Haiti to support the Haim
Hospital Appeal Maore details on this event and on our work with our
chanity partners 1s available on page 34

2011 2012 2013 2014
Total expenditure on training (£000) 482 357 212 179
7,400 5,000 6,000 4,000

Total hours spent on training

www hammerson com 31
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QUR PEOPLE

PREPARING FOR GROWTH

2014 was a year in which we progressed our people agenda significantly

Embedding our values, organisational change and resourcing were key areas of focus In addition,
our actions to iImprove management capabtlity and develop talent will strengthen the business
In the years ahead Positive steps were taken to improve collaboration and working practices
throughout the organisation and our diversity and inclusion agenda was progressed

LEADERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT
CAPABILITY

Duning 2014 we focused on improving management capability
within the business

For the first time, we developed a clear and concise competence
model for those who manage teams of people The Management
Framewaork, developed by a representative group of managers
from across the organisation, was launched in spring 2014

The Management Framework clearly defines the capabilities

and skills we want to see from our management teams

Furthermore, we redesigned our comprehensive recruiiment
processes to Incorporate the new Management Framework and cur
management assessment centres in the UK now include a greater
focus on management capablity than ever before

The Management Frameawork also gave us the benchmark against
which to design a completely new Management Development
Programme Atmed at exisung and potential managers, the
Programme was launched to much acclaim in the autumn and will
form the foundation of our management development With this
in mind, a comprehensive schedule has been planned far 2015

ORGANISATIONAL DESIGN
AND STRUCTURE

QOur commitment to operate the most effective organisational
structures and to maxrmise the contnbution of our people through
collaborative working continued throughout 2014

This was best evidenced by the opening of cur new Reading office,
Agquis House, where our integrated UK Finance team, the recently
restructured Group IT Infrastructure function, HR administration and
2 number of UK shopping centre support roles are based As a result
of this move, 25 employees will be leaving the business in 2015

Recent changes to our Asset Management, Leasing, Development
and Property Management functions — designed, in part, to allow for
greater scalability — enabled us to integrate new employees easily
Into these teams during the course of the year

Our group-wide Marketing function, restructured in 2013 to improve
efficiency and better leverage the expertise of our UK and France
teams, saw significant economies of scale whilst deliverning a broad
range of marketing activity across our portfolio
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TALENT MANAGEMENT AND
RESOURCING

The Company was successful in retaining and developing talent
whilst attracting high-calibre iIndviduals to the business in 2014

Voluntary staff turnover across the UK and France remained low at
10 3% despite improved labour market conditions

Qur estabhshed approach to performance management, including the
bi-annual assessment of employees’ potential as well as performance,
contributed towards a high number of promotiens during the year,
131n the UK and sixin France

Primarily driven by the progression of the Company’s development
projects and the Reading office maove, the need for external
recrutment was high and 96 new people joined Hammerson during
the course of the year A number of restructuring initiatives resulted
in 14 employees leaving the business during the year

In order to improve our Company-wide approach to talent
management and succession planning we objectively evaluated the
majorty of UK and France roles dunng the course of the year Using
the established Hay Group evaluation methadology, we developed
the Hammerson Career Framework

Going forward we will use the Career Framework to help identify
career paths for high-potential employees and our aspiration is for
this to support the mobility of our workforce across the UK and
France Furthermore, we will use the Career Framework 10 enhance
our succession planning practices within the organisation, particutarly
for serwor management and business-cntical roles

KEY FACTS AT A GLANCE

445 Q6 M
HEADCOUNT=
33 4 O/, VOLUNTARY

. STAFF TURNOVER
INTHE UK
1 1 1 3 5 INTERNAL MOVES

& PROMOTION

IN FRANCE OMOTIONS
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THE SURVEYORS OF THE FUTURE

APPLICATIONS TO OUR UK GRADUATE PROGRAMME DURING 2014,
RESULTING INTWO APPOINTMENTS

The Hammerson Graduate Programme was
launched in 2011 and our first graduate surveyors
Joned the Cornpany In the auturnn of that year

Introduced with the purpose of developing
our own surveyors for the future, the
programme has been designed 1o give
graduates experience In asset management,
leasing, developrment and investment whilst
working towards chartered status with the
Royal Insutute of Chartered Surveyors

2014 was a significant year with both our

first recrunts — Shelley Taylor and Robert van
Vliet - gaining their RICS accreditation and
subsequentiy moving into asset management
roles within the organisation

with further graduates already on the
programme and more set to join the Company
in 2015, we are well placed 1o nurture our

own talent in the future

EE | passed my APC (Assessment of Professional Competence)
in April 2014, having successfully completed five six-monthly
rotations across key areas of the business as part of the
graduate development programme The high quality of
training and flexibility offered by the programme provided
me with the confidence and ability to pass my APC and to
accept an asset management position within the shopping
centre portfolio | am enthusiastic about the future success
of the graduate development programme and excited

SHELLEY TAYLOR about opportunities for my career with Hammerson 59

www hammersoncom 33
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OUR PEOPLE CONTINUED

CULTURE AND VALUES

2014 was a year in which our values - Ambition, Responsibility,
Collaboration and Respect - started to become embedded within
the business and have a real impact on the way we work

Good internal communication s impoertant to us and In 2014 an
increasingly collaborative approach was enhanced through regular
staff briefings and the introduction of a single Intranet for the entire
organisation As a matter of course, the Company regularly consults
with its ernployees on a wide range of topics such as changes

to reward, our approach to internal communications and flexible
working Internal updates on business news and performance

take place on a regular basis

Our staff conference, held at Les Terrasses du Port, was themed
around the values with awards given 1o those employees who
had demonstrated them to best effect

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The 2014 Cornmunity Day in the UK was our sixth to date and was

met with the usual enthusiasm from head office and shopping centre
employees 214 employees participated in 15 events ranging from the
Hammerson Games with 220 young people from Whitmore, Sebright,
Daubenay and Burbage Prnimary Schools to painting, weeding and
gardening at the Coram headquarters in ¢entral London This once
again proved a valuable tearmn buldding event, providing an opportunity
for employees across the business to work together

Every two years employees select two chanty partners with whom
to work The selected charities recaive a cash donation and, more
importantly, an oppartunity to develop a relatonship with the
business Employees are incredibly supportive of this process and
highly engaged with the charnties selected, which for 2014/2016 are
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Within our shopping centres there were numerous examples of
values-driven activiies with our parucipation at Highcross in Retall

Path being of particular note This new iniwative, launched by the BCSC
Educational Trust and the National Skills Academy for Retail, ams to
attract young people Into the property and retaill secters and support
their development through its high-quality apprenticeship pregramme

A YEAR IN SHOPPING CENTRES

In France, the opening of Les Terrasses du Port was certainly the
highlight but, in addinon, the decision to in-source shopping centre
rmanagement services will enable us to maximise performance

and improve synergies across the portfolio in the years ahead

In the UK, WestQuay, Highcross and The Oracle maintained their
Investors in People accreditations and the taking over of the asset
management at Cabot Circus resulted in 11 new employees joining
the Company Growth in our Property Management, Technical Services
and Car Parking teams enabled us to deliver an increasing number of
cross-portfolio solutions, all with the am of improving performance
and standards in all cur shopping centres

Samantans and Elifar Employees are also encouraged to support
other chantes through our match funding programme In 2014,
£18,989 was raised by employees for 22 charities, which was
supplemented by £6,970 in company contributions

In May six employees ventured to Haiti for two weeks to show ther
suppoert for the Hawi Hospital Appeal With nearly £11,500 raised our
team were able to see first-hand how far that money goes With some
of the funds raised, the Appeal was able to buy nearly 500 banana
tree roots which our team loaded, unloaded and planted To further
support the appeal, we sent a container funded by the Guernsey
Overseas Ald Commussion, loaded up with solar panels and batteries
for a backup system, clothes donated by Pnmark and medical
equipment from the Swiss Paraplegic Foundation




DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

During 2014 the Company enhanced a number of business pracuces
which support our objective of promoting diversity within the
organisation In addition, we advanced a number of new initiatives
as well as introducing clearly stated targeis for the first ume

In the summer our Group Executive Committee attended a workshop
on uncenscious bias Delvered by Brook Graham, our diversity and
inclusion advisors, the session was designed to broaden awareness of
dwersity n the workplace and to foster debate about actions to take
m order to create a more diverse workforce Our UK and France senior
management teams will attend similar workshops during 2015

We continue to place particular emphasis on gender diversity when
recruiing Of the 96 new employees recruited in 2014, 52 were female
{549%) with many of these in senior professional roles Seven of our

18 shopping centre General Managers are fermale

Our 2014 graduate intake was once again spht 50750 by gender,
as 1t has been since the programme’s inception n 2011

The Company continued to support a range of activities focused

on broadening awareness of the property industry, particularly
amongst under-represented groups in society Specaific actions taken
during 2014 included the ongoing sponsorship of the Pathways

to Property scheme, paruicipanon in the Capital South mentoring
scheme in Croydan, sponsorship and participaton of Retail Path and
the prometion of Inspinng the Future events across the business

The latter part of 2014 saw us Introduce a number of objectives,
against which we will measure our progress Specifically, these are

+ That women will hold a minimum of 3086 of the senmior
management roles throughout the organisation

That women are represented 1n ne less than 30% of roles
identified in the senior management succession plan

That the gender gap for employee engagement, as measured
by our bi-annual employee survey, 1s no greater than 5%

The Board's stated aim 1s to matntain 20% female representation
a1 Board level whenever practicable

The Company welcomes and fully considers all suitable applications
for employment, srrespective of gender, race, ethniaity, religron, age,
sexual onentatton or disability All employees are ehigible to participate
In career development and promotion opportunities Support also
exists for employees who become disabled to continue in therr
employment or to be retrained for other suitable roles

DIVERSITY

fas a1 31 Dec 2014)
Cheat Fig 10

All employees

Male 45%,
0
Female 55%
Chert Fig 11 Chart Fig 12
Senior management Board
Chart Fig 13 Cheat Fig 14
Shopping Centre Graduates
Managers
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING PERFORMANCE

During 2014, we reviewed the Key Performance Incicators (KPIs) by which we monitor our business
This was to ensure they provided the most appropriate metrics for monitoring the achievement of
the Group's three strategic priorities which are designed to deliver value for shareholders In order
to better align the KPls with these strategic priorities we have introduced three new KPIs Cost ratio,
Leasing activity and Global emissions intensity ratio The Group's seven KPis are split between
financial and operational measures and the KPIs and associated benchmarks are set out below

FINANCIAL KPIs

Chart Fig 15
Total property returns (%)

Description

We compare the total return achieved by the Group’s property
investments on a proportionally consolidated basis, Including
premium outlets, against the IPD Retail Property Universe The IPD
benchrmark s weighted 70 30 between the UK and French indices
1o be comparable with the geographical allocation of the Group's
properties As the final 2014 IPD indices are not published untl
after the publication of this Annual Repart, the benchmark s
management’s best estimate using available IPD data

Link to strategy

We invest In, create and operate high-quality real estate which 1s
attractive to both customers and consurmers and provides a platform
from which to grow income and value to deliver returns In excess

of the benchmark

Performance

13 6% (IPD 12 5%) (2013 8 5% (IPD 8 1%))

During 2014, the Group's property Investments produced a total return
of 13 6% which was 110bp ahead of the estimated IPD benchmark.
The Group’s outperformance was principally due to our premium
outlets business which delivered a total return of 19 9%

2015 focus

We believe pnime shopping centres, convenient retall parks and
prermium outlets of the type in which Hammerson invests will
outperform other classes of retal real estate over the longer term

Chart Fig 16
Growth in like-for-like NRI {%)"

Description

The annual growth in the Group's net rental Income (NRI} for
investment properties owned throughout the current and
prior periods, excluding the impact of acquisiions, disposals,
developments and exchange rate movements

Link to strategy

Net rental income from the property portfolio s the primary source
of the Group's operating cash flow and the main contributor to
earnings We aim to grow like-for-like NRI through teasing vacant
space, captunng uplfts from rent reviews and indexation, tenani
engineenng and other ‘value adding’ Initiatives

Performance

219%(2013 21%)

On a like-for-like basts, net rental income grew by 2 1% for the portfolio
In 2014, above our target of 20% Income from UK and French
shopping centres grew by 2 2% and 2 0% respectively UK retail parks
Income inCreased by 2 4%

2015 focus

Demand for new retail space continues to imprave, partucularly in

the UK. Near-term lease expinies, breaks and rent reviews provide the
opporiunity to increase rental Income and implement tenant rotation
toimprove the quality of the retail offer across our portfolio

Mare on page 49

Maore an page 46

*  Ona proportonally consolidated basis but excluding the Group’s premium outlet interests
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Key to alignment to strategic priorities
High-quality property
Inceme generation

Capital strength

The remuneration of Executive Directors is aligned closely with the Groups
KPls through the Cempany's Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) and Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP}

For 2014 the AIP cantains all four of the Financial KPls, and Total Group property
returns and the Growth in EPS KPIs are also included as performance measures
within a number of the annual LTIP awards

The operational KPls are consistent with the Group’s strategic prionities and geod
performance In these areas should deliver improved financial results for the Group

Details of Executive Director remuneration 1s included in the Remuneration Report
on pages 75t0 93

Chent Fig 17
Growth in adjusted EPS (%)

Description
The increase in adjusted earnings per share (EPS) expressed as a
percentage of the prior year figure

Link to strategy

Adjusted EPS 1s the Group's principal profit measure and 1s an indicator
of the level of recurring profit available for distribution to shareholders
as dividends Sustained growth in earnings reflects the sound capitat
structure of the Group and will support a progressive dividend policy
and creased shareholder returns

Performance

35%(2013 10 5%)

In 2014, adjusted EPS increased by 08 pence, or 3 5%, to 23 9 pence
We benchmark this KPl against the Retail Prices Index (RPI) and in
2014 RPlwas 2 5% Adjusted EPS increased through additional income
from the fike-for-like portfolio, Increased earnings from our premium
outlet investments and new income from developments This was
partly offset by the dilution associated with the share placing, lost
income from disposals autweighing new income from acquisitions
and financing activity, where savings will be generated in the future

2015 focus

EPS growth will be driven by new rental income from recent
acquisitions and the completion of developments such as Les Terrasses
du Port It will also be enhanced by cost saving measures undertaken
dunng 2014

Chart Fiy 18
Costratio (%)

Description

The cost ratio shows the total operating costs, including the cost
of vacancy, as a percentage of gross rental income for the Group's
property portfolio

The ratic 1s not directly comparable between different companies, as

it s impacted by different business models and accounting treatments
The ratios for 2011 to 2013 exclude the impact of the discontinued
operations associated with the sale of the Group's office portfolio

Link to strategy

Mamntaining an efficient operating structure supports the growth in
the Group's profitability and enhances shareholder returns and the
potential for future dividend growth

Performance

23 4% (2013 24 6%)

During 2014, further progress has been made in reducing the cost ratio
as the iIncome generated from the property portfolio has Increased
whilst operating costs have been tghtly controlled The 2014 ratio
excludes a net cne-off restructuring cost of £30 milllon incurred
Implementing a number of cost saving initiatives dunng the year

2015 focus

The ratio 1s forecast to iImprove as additicnal Income from recent
acquisitions and completed developments will more than offset
Investrent In growing business areas such as digital and development

More on page 52

Mote on page 53
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CONTINUED

OPERATIONAL KPIs

Chaat Fig 19 Chert Fig 20 Chart Fig 21

Occupancy (%)" Leasing activity (Em)’ Global emissions intensity ratio
(mtCO,e/£m)

Descrniption Description Description

The ERV of the space in the Group's
investrnent portfolio which 1s currentty let,
as a percentage of the ERV of the portfolio

Link to strategy

We aim to maximise the occupancy of our
properties as income lost through vacancy
has a direct impact on prcfitability

However, we believe that a low level of
structural vacancy provides an opportunity
for us to manage the mix and location of
customers within a property This enhances
the consumer expenence and should
generate rental income and capital growth

Performance

97 5% (2013 97 7%)

High occupancy has been maintained
during 2014, with the portfolio being

97 5% occupied at the year end This was
margenally lower than the prior year, but
above our target of 97 0%

2015 focus

We expect occupancy to remain high as
retallers in both the UK and France seek
space In the best trading locations

The amount of Income secured through
leasing actvity dunng the penod This
includes income from both new leases
and lease renewals across the investment
portfolio This 1s an absolute, nota
hke-for-like, figure

Link to strategy

Leasing is directly inked to rental income
growth and also enables the Group to
enhance the retall offer across the portiolio
through active tenant rotation

Performance

£295m (2013 £239m)

In animproving economic environment,
dunng 2014 we have seen an increase

In leasing actwty across all sectars of the
portfolio On average, these leases have been
secured at 6% above December 2013 ERVs
and 5% above the previous passing rent

2015 focus

With retaller demand for new space
strengthening, we are focused on delivering
tenant rotation to enhance the retail offer
across our portfolio

Tonnes of CO,e emissions from properties
and facilities under our direct control
including corporate operations This metric Is
calculated as a ratio of the Groug's adjusted
profit before tax

The measure Is calculated over the 12 months
ended 30 September each year The ratio

has only been calculated from 2013 when
mandatory GHG emissions reporting

was introduced

Link to strategy

High-guality property I1s iIncreasingly expected
to be carbon efficient Hammerson is
committed to leading the property industry
In delivering energy efficient retarl assets,

with low operational cost

Performance

180mtCOe/£m (2013 221 mil0,e/Em)
The ratio has improved dunng 2014 as we
have made efficiencies in our operational
activities which have sigrficantly reduced
carbon emissions across the portfolio

2015 focus

We will continue to drive down carbon
emissions across the portfolio, through
Initiatives such as Investment N renewables,
energy efficient technology and lighting

@ More on page 46

@ More on page 46

* Ona proportuonally consolidated basis but excluding the Groups prerium outlei interests
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EPRA MEASURES

EPRA Financial Reporting Bast Practice
Recommendations

Hammerson 1s a member of European Public Real Estate Association
(EPRA) and actively participates iIn a number of EPRA committees and

intiatives This involves working with peer group companies, real estate

investors and analysts, and the large audit firms, to improve the
transparency, comparability and relevance of the published results of

listed real estate companies in Europe

We have adopted the recommendations in the December 2014 Best

Practice Recommendation report and the key EPRA metncs are shown

in the table below

EPRA Best Practice Recommendations
(BPR) on sustainability reporting
Absolute measures for energy and water usage, greenhouse gas

emussion and waste, together with intensity measures for the same

areas as defined by EPRA, are set outin the full Global Reporting
Intative and EPRA Best Practice Recommendation compliance
pack which can be found online at www hammerson com

Table Fig 22
EPRA performance measures
Performance measure 2014 Performance 2013 performance Definition Page
Earnings £1713m £1645m  Recurnng earnings from core operational activities 128
in 2014, EPRA earnings differ fremn the Group's adjusted
earnings of £174 3 milion which exclude a net one-off
restructunng cost of £3 0 million
Earnings per share 23.4p 231p  Recurnng earnings from core operational activities 128
divided by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the penod As for the 2014 EPRA earnings
above, the Group's adjusted EPS of 23 9p excludes a
net one-off restructuring cost of £3 0 million
Net asset value (NAV) £6 38 £573  Net Asset Value (NAV) to exclude the fair value of 129
per share financial instruments, debt and deferred tax balances
divided by the number of issued shares
Triple net asset value £5 96 £541  NAV adjusted to include the fair values of financial 129
{NNNAV) per share instruments, debt and deferred taxes
Net initial Yield (NIY} 47% 52%  Annuabsed rental Income based on cash rents passing 163
at the balance sheet date, less non-recoverable property
operating expenses, divided by the market value of the
property, including estimated purchasers’ costs
Topped-up NIY 4 9% 55% EPRA NIY adjusted for the expiry of rent-free periods 163
Vacancy 25% 23%  Estimated market rental value (ERV) of vacant space 46
divided by the ERV of the whole portfolio (occupancy
15 the nverse of vacancy)
Cost ratio 23 4% 246% Total operauing costs as a percentage of gross rental 53

income, after rents payable The 2014 ratio excludes
a net one-off restructuning cost of £3¢ million

www harmerson com

39

1HOd3H J1931VHLS




BUSINESS REVIEW

ANOTHER SUCCESSFUL YEAR

The 2014 Business Review provides an overview of the achievements made against our

three strategic priorities during the year

HIGH-QUALITY
PROPERTY

During 2014, we have introduced a Product
Framework which has been embedded across
the business This 1s based on six unique focus
areas as shown on page 3, which have been
designed to ensure cur portfolio 1s able to
perform in the evolving retall environment

We aim to apply the framework consistently to
ensure our properties are attractive to retailers
and consumers and are vibrant places to visit

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

The Group's property portfolio includes 22 prime shopping centres,
22 convenient retall parks and investment in 15 premium outlets
across Europe providing a total of 2 2 millon m? of retall space At the
end of 2014, the combined portfolio was valued at £7 7 bilhon, with
69% of the pertfolio by value located in the UK, 25% in France and the
balance representing premium outlets In ten Eurcpean countries

The average lot size for the portfolio was £93 million and the ten
most valuable properties represented 50% of the portfolio value

DEVELOPMENTS AND EXTENSIONS

The Group has a proven track record of delivering iconic retail
developments We have a large number of development opportunities
in both the UK and France, Including six on-site schernes and three
major London developments These will require expenditure of
approximately £15 bilhon and have the potential to significantly

grow the business and create new retall destnations In addition,

we are warking to bring forward a number of potential develepment
projects, but are conscious of the need to tightly control expenditure
while these opportunities are fully assessed

During 2014 we completed three projects and have continued t©
make good progress in advancing our other development schemes
as shown in the table below

Completed developments

In May, we opened Les Terrasses du Port, Marsaille, the 62,800m’
shopping and leisure destination, which has traded ahead of
expectations The centre was valued at £480 miflion at December
2014, £107 milhon above 1ts development cost, and 15 now 98% let
Further details of this successful project are on page 21

At Abbotsinch Retail Park, Paisley, which was acquired as part of the
Junction Fund portfolio in October 2012, a 5,000m?, £9 milhon terrace
extension was completed in June The extension created five new
units which are fully let, and increased the park to 20,900m?

A 7,200m? extension of C'Pariner, Paris creating a 14-sCreen cinema
and food court was completed towards the end of the year The
extension is fully let and 1s part of a wider refurbishment of the centre,
including Primark’s first Pans store Retailers have witnessed sales
growth and a significant increase in footfall

Planning Letting

+ Achieved planning approval for
- Brent Cross, London Nw4
— Ellott’s Field Shopping

+ Signed lettings at

Council resolution for compulsory
purchase order at
- Croydon town ¢centre,

South London

Submitted planning application for Southampton

- The Goodsyard, London Ei

PROGRESS MADE IN ADVANCING OUR DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME IN 2014

— Abbotsinch Retaii Park, Paisley
— Cyfarthfa Retail Park,

Park, Rugby Merthyr Tydfil
- WestQuay Watermark, - Eliott's Feld Shopping
Southampton Park, Rugby

- Le Jeu de Paume, Beauvais

- LesTerrasses du Port, Marseille
- Silverburn extension, Glasgow
— Victona Gate, Leeds

— WestQuay Watermark,

Construction

- Completed works at
- Abbetsinch Retall Park, Paisley
- Les Terrasses du Port, Marseiile
- O'Paninor, Panis

Progressed construction at

- Cyfarthfa Retalt Park, Merthyr Tydfil
- Le Jeu de Paume, Beauvais

- Silverburn extension, Glasgow

Started construction at

- Ellott’s Field Shopping Park, Rugby
- Victonia Gate, Leeds

— WestQuay Watermark, Socuthampton
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On-site developments

Table Fig 23
Estumated Estimated
Current cost o annual
Ownership' Lettable area Expecied value?  complete? income* Let*
Scheme % m?  completign fm im £m %
Silverburn extension, Glasgow 50 10900 Q12015 n/a 3 1 97
Cyfarthfa Retall Park extension, Merthyr Tydfil 100 14500 Q22015 n/a 1¢ 2 65
Eliott's Field Shopping Park, Rugby 100 15700 Q32015 n/a 28 3 62
Le Jeu de Paume, Beauvais 100 23800 Q42015 34 34 5 62
Victoria Gate, Leeds (Phase 1} 100 34300 Q32016 49 104 10 40
WestQuay Watermark, Southampton 100 17000 Q12017 8 72 5 58
Total 116,200 252 26
Notes

1 Valge costs and income represent Hammersans share for propernes held in joint ventures

Valuation at 31 December 2014 Values are not included for extension projects as they are incorparated into the valuation of the existing property

2

3 Incremental capital cost including capitahsed interest

4 Incremental income net of head rents and after expiry of rent free penads
5

Let or in sohicitors hands by income at 13 February 2015

The first group of new catering operators have successfully opened

at the 10.900m’ leisure-led extension of Silverburn, Glasgow which
will Increase the centre to in excess of 100,000m? The project 15 almost
fully let and features a 14-screen Cineworld and a total of nine new
restaurants, Including Five Guys, Chimichanga and Carluccios The
restauranis are due to open by Easter 2015, with the ¢inema opening
In the summer

We have progressed the 14,500m? extension to Cyfarthfa Retail Park,
Merthyr Tydfit where works commenced 1in 2013 The first phase

of the extension, Including B&Q's first Eco-learning store, opened

in Septernber The remaining 8,700m? of the scherme, Including a
4,600m? fulline M&S store offering clothing, homeware and a foodhall,
will open in surmmer 2015 The scheme has provided over 250 jobs
during the censtruction phase and will create the equivalent of up

to 230 full-ume jobs when complete

In March, planning consent for the extension of Elliott’s Field Shopping
Park, Rugby was upheld following a Judicial Review and we staried on
site In the autumn The scheme will be anchored by a 5,600m? full-line
Debenhams and a 4,600m* M&5 general merchandise store and also
Involves the construction of a new retall terrace The extension will
accommodate a further 13 new fashion and homeware brands and
provide new catering space, iImproved car parking facilities and
improvements 1o the externat environment Completion s expecied
in autumn this year and 62% of the estimated annual ncome has
been secured The scheme 1s targetting BREEAM Excellent and ihe
integration of 130kWp of solar photovoltaic panels will enable the
generation of approximately 1mwh of renewable energy each year

Qur 23,800m’ development In Le Jeu de Paume, Beauvais 1s due for
completion this year, and will be anchored by Carrefour Market The
scheme will also include 86 retail units, including H&M and Furet du
Nord and 37 residential apartments Leases representing 62% of the
anticipated income have already been signed or are in soliciiors’hands

Construction work for the first phase of Victona Gate, Leeds
commenced in Apnt 2014 The 34,300m” scheme 1s adjacent to

Victoria Quarter, which was acguired (n 2012 The £150 million
development will consist of three main bulldings a flagship John Lewis
store, a two-street arcade with more than 30 asprrational retailers and
restaurants, and an 800-space multi-storey car park Leasing progress

1s encouraging, with 40% of the retail income let or in sclicitors’hands
Further details of this scheme are on page 22

Following planning approval in June, we started on-site with the first
phase of WestQuay Watermark The 17,000m? leisure and catering
scheme 15 1 the centre of Southampton, next to our jointly owned
WestQuay Shopping Centre The scheme includes a 10-screen
Showcase Cinema de Lux, up to 20 restaurants and a new pubilic
prazza in front of the city’s histone walls The scheme s scheduled

to be fully open by spring 2017 Esumated ncome for the £80 mullion
development is £5 mithon per annum, of which 58% has been pre-let
1o catenng operators ncluding Wahaca, 21zz1 and Byron The scheme
I1s targetting BREEAM Excellent
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

Major developments

Table Figy 24
Estimated
€ost o

Ownership Lettable area Potential complete!
Scheme % m? Earliest start completion £m
Croydon town centre, South London 50 200,000 2016 2019/20 625-750
The Goodsyard, London E12 50 260,000 2016 Phased 140-160
Brent Cross extension, London, NW4 41 20,000 2017 2020/21 475-550
Total 550,000 %,240-1,460
Notes

1 Hammersons share of incremental capital costincluding capitalised interest These costs are indicative as full scheme details are yet to be finalised

2 Cost reflecis phase 1 only Due 1o residential component of scheme area 15 gross external

We have continued to progress our three major developments in
London In addition to creating new retali destinations, these caomplex
schemes offer the potenual for significant urban regeneration and to
deliver attractive financial returns over the longer term

The redevelopment of Croydon town centre tnvolves the regeneration
of the retail heart of this area to attract £1 billion of annual retall

spend The scheme is being advanced by the Croydon Partnership, a
50 50 joint venture with Westfield which was formed at the beginning
of 2013 The Joint venture owns Centrale shopping centre and

2 25% interest in the 155-year headlease of the Whitgift Centre The
redevelopment of the Whitgift Cenire and refurbishment of Centrale
will result i 200,000m? of retall, leisure and residential space Planning
permisston was granted in April 2014 Since this date, Croydon Council
has resolved to make a compulsory purchase order (CPQ) to assemble
the land required for the scheme and the CPO inguiry began in
February 2015 The planning process and design of this significant
regeneration project has taken longer than onginally expected and,
assuming a successful CPO outcome, works are due to start in 2016
with completicn scheduled for 2019/20 Further details of this major
project are on page 23

In conjunction with our jont venture partner, Ballymore Properties,

a planning application to develop The Goodsyard, London Et was
submitted in July 2014 The 4 2ha site In Shoreditch has the potential to
deliver a2 260,000m? mixed-use development that will include 19,000m?
of retail space, 60,000m? of offices and up 1o 1,500 homes and will
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cater for the growing Tech City media and technclogy start ups
attracted to the area The regeneration will also provide substantial
public realm including a new park. The public consultation has been
completed and we are working with the local authorities A planning
decision 1s 1argeted for late 2015

Following approval by Barnet Council in January 2014 of a revised
planning application, wark continues an the regeneration of Brent
Cross Cricklewood in north-west London The subrmission followed
extensive consultation with local stakeholders and amended the
outline planning permission granted for the scheme in 2010

A reserved matters application for the extensive highways and
Infrastructure works was submitted in January 2015 A key element
of the regeneration 1s 3 90,000m? extension to Brent Cross shopping
centre which will defiver a world-class retall, dining and fessure
environment The scheme will also provide new parks and community
facilities and much enhanced transport connections In conunction
with our Joint venture partner, Standard Life Investments, we are in
the process of refining the scherne design and programme prior 1o
working up and submitting a reserved matters application for the
shopping centre extension This application 15 anucipated for late
2015 and, subject to confirmation of CPQ powers, we anticipate

a start on-site In 2017 with completion in 2020/21




Development pipeline opportunities

1HOd3YH DIDAVHLS

Tabte Fig 25
Lettable area
Scheme m Key facts
Italie Deux, Paris 13éme 5100 + Retall extension of existing shopping centre
- Progressing necessary consents to enable start on-site
Les 3 Fontaines, Cergy Ponioise 22,000 - Retall and leisure extension
+ Working towards obtaining the necessary consents in 2015
Crchard Centre, Didcot 14,000 - Retall-led extension to existing centre
+ Planning application submitted in February 2015
Parc Tawe, Swansea 20,600 + Arefurbishment and modernisation of existing retail park
+ Planning permissicn granted in August 2014 for a potential
start on-site in ate 2015
Silverburn {Phase 4), Glasgow 50,000 » Masterplan planning application submitted in July 2014 for
future extension of exisung centre
Masterplan alse Includes retarl, hotel and leisure uses
5QY Ouest, Saint Quentin-en-Yvelines 30,200 - Opportunity to reposition existing shopping centre, creating
a leisure-led destination
Victona Gate, Leeds (Phase 2) 73,000 Planning consent for retail-led scheme, including up to 2,700
car park spaces
Freehold control of site chtained
WestQuay Watermark, Southampton (Phase 2) 58,000 + Quthne planning consent for mixed use scheme
Councill owned land, with joint review of scheme under way
Total 272,900

We have a number of potenual pipeline schermes which we continue
to advance These include new-build and extension projects across
allthree of the Group's sectors UK and French shopping centres,

and UK retall parks

The precise nature and design of these schemes are fluid and the
speed of delivery will be dependent on a vanety of factors including
planning permission, retaller demand, anchor tenant negotiations,
land assembly, and scheme design The Group’s principal opportunities
are shown in Table 25 above

REFURBISHMENTS

The £100 million refurbishment programme across the majonty of
our French centres, which began in 2013, was completed dunng 2014
The programme introduced upgradad intenors, new services and
improved leisure provision to our centres

Following completion of the programme we intend to undertake
increased levels of tenant rotation across the French portfolio to further
enhven the retail offer and work up refurbishment projects for San
Sébastien, Nancy, Villebon, Paris and Les 3 Fontaines, Cergy Pontoise

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

We closely monitar the performance of our existing portfolio 0 ensure
that it meets our strategic requirements Proceeds from disposals may
be reinvested In the Investment portfolio or used to fund acquisitions
of developments to generate higher returns

in January 2014, together with our 50% partner Aviva [nvestors, we
sold Queensgate Shopping Centre in Peterborough Hammerson's
share of net rental income from the asset n 2013 was £6 million and
we recewved net proceeds of £99 millon

We acquired Saint Sébastien shopping centre in Nancy, north-east
France for £109 million in February 2014 The city has an affluent
population and 1s advancing the Nancy Grand Coeur regeneration
project which should benefit the centre’s footfall The 24,000m? centre
has passing rents of £6 million and there 1s scope for a number of
future asset management initiatives to Improve the centre and
INCrease income

In September, we completed the sale of the Group’s 50% stake i
1n 10 Grosvenor Street, W1 for £54 milion The bullding was our

remaining office asset and 15 currently Hammersons head office,

ahead of the relocation to Kings Place, King's Cross in June i

Also 1n September, we bought our joint venture partner’s 4096 interest
in Highcross, Leicester for £180 million The 105,600m? centre Is
anchored by John Lewis, generates passing rents of £27 mithon and
was extended and refurbished by Hammerson in 2008 There are

a number of asset management oppertunities which will attract
retailers and consumers and to grow the Income stream

Since the year end, in conjunction with our joInt venture partner
Allianz, we completed the acguisiton of Micetolle shopping centre

in Nice The 17,600m? centre was recently refurbished and trades on
fourlevels It attracts 13 million visitors each year and generates rental
income of £13 million Alhanz has a 909 stake in the centre, with
Hammerson holding 10% and the management contract for the
property Our share of the acquisition costs was £24 million
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

PREMIUM OUTLETS

Hammerson 1s the only European REIT to have a strategic exposure

to the premium outlets market which comprises outlet centres of
institutional investment quality We believe the outlet centre market 1
acntical distnbution channel for retailers, in particular for luxury and
fashion brands, as it complements ther multichannel strategees and
enables effective inventory management The European outlet centre
market is highly fragmented, but well managed high-quality centres
can deliver high sales densities and annual total returns above 109%

The Group has been Increasing its exposure to the premium cutlet
sector over recent years and has investments through its long-term
holding in Value Retall and also a new joint venture, VIA Qutlets At
31 December 2014, these investments represent 13% of the Group's
total property value

Value Retail (VR)

VR operates nine luxury cutlet Villages in the UK and Western Europe
with 170,000m? of floor space and over 1,000 stores Therr Villages,
which include Bicester Village, Oxfordshire and La Valtée Village, Paris,
serve the luxury, fashion and international shopping-tourism customer
and are amongst the best outlet centres in Europe The Group's stake
In VR has increased over recent years but remaned unchanged dunng
2014 We hold a 22% interest in the VR holding companies as welt

as direct investments in certain Villages When these holdings are
combined, the Group has an econormic interest In the net assets of

VR of approximately 38% Hammerson also provides loan finance

to VR which totalled £64 million at 31 December 2014

Our investment In VR 1s consistent with our igh-quality property
strategy During 2014, La Roca Village, Barcelona opened a 5,800m?
extension, and this, together with the introduction of Sunday trading,
has led to significant footfall growth Further expansions are on-site
or planned with work having commenced on a 5,800m? extension

at Kitdare Village, Dublin which will add 36 new internatonal brands
when open at the end of 2015 Planning has been granted for a
4,300rm? extension at Bicester Village to add new retail and catening
and improve road access to the Village

The Villages have continued to perform strongly duning 2014 with
brand sales growth of 11% across the portfolio Dunng the year, around
21% of the Iike-for-like retarl space in the Villages was remerchandised,
with around half of that resulting from the introduction of new brands
Qccupancy currently stands at 95% Future growth 1s expected to

be supported by global tounism, new emerging brands, consumers’
more considered approach to shopping and the importance of
percerved value

At 31 December 2014, the nine Villages were valued at €37 billion,
reflecting underlying valuation growth of 12 1% VR's EBITDA 1n 2014,
as prepared under IFRS, grew by 134% 10 €125 4 milion Hammerson's
share of the property valuations and EBITDA were £885 million and
£33 5 million respectively
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We continue to benefit from our relationship with VR management
and utilise the knowledge gained to enhance the positioring of the
Group's portfoho, for example at Victona Gate, Leeds Hammerson
enjoys a supportive relationship with VR, whose expansion into
China includes Villages at Shanghal and Suzhou

VIA Qutlets (VIA)

In September we announced the Group had invested in a 47% stake
In a new outlet joint venture, VIA Qutlets, formed in partnership

with APG, Value Retall and Meyer Bergman The new venture aims

to acquire existing European outlet centres with strong catchments
and potential for growth

During 2014, VIA acquired six outlet centres including Batawia Stad,
near Amsterdarmn and Alcochete, Lisbon The most recent acquisition 1S
Landquart, in Switzerland where Hammerson's share of the acquisition
costs was £28 milkon This centre 1s 21,000m?and has 90 retail units
including Calvin Klein, Desigual and Hugo Boss and it benefits from its
proximity to the wealthy catchment of Zurich as well as tounists visiting
the region

In total the VIA outlet centres provide 180,000m? of floor space and
over 600 stores and were valued at €393 million at 31 December 2014
Hammerson's share of the property valuations and post acquisikion
operating profit were £143 million and £2 1 milkon respectively

The operational performance of VIA 1s summansed i Table 26 below

Table Fig 26

VIA Qutlets
Operauonal performance® 2014
Brand sales (€m) 386
Brand sales growth (%) 13
Footfall (millions) 117
Average spend per visit (€) 33
Average sales densities (€000/m?) 29
Qccupancy (%) 92

* The above fiqures reflact overall partfolio performance, not Hammersons
owhership share and the year-on-year figures include pre-acquisition perforrmance

TheVIA partners intend to make further acquisitions in Europe with the
strategy of creating a ¢ €1 bilhon portfolio In addiion to bullding up
the portfolio, the focus in 2015 waill be on mproving the performance
of the outlet centres by changing the tenant mix, enhancing the
leisure and food offers, nght-sizing some of the units, creating flagship
units for key brands, and targeted marketing to Increase tounst visits
Hammerson intends to contribute personnel and expertise to VIA to
support this strategy

Page 53 of the Financial Review prowvides further information on how our
investments inValue Retall and VIA Qutlets have impacted the Groups
financial performance dunng 2014




INCOME
GENERATION

We actively manage our portfolio to generate
sustainable iIncome growth

We recognise the importance of strong
retatler relationships and the need to deliver
tenant rotation to enhance the vibrancy

of the consumer experence

Technology 1s becoming an integral part

of the shopping experience Consumers are
shopping across multiple channels and the
abtlity to engage with consumers Is the

key to success in a multichannel age

introduction

Retallers are focusing their space requirements on high-quality, pnme
shopoing centres, convaniently located retall parks and premium
outlets of the types invested in by Hammerson Retailers are making
these choices because they understand the changing preferences of
consumers

As retall specialists, we understand that i arder to keep generating
Incorme growth, we need to stay ahead of cansumer and retail trends
and supporting technologies Our Innovaticn agenda wall ensure that
the Group's properties are best-in-class and ready to deliver
excepticnal performance in this new retall environment

This specialist approach, alongside imnproving consumer confidence,
low interest rates and inflation, and the imited delivery of new retail
space, combine to create the conditions for ERV growth

Adapting to retail in a multichannel age

Consumers are increasingly considered in their approach to shopping
They have more choices than ever before and are using multiple
channels to research, buy and complete their purchases Retalters are
adapting therr offer to react to these changes We are working to a
tightly defined strategy to ensure that our product offer of proactively
managed, outstanding retall space meets the demands of both
consumers and retallers
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We actively rotate tenants to ensure the retail offer s opumised and
enlivened at each location Qur strategy also recognises the need
for superb custormer service and facilities that make shopping easy,
more convenient and enjoyable throughout the day Our catenng
and leisure offers, accessible parking, customer infermation and
world-class facitines are constantly refined and improved

In 2014, we launched a click & collect service at Brent Cross, in i
partnership with Collect+, which 15 already performing very strongly

A core focus s the seamiless integration of digitally enabled services
into our retail space which is increasingly a differentiator in the
selection of retail locations As well as offering free high speed Wi-Fi
to our shoppers, we are upgrading our web capabilities to assist
customers with researching their shopping tnps Digita! tools also
allow us to communicate with shoppers in a timely, relevant and
highly targeted way, drving loyalty and spend

Following successful trials of our award winning mobile app in

2013 at The Cracle, Reading and Highcross, Leicester, we launched

our updated platform ‘Plus’at Les Terrasses du Port, Marsetlle in May
This mobile app allows us to communicate directly with shoppers In
real-tme, with perscnalised content and offers based on their interests,
browsing and redemption history, and stores visited The innovative
geo-location technology uses Bluetooth low energy beacons

We have strengthened our team with digital and loyalty experts
and invested in class-leading analytic platforms to ensure that the
true value of this data is realised The Plus’app, upgraded websites
and analytics tools will be rolled out across our shopping centre
portfolio in 2015

In additron to the new digital platform, we continue to deliver
engaging content across secial media channels to more than one
milhion followers, as well as supporting successful physical events that
enliven our mall space such as Autumn Fashion Fix, Student Mights,
Love Food and The Big Positive Weekend
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Presentation of information

This overview provides information on a number of key aperational
metncs which management monitor to ensure the portfolio
generates sustainable income growth The information presented
15 consistent with our management reporting systems and includes
metrics prepared on a proporticnally consolidated basis However,
it excludes metncs from our investmenits In the premium outlet
shopping sector which are shown in the previous section of the
Busingss Rewiew, as the Group has less day-to-day management
involvement and the sector has different operational charactensucs
from the Group's shopping centre and resail parks interests 2013
figures also exclude the office properties which were sold and
treated as discontinued during that year

Operational performance summary

The tabte below shows the strong operational performance achieved
dunng 2014, demonstrating our abtity to adapt to the changing retail
environment The highlights are an increased level of letting actmty
across the portfolio and the recovery in tenant sales In the UK The
weaker French sales figures reflect the more challengmng economic
environment In France, although other metrics remain robust

Table Fig 27
Operational performance 2014 2013
et rental Income growth - hke-for-like (%) 21 21
Cccupancy (96) 975 977
Leasing activity — new rent from umits
leased (£m) 295 239
Area of new lettings (000m?) 1789 1539
Leasing v ERV {% above
31 December 2013/2012 ERV) 6 2
Leasing v previous passing rents {96) 5 2
Like-for-ike ERV growth (%)
UK 1.8 (02}
France 02 13
Retall sales change (%)
UK 2.6 (04}
France (10) (27}
Footfall change (36}
UK (13) (10
France 15 (49
Occupatonal cost ratio (%)°
UK 208 215
France 143 139
Collection rates {%)
UK 98 99
France 84 87
Non-rental income (£m)
UK 216 204
France 31 14

* Shopping centres only

Further information 15 provided in the Pertfolic Analysis tables
on pages 158 10 143
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Like-for-like net rental income

On a like-for-like basis, net rental Income generated by the continuing
portfolio grew by 2 1% dunng 2014 UK shopping centre growth of

2 2% was driven by leasing activity, rent reviews and increased turnover
rent and commercial Income, notably at Cabot Circus, Highcross and
Union Square However, these positive factars were partially offset by
the impact of lease expines and tenant reconfigurations

Leasing activity associated with tenant rotation at the newly
refurbished centres was the principal factor behind French shopping
centre income growth of 2 0% UK retail parks recovered from a flat
year in 2013 to record like-for-Iike growth of 2 4%, again due 10 leasing
actvity and the permanent letting of space which had previously been
impacted by retaller administrations

Table Fig 28

Like for-like net rental shoppllr:; France  UKretal Total
income growth (%) centres retall parks Other UK portfolic
31 December 2014 22 20 24 (12) 21
30 June 2014 20 11 12 02 15
31 December 2013 32 26 02 (40) 21

Further analysis of like for like net rental income by business segment s
on page 160

Occupancy

At 31 December 2014, occupancy was 97 5%, ahead of our 97 0%
target French occupancy fell marginally durning the year as a resuit
of lease expines, although this will enable future tenant rotation

Table Fig 29
UK
shopping France  UKretal Total
Occupancy (9b) centras retail partks  Other UK portfohio
31 December 2014 981 96 6 98 5 913 975
30 June 2014 G77 66 G82 S9t6 972

31 December 2013 981 574 584 913 977

Further analysis of accupancy by business segment 1s on page 158

Leasing

Leasing actmvity Increased dunng 2014, with 413 leases signed
representing annual rental income of £295 milhion and 178,900m?
of space This compares to 364 leases, £23 9 mullion of income and
153,900m? In the prior year For principal leases inthe Group as a
whole, rents secured were 5% greater than previous passing rents
and 6% greater than December 2013 ERVs

We continue to be encouraged by improving retailer demand and
there 1s an iImproving trend of ERV growth Across the portfolio ERVs
grew by 1 5% dunng 2014, with growth of 09% in the second half

of the year This annual growth vared across the Groupss three sectors,
with UK shopping centres seeing growth of 2 6% and retail parks

0 5%, whilst the French shopping centres suffered from low
indexation, achieving ERY growth of 0 2%




Lease expiries and rent reviews

Qur pnme property portfolio provides a secure income stream, with
awelghted average unexpired lease term of eight years However,
there are a significant number of leases across the portfolio which
will be subject to rent reviews, break clauses or expiry in the near
term These provide the opportunity to secure additional income
for the Group, if reviews or new leases are agreed at ERV

Over the three years to 31 December 2017, leases with current rents
passing of £78 0 million are due ta expire, or are subject to tenants’
break clauses If these were renewed at ERV, additional annual rental
incorne of £7 4 million would be secured

Including outstanding reviews and those faflling due over the next
three years, leases In the UK with rents passing of £150 2 mullion are
subject to review and, if reviewed at ERV, would generate additional
annual incorne of £96 million Rents in our French portfolio are subject
o annual indexation, which1s rilin 2015 for the majonty of leases
These figures do not represent a forecast and take ne account of void
periods, lease incentives or potential changes to future rental values

Further information on lease exgines and rent reviews
s included on page 159

Retailer sales, footfall and occupancy cost

The picture for sales at our UK shapping centres improved during the
year, with tenant sales growth, calculated on a same centre basis, of
2 6%, compared to a 04% reduction in sales in 2013 Jewellery, sports
and outdoors and health and beauty sales recorded the highest sales
growth during 2014 Feotfall in the UK reduced by 1 3%, however,
cansumers are spending more time and money durng each visit 1o
our centres

In France, the poor economic environment contnued 1o hinder retait
sales, and same centre sales fell by 1 0% duning 2014, compared to a
2 7% decling in 2013 Footfall increased by 1 5% in 2014, compared
to a decline of 4 99 10 2013 This 15 an encouraging trend wath
shoppers attracted to our centres following the completion of the
refurbishment programme

The occupational cost ratio, defined as tenark sales as a proportion

of total occupancy cost (rent, business rates and service charge) fell

In the UK from 21 5% to 20 8% as a result of the growth in tenant sales
dunng 2014 In France, the ratio was 14 3%, an increase from 139% at
the beginning of the year, this change 1s consistent with the reduction
in retailer sales dunng the year

Non-rental income

Norrrental ncome, being net income from car parks and the sale
of advertising and merchandising cpportunities, continues to grow
across the portfolo and 1s iIncluded within'net rental income”’

In the UK, non-rental income increased by 599 to £21 6 million,
principally reflecting additional iIncome at Union Square, Bullnng
and Highcross, partly offset by the impact of the sale of Queensgate
at the beginring of 2014 In France, non-rental Income increased

by £1 7 million to £3 1 million, reflecting additional income from the
new car park at Les Terrasses du Port

Collection rates and tenant covenants

Qur collecuon rates remain strong and dermonstrate the underlying
strength of the Group's income stream 98% of UK billings and 84% of
French billings were collected within 14 days of the December 2014
due date

Our credit control function assesses the covenant strength of
prospective tenants and monitors the credit standing of key retailers
using a credit rating agency The agency has a four-point indicator
scale which runs from one (low nsk’) 1o four (high nisk’) As at

31 December 2014, weighted by passing rent, 90% of UK tenants
and 83% of French tenants were rated within the two lowest

nsk categories

Incidents of tenant administrations have reduced dunng 2014 and, at
31 December 2014, 55 retail units were let to tenants in administration,
of which 42 continued to trade In total, 1 0% of the Group's total
passing rents was derived from tenants in administration, and for those
tenants no longer trading the figures was just 04% The equivalent
figures at 31 December 2013 were 1 2% and 05% respectively
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CAPITAL
STRENGTH

We maintain a strong balance sheet with

our pnme property portfolio supported

by a robust capital base Our unsecured
financing strategy provides the Group with
financial security and the flexibility and
capacity to deliver our business objectives

It also enables the Group to act swiftly and
decisively when opportunities arise to further
enhance performance

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Presentation of information

As in the previous Income generation’section on page 45, the
information presented in this section of the Business Review 1s
prepared on a proportionally consolidated basis and, unless stated,
excludes our investments in the premium outlet shopping sector
Fhe 2013 figures also exclude the office properties which were scld
and treated as discontinued in that year

Portfolio valuation

During 2014, the valuation of the portfolio increased by £776 million,
including an underlying valuation increase of £437 milion The
movement in the portfolio valuation 1s set out InTable 31 above

Chart Frg 30

Table Fig 31

Movement in portfolio value in the year to

31 December 2014

Investment Development

Total

im im £m

Portfolio value at 1 January 2014 5434 497 5,931
Valuation increase 4i9 i8 437
Capital expenditure

Acquisitions 306 - 306

Developments - 165 165

Expenditure on existing

portfolio 90 - 90

Tenant incentive amortisation 5 - 5
Capitalised interest 1 8 9
Disposals (126) - {126)
Foreign exchange (83) (27) {(110)
Transfers 453 (453) -
Portfolio value at
31 December 2014 6,499 208 6,707

Chart 30 below analyses the sources of valuation change for the

Group’s property portfelo Dunng 2014, investment yields fell and
increased valuations for UK shopping centres, retail parks and French
retad properties The yield movement for reiail parks and the French
properties was weighted towards the second half of the year The
benefit of leasing and modest rental value growth further boosted

valuations, although this was principally at the UK and French
shopping centres In total, yield improvernents accounted for

83% of the total portfolio valuation increase durning 2014

Further valuation and yield analysis 15 included on pages 162 and 163

Components of valuation change in 2014 - Total property portfolio (£m)

48  Hammerson pic Annual Report 2014




Table Fig 32

Returns data for 2014

Reiurn % Benchmark %
UK portfolio ncome return 51 UK IPD All Retail Universe income return 54
UK portfolio capital return 88  UKIPD All Retall Universe capital return 84
UK portfolio total return 143 UKIPD All Retaill Universe total return 143
Group income return 51  Group weighted IPD All Retail Universe iIncome return 51
Group capital return 80  Group weighted IPD All Retail Universe capital return 70
Group total return 136  Group weighted IPD All Retaill Universe total return 125
Total shareholder return over one year 247  FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK tndex over one year 213
Total shareholder return over three years p a 233 FTSE EPRA/NAREI UK index over three years pa 249
Total shareholder return over five years pa 115  FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK index over five years pa 135
Property returns Acquisitions may be financed initially using short-term funds before

The table above compares the financial returns generated in 2014
with benchrmark IPD indices The above returns include development
properties and the Group's returns Include those from the properties
held by its premium outlet investments in Value Retall and VIA Cutlets
The Group weighted IPD All Retall Universe total retumn benchmark of
1259 15 weighted 70 30 between the UK and French indices The All
Retal Universe ndices include returns from all types of retail property

As the Annual IPD benchmarks for both countries are not available
untll after this Annual Report has been published, the IPD benchmarks
have been estimated and are subject to revision The UKIPD data 1s
based on the Quarterly All Retall Universe to December 2014 As there
15 less data available for France, we have assurned that the French
benchmark 1s equal to the total return generated by our French
portfolio of 8 3%

The Group’s total return was 13 6%, compared with an estumated
weighted [PD benchmark of 12 5% The total return for the UK portfolio
was 14 3% which was in-line with the IPD index, although income
return was 30bp tower than the index which 1s indicative of the pnime
nature of the Group’s UK portfolio The Group's investments in premium
outlets properties produced a total return of 199%

An analysis of the capiial and total returns by business segment
15 included on page 162

SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Hammerson's return on
shareholders’ equity was 16 3% This compares to the Group's
estimated cost of equity of 80% The income element of the return
on equity tends 1o be relatively low given the prime quality of the
property portfolic The capital element of the return was driven by
the portfolios strong valuation performance dunng the year

Hammerson'’s total shareholder return for 2014 was 24 7% which
outperformed the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK index by 340bp Over the last
five years, Hammerson's average annual totat shareholder return has
been 11 5% compared with 13 5% for the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK index

FINANCING

Qur financing strategy 15 te generally borrow on an unsecured basis on
the strength of the Group's covenant In order to maintain operational
flexibility This strategy has ensured access to a wide range of debt capital
markets at competitive pncing Borrowings are arranged 1o ensure an
appropriate matunty profile and 1o maintain short-term hquidity

being refinanced for the longer term when market conditions

are appropnate Short-term funding 1s raised principally through
syndicated revolving credit facihties from a range of banks and financial
Institutions with which we maintain strong working refationships
Leng-term debt principally comprises the Group's fixed rate

unsecured bonds

Dernvative financial Instruments are used to manage exposure to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates,
but are not emplayed for speculative purposes

The Board approves financing guidehnes against which it momitors the
Group's financial structure These guidelines, together with the refevant
metrics, Including the Group's share of joint ventures but excluding
balances held in our premium outlet investrnents are summansed in
Table 33 below which illustrates the Group's robust financial condition

Table Fig 33
3 31
Decamber December
Key financing metnc Guideline 2014 2013
Net debt (Em) - note 258 2,265 2,252
Gearing (%) Maxaimum 85% for 46 56
an extended pernod
Loan to value (%) Up to 40% 34 38
Liquidity (Em) 648 716
Weighted average cost
of inance (%) 47 48
Interest cover (umes) Atleast20 28 28
Net debt/EBITDA {times) Less than 100 80 82
FX hedging (9%) 80%-90% 88 79
Fixed debt (%) 79 70

Curing the first half of the year, we received the funds from the

$443 million US private placement signed in November 2013 The
fixed rate senior notes mature In seven, ten and twelve years and are
denominated in US Dollar, Briosh Pound Sterling and Euro, with the
US Dollar portion swapped to fixed rate Euro The wesghted average
coupon is fixed at 3 6% and the proceeds have been used to repay
existing floaung rate debt and increase the proporuon of fixed

rate debt

In July 2014, we 1ssued a new eight year €500 million bond at a coupon
of 20% The proceeds were partly used in December 2014 to redeem
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BUSINESS REVIEW CONTINUED

the outstanding €480 million 4 875% coupon bond, originally matunng
in June 2015 This refinancing will result in a saving of 2 875%, or

€14 mullion, per annum and 15 in line with the Group’s objectives to
manage down the cost of debt and extend the debt matunty profile
At 31 December 2014, the average matunty of the Group’s debt was
65 years The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings 1s shown

in Chart 34 below

Funds raised through the bond issue and, the share placing in
September, were used In the short term to repay floating rate debt on
the revolving credit facilies at low floating rates of interest The tming of
this has led to the weighted average cost of finance nsing from 4 6% at
the half year to 4 7% for the full year However, following the €480 million
bond redemption in December, the running cost of debt fell to below

4 3% We believe that the stering and euro bond markets will continue
10 be avallable in the medium term to refinance existing bends as they
mature and we will access these markets as appropnate In addition,
bank lending markets have continued to improve dunng 2014, with
faling margins, and we expect to be able te take advantage of this
situation with upcoming refinancings of unsecured credit faciities

Our policy for interest rate hedging 15 10 fix the rate of at least 50%
of debt, although we may increase this at higher geaning levels At
31 Decemnber 2014, 79% of debt was fixed, compared with 70% at
the beginning of the year We expect interest rates to Increase in the
medium to long term and our fixed/floating profile wall partly
mitigate that nsk

Exposure to exchange translation differences on euro-denominated
assets 1s managed through a combination of euro borrowings and
derivatives At 31 December 2014, 88% of euro-denominated assets
were hedged by euro-denominated debt, compared to 79% at the
beginning of the year The purpose of this increase was to offset the
impact of iIncreased eure-denominated rental income following the
opening of Les Terrasses du Port in May Interest on euro debt acts as a
hedge against exchange differences ansing on rental Income from our
French business On average during 2014, approximately 829% of our
French income was hedged in this way However, falling euro interest

Chert Fig 34
Debt maturity profile at 31 December 2014 (£m)
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rates have ted 1o higher euro-denominated earnings and the hedge of
euro ncome 15 forecast te fall to approximately two-thirds duning 2015

The Group’s unsecured bank facilities and the US private placement
senior notes contain financial covenanis, requining that the Group's
geaning, defined as the ratio of net debt to shareholders'equity, should
not exceed 150% and that interest cover, defined as net rental ncorme
dwided by net interest payable, should not be less than 125 umes The
same gearng covenant applies to three of the Company's unsecured
bonds, whilst the remaining bonds contain a covenant that gearing
should not exceed 175% and have no covenant for interest cover The
calculation of these ratios includes the Group's share of joint ventures
Harmmerson's financial rauos are comfortably within these covenants
Fitch and Moody’s rate Hammerson's unsecured credit as A- and Baa2
{(positive outlook) respectively Moody's upgraded their outlook from
stable to positive In June 2014

Premium outlets

As explained at the beginning of this section, we do not propertionally
consolidate our two premium outlet interests, Value Retall and VIA
Qutlets These are financed independently from the rest of the Group's
financing arrangements Both VR and VIA utilise a combination of
secured borrowings and partner loans to fund thei structures At

31 December 2014, Hammerson's share of VR's and VIA's net debt was
£275 milhon and £31 million respectively If the Group's share of net
debt, properties and other net assets of the two premium outlet
investments were included within the Group’s financing metrics, the
Group’s proforma geaning would increase from 46% to 52%, whilst the
loan to value ratio would reduce from 349 to 33%

EQUITY ISSUE

Hammerson raised gross proceeds of £399 million in September 2014
through a successful share placing 71 3 million shares were 1ssued at

£5 60 each, representing a 4% discount to the prevailing share price

The procesds were used to finance the £180 million acquisition of a 40%
stake in Highcross, Leicaster and our 47% investment in VIA Cutlets The
remaining proceeds will fund the Group's development expenditure
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's strategic prionties of high-guality property, iIncome generation and capital strength
provide the basis to enhance the Group’s financial performance and 2014 has been another

successful year for Hammerson

Presentation of financial information

The Groups financial staterments are prepared under IFRS and for
2014 the Group has adopted IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements The new
standard requires that the Group’s joint arrangements, which were
previously proportionally consolidated, are classifted as joint ventures
and are equity accounted This presentation 1s consistent with the
treatment of the Group's iInvestment in Value Retall, which is classified
as an assoclate

The income statement on page 106 and the balance sheet on page
108 include single lines showing the Group’s share of post-tax profit
and the net investmenit In joint ventures and associates respectively
The Group's proft for the year and equity shareholders'funds are
unaffected by the presentanional changes associated with the new
accounting standard Further details of the impact of adopting this
accounting policy are given In note 1 to the accounts on page 113

Table Fig 35
Adjusted profit analysis

Year ended 31 December 2614

Adjusted profit1s a key measure of the Group's inancial performance
as it reflects the underlying earnings of the Group Details of
adjustments in calculating adjusted earnings are given in note

11A 1o the accounts on page 128

As explained 1n the Business Review on page 46, management
continues to monitor the performance of the business principally
on a proportionally consolidated basis, except for its interests

In premium outlets through its investments in Value Retall and
ViA Qutlets where the Group has less day-to-day mvolvement

In operational activities The commentary in this Financial Review
Is consistent with this approach

Table 35 below highlights the presentational impact of the adoption
of IFRS 11 on the Group's proporticnally consclidated adjusted profit

Year ended 31 December 2013

Share of Share of

Reported Property joint Proportionally Reported Property joint  Proportionally

Notes to the Group ventures consolidated Group ventures consglidaled

Accounts £m £m £m fm m £m

Gross rental income, after rents payable 2 205.9 136.3 3422 1755 1438 3193
Property outgoings 2 {17 8) (18 8) {36 6) (15 3) (21 2} {365)
Net rental iIncome 2 1881 1175 3056 1602 1226 2828
Administration expenses 2 (42 6) (0.9) {43 5} 411) (10 {42 1)
Net finance costs 2 (97 4) (27) (100 1} (88 6) (1% 905)
Share of results of joint ventures' 138 114.8 (1139) 09 1211 {1211} -
Share of results of assoclate 144 160 - 160 134 - i34
Profit from discontinued operations 9 - - ~ 39 14 53
Adjusted profit before tax 2 178 9 - 1789 1689 — 1689
Tax charge 2 {0.9) - (c9) {0 8) - (08)
Non-controlling Interests 2 (37) - (37) (36) - (36)
Adjusted profit for the year 211 174.3 - 174.3 1645 - 1645
Adjusted EPS, pence X 23.9p 23.9p 231p 231p
Total dividend per share, pence 10 20 4p 20 4p 191p 191p

Notes

1 The £0 9 million shown as *Share of results from joint veniures for the year ended 31 December 2014 represents the share of adpssted profit from the Groups investment in VA
Qutlets which s not proportionally consolidated All other joint venture interests are propartionally consolidated in this analysis

Further analysis on the proportionally consolidated income statement s 1n
note 2 to the accounts on pages 117 and 118
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Profit before tax

The Group's profit before tax for 2014 was £703 1 rmuliion compared
with £341 2 million in 2013, the latter figures includes discontinued
operations As analysed in Table 36 below, the year-on-year increase
reflected portfolio revaluation gans of £436 8 millron in 2014,
compared to £90 3 million in 2013 A good operational performance
also contributed to the increase in profit

Qther profit vaniances related to the net loss of £6 5 millon on the sale
of properties and joint venture interests in 2014 compared to a profit
of £11 7 million 1IN 2013 and a £13 7 milion increase in the fair value of
denvatives compared to a decrease of £13 9 milhon in the prior year

Table Fig 36
Analysis of profit before tax

Yearended Yearended
Proportonally consolidated excluding 31 December 33 December
premium out'ets and including discontinued 2014 2013
operations in 2013 Notes £m fm
Adjusted profit before tax 2 1789 1689
Adjustments
(Lossi/Gain on the sale of properties
and joint ventures interests 2 (6 5) 117
Net revaluation gamns on
property portfolio 2 436 8 503
Net revaluation and other losses
In Joint venture not proportionally
consolidated - VIA Quitlets 2138 (2.0) -
Net revaluation and other gains
In associate - Value Retail 2,14A 939 881
Bond redemption - premium and costs 7 (87} (39
Net one-off restructuning charge VA (30} -
Change in farr value of dervatives 114138 137 {139)
Profit before tax 2 7031 3412

At £178 9 mithon, adjusted profit before tax was £180 miflion up on
2013, an increase of 5 9% Table 37 below reconciles the movement
tn adjusted profit before tax between the current and prior years
The principal contributors to the in¢rease were new income from
acquisiions and developments, additional income from the like-for-
lke portfolio and Value Retall These were partly offset by higher
financing costs associated with reduced levels of floating rate debt

Takle Fig 37
Reconciliation of adjusted profit before tax

Adyusted
prcfii before

Proporugnally consolidated excluding premium 1ax Adjusted EPS

outlets and in¢luding discontinued operations in 2013 £m pence
Adjusied profit before tax 2013 1689 23
Net financing expense (4 7) {7
Net administration expense ©9) {on
Net investment and development activity 68 11
Like-for-like net rental income increase 54 07
ViA EPRA earmings 09 01
Value Retail EPRA earnings 26 03
Impact of share placing 14 (05)
Exchange and other (15) 1
Adjusted profit before tax 2014 1789 239
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In 2014, adjusted earrings per share increased by 3 5% to 239 pence,
reflecting the changes noted in Table 37 Calculations for earnings per
share are set out In note 11A to the accounts on page 128

Table Fig 38
Net rental iIncome

Year ended  Year ended
Proporuonally consohdated excluding 31 December 31 December
premium outfets and including 2014 2003 Change
discentinued operations (n 2013 £m £m £m
Like-for-lke investment
properties 266 4 2610 54
Acquisitions 16.3 55 108
Disposals 20 167 (14 7)
Developments 209 38 171
Exchange - 32 (32)
Net rental iIncome 3056 2902 154

In 2014, the portfolio as a whole generated net rental incorme of

£305 6 mullion, compared with £290 2 million inthe prior year Growth
of 2 1% in iIncome from the like-for-tike portfolic was principally
driven by leasing activity at Cabot Circus and Italie Deux Net rental
income also increased with additional income of £17 1 million from
developments, principally Les Terrasses du Port and £108 million from
acquisiions This was partly offset by £14 7 million of income lost
from disposals, pnncipally Queensgate sold in January 2014 and the
remainder of the office portfolio sold in June 2013

Further analysis of net rental Income by business segment I1s on page 160

Administration expenses

As announced with the 2013 annual results, we intended to
rebalance the Group’s cost base by increasing resources to grow
the development and digital marketing areas of our business

Dunng 2014 a number of intiatives were implemented and we have
consolidated senior positions in London, contracted to relocate our
London head office to King’s Cross in June, reduced employee share
scherme benefits, closed the UK defined benefit pension scheme to
future accrual, and transferred a number of head office roles 10 a new
cperations centre In Reading

We have incurred a net £3 0 mifion one-off restructuning charge
which has been recognised within admirustration expenses, but
excluded from adjusted earnings The gross costis £5 5 million, of
which £30 million relates to occupational changes, £1 5 million to staff
restructunng and £1 ¢ million to the other initiatives These costs are
partly offset by a curtadment gamn of £2 5 million recogrised on the
closure to future accrual of the defined benefit pension scheme

We anticipate constraining total operating costs, whilst increasing
rental Income to further Improve the cost ratio over the next few years




Administration expenses are analysed in the following table Table Fig 40
Yearended  Year ended
31 December 31 December
Table Fig 39 2014 2013
Administration expenses Value Retal - Adjusted earnings analysis Notes £m tm
Year ended  Year ended
31 December 33 December Income statement
Proporucnally consalidated excluding premium 2014 2013 Share of results of associate H4A 1099 1015
outlets and including discontinued operations In 2013 £m £m Less EPRA adjustments VaA (93 9) (88 ”
Employee and corporate costs 521 492 Adjusted earnings
Management fees receivable (56) 69 of associate 160 134
Administration expenses 465 423 Within net
Less Interest recevable finance costs 58 56
Restructuring cost {55) -{ Total impact of VR on income
Pension curtallment gain 25 - | statement - adjusted basis 218 i90
One-off restructunng charge (30) -
Table Fig 41
Underlying net administration expenses 435 423 31 December 3% December
2014 2013
In 2014, underlying administration expenses, net of management Value Reter) - EPRA NAY analyss Notes im m
fees receivable, were £435 million, an increase of £12 millon, or 28%, ~ Balance sheet
compared with 2013 The increase was principally due to marginally investment in associate 148 628.8 5454
Fugher staff costs and reduced management fees associated with Add EPRA adjustments 148 319 197
Joint venture disposals and an outperformance fee receved in 2013 EPRA adjusted investment
In assoclate 660 7 5651
Cost ratio Loan to VR 15 635 687
The EPRA cost ratio for the year ended 31 December 2014 15 23 4%, Total VR
a reduction of 120bp from 24 6% for 2013 The ratio 15 calculated as otalimpact o on
balance sheet - EPRA basis 724.2 6338

total operating costs, ncluding the cost of vacancy, as a percentage
of gross rental income and the 2013 ratio 1s for continuing cperations
The reduction in 2014 reflects a £22 9 million increase in gross rental
Income whilst operating costs Increased by £1 5 million

The 2014 ratio has been adyusted to exclude the £3 0 million
cne-off net restructuring charge explained on page 52 Including
this tem would increase the 2014 cost ratio (o 24 3%

The ratio 1s not necessanly comparable between different companies
as business models and expense accountng ang classification
practices vary

The Cost ratio calculation 1s shown on page 161

Share of results and net assets from investments in
premium outlets - Value Retail and VIA Outlets

The operating performance of our investments in Value Retall and VIA
Outlets 1s described on page 44 of the Business Review

As explained above, for the managemnent reporting purpases we
do not proportionally consolidate the results of these interests as
the Group has less day-io-day Involvement in these operations

Value Retail (VR)

As the Group has sigrificant influence over the operations of Value
Retatt PLC and its associated entities, our investment in VR 1s treated
as an assoclated undertaking and equity accounted VR's contribution
to the Group’s Income statement and balance sheet is set out in
Tables 40 and 41

In 2014, EPRA net income from our investment was £21 8 million,

or 3 0 pence per share, compared with £190 millien, or 2 7 pence per
share in 2013 The uplft in income reflects the conunued brand sales
growth drmvng additionat rental iIncome

Durning 2014, on an EPRA adjusted basis, the value of the Group's
investment In VR increased by £95 6 million This was principally due to
the valuaron uphft within the VR property portfolio, the Group's share
of which was £1111 million

Including the Group's foan to VR, our net interest at the end of 2014
was valued at £724 2 millicn on an EPRA basis, equivalent tc 92 pence
per share

VIA Outlets (VIA)

The Group acquired 2 47% stake InVIA Qutlets in July, which 15 a
joint venture formed in partnership with APG, Value Retaill and Meyer
Bergman WIA acquired six assets during 2014 and for management
reporting purposes we da not proportionally consolidate the results
of VIA and instead using equity accounting

In 2014, VIA contributed £09 mulkon to EPRA earmings At 31 December
2014, the Groups investment In VIA totalled £104 2 million, or

£108 2 milhion on an EPRA NAV basis excluding deferred tax, goodwill
on acguisitton and the fair value of financial mstrumenis Further details
of the Group's Interest in VIA are shown in Note 13 1o the accounts

Finance costs

We reduced the average ¢ost of borrowings for the Group to

47%in 2014 from 4 8% in the prior year This was primanly due to the
increased use of floating rate debt during the year The €500 mullion
bond 1ssue tn July and earher $443 million US private placement have

www hammersoncom 53

1HOd3Y DI931VHLS




FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

been retained at fixed rates of interest Underlying finance costs,
compnsing gross Interest fess finance income were £109 2 million
compared with £103 6 million in 2013

Interest capitalised duning the year was £88 million and related
principally to the developmenits of Les Terrasses du Port, which
completed in May, and Victona Gate n Leeds

Tax

The Group 1s a UK REIT and French SIIC for tax purposes and hence 1
exempt from corporation tax on rental Income and gains ansing on
property sales The tax charge at 31 December 2014 remains low at
£1 0 million, of which £0 1 million relates to deferred tax

Dividend

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of 11 6 pence per share
Together with the intenm dividend of 8 8 pence, the total for 2014 15
204 pence, representing an increase of 6 8% compared with the prior
year The final dvidend is payable on 24 Apnil 2015 to shareholders on
the register at the close of business on 13 March 2015 and 20 pence
will be paid as a PID, net of withholding tax where approprate, with
the balance of 9 6 pence paid as a normal dividend As has been the
case In recent years, there will be no scnp alternative although the
dimdend reinvestment plan continues to be available e sharehclders

Balance sheet
During 2014, equity shareholders'funds increased by £914 million to
£4,974 million at 31 December 2014

Net assets, calculated on an EPRA basis, were £4,999 million, an
increase of 22 4% dunng the year On a per share basis, net assets
increased by 65 pence, or 11 3%, to £6 38 and the movement
during the year 1s shown in Table 42 below

Table Figy 42
Movement in EPRA net asset value

Netassets*  EFRA NAV®
Proportienally consolidated £m £ per share
31 December 2013 4,083 573
Revaluation - property portfolio 437 056
Revaluation — investment in Value Retall m 014
Revaluation - investment in VIA Outlets (2) -
EPRA profit for the year 171 022
Dwidends (140 018
Equity share issue {net of costs) 393 (002)
Exchange and other (54) (007)
31 December 2014 4,999 6 38

* Excluding deferred tax and the fair value of denvatives, calculated in accordance
with EPRA best practite as shown in nete 118
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The increase in EPRA net asset value was principally due to the
valuation surplus on the property portfolio due to yield improvements
Other improverments resulted from the gains from our Value Retail
investment, the equity share issue and retained earnings

Financing and cash flow
At 31 December 2014, net debt was £2,265 million, including our
share of net debt held in joint ventures which totalled £12 million

Net debt compnsed borrowings and currency swaps of £2,324 millon
and cash and deposits of £59 milllion During the year, net debt was
almost unchanged with a small increase of £13 milion The movement
in net debt duning 2014 are summarised in Table 43 below

Table Fig 43

Movement in net debt

Proportionally censolidated excluding premium outlets fm
Net debt at 1 January 2014 2,252
Acquisitions 414
Disposals (155)
Development and other capital expenditure 244
Proceeds from equity issue (net of costs) (393)
Net cash inflow from operations (162)
Dwidends paid 139
Exchange and other (74)
Net debt at 31 December 2014 2,265

At 31 December 2014, hquidity, comprising cash and undrawn
committed facilities, was £648 mdlion, compared with £716 millsion
atthe end of 2013

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to

affect its future development, performance and position are set out

in the Business Review, this Financral Review and the Principal Risks
and Uncertainties sections of the Annual Report on pages 40to 59
The financial position of the Group, its liquidity position and borrowing
facilities are also described on pages 49 and 50 and in notes

17,19 and 20 to the accounts

The Directors have reviewed the current and projected financial
position of the Group, making reasonable assumptions about future
trading performance As part of the review, the Directors considered
the Group’s cash balances, its debt matunity profile, including undrawn
faciities, and the long-term nature of tenant leases After making
enquines, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources (o continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the

financial statements




PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

MANAGING UNCERTAINTY

The management of rnisk 1s integrated with our operating, inancial and governance activities
The policies for risk management are designed to reduce the chances of financial loss, protect
our reputation and optimise performance when opportunities arise We identify, control and
communicate nsk management throughout the organisation using a framework which 1s

regularly reviewed by our management team

This framework ts subject to regular management review, and 15
approved annually by the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board For
2014, we have added two new principal risk areas 1n relation to Tax and
Regulatory matters and Ownership structures as well as updating @
number of key risks and mitigation actions The updated framewaork Is
shown in the table overleaf Macroeconomics and government pohicies
continue to dominate the nisk landscape, particularly with the
uncertanty associated with the forthcoming UK general election and
the slow economic recovery in the eurozone We have also included

references in the table to the pages in this Annual Report where the
nsks, or the elerments of the business affected by them, are discussed
further, and where relevant inked the risks with our strategic prionties

Responsibility for sk management rests ultimately with the Board
However, the foundations of our approach are instilted in the culture
and values at Harnmersen Improved team integration and a flat
management structure mean that the senior team 1s involved In

all key decision making, and nsk identification and mitigation

COMMITTEE

Monitoning and reporting responsibility

~ UK Executive
- Hammerson France
Management Board

AUDIT - Reviews effectuiveness of Groups risk management framework and internal
controls on behalf of the Board

- Ensures compliance with relevant legislation, rules and regulations
- QOversees effectiveness of the Group's Internal awdit function

EXECUTIVE - Management of the business and delivery of strategy
MANAGEMENT - Monitoring of key nisk indicators
- Group Executive Committee - Regular reviews of the nsk management framework
RISK AND - Responsible for integration of the nsk managerment framework
CONTROLS throughout the bustness

COMMITTEE ~ Monitors compliance with the Group’s nternal control systems
= Management of the internal audit function

BOARD - Overall responsibility for corporate strategy governance, perforrmance,
internal controls and nisk management

- Defines the Groups appetite for risk

Aypqisuodsas adueidwor pue uonejuawajdu)

DIVISIONAL MANAGEMENT - Responsible for implementation of risk mitigation actions and compliance

with internal controls and procedures at the operatonal level of the business
- Formal reviews of nsk management framework 10 identify nsk trends
- Oversight of project level nsk management acuivities
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL RISKS
Risk, impact and related Further
strateqic prionty Miigation commentary Change fram 2013

Business strategy

Implementation of a strategy - We commission and evaluate research into the Chuef The UK economy has seen accelerated
inconsistent with the market economy and invesiment and occupational Executive’s growth, although the recovery In the
environment, nsking poor markets and use this to prepare an annual report eurozone has been subdued with further
investment decisions and Business Plan and regular financial forecasts {page 4) monetary stmulus expected in 2015
inadequate returns The Group's portfolio is diverssfied by sub-sector Our markets Stack markets have performed strongly
Shapping centre, retail parks or and its allocation, including exposure to the {page 7) despite potennial uncertainty associated
premium outlet markets in UK or eurozone, is reviewed regularly Business with forthcoming elections But downside
France underperiorm relative to We focus on prime shopping centres in the best review nsks remain, especially given recent

other sectors or markets, eroding locations convenient retail parks and premium (page 40} election results in Greece

shareholcer value outlets, all with experienced management Financial Retailers are becoming more confident
Consumer spending statls, Strass-testing of our business mode! against review in therr outlook but must ensure that
particularly in France, adversely a severe downside economic scenaro has (page 51} therr sales channels remain relevant in the
impacting future performance confirmed that the Group 1s robust Low gearing, digital age and provide consumers with
Related strategic priofities long-term secure Income streamns from our leases, the flexibility and convenience they

the currency hedging of the value of and income require Real estate remains a comerstone

from our euro-denominated portfolio, a good of therr plans

spread of debt maturiues and the flexitility to
phase or halt our development programme,
all point to resilience to market shocks

We monitor closely developments in multichannel
retaiing and Introduce Nnovative new concepts
to our portfolio when appropriate

Property and corporate investment

Investment decisions result Acquisitions are thoroughly evaluated supported Qur markets 2014 has seen an increase in invester

in inadequate returns or the by detalled review, financial appraisals, due (page 9) demand for real estate, reinforced by

adoption of unforeseen liabilities dikgence and detared nsk assessment prior an appetite from overseas investors for

P g P! Business PP

Opportunities to divest of 1o Board approval review relatively safe returns from prime assets

properues are missed, or hmited « The perfarmance of Indmidual properties 15 {page 43} in the UK and France This s further

by market constraints, reducing benchmarked against target returns encouraged bydtheﬂconunumg low
interest rate and inflation environment

potenual returns Properties are held i aready for sale’state,

These factors have contnbuted to a nise
in real estate values during 2014 and this
trend 15 forecast 1o continue nto 2015

Related strategic prionties with documentation supporting leases, nghts
and abhgations readily accessible

The Group's property portfolio 1s high-quality,
gecgraphically diversified and let to a targe
number of tenants

However, in the event that there 1s further
instabiity In the eurozone, significant
volatlity could return to financial markets
in the short to medium term, which
could have a negative effect on real
estate values

Key to the principal risks table

Strategic pricrity Change in nisk from 2013
High-quality property Increased
Income generation Same
Capital strength Reduced
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Risk impact and related
strategic prignity

Property development

Over-exposure to developments
within a short timeframe increases
expaosure to market nsk and

puts pressure on finanaing

and cashflow

Poor control of the development
programme and failure to
address investment and
occupational market nisks or
inflationary pressures results

in inadequate returns

Poor management and
inadequate resourcing leads
to failed projects

Failure to achieve key project
milestones, such as planning
consents and land acquisiions,
on a uimely basis damages project
viabiity and ¢orporate reputation

Related strategic priorittes

Treasury

Breach of borrowing cavenants
triggers default and/or repayment
of facilities or bonds

Related strategic pnorities

Interest rate and exchange nisk

Adverse currency of interest
rate moverments result in
financiat tosses

Related strategic priorities

Further
Mitigation commentary Change from 2013
The Group's expasure to developments and the Business We successfully completed Les Terrasses
phasing of projects 1s considered as part of our review du Port in May and were on-site with six
annual Business Plan and reviewed throughout (page 40 projects at 31 December 2014
the year This process also considers future Our three major London schemes have
resourcing requirements been advanced and this comeides with
We produce regular management reporting improving dermand from retailers for new
0 enable effecuve monitoring of prime trading locations Local and
development projects national politictal support 15 still reguired
Detalled analysis, including market research, to bring these schemes to fruron, and
15 undertaken prior to the approval of expenditure uncertainty caused by UK elections may
on each development project act to adversely impact the delivery of
these projects
Where possible, guaranteed maximum price
contracts are agreed with bullding contractors We have also seen costinflation in the
and fixed prices agreed for other advisers censtruction sector, fuelled by growing
demand for skills and raw matenals as
Mult-disciplinary teams are as,semblt‘ed for each economic growth returns The recent fall
development under a project ‘owner;, and these n the ail pnce should act to cool these
are supporied by external expertise inflationary trends
Constructive relanionships are maintained with
local councils/government
A pragramme of post-completion reviews ensures
potenual improvements 1o processes are idenufied
We have a substantial pipeline but will progress
developments only when the relevant markets are
sufficiently robust, when we have the nght level of
interest from occupiers and on the basis that sound
financial analysis demonstrates good returns
Deveiopments only represent 3% of the Group
property portfolio at 31 December 2014, and
leasing Is progressing as expected on the six
on-site developments
We set guidelnes for financial rauos which Business The improved econornic picture has
are monitored regularly by the Board review supported property valuations for prime
Our annual Business Plan includes stress tests (page 49) assets and hence maintained the safety
considering the impact of 2 significant Notes 19 margin for borrowsng covenants
deterioration in the markets in which we operate and 20 to the The Group's balange sheet and financial
Gearing stood at 46% at 31 December 2014, accounts ratios were further strengthened by the
significantly lower than the Group's most stringent  (P89es 140 £399 million share placing in September
borrowing covenant that gearing shoutd not 10141)
exceed 150% We estimate that values couid fall
by 52% from their December 2014 levels before
covenants would be endangered
We set guidelines for our exposure to fixed and Business Interest rates have rernained low over
floaung interest rates, using interest rate and review the last 12 months, and the pressure for
currency swaps as appropnriate At 31 December (page 49) a near-term Increase has dimimshed as

2014, 79% of the Group's gross debt was at fixed
rates of Interest

Exchange nsk 1s managed principally by matching
foreign currency assets with foreign currency
borrowings or denvatives At the end of 2014, 88%
of the value of the Group's euro-denominated
assets was hedged in this way

inflationary pressures have reduced
However, there remains an expectation
that they will nse in the medium term

Sterling has strengthened agamst the
eurc dunng 2014 and the nisk of volatility
remams at times of heightened
uncertainty in the eurozone
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Risk impact and related Further
strateqic prigrty Mitigation commentary

Change from 2013

Treasury (continued)

Liguidity nsk

+ Poor planning or external faciors, The Board approves future investment Business
including failures in the banking requirements and sufficient facilities are put review
systern, lead to a hquidity squeeze In place with an appropriate matunty profile {page 49)

preventing the refinancing of
maturing debt or leading to
insufficient iguidity te progress
the developrent programme

We monitor the matunity profile of debt and
take a proactive approach to refinancing

Crednt ratings are set for lending counterparties

and monitored We use diverse sources of funding
Companies with short-term

financing requirements may
continue to find 1t difficult
1o secure sufficient funding,
in particular from banks, at
costs comparable with their While credit conditions dunng 2014 have been
axisting faciities favourable for debt 1ssuers, there 15 a risk that ths
could change The Group's recent funding strategy
has therefore sought to raise new funds 1o
refinance near-term matunties This strategy was
demonstrated in 2014 by the 1ssue of an B-year
€500 millien bond in July where the funds were
partly used in December to redeem the
outstanding €48C rmilhon 4 875% bond matunng in
June 2015 At 31 December, the Group had
hiquidity of £648 million and an average debt

The high quality and diversification of cur portfolio
should help to protect values from the negative
impacts which may anse from changes in the
financial and property markets

Related strategic prionities

Lenders have become more willing
tolend dunng 2014, although conunue
to be selective in therr choice of
counterparty, and the corporate bond
marke! 15 open to borrowers with an
appropniate nsk profile

Alternatives to the tradiional bank
lending and bond markets, such as
private placement, remain open to
the Group

maturity of 6 5 years

Ownership structures

Joint ventures (JV)
Strategic differences with + The Group has a diverse range of joint venture Note 13tothe  We have reduced the number of Jvs
Joint venture partners impact partners and an annual iquidity review 15 accounts through the dispcsal of Queensgate and
operational activities and undertaken At 31 December 2014, 43% of our (page 131) 10 Grosvenor Street and the acquisition
reduce financial performance properties are classified as being held within of partner shares m Highcross and
Loss of iguidity through joint Joint ventures or associated undertakings SQY Quest
venture structures Joint venture documentation drafted to align The property market remains liguid with

strategic direction and 1o provide iquidity
and flexiilty for partners and 10 protect the
Group’s ownership

Related strategic prionties

a number of JV stakes, such as Cabot
Circus, having been successfully traded
on the open market

Premium outlets
Lack of direct centrol over externally  Strong working relationships and reqular meetings  Business review

managed premium outlet interests with partners to proactively manage any Issues (page 44)

results ininconsistent strategies and  Formal annual business planning process used Note 14 to the

governance structures o ensure strategic alignment accounts
Related strategic prionties Influence over strategy and governance gained (page 137)

through board representation for both
Value Retal and VIA QOutlets

Entities subject to external audit and property
independently valued for Hammerson

We continue to have a productive
working relationship with Value Retail
which 15 2 partner in VIA Outlets

Our investment in VIA Qutlet contains
provisions to enable effectve joim
govemance and control to protect
the Group’s positon
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Risk impact and related Further
strateqic prionty Mitigation commentary Change from 2013
Tax and Regulatory
Loss of tax exempit status due to Speculation and camment relating to changes Financial No significant changes durning 2014,
change in legistation tn tax regimes in the UK and Europe 15 monitored review atthough governments continue to seek
£U/UK regulation acts as a brake with the help of specialist advisers (page 54) 10 reduce fiscal deficits and regulators
on growth and administrative + Developments in regulation are monitcred and NoteBlothe  examinemechanisms which would
burden for the real estate sector governments and regulators lobbied through aCCounts make financial markets more resilient
£merging EU/UK environmental tepresentation by UK and European real estate (page 125) Increased taxation may be a nisk for
regulation acts to disrupt trade bodies the broader business sector, butan
transacuon processes and Monitering of exposure ta key regulations at asset-based industry such as real estate,
Increase costs portfolio level combined with strategic plan which currently benefits from tax-
Related to mitigate Active participation i policy efficient regimes throughout Eurcpe,
elated strategic priorities consultatans and industry led dialogue with could become a specific target
policy makers The real estate sector 15 sometimes
perceived by regulators to be part of the
financial services sector rather than as
an operating business and the industry
could be adversely affected by
misdirected regulation designed to
stabilise financial markets
Business organisation and human resources
Managerment structure or A Human Resources plan features as part of the Qur people The recruitment market has become
resourcing levels are iInappropriate annual Business Plan which considers team {page 32) more active with nising demand for good
for achieving bustness chjectives structures and talent management people This will put upward pressuse
j¢ ) 9 Governance
Failure to recruit and retain The Nominaiion Committee approves succession (pages 60 on salaries for the best candidates
key executives and staff with plans for senior roles to 74) We recognise the importance of
Y
appropriate skills and calibre Significant changes to the management struciure  Remuneration m%ur\:anngland developmgr?L:r staff
and have plans in action to help to
are approved by the Board Report
Related strategic prionities " e ) t (pages 75 mitigate the impact of third party
e periodically review the remuneration structure, 659 recruitment approaches

including an annual review by the Remuneration
Committee and benchmarking against industry,
or other relevant, comparatives

Management competency framework faunched
with management skills formally assessed with
annual appraisal process

Catastrophic event

The Groups operauons or financial
secunty are significantly affected
by disrupuon to financial markets
following a major event such as a
power shartage, extreme weather
enviranmental incident vl
unrest or terronst or cyber attack

Related strategic priorities

Continuity plans estab%shed at both corporate
and indwidual property levels

Properues rewewed for flood nsk and 10 ensure
appropnate defence measures and insurance
cover 1 In place

Cnisis management group established with
predetermined processes and escalation

Physical secunty measures in place at properties

Senior management, nctuding cnsis management
group, receive medha training far crisss events

Security threat assessed regulatly through links
with security agencies

Insurance pohcies include terronism cover

Whilst the averallnsk of a major incident
remains low, assessments far terronst and
cyber nisks indicate a heightened nsk
status in both the UK and France
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CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

SUPPORTING THE
GROUP’S STRATEGY

David Tyler
Chairman

My objective as Chairman is to help ensure the Board creates
maximum value for shareholders over the long term We do
our best to balance opportunity against risk and to lead the
organtsation In an ethical way

This Corporate Governance Report is intended to give an
insight into how the Board operated In 2014 to achieve these
aims Full detalls of the Company’s governance arrangements in
comphance with the Principles of the UK Corporate Governance
Code are included on pages 94 to 97

As you will have read in the Chief Executive’s Report on pages
410 6, 2014 has been a year in which the business has achreved
strong returns and 1s well placed to continue to deliver its
strategic goals The year has seen economic and consumer
recovery gather momentum which has helped stimulate
improved sales in our shopping centres and retail parks Our
newly created VIA Qutlets investment will provide exciting
opportunities for Hammerson Our investment in this sector

15 a key differentiator of our business Last year | said that | was
particularly struck by the capabilities of the management team
and their energy and vision and one year on | remain impressed
| want to thank them and indeed all our people for delivering

a strong performance In the year




An effective Board

As Chairman | am responsible for ensunng that your Board works
effectively under my leadership in support of the Groupss strategy

In last year's Annual Report | reported on my intention to change the
structure and frequency of Board and Cormmittee meetings during
2014 Board agendas have been revised and some items moved to
the agendas of the Committees in order to enable the Board to spend
more time discussing investment, marketing and development Senior
executives have met with Non-Executive Directors both formally and
informally to discuss specific projects The Board has evaluated the new
approach and | can report that the Directors are satisfied with the way
the Board 15 operating Further detail on this year’s internal evaluation
of Board effectiveness can be found on page 67 of the Corporate
Governance Report

One of the recommendations from the 2013 external Board
effectiveness review was to introduce an electronic board paper
portal as a more efficient, secure and sustainable way of disseminating
Board papers A project to explore suitable software was managed

by the Company Secretary and her team Following an evaluation
exercise, a provider was chosen and the software implemented

[t15 now being used for the Board and all Comminttees and feedback
from Directors indicates that 1t has been received very positively

Board changes and succession planning

Since my last report 1o you a number of changes have happened

to the Board and its Committees After the Annuai General Meeting
(AGM) In 2014 we said goodbye 10 John Hirst at which point Jacques
Espinasse took on the role of Chairman of the Audit Committee
Gwyn Burr assumed the role of Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee after the AGM, having been appointed to that Committee
in February 2014

Anthony Watson will be stepping down at the conclusion of this
year's AGM, after nine years on the Board On behalf of the Board

I would ke to thank Anthany for his commutment to the Company
and the valuable and significant contribution he has made as a
Non-Executive Director Anthony has been a member of the
Remuneration, Audit and Nomination Committees and was Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee from January 2006 to Apnl 2014
He has held the role of Senior Independent Director since January
2010 l'would also like to add my personal thanks to Anthony for the
significant rale he has played i ensunng that the Board meets

its responsibilities to shareholders and stakeholders in these roles

tacques Espinasse will have served on the Board for nine years
In 2016 and has indicated his intention 1o step down from the
Board at the AGM n 2016

In July, we deaided that all Non-Executive Directors would become
members of the Nomination Commitiee and so membership
increased by three The Nomination Commuttee report can be
found on pages 68 to 70

| am delighted to welcome Pierre Bouchut, who was appointed to the
Board on 13 February 2015 and a report on the recruitment process 1s
described in the Nomenation Committee report on page 70 His strong
financial expertise combined with an in-depth knowledge and
experience of the retail Industry 1n an international environment
complement the skills of the Board

in Iight of Anthony Watson's decision to stand down from the Board
in Aprit 2015, the Nomination Committee considered possible
successars to the role of Senior Independent Director in consultation
with all the Board and the Company Secretary | am delighted that
Terry Duddy has agreed to accept the role and he will be appointed
with effect from 22 Apnt 2015 He has both the night personal
qualites and deep commercial and shareholder relations experience,
culminating in hus years as Chief Executive of Home Retall Group

It 1s my responsibility to ensure that Board members have
Independence of mind and action and that the Board as a whole
has an appropnate balance and dwersity of skills, experience

and background This has been in my rmind as the changes noted
above have taken place Further changes to the Board will continue
to reflect these points as well as the leng-term demands of the
business as it develops in the coming years

Changes to the UK Corporate Governance Code
The Board and | rernain committed to following best pracuce in
corporate governance | am pleased to report that the Company
complied fully with the Code in 2014 Following the publication
by the Financial Reporting Council of a revised edition of the UK
Corporate Governance Code in September 2014, we have already
taken steps to comply with the updated requirements We plan
to comply fully with these requirements in 2015

David Tyler
Chairman
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YOUR BOARD

COMMITTED TO THE
HIGHEST STANDARDS
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From left to right

Dawid Tyler

Chairman

David Atkins

Chief Executive

Anthony Watson
Non-Executive Director and
Senior Independent Director
Peter Cole

Chief Investrent Officer
Timon Drakesmith

Chief Financial Officer
Gwyn Burr

Non-Executive Director
Jacques Espinasse
Non-Executive Director
Judy Gibbons
Non-Executive Director
Terry Duddy

Non-Executive Director

10 Jean-Philippe Mouton

Executive Director

11 Pierre Bouchut

Non-Executive Director

Biographical detas for all Directors are on pages 98 and 99 Further details
of the Board s balance of skills and expenence 1s on page 69
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YOUR BOARD'S YEAR

BRINGING CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE TO LIFE

This section of the Corporate Governance Report highlights
some of the key activities of the Board during 2014 it should
be read in conjunction with the section on compliance with
the UK Corporate Governance Code on pages 94 to 97

RAISING CAPITAL TO FUND ACQUISITIONS

AND DEVELOPMENTS

During the year, the Board explored vanous financing and
re-financing options proposed by management to enable the
Company to advance its acquisition and development strategy
whilst retaining a robust capital structure Financing options
considered by the Board included a bond buy-back, the 1ssue

For further

information of shares to be listed on the London Stock Exchange, a bond
on financing issue and hedging strategies Market conditions were kept
see page 49

under review duning this ime and management and the
Board receved feedback on likely shareholder responses

to various debt and equity raising options Proposals came
forward for a share placing as part of funding plans for an
investenent in Highcross and the VIA Outlet venture The Board
reviewed and approved a proposal to fund the acquisitions
through a placing of up to 10% of the Company’s exisung
1ssued share capital On 25 September 2014 the Company
announced that the placing had been successfully compteted
and would fund the acquisition of the remaining mterest

in Highcross, provide investment in the European outlet
sector and partly fund the Company’s significant
development pipeline

Key steps (n the Board's process in reaching its decision
10 proceed with the placing are set out below During
the process the Board worked closely with management,
the Company’s legal team and 11s advisers

PLACING OF SHARES - KEY STEPS

Review of the Consideration of the Discussions batween the Executive The Company anncunced
implicatiens of pre-market process, due Directors and the Company's major Its Intention 1o the

a cashbox structure diligence and other comfort shareholders to gauge expressions. Stock Exchange to

how the placing which the banks would require of shareholder interest place up ta 71 3 million

would be received by
shareholders and the
process timing and
costs of a placing

Rewiew aof market candiions which new ordinary shares

were favourable approval of the legal
documents required for a placing
and approval of the placing a5 an
appropriate means of raising funds

Announcement of
su¢cessful completion of
the placing which raised
approximately £399m
(before expenses)
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SHAREHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

The Board recognises the
Importance of communicating
regularly with 1ts shareholders
and during 2014 the Company
undertoak a variety of investor
relations activities which were
organised both for institutional
and private shareholders As well
as the formal programme of
events, ad hoc meetings took
place throughout the year

The majority of shareholder
contact 15 between the
Company’s institutional
shareholders and the Chief
Executive and the Chief Financial
Officer During 2014 a number
of events were either attended
or hosted by the Company

The programme of events Is

set out opposite

January 2014 Analysts'visit to Q'Parnnor, France
» One-to-one investor meetings hosted by Dawd Atkins and Timon
Drakesmith at the JP Morgan Property Conference, London
February 2014 - 31 investor road show meetings held in London, Pans and Amsterdam
March 2014 - 20 one-to-one meetings arranged at the Citi Global Conference, Miami
Invitations toe major shareholders from the Chairman to attend a meeting
Subsequent meetings were arranged
Apnl 2014 Annual General Meeting
June 2014 20 one-10-one (nvestor meetings arranged at the Kempen Conference
in Amsterdam
Investor and analyst visit ta Les Terrasses du Port, Marseilie Dawvid Atkins
and Jean-Philippe Mouton gave a presentation and the French project team
were avallable to answer questions The wvisit included a tour of the Centre
July 2014 Half-year nvesior road shows 32 meetings held in London,
Amsterdam and Pars
August - Meetings held with the MHead of Sustainability and shareholders to discuss
September 2014 sustanability performance

14 one-to-one Investor meetings arranged at the Bank of America Merrll
Lynch Conference in New York

November 2014

- Telephone meetings held with the Company Secretary and shareholders

to discuss corporate governance and Corporate reporting for 2015

December 2014

Seven one-to-one Investor meetings arranged at the UBS Conference
n London

Investor meeting with Value Retall representatives presenting on the
outlet sector

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME FOR NEW CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

lacques Espinasse succeeded John Hirst as Chairman of the Audit Committee following the Annual General
Meeting n 2014 Shorily after his appointrnent, the Company Secretary organised a full briefing focusing on
the rale of Audit Committee Chairman, accompanied by a comprehensive pack of bnefing papers The briefing
covered amongst other matters

- Adetailed update session on financal and tax-related matters from senior managers in the finance team,
- A meeting with the Group's external valuer, DTZ, to discuss the valuation process and oppertunities to refine the reporting process,

A discussion with the external auditor, Deloitte, covering corporate governance developrents and an update on the role and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee and Audit Commuttee Chairman,

. Asession with the Company Secretary and Group Financial Controller 1o review the Audit Committee’s work plan for the year and

consider any improvements, and

A private meeting with Deloitte, with whom the Audit Committee Chairman engages separately outside the Commitiee umetable
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YOUR BOARD'S YEAR CONTINUED

66

BOARD VISIT TO MARSEILLE

In October 2014, the Board held 1ts scheduled Board
meetng at Les Terrasses du Port, Marsellle Having
seen the Centre In the final stages of construction last
year this provided an opportunity for the Board to see
the Centre open for shoppers The Board icured the
Centre and received presentations from the local
project and management teams including progress
on stose openings and occupancy rate, feedback

on the operning of the Centre In May 2014 and an
update on Centre performance The Board also
received a presentation on how the multi-channel
dhgital programme at Les Terrasses du Port 1s positively
drving customer engagement and is also providing
new INsights into customer behaviour

BOARD STRATEGY DAY

The Board's annual Strategy Day was held at Les
Terrasses du Part, Marseille the day after the Board
meeting As In previous years, the Board prepared
for the day by reviewing background commentary
on the UK and French econcomies and real estate
markets and current Hammerson data including
the Group's corporate profile, operational data and
financial forecasts

Members of senior management joined the Board
for discussions which included branding, strategy,
capital allocation and operational efficiency The
agenda for the Strategy Day also covered

Review of progress against 2014 Business
Plan objectives,

+ Overview of the UK and European property
and retall markets and future trends,

+ Evaluatton of nsks in relation to economic
forecasts, their impact on the Company
and mitigation,

» Presentation from external advisers on
Iinking the Company’s strategy to
1ts brand proposition,

+ Improving financizl performance through

optimal capital allocation,

Growth opportunities in other terrisories

and sectors,

+ Review sustainability performance
and opportunities to ¢reate
sustainability leadership,

Improving the performance of the Group's
winning retail venues, and

Increasing retall spend through
operational strategies

A number of Initiatives idensfied as a result of the
Strategy Day have been incorporated into the Business
Plan for 2015 The Business Plan influences objectives
set for the Executive Directors and throughout the
business for 2015

Hammerson ple Annual Report 2014

DAVID ATKINS' PERSPECTIVE

Holding this year’s Strategy Day in Les Terrasses du Port, Marsellle
had a huge impact Being in our newest centre brought our
strategy to life and gave the Directors real nsight into current
themes and trading through direct contact with our staff and
our shoppers We experienced and saw first hand, the latest

technology, design tnnovation and industry-leading sustainability
in the Centre This really helped to inspire us to challenge our

ideas about the future strategy of the business

For me, the importance of the Strategy Day hes not in the
discussion of day-to-day 1ssues - that's the job of the Executive
Drrectors and managernent - but rather In the opportunity to be
ambitious I setting our strategic goals as a Board, to propose the
unconventional and evaluate our reactions to new themes and
ideas We do not confine ourselves to our sector but look at other
sectors too - for example, other consumer-facing businesses —
and we evaluate the best of what they are doing

The key to a successful Strategy Day is that broad-ranging
drscussions are stimulated through posing ourselves chaflenging
questiens and scenanos This 1s especially important for the
Nan-Executive Directors who are not involved in the running
of the business The insights and ideas generated through
discussion will not all find their way into our strategy but we
take away the best iniiatives 1o be refined and included in
the Business Plan




BOARD EFFECTIVENESS REVIEW

The Board recogruses that Board evaluation 15 a conuinuous process A thorough and extensive external Board evaluation was carned out In
2013, progress against which was reviewed as part of the 2014 evaluation and s reported on in the table below

The 2014 Board effectivenass review was facilitated by the Company Secretary and focused on questions grouped around governance themes
taken from the UK Corporate Governance Code Each Director gave feedback to the Company Secretary who discussed her interviews with the
Chairman and a report with recommendations was tabled to the Board and actions agreed The evaluation was conducted 1n this way to atlow
the Directers to make more informative responses and to establish any specific areas where the Board could improve its performance

In general the 2014 evaluation highlighted that satisfactory progress had been made against 2013 actions and in the way the Board continued

to operate The Board continues to strive for excellence and identified further opportunities for consideration These included

+ The centinued focus on successicn planning, parucularly for Executive Directors, and 1alent development,
- Refining the structure of the Strategy Day and how strategic discussions may be facilitated and made more effective,
+ Keeping abreast of the opportunities and risks of Value Retall and how they are managed, and

- Further engagement with senior management below Board level

Where appropriate these actions have been incorporated into the 2015 Board wark plan

A summary of the Board's progress against actions ansing from the 2013 externally facilitated Board effectivenass review 1s set out below

Recarnmendations from 2013 Board Effectiveness Review

PTOQ ress on acucns

Clearly identify optirnurm mix of skills that the Board needs

During the year the Nemination Comrmittee commenced a
phased plan for recruiting two new Non-Executive Directors
Pierre Bouchut was appointed on 13 February 2015 The
appointment of a second Non-Executive Director is underway
and will be a particular focus for the Nermination Commitiee
following the 2015 AGM

Identify the internal talent pool of new executives with
high potential and create development plans for them

The Nomination Commuttee reviewed succession plans in
June and continues to focus on this area

Reduced use of printed Board papers should be considered

An electronic Board portal has been introduced as described
in the Chairman’s Introduction on page 61

Board agendas should be revised to ensure adequate focus on
devalopment projects and marketing The layout of Board
papers should also be reviewed

The Board agendas have been revised, as described in the
Chatrrman’s introduction on page 61 The layout of Board
papers has been reviewed in iight of the iIntroduction of
an electronic Board portal

Effectiveness of reduced number of formal Board
meetings should be reviewed once a full calendar cycle
has been completed

The Board will continue to keep this under review

Additonal engagement between Non-Executive Directors
and management should be arranged

Sentor managers are invited to attend Board meetings for
papers with which they have been involved Durning the year
various Non-Executive Directors have met senior managers
farmally and informally for business specific purposes and
general networking Two UK centre visits are m the 2015 Board
work plan where further opportunities witl be scheduled 1o
meet employees
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

NOMINATION
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

David Tyler (Chairman)

+ Gwyn Burr

- Terry Duddy

- Jacques Espinasse
+ Judy Gibbons

Anthony Watson

« Pierre Bouchut

68

(Appointed
13 February 2013)

ENSURING THE
BALANCE IS RIGHT

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

During the year the membership of the Committee was increased to include all of the Non-Executive
Directors This enables the Committee to assist the Board better in discharging its responsibilities including
reviewing and evaluating the Board's balance and composition, and making recommendations to the
Board with regard to any proposed recrutment and other changes

The Board s mindful of the need to ensure that both it and the Committees continue to have the nght
balance of skills, expenence and knowledge to carry out their duties and responsibilities effectively In
particular, dunng the year and in ight of the changes to the Board which are described on page 61, the
Committee has focused its attention on selecting potental new Non-Executive Directors to jon the
Board The appointment process was conducted with Spencer Stuart, an executive search consuidtant,
and culminated in the appointment of Prerre Bouchut as a Non-Executive Director on 13 February 2015
The appointment process Is descnbed in more detall on page 70

The Commuittee has also considerad a successor for Anthony Watson's role as Senior Independent Director
The Serwor Independent Director acts as a sounding board for the Chairman, serves as an intermediary for
the Directors when necessary and 15 available to shareholders if they have concerns which they have been
unable to resolve through the normal channels or for which such contact is inappropnate Following my
discussions with each of the members of the Committee, we decided that Terry Duddy had the nght
personal qualities and appropriate skills and experience for the role of Senior Independent Director The
Board approved the propesal that Terry Duddy be appaointed 1o the role from the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting

One of my key responsibilities in ensuring Board effectiveness 1s to review, with the assistance of the
Normination Commuttee, succession planning for the Board Dunng the year the Nomiation Comrmittee
spent tme considering the mix of qualifications, skills, expenence and knowledge required for an effectwve
Board Further detail on the mix of skills 1s described on page 69

In addition, the Committee considered a progress report on the Company’s approach to diversity and
was pleased to note steps taken to promote diversity within the business, and short to medium-term
obyectives to focus further progress in this area were agreed You can read more details on the steps the
Company has taken in the ‘Our People'section on page 35

David Tyler
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
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Board balance and mix of skills
During the year the Committee considered the composition of the Board Each Director brings a particular range of skills and expertise 1o the
deliberations of the Board which facilitates constructive and challenging debate around the boardroom table Background professions of the
Board include property, banking, auditing, treasury, retall, media, marketing and technology All Executive Directors have a strong property
background as well as professional qualifications in their technical sphere and chart 44 below provides further details of the range of skills

and expertise on the Board Following the 2013 external Board effectiveness review and subsequent discusston the Board had determined that
at least one of the next two Non-Executive Directors appointed to the Board should be recruited with continental European expenence and a
wider background in areas such as Investment, banking, financing and fund management or asset allocation These skills would complement
the other skills on the Board to ensure an appropnate balance Pierre Bouchut's appontment 10 the Board in February 2015 adds to the

Board's existing expertise in finance In addibon, he brings considerable senior management expernence in the retail sector and a broader

European perspective
Chert Fig 44

Around the boardroom table - array of skills and expertise

Anthony Watson
Senor Independent
Director
Finance and Law

David Tyler
Non-Executive Chaimman
Leadership
Strategy and Finance
Retau
Sharehclder relanons

Corporate Governante

Timon Drakesmith
Chief Financial Officer!
Finance and capital raising
Investment and transactions

(14
The Board 15 well

managed and structured

Appropriate relationships
exist hetween the Executive
and Non-Executive Cirectors

David Atkins
Chief Executive
Strateqic leadership
Property
Investment and
uansacions

Gwyn Burr

Marketing
Customer service

far major retall brands
Financiat services

Terry Duddy
Strategic ieadership
Customer behawviours

Retail markets

Nan-Executive Director

S

Judy Gibbons
Digntak technology
Marketing

International Business

Non-Executive Director

pages 98 and 99

lean-Philippe Mouton
Executtve Director!
Property and leasing
French market
Marketing

Pierre Bouchut
Finance
French reran
French property

Further biographical detans
for the Board are provided on

\

Peter Cole
Chief Investment Officer
Praperty
Regeneration and
development projects

Investment and
13N5actions

Jacques Espinasse
Finance and treasury

French market
[nternational business

1 Additonally responsible for outlets

Executive Director

2 Addiionally, responsible for France and marketing
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Appointment of Non-Executive Director Chart Fig 45 .
The Committee led the process that resulted in the appointment Board gender diversity
of Pierre Bouchut Key steps in the process are outhned below

The Commuttee considered three executive search consultancy
firms after which Spencer Stuart was appointed to facilitate
and adwise on the search Spencer Stuart has no other
connection with the Group and 1s a signatory to the

Voluntary Code of Conduct of Executive Search Firms

- The Committee’s preference was ta recruit a senior business
person with deep experience in the French market and ideally
with expertise in both retail and finance Having considered
the knowledge and experience required a candidate profile
was prepared
+ |t was agreed that the Chairman and the Company Secretary
review a range of candidates following which a long list Chart Figy 46
was prepared for the Chairman by Spencer Stuart Board composition

- The Charman met and interviewed seven candidates and
reviewed the respective skills, expenence and fit of each
of the candidates with the Board's candidate profile

.+ Members of the Committee interviewed the shortlisted
candidates and the Committee made a recommendation
to the Board

- The Board approved the appointrent of Pierre Bouchut
on 13 February 2015

Succession planning

The Commuttee considered succession planning for the Executive

Birectors and other key roles in the organisason Due to the size

of the organisaton the Committee acknowledges that there are Chert Fig 47
not necessarily obvious successors for every sentor role Management's Length of tenure of Non-Executive Directors
plans for the idenufication, development and readiness of

talented successors to the Group Executive Committee and senior

management roles are kept under review The Committee noted that

management’s review of Individuals’ performance and potential took

account of the diversity profile within the organisatton Succession

planning provtdes an opportunity to ensure that Hammerson

1s developing a capable and diverse talent pocl for the future

For further details refer to the ‘Our People’section in the Strategic

Report on pages 32to 35

Diversity

The Board considers that encouraging diversity, including gender
diversity, within the Group, 1s an essential dniver of long-term success
and recognises that potential needs to be identified and nurtured at
all levels of the organisation The charts on the nght illustrate some of
the factors the Commuttee takes into account when considening the
composition of the Board As at the year end female representation

on the Board stands at 20% The Committee will continue to consider
gender diversity when recommending any future Board appomtments
However, future appointrnents will always be made on merit
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

AUDIT
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

Jacques Espinasse
{Chairman)

+ Gwyn Burr
Judy Gibbons
+ Antheny Watson

Pierre Bouchut
(Appointed
13 February 2015)

Fair
All important elements
have been included

Balanced
Consistency achieved
between the Strategic
Report and financial
Statements
An appropriate Dalance
between statutory
and adjusted measures
Adjustments are
clearly explained

Understandable
Greater use of diagrams
and briefer text
Clear contents pages
to aid navigation
Colour coding
to distnguish
different sections
Code Compliance
IN 3 separate secuon
Strategy presented
consistently throughout
Clear cross references

Jargon 15 avoided
where possible

ENSURING
ACCOUNTABILITY

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

On behalf of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to present its report for the year ended 31 December
2014 Although this 1s my first report as Charman of the Committee, | have been a member of the
Commuittee since May 2007 | succeeded John Hirst who stepped down after last year's Annual General
Meeting (AGM} after nine years of service and I would hike to thank John for his considerable contribution
to the work of the Committee Shortly after my appeointment as Chairman of the Commitiee I undertock
a developrnent briefing focusing on the rote of Audit Comrmittee Chairman and more detalls are
provided on this on page 65

Hfulfil the requirernent of the UK Corporate Governance Code {Code) as the member of the Committee
nominated as having recent and relevant financial experience In addition, my fellow Committee members
are indviduals who hold or have held senior office in business and have both the knowledge and
expenence to properly discharge therr duties and a good understanding of the 1ssues under consideration
We are supported In turn by members of the senior management of the Company and by the expertise

of the external auditor, Deloitte LLP (Deloitte), whose representatives regularly attend meetings In addition,
the Commuttee met with Deloitte and the internal auditor, Ernst & Young LLP (EY) without management
being present to enable full and frank discussion and to sausfy itself that the external and internal auditors
had not been unduly influenced by management

The Commutiee met three times during the year and attendance at these meetings is set out in the
Cornpany's report on compliance with the Code on page 94 Duning the year, the Committee paid particular
atiention {0 significant Judgernents in relation to the Group's financial statements These are significant by
virtue of their impact on the Group's results and the remuneration of senior management The main areas

of focus dunng the year are set out In table 48 on page 72

An essential element of the Committee’s work durning the year 1s the scrutiny applied to the valuaton of the
Group's property portfolio Having carmed out a review of the Commuttee’s schedule of meetings, | decided
that an additional meeting would be held in January to allow the Committee extra time to review, debate
and challenge the valuauon prepared by the Company’s external valuer CTZ Cebenham Tie Leung (DTZ}
and alsc Cushman and Wakefield (C&W) who valued the premium outlet centres This January meeting

will be Included in future In the Committee’s schedule

The Committee satisfied itself that the Annual Report 1s a document which allows shareholders to assess
the Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy The Committee considered

a paper from management on how each of the elements highlighted on the left had been addressed

In addition the Annual Report was reviewed by a number of external parties as part of the process
before the Committee made 1ts recommendation to the Board that the Annual Report 15 far, balanced
and understandable

In December, the Committee carned out an assessment of 1ts performance and, in Its opinion, continues to
perform its role efficiently and effectively | am confident that the Committee continues to satisfy itself that
the internal and external systems of conirol and safeguards at Hammerson are working welk throughout
the business to ensure that risks are mitigated and managed appropriately

| would like to thank Deloitte, on behalf of the Board, for the contnuing high quality of the audit services
they have provided to the Group dunng the year

Jacques Espinasse
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Table Fig 48

Significant financial judgements
Durning the year, the Commuittee considered the appropriateness of significant financial judgemnents made in connection with the financral
statements as set out below

Significant financial
Judgement considered
during the year

Why this issue ts considered significant

How the Committee addressed the ssue

Valuation of the
Group's property
portfolio (excluding
Premium Qutlets)
Please see page

114 for more detalls
about Yaluations

The valuation of the Group's property
portfolio, Including thase held n

Joint ventures, 1s a key nsk due to its
significance in the context of the Group's
net asset value Although valuations are
conducted externally by DTZ, the nature
of the valuation process and estimates
are inherently subjective The outcame
of this judgement 1s also a key
determinant of the Group’s results

and affects investment decisions

The Committee has a robust process in place to satsfy itself that

the external valuation of the Group's property portfolio 1s appropriate
The Commiitee recognises that the Group operates in two higuid and
mature markets, the UK and France, in which there are well established
and respected valuation professicnals The Committee reviewed the
outcomes of DTZ's valuations, challenged their assumptions and was
satisfied that pracedures and methodologies used were appropnate
The Commuttee is also farmihar with the processes by which management
prowvides information to OTZ Current conditions and recent transactions
in the market were reviewed to provide context DTZ were asked

to highhight any significant judgements and disagreements with
management and the Commuttee satisfied itself of DTZ's Independence
The Committee was satisfied that the valuation of the Group’s

property portfolio was prudent and reasonably based

Accounting for
property transactions

Please see page
114 for more details
about property
transactions

During the year, the Group made several
acquisitions and disposals Including
Inierests N Jjoint ventures There are

nisks in the accounting process for

these complex transactions

The Commigee, in conjunction with Deloitte, reviewed and challenged
management’s accounting proposal and key judgements, and was
sausfied that the approach adopted was approprate

Prermium Outlet

Investments

(Vatue Retail

and VIA Qutlets)
Please see page

44 for more details
about outlets

The Group has a significant investment
In Value Retall (VR} and acquired a

47% interest n VIA Qutlets (VIA) duning
2014 These investments are externally
managed and due to the complexity of
the underlying structures, there 15 a nsk
of inaccurate and Inconsistent reporting

The Committee discussed the proposed accounting treatment for the
Group’s Interests in VR and VIA, which 1s based on the nature of the
Group's control over those investments The Committee also reviewed
the accounting associated with the VIA acquisiion and the valuations
of each investment's property portfolio which are undertaken by
C8W The Committee concluded that both investments had been
recognised appropnately

REIT status

Please see page
125 for more
detalls about Tax

Maintenance of the Group's REIT status for
its UK operations and under the SIC rules
for its French operations 1s dependent

on compliance with certain conditions

in each jurisdiction The beneficial tax
regime resulting frorm RET status has a
sigrificant impact on the Groups results

The Committee reviewed compliance with UK REIT and French
SHC legislation and concluded that the Group continues to meet
the requirements

Adoption of IFRS 11
Joint arrangements

Please see page
131 for more
detalls about joint
arrangements

The Group has adopted IFRS 11 in

2014 which requires the Group to equity
account for its Joint ventures (previgusly
propertionally consohdated) This
change has a significant impact

on the presentation of the Group's
financial statements

The Committee, in canunction with Deloitte, has reviewed the
disclosure requirements Management’s methodology, as presented
n 1ts paper 1o the Committee, was considered The Commitiee was
satisfied that management has appropnately adopied the accounting
standard and explained the presentational impact of the new
standard to shareholders in an appropnate manner

Going concern

Please see page
54 for more details
about Going concern

A critical nsk 1s the Company’s solvency
and liquidity and the appropriateness
of prepanng the Group’s inancial
statemnents on a going concern basis

The Committee evaluated management’s assessment of the
appropriateness of the Group prepanng its half-year and annual financial
statements on a going concern basis and approved the Staternent which
appears on page 54 The Committee considered the Group's hgquidity by
reviewing reports on the renewal and matunty profile of debt, forecast
cash flows (including the level of committed expenditure), funding
requirements and contingent habilites The Commuttee also considered
these forecasts against the financial covenants in the Group's borrowing
faciies and concluded that the going concern basis was appropriate
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Effectiveness of the external audit process

The Committee assessed the effectiveness of the external audit
process during the year by monitoring Deloitte’s fulfilment of the
agreed audit plan and #ts reports on the significant matters and
Judgements that arose from the audit plan The Commuttee receved
regular feedback from management on the level of support provided
by Deloitte The Commuttee determined that Deloitte prowides an
appropriate level of service delivered by a team which conststently
locks for ways to maintain and iImprove the hugh standards 1t sets tself
During the year the Committee also considered the re-appointrment
of Deloitte and assessed their independence

In forming 1ts opinion of the iIndependence and chjectmty of
Delonte the Commuttee reviewed

- The independence safeguards operating within Deloitte,

+ Deloitte’'s Audit Transparency Report for the year ended
31 May 2014, and

+ The extent of non-audit services provided by Deloitie

Deloitte or it predecessor firms have been the Company's external
auditors since the Company was founded in 1942 Deloitte 1s required
10 rotate the audit partner responsible for the Group audit at least
every five years to pratect auditor independence and objectivity

lan Waller, the current audit lead partner has been in place since Aprl
2012 and Is expected to continue until the conclusion of the financal
statements for 2016 Under the Company’s current interpretation

of the transitonal arrangements for mandatory audit rotation,

the Company will be required to rotate the audit for the financial
statements for 2021 In advance of that date the Committee will
reflect on retendering the Auditor’s appointrment

The Committee has concluded that the external audit was carried
out effectively and efficiently with the necessary objectvity and
independence It has recommended to the Board that Deloitte be
re-appointed at the 2015 AGM

Non-audit services

The Committee 1s responsible for the development, implementation
and monitonng of the Group’s policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services to the Group, the
prinapal requirements of which are that

+ The external auditor may not provide a service which places
It in a position where it may be required 1o audit its own
work, such as book keeping or valuation services, and

« Some services may be provided in specific and exceptional
circumnstances and may include tax comphance work, due
diligence and property related consultancy Each occasion is
specifically assessed and authornsed by an Executive Director
up to a hnit of £50,000 and above that imit by the Charman
of the Audit Commitiee

The full policy on non-audit services is avalable at
www hamrmerson com

As shown In note 4 to the accounts on page 122, Deloitte’s
remuneration for the year ended 31 Decernber 2014 was £07m
Consideratton is given to the nature of and remuneration recerved

for other services provided by Deloitte to the Company and
confirmation 1s sought that the fee payable for the annual audit
Is sufficient to enable Deloitte to perform its obligations in
accordance with the scope of the audit

During 2014 non-audit services provided by Deloitte to the Company
included acting as reporting accountants for tax related work and the
Group’s sustainability reporting Fees for non-audit services provided
to the Company by Delostte for the year ended 31 December 2014
were £01m

Risk management and internal control

The Committee assists the Board to fulfilits responsibiliies in relation
to the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment and the
Group's compliance with the Code

Throughout the year, the Commuttee monstored the effectiveness of
the Group's systems cf nsk management and internal control, including
financial, operational and comphance contrels In particular the
Commuttee reviewed

- Deloitte’s management letters,

+ Internal audit reports, including monitoring the implementation
of recommendations arising from them,

+ Reports on the systern of internal control and the nsk
management framewcerk,

+ The Company’s approach to comphance with legislation and the
prevention of fraud,

Business continuity and cyber risk, and
+ Gifts and entertainment and expenses registers

Internal audit

€Y has provided an internal audit service to the Group since August
2013 During the year the Committee has monitored the internal audit
process through management updates and reviewing EY reports, and
EY has been challenged on its findings at Commitiee meetings The
Committee continues 1o be sausfied with the service provided by

EY since therr appointrment and has approved the continuation of

EY's appointment as internal auditor for 2015 Now that a full annual
internal audit cycle has been completed the Committee will review
more formally the effectiveness of EY during 2015

An annual programme of reviews of the controls established to
mitigate the nisk areas identified in the risk management framewark
15 undertaken 1o ensure that they are operating correctly During
the year, internal audits were carned out on a number of business
processes, including
+ Shopping centre property management and operational controls,
Car park controls,
Management of tenant credit nisk,
+ Joint venture management processes, and
« Leasing processes

These reviews and the iImplementation of recommendations ansing
from them are overseen and coordinated by a Risk and Controls
Committee whose primary role 15 to ensure that internal control is
integrated into the Group's dally operations
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Risk and Controls Committee

This committee Is not a committee of the Board but of executives
from across the business, Including UK shopping centres, retail parks,
French shopping centres and finance and project management teams
and 1s chaired by the Chuef Financial Officer The commitiee reports

its activities to the Group Executive Committee

The rele of the Risk and Controls Committee 1sto

+ Promote the application of the risk management framework
throughout the business,

Encourage pro-active discussion of risk around the business,
+ Manage the annual internal audit programme,
+ Consider the results and recommendations of reviews, and
+ Monitor the implementatton of recommendations

Anti bribery and corruption

The Committee overseas and moniors the policies and procedures
which form the core components of the Group's adequate
procedures under the Bribery Act, including the Code of Conduct
and Whistleblowing Policy Duning the year the Code of Conduct
and the Whistleblowing Policy were reviewed, updated and
approved by the Comrmittee

The Code of Conduct explains how employees are expected to

fulfil their responsibilities by acting in the best interests of the Group
and In line with 1ts corporate and financial objectives This includes
compiiance with laws and regulations, acting fairly in dealing with
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders, mainiaming integrty in
financial reporting, treating people with respect and operating within
a control framework which includes environmental and health and
safety policies A summiary of the Code of Conduct is avallable on

the Company's website

The Whistleblowing Policy sets out a procedure by which employees
may report suspicien of fraud, financial imegulanty or other malpracuce
No reporis of any such matters have been receved dunng the year
The Company subscribes to the independent chanty, Public Concern
at Work, so that employees may have free access 1o its helplne
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RISK MANAGEMENT IN ACTION -

ELEVATING RISKS

At the beginning of 2014 each Group Executive Committee
member was asked to consider and submit therr top five
nisks 1o the business The responses were reviewed and
collated into a schedule for further discussion by the Group
Executive Committee and as a basis for reviewing the status
of risks or capturnng new risks in the nsk management
framework (which 1s described in further detall on pages

55 to 59 of the Annual Report) This exercise was repeated
duning the year and the summary review of nsks was
compared aganst the key nsks KPls set out in the risk
management framework to ensure that they were being
adequately monitored and addressed As a result some

nsk KPis were updated The Risk and Controls Committee
discussed the nisks identified which were incorporated into
the nsk management framework with approprate nsk
mitigation steps identified

The intention of these regular reviews was to make the risk
management framework a dynamic decument, promaoting
discussions about how nisks are evolving and whether they
are baing addressed effectively across the business
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DIRECTORS'REMUNERATION REPORT

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

+ Gwyn Burr (Chairman)
+ Terry Duddy
Judy Gibbons
» David Tyler
+ Anthony Watson

See pages 91 and 52
for 2015 1mplementation
and updated scenarnios

See page 94 table 81
for Remuneration Commuitiee
attendance in 2014

See page 17¢
for the remuneration policy

MATCHING REWARD

TO PERFORMANCE

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

{am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31
Decerber 2014 This s my first year as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
{Commuttee), having succeeded Anthony Watson | would like to thank Anthony for
chairing the Committee for a number of years, and for the assistance and support he
has given me i 2014

At our AGM in 2014, our remuneration policy (Policy) was approved No changes are
being made to that Policy

As you will have read earlier in this Annual Report, this was ancther successful year for the
Company Adjusted earnings per share grew to 23 9 pence, like-for-ike NRIincreased by

2 1% and the cost income ratio reduced to 23 4% Using estimated numbers for total
property return {TPR), the outcome of financial and persanal objective performance
measures resulted n an average of 65% of maximurn bonus opportunity for 2014 Our TPR
relative 1o an appropniate peer group 1s a component of both annual bonus (AIP) and long
term incentives (LTIP} For 2014, we changed the indices for AIP These indices are published
by IPD each April and so, for 2014 and in future, the TPR component of AIP reported in the
Annual Report will be estimated No bonus payments for TPR are made until the actual
index data becomes available We will report the actual outturn on this measure, and the
bonus payment, In our 2015 Annual Report

In Apnil, the Committee was disappointed when, despite good performance relative to
our peer group, the 2011 LTIP awards did not vest to any matenal extent, contnbuting to
an overalt reduction in Executive Director total remuneration of 16% This was largely a
result of the continued comparison with office portfolios, which 1s now inappropnate
gven the change of focus of the Company in late 2012 to retail only The Committee wilt
decide at its April 2015 meeting whether the TPR elerment of the 2012 LTIP awards
should be compared solely against our retail property peer group The policy of grantung
LTIP awards to each Executive Director rernains unchanged However, Executive Directors
condnue to set an example given on-gaing cost control measures, and have requested
that 2015 LTIP awards should again be at less than the agreed norm of 200% of salary,
and grants will be made at a reduced tevel of 1509 of salary There are also no planned
increases in base salanes for Executive Directors in 2015

Following member consultation, the Company’s defined benefit pension scheme
{Scheme} was closed to future accruals for all participating employees dunng the year
Dawid Atkins and Peter Cole ceased to accrue further benefits within the Scheme and
became eligible for salary supplements instead

In December, the Company received a'PWC Buillding Public Trust Award'for the best
executive remuneration report within the FTSE 100 A substantial amount of effort goes
Into presenting shareholders with a clear and comprehensive remuneration report,
and | am pleased that this work has received public recogniion

Gwyn Burr
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE

2014 EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
AT A GLANCE

Table Fig 49
Total remuneration

Annual Laong Term

Salary  Benafits bonus' incentive’  Pension Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

David Atkins 594 22 776 - 177 1,569
Peter Cole 431 22 526 - 203 1,182
Timon Drakesmith 406 19 579 177 81 1,262
Jean-Philippe Mouton 329 25 427 - 74 855

1 These figures conlain estirmates See notes 5 and 6 on page 77

Chent Fig 50
AIP {bonus) structure

Bonus targets are outined on page 78 Key measures are as follows
Adjusted EPS Adjusted earnings per share compared to target levels See page 128

TPR % total propeny returns See page 36

NRI % growth in Iike for-lke Group net rental income See page 36
Cost ratio Group Lotal operating costs as a percentage of gross rentalincome See page 37

Table Fig 51

AIP (bonus) outcome: financial targets

Entry % of vesting for

threshald  that measure

measure (o achieved at

Performance measure earn any bonus  entry threshold
Ad)usted EPS 228p 20%
TPR IPD+0 5% 25%
iNRI 15% 0%
Cost ratio 24 4% 0%

2014 target
to achiove
full vesting 2014

for that clesing 2014
measure measurement' payoutlevel®
24 4p 23 9p 75%
[PD+2 5% IPD+11% 40%
35% 21% 30%
23 8% 23 4% 100%

1 The 2014 closing measurement for TPR 15 estimated

2 Actual bonus paid 1s based on an interpolaton between the entry threshold and the target to achieve
a bonus of 100% of payout for each performance measure See page 79 for more details on AP




2014 REMUNERATION: IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

2014 REMUNERATION: IMPLEMENTATION REPORT

{*) denotes audited information

Table 52 shows the remuneration of the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014, and the comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2013

Table Fug 52

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATION TABLE*

Lang Term Incentive

Salary Benefits Annual bonus AP Plan LTIP Pension Toral

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Note £000 £000 £000 £Q00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Dawvid Atkins i4-8 594 585 22 i6 776 657 - 798 177 160 1,569 2216
Peter Cole 4-8 a3 420 22 16 526 472 - 627 203 90 1,182 1,625
Timon Drakesmith 24-8 406 400 19 19 579 449 177 170 81 80 1,262 1,118
Jean-Philippe Mouton 3,4-8 329 340 25 28 427 351 - 42 74 78 855 839
Total 1,760 1,745 88 79 2,308 1,929 177 1,637 535 408 4,868 5798

Notes
1 David Atkins has exiernal non executive appointments, disclosed in the Directors Biographies on page 98 He does not receive a fee for any of these appointments
2 Timon Drakesmith acts as the Company's representative as a non-executive director of Value Retail PLC He does not receive a fee for this apponiment

3 For consistency and companison agamst other Executive Directors Jean-Philippe Moutons remuneration has been converted from euros into sterking intable 52
The exchange rate that has been used i1s £1 €1241{2013 £1 €1 178) His base salary was €400 000 in 2013 and €408 000 1n 2014

4 Benefits taxable benefits {company car or car 2llowance and private medical health and for Jean-Philippe Mouton, a seniority allowance and welfare contnbution}
and all-employee arrangements (for the UK Executive Directors, SIP and Sharesave, for the France Executive Director profit shanng scherme and employer s contabution
to an employee savings scheme)

5 AP Achievernent aganst Cornpany financial targets and personal objectives {using estmated TPR outcomes} resulted in an average entitlement for Executive Directors
of approximately 65% (2013 54%) of the maximum bonus opporturity Details of annual bonus ouicomes are on page 79

6 LTIP 2013 figures were estimated in the 2013 Annual Report as final data for the TPR parformance measure was not available at the date of publication The 2013 figures
above have been updated to reflect the actuat cutcome Using final TPR data Detalls of the calculation for the 2013 and 2014 LTIP are at table 53 below Final figures for
2014 will be presented in the 2015 Annual Report Esumates are for reporting purposes only

7 Pension Full pension details and the method for calculating the pension figures above are given on pages 82 and 83
8 Dunng the year no payments were made to Executive Directors for expenses other than those incurred whally and directly in the course of their employment

Basis for calculating the values attnbutable to each performance measure for the LTIP
Table 53 provides a breakdown of the values attributable to each perfarmance measure that when aggregated produce the single figure for
the LTIP in table 52 The basis for any assumptions used is also detailed Details of the LTIP award that vested 1n 2014 can be found at table 59

TSR measure TPR measure Absolute NAY measure| Total
Table Fig 53 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2003 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 1000
Dawvid Atkins - 651 - 147 - - - 798
Peter Cole - 52 - 106 - - - 627
Timon Drakesmith 177 n/a - 170 - - 177 170
Jean-Philippe Mouton - - - 42 - - - 42

Performance measure data and notes on estirmation

TSR The 2014 figure for TSR 15 for the 2011 LTIP award that vested in 2014 The performance period ended on 1 April 2014 for awards to David Atkins Peter Cole and
Jean Philippe Mouton For Timen Drakesmith, the performance period ended on 6 June 2014 (2011 LTIP award and second tranche of the Recrisitment Share Award)
values are calculated using actual performance and the share price on the date of vesting (615 50p for Timon Drakesmith)

TPR The 2014 figures are estimated values for awards scheduled to vest in 2015 {where the performance penod ended on 31 December 2014) as final IPD index dat s
not avallable at the date of publication The estimate compares the Company s actual TPR figures with the bast available information Final IPQydata will be available
in April 2015 and the award will vest in May 2015 The estimated value 1s rel The actual 2014 figure for TPR will be reported in the 2015 Annual Report

The 2013 figures for TPR where the performance pertod ended on 31 Decernber 2013 was estimated nil in the 2013 Annual Report as some IPD index data was not
avalhble at the date of publicanon The 2013 Agures for TPR are the actual vatues that vested (see table 59} The values are calculated using the share price on the
date of vesting (615 50p for Timan Drakesmith, 576 00p for other Directors)

Absolute  The 2014 figures for Absolute NAY are the values for awards that are scheduled to vest in 2015 {where the performance pencd ended on 31 December 2014)
NAV The value for 2014 15 nil
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

BASE SALARY

As reported last year, base salary levels for the Executive Directors increased in 2014 by between 2% and 3 6% For 2015, the Committee
determined that there would be no increase in base salanies A number of factors were considered in making this decision including the impact
of histortcally low inflationary pressure and the Company’s cost reduction ohyectives Executive remuneration benchmarking data was reviewed
to ensure that base salanes remain competitive

Jean-Philippe Mouton's salary {and the other elements of his remuneration) 1s denominated in euros When converted, the sterling equivalent
will vary with currency movements

Table Fig 54
Executive Directors’ base salary 2015 and 2014
Base Salary

2015 2014

£000 £000
Dawvid Atkins 597 597
Peter Cole 435 435
Timon Drakesmith 408 408
Jean-Philippe Mouton' 329 329

1 The exchange rate that has been used above s £1 €1 241 Jean-Philippe Moutons base salary for 2014 and 201515 €408 000

ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN (AIP)

Table 55 details the performance conditions and corposition of financial targets for the AIP

Table Fig 55
Maximum Proportion of Praporuon of award Weighting of
Year of award award potental award paid in cash paid in shares! performance measures Compoesiion of financial targeis
2015 award Up to 200% of salary 60% 40% subject 70% for Group 25% based on adjusted
{to be pad 10 a two-year financial targets? Group earnings per share
I 2016) vesting perod 25% based on Total Property
Return relative to IPD?
20% for Group
operational targets
30% for personal objectives?
2014 award Up to 200% of salary 60% 40% subject 70% for Group 30% based on adjusted
{to be pad to a two-year financial targets* Group earnings per share
In 2015) vesting period 30% based on Total Property
Return relative to IPD?
109 for Group operational
targets
30% for personal objectives?
2013 award Up to 200% of salary 60% 40% subject 70% for Group 309 based on adjusted

{paid in 2014)

to a two-year
vesting penod

financial targets

Group earnings per share

30% based on Total Property
Return relative to IPD*

10% for Group
operational targets

30% for personal obyectives

Notes

1 The proporuon paid in shares is granted as an award under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS) Awards are not subject 1o further performance conditions

2 Inthe epinion of the Board AIP performance conditions and personal objectives for 2015 are commercially sensitive and accordingly are not disclosed These will be
reported on in the 2015 Annual Report

3 IPD s the Investment Property Databanks aggregate full-year UK Retad Property (70%) and France Retai Property {3096) indices

4 Oetatls of the esumated AIP outcome for 2014 are on page 79

5 IPD 1s the Investment Property Databank s UK Quarierly Property Index annualised In 2013 the metnic was adjusted from All Property 1o Retall Property to reflect
the Company s retail focus
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ATP (BONUS) OUTCOME. FINANCIAL TARGETS

Table Fig 56
% of vesting for 2014 target to

Entry thresheld that measure achleve full 2014 2014

measyre o eain  achieved at entry vesting for that closing payout
Performance measure any bonus threshald maeasure measurement level
Adjusted EPS 228p 20% 24 4p 23.9p 75%
TPR IPD+Q 5% 25% IPD+2.5% IPD+1 1% 40%
NRI 15% 0% 35% 21% 30%
Cost ratio 24 4% 0% 23 8% 23 4% 100%

The TPR performance measure 1s based on IPD UK Retail Property {(709%) and France Retail Property (309%) indices Mowever, data for the IPO
France Retail Praperty index 1s pubiished each year in April, and 15 not available at 13 February 2015 Accardingly, the level of payout for 201415
estimated, based on management’s best estimate using available data {see page 49, table 32 for property returns data) The TPR element of any
bonus paymens t¢ Executive Directors (including the deferred shares element awarded under the DBSS) 1s made only when all the IPD index
data 1s avallable for the calculatton of the TPR performance measure

The elerment of bonus determined for each performance measure is calculated by interpolating the actual performance achieved for each
measure against the scale between entry threshold for vesting and the target to achieve full vesting

The cost control target was changed in 2014 from an abseclute measure to a ratio to align it with the Company’s stated intention of reducing
the Group total operating costs as a percentage of the income to 21% by 2016

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS PERSONAL OBJECTIVES

Executive Directors are able to earn up to 30% of the maximum award for achieving personal objectives All Executive Directors' personal
chjectives were designed to focus not only on the delivery of the Business Plan for 2014, ut also on the strategic objectives set out

on page 3

Table 57 below provides detall of some of the sigraficant achievernents against personal objectives for the Executive Directors The personal
objectives for each Executive Director in 2014 were not disclosed in the 2013 Annual Report as the Board considered them to be commercially
sensitive Payout levels were 100% for Timon Drakesmith, 809 for David Atkins and Jean-Philippe Mouton and 65% for Peter Cole

Table Fig 57
2014 personal objectives

David Atkins + Provide strategic leadership for vision, values, performance and key retailer relationships
- Lead review of sustainability strategy and create ambition for future

+ Ensure company performance exceeds Business Plan

Peter Cole - Imbed product framework to define future for Hammerson retail property
- Progress key developments including start on-site at Leeds and WestQuay
- Provide strategic leadership to French developments

Timen - Extend strategic exposure to European outlet sector

Crakesmith Lead Implementaton of operating cost savings whilst delivening Business Plan

- Optimise timing and strategy for capital raising

Jean-Philippe - Open Les Terrasses du Port on budget, with BREEAM excellent rating

Mouton + Complete major refurbishments and retenanting

Roll out digital marketing solutions and lead brand review

www hammerson com

79

140d3H 3IINVNEIAOD 31VHO4HOD




2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP)

The structure of the LTIP awards, as well as the performance measures and conditons attached to the awards align closely with the Company's
strategic focus Since 2011, the awards have incorporated a balance of relative and absolute measures, and the Remuneration Committee believes
that this balance remains appropriate

The structure of the 2015 awards remains the same as the 2014 awards The comparator group for the Total Shareholder Return (TSR} measure
focuses on major European retail real estate companies and the Total Property Return {TPR) measure compares performance against a retail
only property index With regard to the absolute performance measure, earnings per share (EPS) continues 10 align the interests of Executive
Directors with those of shareholders Details of the LTIP structure are set out in table 58

Table Fig 58
LTIP structure showing awards
Year of Performance Performance Weighting of
grant Level of award perniod measures performance measures TSR comparater group
2015 150% of salary  Four years TSR 3333% Altarea, British Land, Capital and Regional, Intu Properties,
Eurocommercial, Klepierre, Land Secuntigs, London Metnc
TPR 3333% SEGRO Shaftesbury, Unibail-Rodamco New River Retail and
£PS 3333% the FTSE 100 Index '
214 100% of salary  Four years TSR 3333% Altarea, Briish Land, Capital and Regional, Intu Properties
(previously called Capital Shopping Centres), Cono,
TPR 3333% Eurocommercidl, Klepierre, Land Secunties, London Metric,
SEGRO, Shaftesbury Unibail-Rodamco, Wereldhave and the
EPS 3333% FTSE 100 Index?
2013 200% of salary  Four years TSR 3333% Altarea, British Land, Capnal and Regicnal, Intu Properties
(previously called Capnal Shoppung Centres), Cono, Eurocommercial
TPR 3333% VG, Kiepierre, Land Securities, London Metnic, SEGRO, Shaftesbury,
EPS 3333% Unipall-Rodamco, Wereldhave and the FTSE 100 Index
2012 200% of salary  Four years TSR 3333% As for 2011
TPR 3333%
Absolute NAY 3333%
2011 150% of salary  Four years TSR 3333% Briush Land, Capnal and Regional, Capital Shopping Centres,
Cono, Derweni London Great Portland Estates VG, Klepierre,
TPR 3333% Land Securities, Quintain Estates, SEGRO, Shaftesbury

Absolute NAV 331339 St Modwen Properties, Unibail-Rodamco and the FTSE 100 Index

1 Cornowill be excluded from the comparater group on the assumption ihat the takeover offer by Klepierre announced in July 2014 will proceed

2 Subsequent 1o publishing the 2013 Annual Report but prior to granting awards VG entered into insolvency It was excluded from the comparater group when the awards
were made

3 Inorder to smooth the transiton from a three year performance penod to a four year performance period, an enhanced award of 300% of salary was made in 2011 with half of
the sward subject 10 a three-year performance period (which vested In 2014) and half subject ta a four year performance period (vesting in 2015) This aveided a vesting ‘gap’in
2014 and overall results in only a modest reduction in patential awards vesting to Executive Directors in the three year period from 2014 to 2016 (assuming a consistent level
of perfarmance 15 achveved) The second half of the award (e 150% of salary) 15 shown abave as it remains outstanding and will subject to performance vestin 2015

Awards vested in 2014
Tabte 59 provides a breakdown of the value of LTIP awards that vested in 2014 The number of shares vested includes notional dvidend shares
accruing 1o the date of vesting

Table Fig 59 TSR! TPR? Absolute NAVE
Value of Value of Valueof |  Total value
Number of award that Number of award that Number of award that of award
Share price | Vesting shares vested | Vesting shares vested | Vesting shares vested vested
Vesting date  on vesting level vested £000 level vested £000 level vested £000 £000
David Atkins 02/05/2014 57600 = - - [359% 25,543 147 - - - 147
Peter Cole 02/05/2014 57600 - - -|359% 18337 106 — — - 106
Timon Drakesmith® 06/06/2014 61550 |375% 28814 177 [359% 27,582 170 - - - 347
Jean-Philippe Mouton 02/05/2014 57600 - - -1359%  7.357 42 - - - 42

1 The performance period for TSR for Dawid Atkins Peter Cole and Jean Philippe Mouton ended on 1 Apnil 2014 and for Timon Drakesmith on 6 June 2014 The value of
the TSR element in respect of 2014 is included in the Single Figure Remuneration Table for 2614 (table 52)

2 The performance penod for TPR and Absolute NAV ended on 31 December 2013 The value of these elements is included 1n the Single Figure Remuneration Table for
2013 (table 52)

3 The vesting data for Timon Drakesmith aggregates the 2011 LTIP award and the secand tranche of his Recruitment Share Award both of which vested on 6 June 2014
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Table Fig 60

LTIP PERFORMANCE MEASURES

TSR

TPR

EPS/Absolute NAV

Performance 1s measured over the four-year
penod from the date of grant, in comparnison
with a comparator group, ncluding some
European real estate companies

Performance 1s measured over the four
financial years commencing with the year

of grant and in companson with a composite
Index comprising

+ For awards granted from 2013
Investment Property Databank's
UK Annual Retail Property Index and
France Annual Retail Property Index

- For awards granted from 2009 to 2012
Investment Property Databank’s UK
Annual All Property index and France
Annual All Praperty Index

The relative composition of the indices
may vary with each grant to ensure that &
reflects the Company’s portfolio

Performance 1s measured over the four-year
penod from 1 January in the year of grant,
and is calculated with reference to the EPRA
Best Practices recommendations

EPS (for awards granted from 2013)

The composition of the EPS measure may
vary with each grant to ensure it reflects the
Company's portfoho From 2015,a blend of
UK and French CPl will be used, whereas in
201210 2014 RPl was used

Absclute NAV (for awards granted in 2011
and 2012)

Calculated as adjusted shareholders'funds
divided by the adjusted number of shares
In Issye

Table Fig 61

LTIP PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

T5R

TPR

EPS/Absclute NAY

Vesting under the TSR performance
measure 15 as follows

Less than TSR of median-ranked
entity In comparator group 0%
Equal to TSR of median-ranked

entity In comparator group 25%
Equal to TSR of upper quartle-
ranked entity In comparator group  100%

Vesting for intermediate performance
between median and upper quartile-ranked
entities 1s on a lingar scale between 25%
and 100% For awards made from 2014
onwards interpalation 1s between the TSR
of the median and upper quartile-ranked
companies on a straight-line basis on
perfarmance of those positions between
259% and 100%

Vesting under the TSR performance measure
15 subject to the Commiitee’s satisfaction
that the Company's underlying performance
has been satisfactory in companson with
that of the FTSE Real Estate sector

Vasting under the TPR performance
measure Is as follows

Vesting under the EPS performance measure
for the 2015 awards 15 as foliows

Less than Index 0% Lessthan CPl+3 0% pa growth 0%
Equal 1o Index 25% Equal to CPI-+3 0% pa growth 25%
Index 40 5% (average) p a 55% Equal to or more than CPI

Index +1 0% (average) p a 85% +70% pa growth 100%
Index +1 5% (average) pa 100%

Vesting for intermediate performance
between these levels will be pro-rated
on a straight-line basis between 25%
and 100%

Vesting under the EPS performance measure
for the 2013 and 2014 awards 15 as follows

Less than RP1+3 0% pa growth 0%

Equal to RP1 +30% pa growth 25%
£qual to or more than RPI
+70% pa growth 100%

Vesting under the Absolute NAV performance
measure for the 2012 award 1s as follows

Less than RP! +30% p a growth 0%

Equal to RPI +3 0% pa growth 25%
Equal to or more than RP
+70% pa growih 100%

Vesting under the Absolute NAV performance
measure for the 2011 award 1s as follows

Less than 7 5% pa growth 0%

Equal to 7 5% pa growth 25%
Equal to or more than
150% pa growth 100%

Vesting for intermedtate performance for
all awards will be pro-rated on a straight-line
basis between 25% and 100%
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

PENSION~*

Pension arrangements for the year ended 31 December 2014 are detailed below All salary supplements paid to Executive Directors as part

of their pension arrangements are subject to deductions as required for Income tax and social secunty contnbutions in the UK and France
Salary supplements and the pension benefit receved by Jean-Philippe Mouton do not qualify for AP purposes or entitltements under the LTIP
All benefits accruing under the Group's defined benefit pension scheme (Scheme) and all salary supplements are reflected in the Single Figure
Remuneration Table {table 52)

Timon Drakesmith
Timon Drakesmith receives a salary supplement of 20% of base salary by way of pension prowision The actual amount paid by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 was £81,200 (2013 £80,000)

Jean-Philippe Mouton

Jean-Philippe Mouton receves a salary supplement of €80,000 i lieu of any supplementary pension benefit In addition, he parucipates in 2
legacy collective supplementary defined contribution pension scheme operated by his French employing company where the contnbutions
are subject to statutory limits For 2014, the benefit he received under this scherne was €12,105 (2013 €11,939)

David Atkins
Dawvid Atkins receives a salary supplement of 30% of base salary by way of pension provision This was effective from 2 Apnl 2014, when he
ceased to accrue further benefits in the Scheme

For the penod 1 January 2014 10 1 Apnl 2014, Dawid Atkins received a salary supplement in lieu of pension benefits as he elected to restrict the
value of the pension benefits accrued in the Scheme over the 2013/2014 tax year to the annual allowance defined under pension legislation
(currently £40,000) The salary supplement was calculated to be equal in value to the pension benefits that Dawid Atkins would otherwise have
accrued in the Scheme over the period, at a rate of 1/60th of final salary for each year of service

On ceasing to accrue further benefits in the Scheme, David Atkins became eligible for a deferred pension based on his pensionable salary and
service at that point Further details of this are provided below

The actual salary supplerment paid by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 was £177,214 (2013 £97,829)

Peter Cole
Peter Cole receves a salary supplement of 30% of base salary by way of pension provisicn This was effective from 1 July 2014, when he ceased
to accrue further benefits in the Scheme

For the period 1 January 2014 1o 30 June 2014, Peter Cole accrued benefits in the Scheme at a rate of approximately 1/45th of final salary for
each year of service

Cn ceasing to accrue further benefits In the Scheme, Peter Cole became eligible for a deferred pension based on his pensionable salary and
service at that point Further details of this are provided below

The pension figure disclosed for Peter Cole represents the imcrease in accrued pension in the Scheme over the year (net of Inflation) multiplied
by a factor of 20, plus a salary supplement of £65,250 In respect of the penod 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2014

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

In 2014, David Atkins and Peter Cole ceased to accrue benefits in the Scheme Pension entitlements are calculaied by reference to base salary
The Scheme 1s non-contnbutory for members The normal retirerent age under the Schemne 15 60, members may draw their pension from age
55, subject to actuanal reduction and the Trustees'consent Further information concerning the Scheme ¢an be found in note 6 to the accounts
on pages 122 to 124 and the Pohcy reproduced from page 170 A detalled breakdown of deferred benefits under the Scheme for David Atiins
and Peter Cole 15 provided in tables 62, 63 and 64
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Executive Directors’ deferred benefits under the Scheme

In the table below, the total accrued benefit at 31 Decernber 2014 represents the annual pension that s expected to be payable on retirement,
given the length of pensionable service and salary of each Executive Director at the date each ceased accruing benefits under the Scheme

The increase in accrued benefit earned dunng the year represents the increase in this expected pension, including the effect of inflaton, when
compared with the position at 31 December 2013 The increase in accrued benefit during the year excluding the effect of inflation is also shown

Table Fig 62
Executive Directors’ accrued pension benefits
Total accrued Increase in accrued
benefit at Increase in benefit during the
Age at Years service at Normal 31 December  accrued benefit year excluding
33 December 3) December retirement 2014  during the year inflation
2014 2014 age {E000) (EQ00) {£000)
David Atkins 48 16 60 82 0 0
Peter Cole 55 25 60 245 13 7

Table 63 shows the transfer values calculated in accordance with regulations 7 to 7E of the Occupaticnal Pensions Schemes (Transfer Values)
Regulations 1996 and subsequent amendments

The Listing Rules figures in table 63 represent the transfer value of the increase in accrued benefits during the penod to 31 December 2014
(excluding inflation) for each Director

Transfer values of accrued enutlement represent the value of assets that the Scheme would need to transfer to another pensian provider
on transfernng the Schere’s lability in respect of the Executive Director’s pension benefits They do not represent sums paid or payable to
indwidual Executive Directors and therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration Instead, they represent a potential
liability of the Scheme The statutory disclosures are based on required assumptions

Table Fig 63
Executive Directors’ accrued pension benefits: Listing Rules transfer values

The Listing Rules

Transfer value at 31 December 2014 of
increase in accrued benefit over 2014
{excluding inflation)

£000
David Atkins 0
Peter Cole 105

Whiist the calculation of transfer values under the Comparues Act 2006 15 not required to be disclosed, it 1s bebeved that these are stll meaningful
and so details of these calculations are included in table 64

Table Fig 64
Executive Directors’ accrued pension benefits: Companies Act 2006 transfer values

Companies Act 2006

Transfer value at  Transfer value at
31 December 2013 31 December

of total accrued 2014 of total Increase in transfer

benefit  accrued benefit value in 2004

£000 £000 £000

David Atkins 920 984 64
Peter Cole 3411 3,744 333
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS®

There were no payments to past Directors in 2014

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE"

There were no payments for loss of office to any past Directors in 2014 John Hirst received a discretionary gift on retinng as a Director as detalled

In the Single Figure Remuneration Table for Non-Executive Directors (table 70)

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

Table 65 below shows the Company's total employee costs compared with dmdends paid The Company did not buy back any of its own

shares during 2014
Table Fig 65
Total employee costs compared with dividends paid
Employee Shareholder

Remuneration' Distubutions?
2014 f447m £1395m
2013 £44 0m £1301m
Difference 1 6% 7 2%

Notes
1 These figures have been extracted from Note 4 [Administration expenses) to the accounts on page 121
2 These figures have been extracted from Note 10 (Dwvidends) to the accounts on page 127

Choaut Fig 66

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
31 December 2008 = 100

Chart 66 above shows the total shareholder return in respect of the Company’s ordinary shares of 25 pence each for the six years ended

31 December 2014 relative to the return of the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK Index, which comprises shares of the Company's peers The total
shareholder return 1s rebased to 100 at 31 December 2008 The other points plorted are the values at intervening financial year ends
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REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OVER THE LAST SIX YEARS

Table 67 shows the remuneration of the holder of the office of Chief Executive for the period from ¥ January 2009 to 31 December 2014

Table Fig 67
CEO remuneration history over the last six years
remuner::i:)ar:

Year Notes £000  Annual bonus® LTIP vesting®
2014 1 1,569 65 3% -
2013 2 2,216 56 2% 51 6%
2012 2,451 88 9% 52 6%
2011 1,515 51 7% -
2010 1,594 68 2% -
2009 (Dawid Atkins) 3 242 55 0% -
2009 (John Richards) 4 895 48 8% 49,4%

Notes

1 The total remuneration and annual bonus figures for 2014 include certain estimated values for the LTIP and AIP vesting See pages 77 and 79 for details

2 The total remuneration reported i the 2013 Annual Report cantained estimates and these numbers are the actual values {see table 52}

3 David Atkins became Chief Executive on 1 Qctober 2009 having been an Executive Director since 2007 The figure for 2009 has been pro-rated accordingly
4 John Richards retired as Chief Executive on 30 September 2009

S All numbers are expressed as @ percentage of the maximum cpportunity

REMUNERATION FOR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE COMPARED WITH ALL OTHER
EMPLOYEES OF THE HAMMERSON GROUP

Table 68 shows the percentage change from 31 Decernber 2013 to 31 December 2014.n base salary, taxable benefits and bonus for
the Chief Executive compared to all employees of the Hammerson group

Table Fig 68
Percentage change in CEO base salary, taxable benefits and bonus
Movemeni %
Notes Salary Benefits Annual bonus Total"
David Atking 12 15% -0 3% 18.2% 10.2%
Total Group 134 0 4% -6,8% 14 6% 3 4%

Notes

1 The percentage movement in annual bonus 15 based on calculatons that incorporate an estimated value for the TPR performance measure within the AP

2 The percentage change in total remuneration is calculated without including the LTIP Using the total remuneration set out 1n table 52 David Atkins’total remuneration
dechned by 29 2%

3 The exchange rates used to convert data for French employees are £1 €1 241 for 31 December 2014 and £1 €1 178 for 31 December 2013

4 David Atkins has been excluded from the Group calculation Retention banuses for employees who left the Company in February 2015 have been included

DIRECTORS' SERVICE AGREEMENTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Executive Directors'service agreements are terminable on 12 months notice by either party Cates of service agreements for the UK Directors
are as follows David Atkins (11 January 2008), Peter Cole (28 February 2002}, Timon Drakesmith (18 January 2011) Jean-Phillipe Mouton was
appointed as an Executive Director on 1 January 2013 and his service agreement +s dated 25 March 2013 Further details on the terms of the
Executive Directors’ service agreements are set out In the Palicy (see pages 178 and 179)

Table Fig 69
Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment
Date of original appointment Commencement date
Non-Executive Director to the Board of current term Unexpired term as at Apnl 2015
Pierre Bouchut ? 13 February 2015 13 February 2015 2 years, 10 months
Gwyn Burr? 21 May 2012 21 May 2012 1 month
Terry Duddy + 3 Decernber 2009 3 December 2012 8 months
Jacques Espinasse 1 May 2007 1 May 2013 1 year, 1 month
Judy Gibbons 1 May 2011 1 May 2014 2 years 1 month
David Tyler 12 January 2013 12 January 2013 10 months
Anthony Watson 1 February 2006 1 February 2012 Retinng at the end of 2015 AGM
Notes

1 Appointments are terrminable on 3 months notice by either party

2 Subjectic election atthe 2015 AGM

3 Subject 10 re-election at the Annuat General Meeting Gwyn Burr's appasntment has been renewed for a further three year period from 21 May 2015

4 Subject 10 re-glection at the Annual General Meeting, Terry Duddy's appointment has been renewad for a further three year period from 3 December 2015
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS SINGLE FIGURE REMUNERATION TABLE*

Table 70 shows the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014, and the comparative figures for
the year ended 31 December 2013 During the year, no payments were made to Non-Executive Directors for expenses other than those
incurred wholly and directly in the course of their appointments

Table Fig 70
Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration for year ended 31 December 2014
Fees Benefits Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Note  Addinonal responsibiities £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
David Tyler 17 Chairman |
Remuneration Committee member |
Nomination Committee Chairman 320 226 - - 320 226
Gwyn Burr 257  Audit Committee member
Nomination Committee member
Remuneration Committee Chairman?® 68 58 2 - 70 58
Terry Duddy 7 Nomination Committee member
Remuneration Committee member 60 58 - - 60 58
Jacques Espinasse 267 Nomination Commitiee member
Audit Committee Chairman® 67 58 8 - 75 58
Judy Gibbons 7 Audit Ccmmittee member
Nomination Committee member
Rermuneration Committee member 65 63 1 - 66 63
John Hirst 367  Audt Commitiee Chairman®® 22 68 4 - 26 68
John Nelson a7 Chairman
(retired 9 May 2013) Remuneration Committee member - 108 - 14 - 122
Anthony Watson 57 Senior Independent Director
Audrt Committee member
Nomination Committee member
Remuneration Committee Charrman® 77 78 1 - 77 78
Total 679 717 16 14 694 731

A

From 23 Apnl 2014

A A To 23 Apnl 2014

Notes

1

~N o owr

Dawid Tyler was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 12 January 2013 On the same date he was appomnted as a member of the Remuneration Committee For

the penod from 12 January 2013 to 8 May 2013 inclusive he received fees of £50000 (pro rated} as a Mon Executive Director and £5000 (pro-rated) as a member of the
Remuneration Committee When he became Chairman of ihe Company an 9 May 2013 be recewved the Chairmans fee of £320000 (pro-rated) He does not recerve any
additional fees for his membership of the Remuneratian or Nomination Committees

The fees payable to Gwyn Burr and Jacques Espinasse in 2014 reflect their membership of and subsequent appointments to chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Comrmittee respectively

John Hirst was Audit Commitzee Chairman to 23 April 2014 He retired at the end of the 2014 AGM and in line with the Palicy recewved a deparung gift to the value of
[1820 (post tax) The gross value has been disclosed above

lohn Nelson retired from the Board on 9 May 2013
Gwyn Burr became Remuneration Committee Charman on 23 April 2014 when Anthony Watson stepped down as chairman 1o become a member of that committee
Jacques Espinasse became Audit Commutiee Chairman on 23 Apnl 2014 when John Hirst stepped down from that role, prior to retinng from the Board on the same date

The benefits to Non-Executive Directors disclosed 1n the table above relate to the reimbursement of travel and accommedation expenses in attending Board meetings
at the Company s London office The gross value has been disclosed and, In accordance with the Policy, the tax ansing will be settled by the Company

The figures shown in tables 52 and 70, the Single Figure Remuneration Tables for Executive Directors and for Non-Executive Directors respectively,
have been rounded to the nearest thousand The actual aggregate total remuneration (being salary/fees, benefits and bonus) for all Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors for 2014 was £4,849,721 (2013 £4,480460)
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FEES PAYABLE TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In 2014, annual fees payable to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors were as detalled below No fee increases are planned for 2015

Tabkle Fig 71
Non-Executive Director fees during 2014
Base fees £000 Addinonal {ees £000°
Senior Audit Char of Remuneration
Non-Executive independent Charr of Audit Committee Remuneration Commitiee
Chairman' Drrector base fee? Dwrector Committee member Committee member
320 55 10 15 5 10 5
Notes

1 The Company Chairman does not receive any additional fee in respect of membarship of any of the Committees
2 The Non Executive Directors base fee was last increased in July 2013
3 No additonal fees are payable for becoming either a member or Chairman of the Nomination Committee

DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS®

Tables 72 and 73 show the beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company held by Directors who were in office dunng the year

ended 31 December 2014 For Executive Directors, the table also shows actual share ownership compared with the share ownership guidelines
{full Getails of which can be found In the Policy on page 174) Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to acquire a shareholding in the Company

Table Fig 72

Executive Directors’ shareholdings
Guidelineon  Actual beneficial

1 January 31 December 13 February  share ownership  share awnership
2014 2014 2015 as % of salary as % of salary’ Guideline met
Dawid Atkins 296,414 363,968 363,968 150% 371% Yes
Peter Cole 247,105 272,072 272,072 100% 382% Yes
Timon Drakesmith 177,147 219,313 2194057 100% 327% Yes
Jean-Philippe Mouton 215,623 249,767 249,767 100% 459% Yes

Notes

1 Asat and based on the share price of 605p on 31 December 2014 The exchange rate that has been used to convert Jean Philippe Moutor's global base salary from euros
tasterling 1s £1 €1 241

2 The change in share interests for Timon Drakesmith from 31 December 2014 10 i 3 February 2015 1s due to share purchases/awards made under the SIP on 5 January 2015
{50 shares} and 5 February 2015 (42 shares)

Table Fig 73
Non-Executive Directors’ shareholdings
1 January 31 Decermber
2014 2014
Dawvid Tyler 20,000 25,000
Gwyn Burr 5.000 5,000
Terry Duddy 40,000 40,000
Jacques Espinasse 12,235 17,235
Judy Gibbons 4,000 4,000
John Herst? 13,495 13,495
Anthony Watson 12,000 12,000

1 Shareholding shown as at 23 Apnl 2014 the date of John Hirsts reurement from the Board
Between 1 January 2014 and 13 February 2015, the Non-Executive Directors'beneficial interests above remain unchanged

At 31 December 2014, in addition to the interests in shares disclosed In the table above, Anthony Watson also had an interest in £60,000 norminal
6 875% sterling bonds due 2020
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHARE PLAN INTERESTS (INCLUDING SHARE OPTIONS)”

Tables 74 and 75 set out the Executive Directors interasts under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS), the LTIP and the Sharesave schemes
Awards under the DBSS and Sharesave are not subject to any performance conditions {other than continued employment as at the vesting date)
The LTIP awards are subject to performance conditions, details of which can be found on page 81 Also shown are details of the second tranche
of Timon Drakesmith’s Recruitment Share Award {RSA) which vested in June 2014 The award was made on matenally the same terms as the

2011 LTIP award

Notonal If share
Table Fig 74 Awards dvidend Awards Face value options
held at shares  ExerCised/ Lapsed/ held at of awards Exercise  date from
1 January Grantedin  accruedin  vestedin forfeited in 31 December granted in 2014 price which
Award date 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 (£Q0Q)  (npence) exercisable  Expiry date
Dawvid Atkins
DBSs* 12/03/2012 63,594 - 1,166 64,760 - - ¢00  Mar-14  Mar-19
DBsse 11/03/2013 83,024 - 2513 - - 85537 000 Mar-15  Mar-20
Desst 03/03/2014 - 45548 1,378 - - 46926 263 00 Mar-16  Mar-21
132,463
LTIP 01/04/2011 209,632 - 3,845 25543 187,934 - n/a n/a n/a
LTIP 01/04/2011 209,632 - 6,344 - - 215976 n/a n/a n/a
LTIP& 02/04/2012 294,883 - 8923 - - 303806 C00  Apr-16  Apr-19
LTipa 02/04/2013 247,862 - 7.501 - - 255383 000  Apr17  Apr-20
LTIP? 01/04/2014 - 107490 1,258 - - 108,748 597 00  Apr-18  Apr-2i
883,893
Sharesave® 05/04/2012 2,735 - - - - 2,735 32904 May-15 QOct-15
Peter Cole
DBsse 12/03/2012 46,760 - 858 - - 47618 000 Mar-14  Mar-19
Desst 11/03/2013 61,619 - 1,864 - - 63,483 €00 Mar-15 Mar-20
DBsse 03/03/2014 - 32701 989 - - 33,690 189 000 Mar-16  Mar-2i
144,791
LTIP 01/04/2011 150,504 - 2,761 18337 134928 - n/a n/a n/a
LTIP 01/04/201% 150,504 - 4,555 - - 155,059 n/a n/a n/a
LTIP® 02/04/2012 211,710 - 6,407 - - 218117 000  Aprl16  Apr19
LTIpa 02/04/2013 177,951 - 5,385 - - 183,336 000 Apr-17 Apr-20
LTIP® 01/04/2014 - 7832 916 - - 79,237 435 000  Apr18  Apr-2t
635,749
Sharesave® 01/04/2010 4,980 - - - - 4,980 31224 May-15  Oct-15

4 Indicates awards granted i the form of share options
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Table Fig 75

Neotional Face value If share
Awards dradend Awards of awards aptions,
heldat shares  Exercised/ Lapsed/ heldat  grantedin Exercise  date from
1January Granted in  accruedin vestedin  forfeited in 31 December 2014 price which
Award date 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 (£000) (inpence) exercisable Expiry date
Timon Drakesmith
DBsSs® 12/03/2012 37,348 - 685 - - 38,033 c00 Mar-14 Mar-19
DBsse 11/03/2013 56,768 - 1,717 - - 58,485 coo Mar-15 Mar-20
DBSS 03/03/2014 - 31,144 942 - - 32,086 180 000 Mar-16 Mar-21
128,604
LTIP 06/06/2011 135,841 - 2492 33,838 104,495 - n/a n/a n/a
LTIP 06/06/2011 135841 - 4,111 - - 139952 n/a n/a n/a
LTIPs 02/04/2012 201,628 - 6,102 - - 207,730 oo Apr-16 Apr-19
LTIP* 02/04/2013 169,477 - 5129 - - 174,606 000 Apr-17 Apr-20
LTIPs 01/04/2014 - 73460 859 - - 74,319 408 oco Apr-18 Apr-21
596,607
RSA C6/06/2011 90,561 - 1,661 22,558 69,664 -
Sharesave® (05/04/2012 4,558 - -~ - - 4,558 32904 May-17 Oct-17
Jean-Philippe Mouton
DBSsA 12/03/2012 14,625 - 268 14,893 - - 000 Mar-14 Mar-19
DBSS? 11/03/2013 18,086 - 547 - - 18,633 000 Mar-15 Mar-20
DBSS? 03/03/2014 - 23617 715 - - 24,332 136 000 Mar-16 Mar-21
42,965
LTIP 01/04/2011 61,483 - - 7357 54,126 - n/a n/a n/a
LTIP 01/04/2011 61,483 - - - - 61,483 n/a n/a n/a
LTIP 02/04/2012 84,426 - - - - 84,426 000 Apr-16 Apr-19
LTIP 02/04/2013 138,717 - - - - 138,717 000 Apr-17 Apr-20
LTIP 01/04/2014 - 607N - - - 60,711 337 000 Apr-18 Apr-21
346,047

A Indicates awards granted in the form of share options

General notes

1 Face values for the DBSS and LTIP awards made in 2014 have been calculated using the grant pnice in accordance with the respective plan rules

- For the DBSS the grant price was 576 83 pence, which was the average share price over the three business days immediately preceding the award date and

- For the LTIP the grant price was 555 40 pence which was the average share price over the five business days immediately preceding the award date

- Notional dividend shares accruing are not included in the calculation
2 Details of the performance measures and conditions for the LTIP can be found on page 81
3 The aggregate gain frum share awards that vested dunng 2074 was £1 0811371 (2013 £3025252)

4 For LTIP awards made to Jean Philippe Mouton prior 1o 2014 there (s ne accrual of notional dividend shares For French tax reasons LTIF awards granted to Jean-Phihppe

Mouton are in the form of conditional awards of free shares not share options

The Executive Directors' intarests in ordinary shares of the Company under the Share Incentive Plan (SIP) as at 31 December 2014 are shown

in table 76 The shares are held under a SIP trust Jean-Philippe Mouton is net eligible to participate in the SIP

Table Fig 76
Executive Directors’ SIP interests as at 31 December 2014

Partnership  Matching Dividend Total SIP shares

Total SIP shares shares shares Froe shares’ shares 31 December

1 January 20’4  purchased  awarded awarded purchased 014

David Atkins 9,874 578 843 535 324 12,154

Peter Cole 11,144 578 843 535 362 13,462

Timon Brakesmith 3,348 293 385 535 117 4,678
Note

1 The free shares were awarded on 17 Aprl 2014 at 560 00 pence per share
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

ADVISORS

The following adwisors provided services to the Commuttee duning the year

+ FIT Remuneraton Consultants LLP (FIT) was appointed by the Committee as advisars on 17 August 2011 FIT prowided advice on reward
structures and levels and aspects of the Company’s future remuneration policy FIT 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and complies with their code of conduct However, to avoid any conflict of interest, the terms of engagement (available on request to
shareholders) specify that FIT will oniy provide advice expressly authorised by or on behalf of the Committee Additionally, where
Instructions are taken on behalf of the Committee from employees of the Company, FIT ensures that the Commuttee is kept informed of
the broad scope of such matters The fees paid to FIT during 2014, which were charged on their standard terms, were £84,277 (excluding
VAT) (2013 £98,852, excluding VAT) FIT did not provide any other services to the Company during 2014, and the Committee remains
satished that all advice was ebjective and independent

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP (HSF) provide legal advice to the Company, and Lane Clark & Peacock LLP (LCP) provide actuarial advice
to the Company Advice from HSF and LCP, concerning the closure of the defined benefit pension scheme and the consequences for
Executive Directors who would no longer participate as a result, was made available to the Commuttee dunng 2014

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and senior Human Resources staff attend meetings by mvitation, but are not present dunng
discussions concerning their own remuneration The Company Secretary 1s the Secretary to the Committee The Chief Executive, senior
Human Resources staff and the Company Secretary provided advice te the Committee on matters relating to the Policy and also
Company practices

2014 AGM STATEMENT OF VOTING

At the Company's Annual General Meeting held on 23 Apnil 2014, votes cast by proxy at the meeting in respect of the Directars' Remuneration
Report were as follows No issues concerning remuneration were raised by shareholders during the Annual General Meeting

Table Fig 77

Votes For Votes Against Total votes cast Votes withheld

% of shares % of shares % of 1ssued

Resolunon Nao of shares voted  No of shares voted  share capital'  No of shares
To recewve and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy 534,234,020 97 11% 15,898,048 289% 77 17% 175,583?
To receive and approve the 2013 Directors’ Annual
Remuneration Report {excluding the Remuneration Policy) 537,765,609 97 75% 12,366,033 225% 77 17% 176,009
Notes

1 issued share capnal as at the record date for voting at the Annual General Meeting (17 Apnl 2014) was 712 502 066 ordinary shares
2 Represents 002% of the issued share capuital as at the record date
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IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION
POLICY IN 2015

Shareholder approval for the remuneration policy {Policy) was receved at the 2014 Annual General Meeting and the Company 15 not
making changes to the Policy that require shareholder approval at the 2015 Annual General Meeting The Policy 1s reproduced for reference
from page 170

A statement on the iImplementation of the Policy duning 2015 1s presented in table 78 The remuneration scenarios as shown in the Policy
have been updated overleaf to reflect 2015 planned implementation

Table Fig 78

Summary - 2015 planned implementation of the Policy

Pohcy element Implementation of Policy during 2015

Base Salary No increases 1o current salanes are proposed for 2015

Details on page 78

Pension All Directors will receive a salary supplement by way of pension provision
Details on page 82

Benefits No changes to current arrangements are proposed for 2015

Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) and AIP maximum for Executive Directors in 2015 will remarn at 200% of base salary
deferral under the Deferred Bonus
Share Scheme {DBSS)

Detalls on page 78

Performance measures for the AP In 2015 remain weighted 70% towards Group financial
targets and 309 personal objectives

Group financial targets compnse 25% adjusted Group earmings per share, 25% Total Property
Return relative to IPD, 209% Group operational targets

40% of AIP vesting for 2015 will be deferred by making an award of shares under the DBSS
(deferral period of 2 years)

Leng Term Incentive Plan As explained in the Chairman's letter, award levels for Executive Direciors for 2015 will be
Detalls on page 81 150% of base salary, below the normal level stated within the Policy of 200%

Performance measures for LTIP awards granted in 2015 are unchanged, except that the earnings
per share performance measure 15 calculated by reference to outperformance relative to a blend
of CPlin the UK and France

All-employee arrangements Continued opportunity to participate in all-employee arrangements on the same basis as all
staff in the UK or France as appropriate

Share Ownership Guidelines Remain at 150% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 100% of base salary for all other
Executive Directors

Chairman and Non-Executive Charrman’s fee — £320000 pa

Directors’fees Non-Executive Director’s fee — £55,000 pa There are also additional fees paid to the Senior

Independent Director, Chairmen of the Audit and Remuneraiion Committees and for
membership of these committees
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2014 REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION REPORT CONTINUED

Chart Fig 79

Scenarios: 2015 Implementation

Table Fig 80
Assumptions — 2015 Executive Director remuneration scenario
Assumptions
Fixed + Compares base salary, benefits, pension and participatien in the UK all-employee share plans Jean-Philippe
Mouton'’s data has been converted at a rate of £1 €1 247
- Base salary 15 that to be pad 1n 2015
+ Benefits are as shown in the Single Figure Remuneration Table for 2014 {table 52) on page 77 (except for
Jean-Philippe Mouton where the amount he received under the profit sharing plan has been excluded
from his 2014 benefits figure for these purposes (see On-Target and Maximum below)
- Pensions reflect salary supplements in lieu of pensions (see page 82) The penston figure for Yean-Philippe
Mouton 1s as shown on the Single Figure Remuneration Table on page 77
Base Salary Benefits Pansion Total Fixed
£000 £000 £600 £000
Dawid Atkins 597 22 179 798
Peter Cole 435 22 130 587
Timon Drakesmtib 408 19 82 509
Jean-Philippe Mouton 32¢% 10 74 413
On-Target Based on the reward that the Executive Director would recewe if perfermance was in line with expectation
{excluding share price appreciation and dividends)
+ AIP consists of on-target levels {equal to 50% of bonus maximum)
LTIP consists of the threshold level of vesting, being 25% of the face value of the award
France profit sharing (Jean-Philippe Mouton only) consists of on-target levels {equal to 50% of the current
capped vesting level of €18,774)
Maximum Based on the maximum remuneration recervable (excluding share price appreciation and dividends)

+ AIP consists of the maximum bonus (200% of base salary)
- LTIP assumes maximum vesting of awards (150% of base salary for 2015)

France proiit sharing {(Jean-Phiippe Mouton only) assumes maximum vesting at the current capped
vesting level of €18,774
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The objective of the Committee in implementing the Policy duning 2015, in line with the Main Pninciple D1 of the UK Corporate Govemance
Code, 15 to ensure that the design of Executive Directors remuneration promotes the long-term success of the Company and that performance-
related elements should be transparent, stretching and ngorously applied The vanable pay arrangements reflect the Company's strategic
prionties, taking suitable account of risk and corporate social responsibility factors Variable pay structures include provision for malus and
claw-back as set out In the Policy, which 1s reproduced from page 170

Implementation of the Policy requires the Committee to continue to take into account remuneration packages available within other comparable
companies, the Company's overall performance, internal relativities, achievement of corporate objectives, iIndivdual performance and experience,
published views of institutional investors and general market trends and performance

Generally, two-thirds of the Executive Directors total target remuneration {excluding pension and benefits) 1s performance related, through the
annual perfarmance-related bonus plan {AIF) and a long term incentive plan (LTIP) Performance measures associated with remuneration are
linked to key performance indicators incorporating group financial targets, as set out on page 3 and stretching personal performance objectives

By order of the Board

M s

Sarah Booth

General Counsel and Company Secretary
13 February 2015
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

This section of the Corporate Governance Report detals the
Company's compliance with the Pnnciples set out in the UK Corporate
Governance Code (Code) which is available at www frc org uk This
section should be read in conjunction with the Corporate Governance
Report as a whole as set out on pages 6010 99

On 17 September 2014, a revised UK Corporate Governance Code
was published The new Code applies to companies with reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 October 2014 Hammerson will report
in accordance with the requirements of the new Code in 2015

A, Leadership

A.1The Role of the Board

The Board 1s collectvely responsible to the Company's shareholders
for the long-term success of the Group and the delivery of the
long-term strategic and operational objectives of the Group The Board
sets the strategic direction, governance and values of the Group and
has ultimate responsibility for the management, direction and
performance of the Group

The Board operates through a sound nisk rmanagement
and internal control system, detaiis of which can be found
on pages 5510 59and 73 10 74

The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for
its decision which can be accessed at wwwhammersoncom

The Board has regular scheduled meetings throughout the year and
held six scheduled meetings in 2014 Additional Beard conference calls
are held as required between the formal Board meetings The table
below includes attendance at formal Board meetings and scheduled
Board conference calls Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to
communicate directly with Executive Directors and senior management
between formal Board meetings All Direciors are expected to attend all
meetings of the Board, and of those Committees on which they serve
and the Annual General Meeting {(AGM}, and to devote sufficient time
to the Company's affars to enable them to fulfil their duties as Directors
Detalls of Directors'attendance at each of the Board and Committee
meetings duning 2014 are set out In the table below

A 2 Division of responsibilities

The roles and responsibitities of the Chairrman and Chief Executive are
separate They are clearly defined and documented and approved by the
Board The Chairrnan, David Tyler, is responsible for the operation of the
Board The Chief Execuiive, David Atkins, 1s responsible for leading and
managing the business within the authorities delegated by the Board

A.3 The Chatrman

The Chairman sets the Board’s agenda and ensures that important
matters and in particular strategic issues, receive adeguate time and
attention at meetings The annual Board Strategy Day is dedicated to
considenng the future direction of the Company at the start of the
business planning process

Further details of the 2014 Board Strategy
Day can be found on page 66

At the tme of becoming Chairman in 2013, Dawid Tyler was considered
independent In accordance with the Code, the continuing test of
independence for the Chairman 1s not appropnate

A 4 Non-Executive Directors

Anthony Watson 15 the Senior Independent Director He 15 available

to address shareholders’concerns on governance and, if necessary,
other 1ssues that have not been resolved through the normal channels
of communication with the Chairman, Chief Executive or Chief
Financial Officer, or in cases when such communications would be
inappropriate The Senior Independent Director can also deputise

for the Chairman in his absence, act as a sounding board for the
Chairman and be available to advise and counsel all Board colleagues

The Senior Independent Director chais an annual meeting of Executive
and Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman present to appraise
the Chairman's performance and 1o address any other matters which
the Direciors might wish to raise The outcome of these discussions

I1s canveyed by the Servor Independent Director to the Chairman

Table Fig 81
Board and Committee meetings attendance

Board Auditl  Remuneration Nominatign
Dawvid Tyler 10710 - 4/4 2/2
Dawd Atkins 10/10 - - -
Peter Cole 10/10 - - -
Tirnon Drakesmith 1010 - - -
Jean-Philippe Mouton 10/10 - - -
Gwyn Burr'3s 9/10 373 4/4 2/2
Terry Duddy 10/10 - 4/4 2/?
Jacques Espinasse’? 9/10 373 - 2/2
Judy Gibbons? 10/10 3/3 4/4 2/2
John Hirst? 2/2 1/1 - -
Anthony Watson'* 8/10 3/3 4/4 2/2

John Hirst reured following the AGM on 23 April 2014
Appointed to the Nomination Commitiee on 23 July 2014
Chaurman of Remuneration Commuttee to 23 Aprl 2014

[ Y N

94

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014

The Director concerned was unable to attend one Board meeting due to a diary clash with another Board

Chairman of Remuneration Committee from 23 Apnl 2014 Present at January Remuneration Committee meeting by invitation




Anthony Watson will retire from the Board following the 2015 AGM
and will be succeeded by Terry Duddy as Senior Independent Director

The Chairman meets with the Non-Executive Directors as necessary,
but at least twice each year without the Executive Directors present

if any Director has concerns about the running of the Company or
a propesed action which cannat be resolved, such concerns will be
recorded 1n the Board minutes No such concerns arose In 2014

B. Effectiveness

B 1 The Composition of the Board

Duning the year the Board reviewed the overall balance of skills,
expenence, Independence and knowledge of the Board and
Commuittee members

The Board s satisfied that the Non-Executive Directors, each of
whom is independent frormn management and has no material
or other cennection with the Company, are able to exercise
independent jJudgement

The Board undertakes an annual review of the independence of
its Non-Executive Drectors in accordance with the ertenia set out
within the Code

Anthony Watson will retire following the 2015 AGM and 1t 15 planned
that Jacques Espinasse will retire from the Board in April 2016

There are currently seven Non-Executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and four Executive Directors on the Board

B.2 Appointments to the Board

The Nomination Cornmittee, chaired by the Chairman and
consisiing of a!l Non-Executive Directors, leads the process
for Board appointments and makes recommendations to
the Board The Committee’s terms of reference can be found
at www hammerson com

Further details of the work of the Nomination
Committee ¢an be found on pages 68 1o 70

Dhsclosures on diversity can be found
on pages 35 and 70

During the year the Nomination Committee appointed Spencer
Stuart, an independent executive search firm, which does not have
any other connection with the Company, to identify non-executive
director candidates Following a thorough search carned out by
Spencer Stuart, Pierre Bouchut was identified as a potental candidate
and subsequently recommended to the Board by the Commutiee
Pierre Bouchut was appointed as a Non-Executive Director

and member of the Audit and Nomination Committees on

13 February 2015

Further details of the recruitment process are des¢cnbed on page 70

B.3 Commitment

The Board 15 satisfied that each of the Non-Executive Directors Is able
ta devote sufficient ume to the Company’s business Non-Executive
Directors are advised on appointrment of the time required to fulfil

the role and asked 10 confirm that they can make the required
comrmtment Their commitment to their role 1s reviewed annually
as part of their annual appraisal Letters of appoiniment for the
Non-Executive Directors are avatable for inspection at the AGM

Posimions held by Non-Executve Directors
are sel out on pages 98 and 99

Each Executive Director 1s encouraged to take a non-executive
position In ancther company or arganisation The appointment
0 such a position 1s subject to the approval of the Board which
considers, in particular, the tme commitment reguired

8.4 Development

Alt Directors appointed to the Board receive an induction programeme
which takes into account therr qualifications and expenence All
Directors are kept informed of changes in relevant legsslation and
regulations and changing financial and commercial nisks, with the
assistance of the Company’s legal adwisors and external audior, where
appropriate Executive Directors are subject to the Company’s annual
performance development review process through which therr
performance against pre-determined objectives 1s reviewed and

therr personal and professional development needs are considered

Non-Executive Directors'traiming and personal development
requirernents are reviewed and agreed as part of the annual
appraisal of their performance, conducted by the Chairman
Non-Executive Directors are encouraged 1o attend seminars and
undertake external training at the Company’s expense in areas
considered appropriate for therr professional development
Including on issues relevant to the Board and Commuttees to
which they belong

Detalls of the development pragramrme for Jacques Espinasse
can be found on page 65

B.5 Information and support

The Directors have access 1o Independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense and to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary who advises the Board on corporate
governance matters The Board and ts Committees receive
high-quality, up-to-date information for review in good time
before each meeting The Company Secretary ensures that Board
procedures are followed and that the Company and the Board
operate within applicable legislation The Company Secretary is
also responsible for facilitating Directors’induction and assisting
with identifying and enabling appropnate training and for
Board performance evaluation

The appotntment and removal of the Company Secretary s a matter
requinng appraval of the Board

B 6 Evaluation

In 2013 an external performance evaluation of the Board and its
Committees was facltated by IDDAS, which had no other connection
with the Company The evaluaton considered the balance of skills of the
Board, diversity, ndependence, knowledge of the Company and the
Board's effectiveness Detalls of that evaluation were provided in last year's
Annual Report The next externally facilitated performance evaluaoon

of the Board and ts Committees 1s hikely to be conducted in 2016
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE CONTINUED

The Chasrman carries out a formal annual performance evaluation
mndmidually with each Non-Executive Director to review whether the
Non-Executive Director continues to contribute effectively and
demonsirates commitment to the role

The Non-Executive Directors, led by the Serior Independent
Director are responsible for the annual performance evaluation

of the Chairman The Chairman's evaluation was carned out in early
2015 and the Board was updated subsequently

The Directors concluded that following the internal Board effectiveness
evaluation in 2014 the Board and its Committees operate effectively
and that each Director conunues 1o contribute effectively and
demonstrates commitment to the role

More details of the internal Board effectiveness
evaluation are provided on page 67

B.7 Election and re-election

All Directors are subject to election at the first AGM following their
appointment Pierre Bouchut will stand for election at the AGM In
Apnl 2015 and the Board recommends his election It 1s planned that
Anthony Watson wili retire from the Board at the conclusion of the
AGM i Apnl 2015 With that exception, all the other Directors are
submytting themselves for re-election at the 2015 AGM and are
subject to annual re-election

Biographical details for all Cirectors are on pages
98 and 99 Further discussion on the balance of skills
and experience on the Board 1s provided on page 69

C. Accountability

C.1 Financial and business reporting

The Board considers that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, s farr,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Compary’s position and performance,
business model and strategy

A staterment of the Directors' responsibilities regarding the financal
staternents Is set out on page 102

A statement on the status of the Company as a going
concern s set put on page 54

An explanancn of the Groups strategy and business model 15
available on pages 110 31 An assessment of the principal
risks facing the Cornpanyy are set out on pages 55 to 39 and
performance metncs are set out ¢n pages 361 39

C.2 Risk Management and internal control

The Board has estabiished processes for monitoring sound
nsk management and internal control which aflow 1t to review
the effectiveness of the systems in place within the Group

The Group's nsk management and internal control systems are
designed to

- Safeguard assets against unauthornsed use or disposition,
+ Ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records,

Provide reliable information,
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+ Identify and, as far as possible, mitigate potential impediments
to the Group achieving 1ts objectives, and

- Ensure compliance with relevant legislation, rules and regulations

It must be recognised that the Group's internal controls provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement
or loss

Management has established a risk management framework and
sufficient procedures necessary to enable the Directors to report on
internal controls 1in compliance with the Code These involve the
analysis, evaluation and management of the key risks to the Group and
include plans for the continuity of the Company’s business in the event
of unforeseen interrupton Reports on key nisks to the Group are made
regularly to the Board wia the Audit Commuttee The Board allocates
responsibihty for the management of each key nsk to the Executive
Directors and senior executives within the Group

Further explanation of the Company's appreach
1o nisk management 1s on pages 55 to 59 and 73 10 74

C.3 Audit Committee and Auditors

The Audit Committee comprises five independent Non-Executive
Directors It has three scheduled meetings per year, organised around
the Company’s reporting schedule During 2014 the Audit Committee
met three tmes In 2015, and in future years, 1t 1s planned that there will
be an additional scheduled meeting to review the year-end valuation
of the Group’s property portfelio by the valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung (OTZ}

Details of the compositien of the Audit Commitiee
are sel out on pages 71

The experience and background of members of the
Audit Commuitee are on pages 69 and 98 1o 99

The Audit Commuttee assists the Board to fulfil 1ts responsibility in
relaton to ensuring that management has systems and procedures in
place to ensure the integnity of financial information, maintaining an
appropriate relationship with the Group’s external auditor Deloitte LLP
(Deloitte), reviewing the effectiveniess, objectivity and independence
of Deloitte including the scope of work and the fees paid to Deloitie,
and reviewing the Company's internal audit arrangements Further
details are provided in the terms of reference for the Audit Committee
which are available at www hammerson com

The Audit Committee Chairman regularly reports 1o the Board details
of the work carned out by the Audit Committee n accordance with its
terms of reference

Jacques Espinasse, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, has been
determined by the Board to have recent and relevant financial
experience as required by the Code Itis planned that Jacques Espinasse
will retire as Chairman of the Audit Committes and as a Non-Executive
Director of the Board at the conclusion of the 2016 AGM

The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial
Officer and other members of the senior finance management team
together with senior representatives of Celoitte are invited to attend all




or part of meetings as appropnate In order to fulfil its duties as defined
In its terms of reference, the Audit Committee recerves presentations
and reviews ieports from the Group's senior managerment, consulting
as necessary with Deloitte

The Audit Commiitee meets with Deloitte and with Ernst & Young LLP,
the internal auditor {which undertakes the majonity of the Company's
internal audit reviews), in the absence of management at least once
each year

DTZ and Deloitte have full access to each other and the Chairman

of the Committee meets with DTZ and Deloitte as part of the half-year
and year end valuations to ensure that they are each sausfied that
there has been a full and open exchange of Information and views

The Audit Committee has regard to the recommendations of the
Audiing Practices Board on effective communication between
audn commuttees and external auditors and has concluded that
the relatonship with Deloitte meets these recommendatons

Details of how the Audit Committee has discharged its
respansibilives during the year are provided in the Audit
Comrmittee Report on pages 71 to 74

D. Remuneration

D 1 The level and components of remuneration

The prncipal responsibilities of the Remuneration Cormimittee are
determining and agreeing with the Board the overall remuneration
principles and framework for the remuneration of the Executive
Drrectors, the Company Secretary and the other members of the Group
Executive Commuttee The terms of reference for the Committee are
available at www hammerson corm The terms of reference are reviewed
annually by the Board The Chairman of the Committee reports on

the Commuttee’s actmties at the subsequent Board meeting

Gwyn Burr joined the Remuneraticn Commuttee in February 2014
and succeeded Anthony Watson as Charman of the Committee
after the 2014 AGM

The Crrectors’'Remuneration Report can be found
onpages 751093

D 2 Procedure

In determining policy on exacutive remuneration the Remuneration
Commiitee takes inio account all factors which it deems necessary
including relevant legal and regulatory requirements, the provisions
of the Code and associated guidance Further details are provided tn
the terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee which are
avatlable at www hammerson com

Details of the compesition of the Remuneraton Commitiee
are on page 75

Details of advisors who pravided services to the
Remuneration Committee durning the year are on page 90

Dunng 2014 no individual was present when his or her own
remuneration was being determined

E. Relations with Shareholders
E.1 Dialogue with Shareholders
The Company actively engages with sharehclders

Throughout the year the Campany has undertaken a wide vanety
of meetings, presentations and road shows

The Board recerves reports of meetings with institutional shareholders
together with regular market reports and brokers reports which
enabte the Directors to understand the views of shareholders

The Board tekes account of corporate governance guidelines of
institutional shareholders and their representative bodies such as the
tnvestment Association and the National Association of Pension Funds

Hammerson's website contains information of interest to both
institutional and private shareholders

Further details about relations with shareholders can be found in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 65 and in the Directors’
Remuneration Pelicy an page 182

E.2 Constructive use of General Meetings

At general meetings, the proxy appointment form provides
shareholders with the option 1 direct their proxy vote for each
resolution either for or against the resolution or to withhold their vote
The Company will ensure that the proxy appointment form and any
announcernent of the results of a vote will make it clear that a 'vote
withheld’ 15 not a vote In law and will not be counted in the calculation
of the proportion of the votes for and against the resolution All valid
proxy appointment forms are properly recorded and counted For each
resclutton, after the vote has been taken, information on the number of
proxy votes for and against the resolution and the number of shares in
respect of which the vote was withheld, 1s given at the general meeting
and 1s made avallabte on the Company’s website Notice of general
meetings Is despatched to shareholders at least 14 days in advance

Separate resclutions are proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue

In the event that, in the opimion of the 8oard, a significant proportion

of the votes 1s cast against a resolution at any general meeting, the
Company would explan the actions it intends to take to understand the
reasons behind the vote result, when announaing the results of voting

The AGMwill be held on 22 Apnl 2015 and 1s an opportunity for
shareholders to attend and vote on the resolutions proposed

The Notice of AGM Is avallable at www hammerson comn and s
despatched to shareholders who have requested a hard copy of the
documentation from the Company, together with explanatory notes,
at least 20 working days before the AGM Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate 1ssue, including a resolution
to approve the Annuat Report

All Directors normally attend the AGM as well as the Company
Secretary The Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees are avallable to answer questions

The Board welcomes questions frorn sharehclders They have
an opportunity to raise issues formally at the AGM or informalty
with Directors before or after the meeting
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DIRECTORS'BIOGRAPHIES

David Tyler
Non-Executive Director and Chairman (Age 62)

Timon Drakesmith
Chief Financial Officer (Age 49)

Appointed to the Board: 12 January 2013 and appointed
Chairman on 9 May 2013

Committee membership Remuneration Committee and
Chairman of the Nemination Committee

Other appointments: Chairman of J Sainsbury plc and
non-gxecutive director of Burberry plc.

Past appomtments;: Chairman of Logica plc and 31 Quoted Private
Equrty plc Finance director of GUS plc and has held senior financial
and general management roles with Chnistie’s International plc,
County NatWest Limited and Unilever PLC Nen-executive director
of Expenan plc and Reckitt Benckiser Group plc

David Atkins
Chief Executive (Age 48)

Appointed to the Board: 1 January 2007 and appointed
Chief Executive on 1 October 2009

Other appointments: Member of the executive board of the
European Public Real Estate Association President, director and
member of the advisory committee of the British Councl of Shopping
Centres Member of the policy cormnmittee of the British Property
Federation Director and trustee of the Reading Real Estate Foundation

Peter Cole
Chief Investment Officer (Age 56)

Appointed to the Board: 1 October 1999

Past appointments: President and general councit member of
the City Property Association
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Appointed to the Board 30 June 2011

Other appointments: Non-executive director of Value Retail PLC
Chairman of VIA Qutlets advisory commuitee and of the Bnitish Property
Federation's finance committee

Past appointments: Finance director of Great Portland Estates plc
and the MK Electric dwision of Novar plc Group director of financial
operations of Novar plc Other financial roles at Credit Swisse, Barclays
and Deloitte Haskins and Sells

Jean-Philippe Mouton
Executive Director (Age 53)
Appointed to the Board: 1 January 2013

Past appomtments. Director of strategic planning at Disneyland Panis
and roles at The Walt Disney Company and Standard Chartered Bank

Anthony Watson CBE

Non-Executive Director and

Senior Independent Director (Age 69)

Appointed to the Board: 1 February 2006

Commuttee membership: Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee

Other appointments: Senior independent director of both Witan
Investment Trust plc and Lloyds Banking Group plc Member of the
Norges Bank Investment Management corporate governance advisory
board Chairman of Lincoln's Inn investment commuttee Director
of the Queen's Unversity of Belfast foundation board Member of
the advisory board of the Assaciation of Corporate Treasurers

Past appointments: Chairman of Marks and Spencer Pension
Trust Limited, Agian Infrastructure Fund Limited and Strategic
Investment Board (Northern Ireland) Non-executive director

of Vodafone Group plc




Gwyn Burr
Non-Executive Director (Age 52)

Judy Gibbons
Non-Executive Director (Age 58)

Appointed to the Board: 21 May 2012

Appointed to the Board: 1 May 2011

Committee membership. Audit Committee, Nomination
Commuttee and Charman of the Remuneration Committee

Committee membership. Audit Committee,
Norminauon Committee and Remuneration Commiitee

Other appointments. Member of board, remuneration commitiee
and chairrnan of nominations committee of Sainsbury’s Bank plc
Non-executive director of the Financial Cmbudsman Service,
Wembley Stadium, Just Eat plec, Metro SG and DFS Trading Limited

Past appointments: Senior rofes in marketing, customer service and
financial services at Asda plc Customer service and colleague director
at) Sainsbury plc Non-executive director of the Principality Bullding
Soctety Director of the Incorporated Society of British Advertisers
Charr of Business in the Community, community investment board

Terry Duddy
Non-Executive Director (Age 58}

Appointed to the Board; 3 December 2009

Committee membership: Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Other appointments; Chairman of Retal Trust

Past appointments, Chief executive of Home Retail Group plc
Director of DSG Retall Limited and trustee of Education and
Employers Taskforce

Jacques Espinasse
Non-Executive Director {Age 71)

Appotnted to the Board: 1 May 2007

Committee membership: Nomination Committee and
Charrman of the Audit Committee

Other appointments: Non-executive director and member

of the audit and remuneration commuttees of La Bangue Postale
Asset Management and SES Non-executive diector and charman
of the audit committee of AXA Belgium Chairman of the
Fondation JED-Belgique

Past appointments Chief financial officer of Vivendr Non-executive
director of Canal+ France, Maroc Telecom, SFR and Universal Music
Group Non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee
of AXA Bank Europe and AXA (Holdings) Belgium

Other appointments: Non-executive director of Guardian
Media Group plc, Michael Kors Holdings Limited and Virgin
Money Grang Limited Chairman of Refresh Mobile Limited

Past appointments; Non-executive director of 02 plc Corporate
vice president of Microsoft Corporation Venture partner of Accel
Partners Senior roles in marketing and product development at
Apple In¢ and Hewlett-Packard

Pierre Bouchut

Non-Executive Director (Age 59)

Appeointed to the Board: 13 February 2015

Committee membership: Audit Committee and Nominaticn
Committee

Other appointments: Executive vice president and chief financial
officer of Celhaize Group SA. Non-executive director of La Rinascente
SpA Non-executive member of the adwisory boards of both
Qualium Investissement and Lombard Odier Asset Managerment
(Swizzerland) SA

Past appointments: Executive director growth markets zone

and chief financial officer of Carrefour SA Chief financial officer
and member of the management board of Schneider Electric SA
Chief executive officer and member of the board of Casino
Guichard-Perrachon SA

Sarah Booth

General Counsel and Company Secretary (Age 48)

Sarah joined Hammerson as General Counsel in March 2010 and was
appointed Company Secretary in September 2011 Prior to Joining
Harnmerson, Sarah had been General Counsel at Christian Salvesen plc
and Sodexo amongst others Sarah qualified as a solicitor in Scotland

See the Nominaton Commitiee Report for further details on
Directors’ skills and experuse on page 69
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DIRECTORS REPORT

This report (Report} forms part of the management report as required
under Disclosure and Transparency Rule (OTR} 4 The Strategic Report
on pages 1 1o 59, includes an indication of future likely developments
In the Company, details of important events since the year ended

31 December 2014, the Company’s business model and strategy

The Corporate Governance Report on pages 50 to 99 I1s incorporated

in this Report by reference

Articles of Association (Articles)

The Company's Articles may be amended by special resclution in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (Act) and are avallable
at www hammerson com

Branches
Detals of the Company's operations in France are provided on
pages 167 t0 168

Directors

Detanls of the Directors who served dunng the year are set out on
pages 98 to 99 John Hirst served as a Non-Executive Girector until
23 Apnl 2014 when he retired Directors are appointed and replaced
in accordance with the Articles, the Act and the UK Corporate
Governance Code The powers of the Directors are set out in the
Articles and the Act

Indemnification of and insurance for Directors
and officers

The Company mamtains directors'and officers’ability insurance,
which 15 reviewed annually The Company's Cirectors and officers
are adequately insured i ine with best practice Directors are
indermnnified under the Company’s Arucles

Dividends
Details of the recommended final dvidend can be found on page 54

Employees

Details of the Company's policies regarding the employment of
disabled persons and its engagement with employees are provided
on pages 34 and 35

Financial Instruments
Details of the Group's inancial nsk management in relation to 1its
financial Instruments are available on pages 141 to 147

Going Concern
The Company’s going concern statement can be found on page 54

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting
Information regarding the Company’s greenhouse gas emissions
can be found on page 29

Provisions on Change of Control

Five of the six outstanding bonds 1ssued by the Company contain
covenants specifying that, if the Company's credit rating 1s
downgraded to below investment grade due to a change of control,
and the rating remains below invesiment grade for a period of six
moniths thereafter, the bondholders may require repayment at par
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In addition, under the Company’s credit faciliiies and private
placement notes, the lending banks or halders may require repayment
of cutstanding amounts within 30 and 52 days respectively, of any
change of control

Purchase of own shares

At the 2014 Annual General Meeting (AGM), the Company was
granted authonty by shareholders to purchase up to 71,289,894
ardinary shares (10% of the Company’s i1ssued ordinary share capital
as at 21 February 2014) This authonty will expire at the conclusion of
the 2015 AGM at which a resolution will be proposed for its renewal

Re-appointment of External Auditor and Disclosure
of Information

The re-appaintment of Deloitte LLP {Deloitte) has been considered
and recommended by the Audit Committee to the Board Celoitte s
willing to be re-appointed as the external audrtor to the Company and
a resolution concerning Deloitte’s re-appointment will be proposed

at the AGM

Each of the persons whe 1s a Director at the date of approval of the
Directors Report has confirmed that

So far as she or he 1s aware, there 15 no relevant information
of which the Company's external auditor i1s unaware, and

«+ She or he has taken all the steps that she or he eught to
have taken as a Director in order to make herself or himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company's external auditar 1s aware of that information

Responsibility Statement
The Directors' responsbility statement 1s set out on page 102

Share Capital and Substantial Shareholders

Details of the Company’s capital structure are set out on pages 147 to
149 The nghts and obligations attached to the Company’s shares are
set outin the Articles There are no restrictions on the transfer of shares
except the UK REIT restnictions

At 31 Decernber 2014 the following interests i voting nghts over the
issued share capital of the Company had been notified in accordance
with OTR 5

Table Fig 82

At 31 December
Ordinary shares 2014 percentage of
of 25peach  total vouing nghts
APG Algemene Pensioen Groep NV 68,227,094 957%
BlackRock Inc 50,223,602 705%

Legal & General Investment
Management Ltd 25.717,804 361%

No changes to the above have been disciosed to the Company
between 31 December 2014 and 13 February 2015

Sarah Booth &’l_-scn;h\

General Counsel and Company Secretary
13 February 2015
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the preparation
of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the

financial staterments in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required

1o prepare the Group financial staternents in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with Unuted Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company
for that penod

In prepanng the parent company financial statements, the Directors
are required to

Select suitable accounung policies and then apply them
consistently,

Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

State whether applicabte UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained (n the financial statements, and

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue In business

In preparnng the Group financial statements, international
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

Properly select and apply accounting policies,

Present information, including accounting policies, ina
manner that provides relevant, refiable, comparable and
understandable information,

Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance, and

Make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a
gotng concern
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Comparues Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are respensible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financal information included on the
Corpany's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

The financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habilives, financial position and profit o loss of the Company and
the undertakings included In the consolidation taken as a whole,

The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the consclidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal nsks and uncenainties
that they face, and

The Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are
fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy

David Atkins
Chief Executive Officer
13 February 2015

Tp U Dywleesni
imon Drakesmith

Chief Financial Officer
13 February 2015




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC

Opinion on the financial statements of
Hammerson plc
In our opinion

- The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of

the Group's ang of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December

2014 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards

the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial staterments comprise the Consolidated Income

Statemenit, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,

the Consclidated and Company Balance Sheets, the Consclidated
Staternent of Changes in Equity, the Consoldated Cash Flow
Statement, the Analysis of Movement in Net Debt and the related
notes 1 to 29 for the consolidated financial statements and the
related notes A to L for the parent company financial staterments

Our assessment of risks of matenal misstatement

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statemenis is applicable law and
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The financial reporting
framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the parent
company financial statements 1s apphcable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the Directors’
Responsitalities Statement contained on page 102 that the Group
15 a going concern We confirm that

we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
15 appropriate, and

we have not identified materal uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
10 continue as a going concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement 1s not a guarantee as 1o the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern

There has been no significant change In the Group’s operations and our assessed rnsks of matenal misstaternent described below, which are

those that had the greatest effect on the audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audrt and directing the efforts of the engagement team,

are the same nisks as In the prior year

Risk

How the scope of our audit responded 1o the nsk

Valuation of the property portfolio
Harmmerson plc ("Hammerson™ owns a portfolio of retall
property assets valued at £6,706 5 millicn at 31 December
2014 of which £4,427 3 million are held by subsidiaries and
£2,2792 million by joint ventures (Hammerson's share excluding
VIA Outlets) The valuation of the portfolio (including a number
of development properties) 1s a significant jJudgement area and
15 underpinned by a number of assumptions
The Group uses professionally qualified extemal valuers to farr
value the Group’s portfolio at six-monthly intervals The portfolio
(excluding development properties) is valued by the investment
method of valuation with development properties valued by
the same methodology with a deduction for all costs necessary
to complete the development together with an allowance for
remaining nsk (the residual method)

Please see note 12 1o the financial statements

We assessed management’s process for reviewing and challenging

the work of the external valuer and development appraisals,

We met with the external valuers of the portfolio to discuss and challenge
the valuation process, performance of the portfolio and significant
assumptions and critical judgemeni areas, including future lease income
and yields We benchmarked these assumptions to relevant market
evidence including specific property sales and other external data,

For development properties we assessed future costs to complete

based on development appraisals We also tested controls around the
development cycle,

We assessed the competence, independence and integrity of the external
valuer, and

We performed audit procedures to assess the integnity of information
provided to the independent valuer including agreement on a sample
basts back to actual leases

Investment property transactions

Hammerson undertook acquisttions and disposals

during the year including acquinng a fulf controlling interest in
Highcross, Leicester for £180 milhon, acquining Saint Sebasuen,
Nancy {or £109 miflion and disposing of its Interests in
Queensgate Shopping Centre, Peterborough for £99 million
There is a nsk that transactions may have complexity which
includes deferred consideration arrangements, rental top-up
payments or other contractual obligations which are not
appropriately recorded within the financial staterments

We challenged management’s jJudgements by reviewing sale and
purchase agreements and other related documents,

We assessed each transaction against the recognition, measurement and
classification cnitena of the Group's accounting policies set out in note 1
and applicable IFRSs, and

We tested the accuracy and completeness of the disclosures in the
financral statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC CONTINUED

Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the nisk

Accounting for the investment in Value Retall

We planned the scope of the audit and instructed the auditor of Value
Retall accordingly,

We met with the auditor, Value Retall management and the external

i1s primanly driven by the valuation of the Value Retall property valuer of the Value Retall property portfolio to discuss and challenge the
portfolio of £2,703 million of which Hammerson's share 1s valuation assumptions inciuding future rental iIncome and yields, and
£885 million This 1s subject to similar judgements tothose of . We assessed the competence, iIndependence and integnity of the

the Group's own property pertfolio above, including future axternal valuer

rental income and yields

Please see note 14 of the financial statements

Hammerson's interest in Vatue Retall {carrying value
of £629 milkon) 1s equity accounted as an associate

The valuation of the Group's Investment In Value Retall

The description of nisks above should be read in conjunction with the significant issues considered by the Audit Committee discussed on
page 72 and the significant accounting policies disclosed n note 1

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statemenits as a whole, and not to
express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures Qur opimion on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of the

risks descnbed above, and we do not express an optnion on these individual matters

Our application of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstatement i1 the
financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed
or influenced We use matenality both in planning the scope of

our audit work and 1n evaluating the results of our work.

We determined matenality for the Group to be £30 mullien

(2013 £30 million), which 1s below 1% (2013 1%) of shareholders’
equity We determined matenality based on shareholders’ equity
as net asset value 1s a key performance indicator as It takes into
consicderation the valuation of Harnmerson's property portfolio
and the investment in Value Retail

In addinion to net assets, we consider EPRA Adjusted Profit Before
Tax as a cnitical performance measure for the Group and a measure
used within the Real Estate tndustry We applied a lower threshold of
£78milhon (2013 £6 5 millon) which equates to 4 5% (2013 4%) of
that measure for testing all balances impacting that measure

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to

the Commitiee all audit differences in excess of £06 million

{2013 £06 million), as well as diferences below that threshoid that,

In our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also
report to the Audit Commuttee on disclosure matters that we identified
when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the
Group and its environment, Incfuding group-wide contrals, and
assessing the nsks of material misstatement at the group level

Based on that assessment, we focused our group audit scope primarily
on the audit work at four significant components being the UK, France,
Value Retail and VIA Qutlets (VIA} VIA was included within scope for
the first time 1n 2014 following the investrment made in the year These
four (2013 three) components together cormprise 99% (2013 99%)
of the Group's net assets and 1009 (2013 100%) of profit befcre tax
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The UK and French components were subject to a full scope audit,
whilst Value Retall (accounted for as an associate) and VIA (accounted
for as a joint venture) were subject to an audit of specified

account balances, where the exient of our testing was based on

our assessment of the nsks of matenal misstaterent and of the
matenality of the Group's operations at those components

Our audit work at the four locations was executed at levels of
materiality applicable to each individual entity which were lower
than group matenalty and ranged from £12 6 milhon to £16 5 million
(2013 £126 million to £16 5 milkon} For those balances impacting
EPRA Adjusted Profit Before Tax the matenality range was £3 2 million
1o £4 35 milhon (2013 £3 2 million to £4 35 million)

The group audit team continued to follow a programme of pianned
visits that has been designed so that the Serior Statutory Auditor or
a senior member of the group audit team visits each of the locations
where the group audit scope was focused at least once every two
years In years when we do not visit a significant component we will
include the componeni audit team in our team bnefing, discuss their
nsk assessment, and review documentation of the findings from
their work

At the parent entity level we also tested the conschidation process
and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant nsks of matenal misstatement of the
aggregated financial nformation of the remairing components
not subject to audit or audit of specified account balances We
have obtained an understanding of the Group's system of internal
controls and undertaken a combination of procedures, afl of which
are designed to target the Group's identified nsks of matenal
misstatement (0 the most effective manner possible




Opinion on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006
In our opirion

the pant of the Directors’ Remuneration Repoert to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report

by exception

Adequacy of explanations recerved and

accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired to report tc you If,
IN OUr ORINION

we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or

the parent company financial statements are not 1n agreement
with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report o In our
opinion certain disclosures of Direciors’ remuneration have not been
made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
15 not N agreement with the accounting records and returns We have
nothing to report ansing from these matiers

Corporate Governance Statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's
compliance with ten prowisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under international Standards on Auditing {(UX and Ireland), we

are required 1o report to you If, in gur opinion, information in the
Annual Report is

matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial
staternents, or

apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally iInconsistent
with, our knowledge of the Group acquired In the course of
performing our audit, or

otherwise misleading

tn parucular, we are required to consider whether we have identified

any Inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired durning the audit

and the Directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Repaort 1s
fair, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual Report
approprately discloses those matters that we communicated to the
Audit Committee which we consider should have been disclosed
We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies

or musleading staterments

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view
Cur respansibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance wath applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require

us 1o comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors We also comply with International Standard on Quality
Conirol 1 (UKand treland) Qur audit methodology and tools am to
ensure that our quality contro! procedures are effective, understood
and applied Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review team and independent partner reviews

This report 15 made solely to the Company's members, as a body, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies Act 2006

Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required 1o state to thern
In an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body,

for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting poliies are appropnate 1o
the Group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estmates made by the Directars, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements In additon, we read
all the financial and non-financial Information in the Annual Report to
idenufy matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statemenits
and to identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acguired by
us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any
apparent maienal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

lam atie~

lan Waller (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Lendon, Urited Kingdom

13 February 2035
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Restated
2014 2013
Continuing operations Notes £m £m
Gross renial income 2 206.5 1760
Operating profit before other net gains and share of results of joint ventures and associate 2 142.5 1191
Other net gans 2 264.7 863
Share of results of joint ventures 13A 279.0 1287
Share of results of associate 14A 109.9 1015
Operating profit 2 796.1 4356
Finance costs (106.7) (950}
Bond redemption - premium and costs (8.7) (39
Change in farr value of dervatives 13.4 {168)
Finance income 9.0 54
Net finance ¢osts 7 (93.0) {109 3)
Profit before tax 7031 3263
Tax charge 8A (1.0 o7
Profit from continuing operations 7021 3256
Profit from discontinued operations
Group - 54
Share of results of joint ventures - 95
- 149
Profit for the year 702.1 3405
Attnibutable to:
Equity shareholders 699.1 3374
Non-controlling interests™ 25C 3.0 31
Profit for the year 7021 3405
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Continuing operaticns 95.7p 453p
Discontinued operations - 21p
Tatal 1A 95.7p 474p
Adjusted earnings per share 1A 239 231p

*  Comparative figures have been restated following the change sn accounting pokcy resulting from the adopuon of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements {see note 1 on page 113)

b NOF'I'COFIUOWOQ Interests relate to continuing operations
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CONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2014 2013
Continuing and discontinued operations £m £m
Foreign exchange translation differences’ (136.4} 322
Net gainv/{loss) on hedging activities 103.8 (319)
Revaluation gamns on owner-occupied property held in joint venture - 32
Revaluation gains on participative loans within nvestment in assoclate 0.6 29
Net actuanal losses on pension scheres {11.5) {24)
Net (loss)/gain recognised directly in equity {43.5) 40
Prcfit for the year from continuing operations 702.1 3256
Profit for the year from discontinued operations - 149
Profit for the year 702.1 3405 |
Total comprehensive income for the year 658.6 3445 '
Attributable to
Equity shareholders 660.9 3386
Nan-controlling interests (2.3) 49
Total comprehensive income for the year 658.6 3445

* Foregn exchange translation differences and net losses or gains on hedging actmties would be recycled through the income statement in the event that foreign operations were disposed

SINIWIIVLS TYIDNYNIY
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2014

Restated
2014 2013
Notes £im Em
Non-current assets
Investrment and development properties 12 4,427.3 34478
Interests in leasehold properties 33.2 351
Plant and equipment 50 63
Investment in joint ventures 13A 2315 24708
Investrment in associate 148 628.8 5454
Other investments 1.4 14
Recevables 15 79.3 718
7.516.5 65786
Current assets
Recewvables 16 97.8 781
Cash and deposits 17 28.6 157
126.4 938
Total assets 7,642.9 66724
Current liabilities
Payables 18 204.4 1695
Tax 8C 0.3 10
Borrowangs 19A ~ 2462
2047 4167
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 194 2,287.1 20178
Deferred tax 8C 05 04
Obligations under finance leases Pl 33.0 349
Payables 22 72.5 660
2,393.1 21191
Total liabilities 2,597.8 25358
Net assets 5,045.1 41366
Equity
Share caprtal 23 196.1 1782
Share premium 1,222.9 1,2224
Translation reserve 2390 3701
Hedging reserve (207.5}) (311 3)
Merger raserve 374.2 -
Other reserves 19.6 172
Retained earnings 3,136.2 25882
Investment in own shares 24 (6.8) (49)
Equity shareholders’ funds 4,973.7 40599
Non-controlling interests™ 29C 71.4 767
Total equity 5,045 1 4,1366
Diluted net asset value per share 18 £6 35 570
EPRA net asset value per share 118 £6.38 573

= Comparatwve figures have been restated following the change 1in accounung pelicy resulting from the adopuon of IFRS1 1 Joint Arrangements (see note 1 on page 113)

** Non-centrolling interests relate Lo continuing operations

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2015

ed on bgfalfo M '\T&%JM

avid Timon Drakesmith
Director Director
Registered in England No 360632
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Investment Equity Non-
Share Share Translation Hedging Merger Other  Retained Inown  shareholders’ controlling Total
capital pramlum reserve reserve reserve reserves  earnings shares™ funds interasts equity
£im £m £im £m £m £im £m £m £m €tm £m
Balance at 1 January
2014 - restated” 178.2 1,2224 370.1 (311.3) - 17.2 2,588.2 (4.9)| 4,0599 76.7 4,136.6
Issue of shares 17.9 0.5 - - 381.4 - - - 399.8 - 3998
Share 1ssue costs - - - - (7.2) - - - (7.2) - (72)
Share-hased employee
remuneraticn - - - - - 5.1 - - 5.1 - 5.1
Cost of shares awarded
o employees - - - - - {3.6) - 3.6 - - -
Transfer on award of own
shares 1o employees - - - - - 0.9 (0.9) - - - -
Proceeds on award of own
shares to employeas - - - - - - 0.2 - 0.2 - 02
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - - (55) (5.5} - (5.5)
Dividends - - - - - - (139.5) - {139.5) (3.0) (142.5)
Foreign exchange

translation differences - (131.1) (131.7) (5.3) (136.4)
Net gain on hedging activities - - - 103.8 - - - - 103.8 - 1038

Revaluation gains on
participative loans within

i
1
1
]
1
)

nvestment In associate - - - - - - 0.6 - 0.6 - 0.6

Net actuaral losses on

pension schemes - - - - - - (M.5) - (11.5) - (11.5)
Profit for the year attnbutable

to equity shareholders - - - - - - 699.1 - 699 1 3.0 7021

Total comprehensive

income/{loss) for the year - - (131.1) 103.8 - - 6882 - 6609 (23) 6586

Balance at31 December2014 196.1 1,222.9 239.0 (207.5) 374.2 19.6 3,136.2 (6.8) 4,973.7 71.4 5,045.1

Notes 23 23 24

SLNIWILVLS TYIINVNIE

* Comparatve figures have been restated following the change in accounting policy resulting from the adeption of IFRS1 1 Joint Arrangemenits (see note 1 on page 113) In additien
the balance of £7 2 million on the capital redemption reserve has been aggregated within other reserves

** Investment in own shares 1s stated at cost
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Share Share  Translauon Hedging Other Retained  Investment in sharehﬁl%l-::r contr::l?:g Tatal
captal  premum reserve resenve reserves earnings  own shares** funds. interests equity
Restated £m £m fm £m £m £m m £m £m m
Balance at 1 January 2013 1782 12223 3397 (2794) 181 23783 60) 38512 745 38257
Issue of shares - 01 - - - - - 01 - 01
Share-based employee remuneration - - - - 3% - - 39 - 39
Cost of shares awarded to employees - - - - (60 - 60 - - -
Transfer on award of own shares
to employees - - - - 12 12 - - - -
Proceeds on award of own shares
to employees - - - - - 01 - oM - 01
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - “9 49 - (49
Dwvidends - - - - - {1301) - (¥301) 27) (1328
Foreign exchange translation differences - - 304 - - - - 304 18 322
Net loss on hedging actvities - - - 319 - - - (319 - (319
Revaluation gaing on owner-occupied
property held in jont venture - - - - - 32 - 32 - 32
Revaluation gans on participative loans
within investment In associate - - - - - 29 - 29 - 29
Net actuanal losses on pension schemes - - - - - 24 - (24) - (24)
Profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders - - - - - 3374 - 3374 31 3405
Total comprehensive income/(loss}
for the year - - 304 (319) - 341 - 3396 49 3445
Balance at 31 December 2013 1782 12224 3701 (3113 172 25882 (49) 40599 767 41366
Notes 23 24

*  Comparatve figures have been restated following the change in accounting policy resulting from the adopuon of (FRS11 Joint Arrangements (see note 1 on page 113) Inaddition
the balance of £7.2 million on the capital redemption reserve has been aggregated withn other reserves as at  January 2013

'

Investment in own shares 1s stated at cost
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Restated
2014 013
Notes £m fm
Operating activities
Cperating profit before other net gains and share of results of joint veniures and associate
- continuing operations 2 142.5 1191
- discontinued operations g - 46
1425 1237
Increase in receivables (21.1) 60}
Increase/{Decrease)in payables 23.5 (233}
Adjustmenit for non-cash items 6 12.2 61
Cash generated from operations 1571 1005
Interest paid (122.2) (1066)
Interest recened 9.1 64
Tax paid 8C (15) (1 0}
Drstnbunons and other recevables from property joint ventures 856 987
Cash flows from operating activities 128.1 580
Investing activities
Property acquisitions (302.7) ~
Development and major refurbishments {164.0) (1658)
Other capital expenditure (39.8) {g1)
Sale of properties 5.8 1745
Acquisition of Interest in associate - (547)
Distribution receved from associate 11.5 450
Investment i joint ventures {110.8) (2451)
Sale of Interests in joint ventures 149.6 763
Increase in koans to joINt ventures (8.1) (21}
Decrease/(Increase) In non-current receivables 0.9 (207)
Cash flows from investing activities (457.6) (200 7)
Financing activities
Issue of shares 392.6 02
Proceeds from award of own shares 0.2 01
Purchase of own shares (5.5) (a9
Bond redemption premium and costs paid 7 (8.7) (39
Increase 1N non-current borrowings 340.7 1460
{Decrease)/Increase in current borrowings (234.3) 869
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (30) 27)
Equity dividends paid 10 {139.1} (1204)
Cash flows from finanang activities 3429 923
Net increase/(decrease}in cash and deposits 134 (M4
Opening cash and deposits 15.7 268
Exchange translation movement {0.5) 03
Closing cash and deposits 17 28.6 157

* Comparatrve figures have been restated following the change in accounting palicy resulting from the adopton of IFRS 11 Jont Arrangements (see note 1 on page 113} The cash flows for

2013 above relate 1o conunuing and discontinued operations
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ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Current
borrowings
Short-term including Non-current
deposits Cashatbank  currency swaps borrowings Net debt
£m fm £m £m £im
At 1 January 2014 - restated* - 15.7 {246.2) (2,017.8) {2,248.3)
Cash flow 0.1 13.3 2343 (340 7} (93.0)
Exchange - (0.5} 17.0 71.4 879
Balance at 31 December 2014 0.1 28.5 5.1 (2,287.1) (2,253 4)
Current
borrowings
Short term including Non current
deposits Cash at bank Currency swaps borrowings Net debt
Restated £m £m £m £m £m
At Y January 2013 144 124 (i580) {1.8364) (1,967 6)
Cash flow (144} 30 (86 9) {1460 (244 3)
Exchange - 03 (13) (354} (364)
Balance at 31 December 2013 - 157 (246 2) (20178) (2,2483)

*  Comparative figures have been restated following the change in accounting palicy resuiting from thie adoption of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (see note 1 onpage 113)

112 Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1: Significant accounting policies

Statement of comphance

The consolidated finanoial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS and interpretations adopied by the European
Union During 2014, the following new and revised Standards and
Interpretations have been adopied and have affected the amounts
reported in these financial statements

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Amendments o |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments 10 IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation

Amendments to IAS 36 Imparrment of Assets ansing from
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for non-financial assets

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recogrition
and Measurement

At the date of approval of these financial staterments the following
Standards and Interpretations relevant 1o the Group were in 1ssue

but not yet effective and In some cases had not been adopted for
use In the European Union

Issued, not yet effective and not yet endorsed for use in the
European Union
Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure Initiatives, effective for
accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after 1 July 2015

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customners, effective for
accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Issued and endorsed for use in the European Union but not
yet effective
Defined benefit plans Employee Contributions {Amendmenis
10 1AS 19 Employee Benefits), effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014

These pronouncements, when applied, will either result in changes
in presentation and disclosure, or are not expected to have a
matenal impact on the financial statements

In the 2014 financial statements, the Group has adopted IFRS 11 joint
Arrangements which ss effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 Under IFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as ether joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the Company’s nghts 1o the assets and obligations for the liabilies
of the amrangements The new standard reguires joint ventures to be
accounted for under the equity methed and joint aperations to be
reported on a proponionally consolidated basis recognising the
Company’s share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses

The dlassification of the Group's joint arrangements has been
evaluated and 1t has been concluded that the joint arrangements
fall wathin the defimuon of joint ventures As a result the Group's
interests, which were previously proportionally consolidated have
been presented on an equity accounted basis The consolidated
income statement reflects the Group's share of its joint ventures’
post-tax profit as "Share of results of joint ventures' and the
consolidated balance sheet reflects the Group's share of its joint
ventures’ net assets as Investrnent i joint ventures' The Group's
profit for the year and equity shareholders’ funds are unaffected by
the change, but other income statement and balance sheet tems in
the consolidated finanaal staierments, such as net rental ncome and
investment and development properties have decreased reflecting
the reclassification frorn those ine tems of the amounts relating to
joint ventures

The comparative figures have been restated to reflect the change

in accounting policy The impact of these changes on the iIncome
statement has been reflected in notes 2 and 3 The impact on the
balance sheet and net debt are shown in note 25 The share of results
from joint ventures 1s separately disclosed in note 13 Previously
reported cash flows have been reclassified within the cash flow
statement, and the cumulative gains on owner-occupled property

of £21 2 mullion, which was held in a joint venture, have been
reclassified from the Revaluation reserve’ 1o Retained eamings’
within the statement of changes in equity

IFRS ¢ will impact the measurement and classfication of the
Group's financial assets and financial labilties The Group has not
yet completed its evaluation of the effect of adoption

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis,
as explained 1in the Financial Review on page 54

The financial statements are presented in stering They are prepared
on the historical cost basis, except that investment and development
properties, other investrnents and dervative financial instruments are
stated at faw value

The accounting paolicies have been applied consistently to the

results, other gans and losses, assets, liabilities and cash flows of
entities included in the consolidated financial staterments Revisions
to accounting esumates are recognised 1n the penod in which the
estmate s revised if the revision affects only that penod If the revision
affects both current and future periods, the change 1s recognised
over those periods

As part of the Group's strategy to focus on the retail sector, the Group
completed the disposal of the majonty of its office portfolio between
July 2012 and June 2013 Consequently, the relevant assets and
liabilives were classified as held for sale The income and expenditure
of these properties are classified as discontinued operations in the
comparative penod to reflect the discontinuation of the Group's
office property activities, which was considered to be a major line

of business Details of discontinued operations in 2013 are set out
Innote 9
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

1: Significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant judgements and key estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that may affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, habilities, Income and expenses

Property valuations

The property portfoho, which is carmed in the balance sheet at farr
valug, is valued six-monthly by professionally qualified external valuers
and the Dwectors must ensure that they are satisfied that the valuation
of the Group's properties I1s appropriate for the accounts Investment
properties, excluding properties held for development, are valued

by adopting the ‘investment method’ of valuation This approach
involves applying market-denved capitaiisation yields to current and
market-derved future Income streams with appropriate adjustments
for income voids anising from vacancies or rent-free pericds These
capitalisation yields and future income streams are denved from
comparable property and leasing transactions and are considered

to be the key nputs in the valuation Other factors that are taken into
account In the valuations include the tenure of the property, tenancy
details and ground and structural conditions

In the case of ongoing developments, the approach applied 1s the
‘residual method' of valuation, which 1s the investment method of
valuation as descnbed above with a deduction for all costs necessary
to complete the development, together with a further allowance for
remaining nsk. Properties held for future development are generally
valued by adoptng the higher of the residual method of valuation
allowing for all associated nsks, or the investment method of
valuation for the existing asset

Accounting for acquisitions

Management must assess whether the acquisition of property
through the purchase of a corporate vehicle should be accounted for
as an asset purchase or a business cormbination Where the acquired
corporate vehicle contains significant assets or labilies in addition to
property, the transaction 1s accounted for as a business combination
Where there are no such items, the transaction s treated as an

asset purchase

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method Any excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value
of the net assets acquired 15 recogrised as goodwill, and reviewed
annually for mpairment Any discount received or acquisition related
costs are recognised in the Income statement

Accounting for joint ventures and associates

The accounting treatment for joint ventures and associates requires
an assessment to determine the degree of control or influence that
the Group may exercise over them and the form of any controt
Hammerson's interest in its joint ventures s commonly deven by
the terms of partnership agreements, which ensure that control is
shared between the partners

Associates are those entities over which the Group is Ina position
to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control
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REIT and SIIC status

The Company has elected for UKREIT and French SIIC status To
continue to benefit from these tax regimes, the Group 1s required &
comply with certain conditions as outlined in notes 8E and 8F to the
accounts Management intends that the Group should continue as
a UKREIT and French SIIC for the foreseeable future

Basis of consolidation

Subsidianes

Subsidianies are those entities controlled by the Group Contrat is
assumed when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity, or business, to benefit from its
activities The financial statements of subsidianes are included In
the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
cornmences untll the date that control ceases All intragroup
transactions, balances, income and expenses are eiminated

on consolidation

Joint ventures and associates

The results, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are
accounted for using the equity method Investrments in joint ventures
and associates are carmed n the balance sheet at cost as adjusted

for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of
the joint venture or associate, less any impairment Losses of a joint
veniure or associate In excess of the Group’s Interest in that entity are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obhgations or made payments on behalf of the entity
The Group elirinates upstream and downstream transactions with
Its Joint ventures, Including interest, management fees and partner
loan balances

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
exchange rates approximating to the exchange rate ruling at the

date of the transaction Monetary assets and habiities denominated

In foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated to stering
at the exchange rate ruking at that date and, unless they relaie to the
hedging of the net Investment Iin foraign operations, differences
arising on translation are recogrised in the Income statement

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and labilities of foreign operations, including goodwill
and fair value adjustrments ansing on consolidation, are translated
into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date The operating income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for the
year Significant transactions, such as property sales, are transiated
at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of each transaction
The principal exchange rate used to translate foreign currency-
denominated amounts in the balance sheet is the rate at the

end of the year, £1 = €1 285 (2013 £1 =€ 202) The principal
exchange rate used for the iIncome staterment Is the average rate,
£1=€1241(2013 £1=€1178)

Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net
Investment (n foreign operations are taken to the translation reserve
They are released to the income staternent upon disposal of the
foreign operation




Borrowings, interest and derivatives

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inittally at fair value, after taking account of
any discount on 1ssue and attnbutable transaction costs Subsequently,
borrowings are held at amorused cost, such that discounts and costs
are charged to the income statementi over the term of the borrowing
at a constant return on the carmang amount of the hability

Denvative financial instruments

The Group uses dervative financial Instruments to econornically
hedge its exposure to foreign currency movements and interest rate
risks Hedge accounting 1s applied in respect of net investments in
foreign operations and of debt raised In non-functional currencies
Dervatve financial instruments are recognised initially at farr value,
which equates to cost and subsequently remeasured at fair value,
with changes «n farr value being included in the Income statement,
except that a gain or loss on the portion of an instrument that is an
effecuve hedge 15 recognised in the hedging reserve

Trade receivables and payables

Trade recevables and payables are initially measured at far value,
subsequently measured at amortised cost and, where the effect 1s
materal, discounted to reflect the time value of money

Net finance costs

Net finance costs include interest payable on borrowings, net of
interest capitalised, interest recevable on funds invested, and
changes in the farr value of denvative financial instruments

Capitalisation of interest

Interest 1s capitalised if it1s directly attnbutable to the acquisinon,
construction or production of development properties or the
redevelopment of Investment properties Capitalisation commences
when the activities to devetop the property start and continues until
the property 1s substanually ready for its intended use Capitahsed
Interest 1$ calculated with reference to the actual rate payable

on borrowings for development purposes or, for that part of the
developrnent cost financed out of general funds, at the average rate

Property portfolio

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value, being market value
determined by professionally gual fied external valuers, and changes
in faw value are included in the income statement Further details
are gven in note 12

Development properties

Properties acquired with the intention of redevelopment are classffied
as development properties and stated at fair value, being market
value determined by professionally qualified external valuers Changes
In fair value are Included in the iIncome statement All costs directly
assoaated with the purchase and construction of a development
property are capitahised When development propertes are
completed, they are reclassified as investment properties

Leasehold properties

Leasehold properties that are leased out to tenants under operating
leases are classified as investment properties or development
properties, as appropriate, and included in the balance sheet at far
value The obligation to the freeholder or superior leaseholder for the
buildings element of the leasehold is included in the balance sheet
at the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception
Paymenis to the freeholder or superior leaseholder are apportioned
between a finance charge and a reduction of the outstanding liability
The finance charge ts allocated to each period dunng the lease term
50 as to produce a constant peniodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability Contingent rents payable, such as reni reviews
or those related to rental income, are charged as an expense In

the penods in which they are incurred An asset equivalent to the
leasehold obligation 1s recorded in the balance sheet within ‘interests
In leasehold properties’, and 1s amortised over the tease term

Tenant leases

Management has exercised judgement in considenng the potential
transfer of the nisks and rewards of ownership, in accordance with
IAS 17 Leases, for properties leased to tenants and has determined
that such leases are operating leases

Depreciation

In accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property, no depreciation

15 provided in respect of Investrment and development properties,
which are carried at fair value

Net rental ncome

Rental Income from investrent property leased out under an
operating lease 1s recogrised In the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease term Contingent rents, such as turnover
rents, rent reviews and indexation, are recorded as income in the
pernods in which they are earned Rent reviews are recognised when
such reviews have been agreed with tenants Lease incentives and
costs associated with entering Into tenant feases are amorused over
the pencd to the first break optton or, If the probability that the
break option will be exercised 15 considered low, over the lease

term Property operating expenses are expensed as incurred and
any property operating expenditure not recovered from tenants
through senvice charges 1s charged to the mcome statement

SINIW3LYLS TVISNYNID

Gains or losses an sale of properties

Gains on sale of properties are taken into account on the completion
of contract, and are calculated by reference to the camying value at the
end of the previous year, adjusted for subsequent capital expenditure
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

1: Significant accounting policies (continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the Income statement on a straight-line basts
over the estimated useful life, which is generally between three and five
years, or In the case of leasehold improvermnents, the lease term

Employee benefits

Defined contribution pension plans

Obligations for contributions to defined cantribution pension plans
are charged to the income statement as incurred

Defined benefit pension plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans
compnses the amount of future benefit that employees have earned,
discounted to determine a present value, less the fair value of the
pension plan assets The calculation 1s performed by a qualified
external actuary using the projected unit credit method Actuanal
gans and losses are recognised in equity Where the assets of a plan
are greater than 1ts obligation, the asset included in the balance sheet
is imited to the present value of any future refunds from the plan or
reduction In future contrnbutions to the plan

Share-based employee remuneration

Share-based employee remuneration is determined with reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are
granted and charged to the income statement over the vesting penod
on a straight-line basis The fair value of share options 1s calculated
using the binomial option pricing model and 15 dependent on factors
including the exercise price, expected volatility, option ife and nsk-free
Interest rate The fair value of the market-based element of the Long-
Term incentive Plans 15 calculated using the Monte Carlo Model and 15
dependent on factors including the expected volatility, vesting pencd
and risk-free (nterest rate
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Management fees

Management fees are recogrused in the pencd to which they relate
Performance fee related elements are recognised at the end of the
performance pericd when the fee can be reliably estmated and 1s
due for payment Management fees between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated on consolidation

Tax

Tax 15 Inciuded In the income staternent except 1o the extent that it
relates to tems recogrused direcity In equity, in which case the related
1ax 1s recognised In equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates applicable at the balance sheet date, together
with any adjustment in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provded using the balance sheet iability methaod,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and hiabilives for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for tax purposes The following temporary differences are not
provided for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recogniticn of assets or labilities that affect neither accounting ner
taxable profit and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable
future The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carnying amount of assets
and liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to apply in the pened
when the liability 1s settled or the asset is realised

A deferred tax asset 1s recogrnised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised




2: Profit for the year

As a result of the change in accounting palicy resutting from the adoption of IFRS 11 referred to in note 1 on page 113, the Reported Group results,

as presented In column A In the following tables, have been amended 1o show the share of results from joint ventures on a separate ine To show the
impact of this change on the current and previously reported figures, the total share of results from Property jont ventures has been shown separately
in column B, and reallocated to the relevant financial statement lines The Group's share of results ansing from its interast 1n premium outlets have not
been eallocated as management does not review these interests on a proportionally consolidated basis (see note 3) The Group's share of results In
column C, aggregates these elements on a proportionally consolidated basis, which s then allocated between ‘Adjusted’ and ‘Capital and other’ for the
purposes of calculating figures in accordance with EPRA best practice

2014
Share of Total
Reported Property Capntal
Group  joini ventures Total Adjusted and other
Nates £m im £m £m £m
Notes A B C C D
Gross rental income 3A 206.5 1376 3441 3441 -
Ground and equity rents payable (06} (13} (19) {1.9) -
Gross rental Income, after rents payable 2059 1363 3422 342.2 -
Service charge income 346 251 567 59.7 -
Service charge expenses (40.0) (301 {70 1) (70 1) -
Net service charge expenses (5.4) 50 (104 (10.4) -
Other property outgoings (12.4} (138) (262) (26.2) -
Property outgoings (17 8} (188) (366) (36.6) -
Net rental income 3A 188.1 1175 3056 305.6 -
Management fees recenable/(payable) 6.3 07 56 56 -
Employee and corporate costs (48.9) o2 (491) (49.1) -
Net ene-off restructunng costs (3.0) ~ (30) - (3.0
Administration expenses {45 6) 09 (465) (43.5) (3.0)
Operating profit before other net gains/(losses})
and share of results of joint ventures and associate 1425 1166 2591 262.1 (3.0)
Profit on the sale of properties 0.6 - 06 - 0.6
Loss on the sale of joint ventures (4.0) - 40 - {4.0)
Joint venture formation costs written off 31 - 31 - (3.1}
Revaluation gains on properties 271.2 1656 4368 - 436.8
Other net gains 264.7 1656 4303 - 430.3
Share of results of joint ventures 13A 279.0 {2801) {11) 0.9 (2.0}
Share of results of associate 14A 109.9 - 1099 16.0 93.9
Operating profit 796.1 21 7982 279.0 519.2
Net finance (costsi/income 7 (93.0) 21} (95 1) (100.1) 5.0
Profit before tax 703.1 - 7031 178.9 524.2
Current tax charge 8A (0.9) - (09 (0.9) -
Deferred tax charge B8A (©.1) - (1) - (0.1)
Profit for the year 7021 - 7021 178.0 524.1
Non-controliing interests (3.0) - (30) (3.7} 0.7
Profit for the year attnibutable to equity shareholders 1A 699.1 - 6991 174.3 5248
Notes

A Reporied Group results as shown in she consobdated income statement on page 106
B Shate of results of Property jont veniures as shown in note 13A.
€ Aggregated results on a proportionally consolidaied basis showang Reported Group together with share of Property joini ventures

D Aggregated results on a proportionally consalidated basis allocated between Adjusted and ‘Capital and other for the purposes of calculaung EPRA earnings per share as shown
nnote 114
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2: Profit for the year (continued)

2013
Restated Share of Toal
Repoerted Property Capital
Group  joint ventures Total Adjusted and other
Notes £m fm fm fm im
Notes (see page 117} A B C D D
Gross rental income 3A 1760 1452 212 3212 -
Ground and equity rents payable {05) {14) (19 {19 -
Gross rental Income, after rents payable 1755 1438 3193 3193 -
Service charge iIncome 287 254 581 381 -
Service charge expenses (334) (34 6) (630) (680) -
Net service charge expenses 47} (52) (99) (99) -
Other property outgoings (106) {160) (266) (266) -
Property outgoings {(153) 212) {365) (36 5) -
Net rental income 3A 1602 1226 2828 2828 -
Management fees receivable/(payable) 75 8 67 67 -
Employee and corporate costs {488) (02 (488) {488) -
Administration expenses @i (10} 421} (421) -
Operating profit before other net gains and share -
of results of joint ventures and associate 1191 1216 2407 2407
Gan on the sale of properties 26 16 42 ~ 42
Revaluation gains on properties 837 51 888 - 888
Other net gains 863 67 930 - 930
Share of results of joint ventures 13A 1287 (1287) - - -
Share of results of assoaate 14A i015 - 1015 134 881
Operating profit/(loss) 4356 {04) 4352 2541 1811
Net finance (costs)/income 7 (1093) 04 (1089) (905} {184
Profit before tax 3263 - 3263 1636 1627
Current tax charge BA 08 - ©8) 08 -
Deferred tax credit 8A 01 - 01 - 01
Profit from continuing operations 3256 - 3256 1628 1628
Prafit from discontinued operations 54 95 146 53 96
Share of results of joint ventures 13A 35 {95) - - -
Profit for the year 3405 - 3405 1681 1724
Non-controlling interests — continuing operations (3% - 3n (36) 05
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 1A 3374 - 3374 1645 1729
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders
Continuing operations 1A 3225 - 3225 1592 1633
Discontinued operations 1A 149 - 149 53 96
3374 - 3374 1645 1729

Included in gross rental income on a proporticnally consolidated basis 1s £6 9 mullion (2013 £8 0 mulhon) of contingent rents calculated by

reference to tenants' turnover
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3: Segmental analysis

The factors used 1o determine the Group's reportable segmenits are the geographic locations, UK and France, and sectors in which it operates,
which are generally managed by separate tearms and are the basis on which performance is assessed and resources allocated Gross rental
Income represents the Group's revenue from its ‘customers’, or tenants Nei rental income s the principal profit measure used to determine the
performance of each sector Total assets are not monitored by segment and resource altocation is based on the distibution of property assets
between segmenits

As stated in the Financial Review on page 51, management reviews the business principally on a proportionally consolidaied basis, except for its
Interests in premium outlets held through its investments in Value Retall and VIA Outlets, where the Group has less day-to-day involvement in the
finangal performance and which have different operational charactenstics compared with the Group's property portfolio The segrmental anatysis
has been prepared on the basis that management uses 1o review the business, rather than on a statutory basis For reconaliation purposes the
Reponed Group figures are shown in the following tables

A’ Revenue and profit by segment

2014 2013
Non-cash Non-cash
tems iems
Gross rental Net rental within net  Gross rental Net rental within net
income income renta! income ncome income  rentat ncome
£m £m £m £m im £m
United Xingdom
Shopping centres 149.4 127.9 (42) 1451 1243 (7 5)
Retail parks 86.2 83.0 1.1 866 821 02
Cther 14.5 11.3 oM 149 121 on
Total 250.1 222.2 (3.2) 2466 2185 (74)
France o1.8 82.4 25 716 632 on
Total investment portfolio 341.9 304.6 (0.7} 3182 2817 {75
Developments 2.2 10 - 30 11 -
Total property portfolio - continuing operations 344.1 305.6 (0.7) 3212 2828 (75)
Discontinued operations
Offices - - - 74 74 (08)
Total portfoho 344.1 305.6 (0.7) 3286 2902 83)
Less share of Property joint ventures (137.6} {117.5) 23 {1480) {1254) 56
Reported Group - total 206.5 188.1 1.6 1806 1648 (27)
Reported Group:
Continuing operations 206.5 188.1 1.6 1760 1602 27
Discontinued operations - - - 46 46 -
Reported Group ~ total 206.5 188.1 1.6 1806 1648 27

The non-cash items included within net rental Income relate 1o the amonusation of lease Incentives and other costs and maovements In accrued
rents recevable

www hammersoncom 119

SINIWILVLS TVIDNVNIL




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

3: Segmental analysis (continued)

B. Investmentand development property assets by segment

2014 2013

Property Capital Revaluation Property Caputal Revaluation

valuation expenditure gains valuation expenditure  gans/{losses)

£im m im im £m im

United Kingdom

Shopping centres 29308 249.3 236.4 25344 1697 544

Retarl parks 1,653.5 43.7 136.8 14785 243 261
Other 288.0 26.7 94 2808 560 257
Total 4,872.3 3197 3826 42937 2500 548
France 1,834.2 246.6 54,2 16375 1386 340
Total non-current assets 6,706.5 566.3 436 8 59312 3886 888
Assets held for sale - - - - ©6) 15
Total property assets 6,706.5 566.3 436.8 59312 3880 903
Less share of Property Joint ventures (2,279.2} (40.1) (165.6} (24834) (2128) (51)
Reported Group -~ total 4,427.3 526.2 271.2 34478 1752 852

C: Analysis of non-current assets employed

Non-current assets employed

204 2013

£m £m

United Kingdom 4,895.0 43364
Continental Europe 2,621.5 224272
7,516.5 6,5786

tncluded in the above table are iInvestments in joint ventures of £2,341 5 mithon (2013 £24708 million), which are further analysed in note 13 on
pages 131 1o 136 Hammerson's share of the property valuations held within Property jotnt ventures of £2,279 2 milhon (2013 £2,483 4 million)
has been included In note 3B above, of which £2,134 9million (2013 £2,317 7 million) relates to the United Kingdom and £144 3 milion

(2013 £165 7 million) relates to Continental Europe
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4: Admmistration expenses
Administration expenses include the following mems

Staff costs, including Directors

2014 2013

Nate fm £m

Salanes and wages 256 244
Performance-related bonuses - payable in cash 67 57
- payable in shares 12 08

7.9 65

Other share-based employee remuneration 39 30
Social secunty 6.3 65
Net pension expense - defined contribution scheme 6 3.0 20
- defined benefit schermes 6 (2.0) 12

1.0 32

Continuing operations 447 436
Discontinued operations - 04
Total 44.7 440

* Includes £01 million in respect of share based employee remuneraon in 2013

Of the above amount, £116 million (2013 £106 million) was recharged to tenants through service charges and £1 5 million (2013 £31 5 million)
capitahised in respect of development projects

In addimon to the figures above, redundancy related costs of £1 7 million (2013 £06 mithon) were incurred dunng the year

Staff throughout the Company, including Executive Directors, participate in a performance-related bonus scheme, part payable in cash and

part payable in shares The Company also operates a number of share plans under which employees, iIncluding Executive Directors, are eligible
to parucipate Further details of share-based payment arrangements, some of which have performance condriions, are provided in the Directors’
fRernuneration Report on pages 75 %0 93 In addition, the Company operates the following share plans inwhich Directors do not participate

Restricted Share Plan

Certain UK employees receive awards under a Restncted Share Plan, which provides an opportunity for these empioyees to bulld up a
shareholding i the Company Under the Restricted Share Plan, share awards vest, subject to continued employment, on the third anriversary
of grant

French Share Plan

For French employees, who are not able to participate in the Share Incentive Plan referred to on page 174 or the Restricted Share Plan referred
to above, there 15 a share plan under which conditional awards of shares are made The number of shares that will vest after a two-year penod is
dependent on a combination of the performance of the Company's investment portfolio in France and the Group’s performance

Staff numbers
2014 2013
Number Number
Average number of staff 19 410
Staff recharged 1o tenants, iIncluded above 181 174
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

4: Administration expenses (continued)
Other information

2014 2013
m £m

Auditor's remuneration Audit of the Company’s annual accounts 0.2 02
Audit of subsidianes, pursuant to legislation 0.3 02

Audit-related assurance services 0.1 Qi

Audit and audit-related assurance services 0.6 05

Other fees! 01 01

Totat auditor's remuneration 07 06

Deprecation of plant and equipment 1.4 15

Note

1 Other fees payable to the Company’s auditor are principally for tax refated work and a review of the Group’s sustainabifity reporting

5: Directors’' emoluments

The Executive Directors are considered to be 'Key Management' for the purposes of 1AS 24 ‘Related party transactions' The total remuneration

of the Directors 1s set out In aggregate in note 298 Full details of the Directors” emoluments, as required by the Companies Act 2006, are disclosed
in the audited sections of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 75t 93

The Company did not grant any credits, advances or guarantees of any kind to its Directors during the year

6: Pensions

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Company operates the UK funded approved Group Personal Pension Plan which is a defined contribution pension scheme The Group's cost
for the year was £3 0 million {2013 £20 mullion)

Defined benefit pension schemes

Hammerson Group Management Limited Pension & Life Assurance Scheme (the ‘Scheme’)

The Scheme 15 funded and the funds, which are administered by trustees, are iIndependent of the Group's finances The Scherme, was closed to
new entrants on 31 December 2002, and was closed to future accrual for all participating employees on 30 June 2014, which led to a curtailment
gan of £25 millicn

Unfunded Unapproved Retirement Scheme

The unfunded scheme provides pension benefits to two former Executive Directors, one in the UK and ane in France The amount of pension is
Iinked to final salary at retirement The accrued benefits In respect of the former Executive Directors remain within the scheme and are now paid
directly by the Group

US Unfunded Unapproved Retirement Scheme
The US unfunded pension commutment relates te obligations to four former employees and their spouses

Principal actuarial assumptions used for defined benefit pension schemes

2014 2013
% %

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 3.6 46
Increase in pensionable salaries n/a 39
Increase in retall price index 31 34
Increase in pensians N payment 31 34
Mortality table SAPS Light SAPS Light
CMi1 0% CME1 0%
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Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of defined benefit pension schemes

2014 2013
Included in income statement hne £m im
Current senvice cost Administration expenses 0.5 12
Curtallment gan” Administration expenses (2.5) -
(2.0) 12
Net interest cost Other interest payable 1.3 1t
Total pension {income)/expense (0.7) 23
" The cuntailmen1 gain s shown after the deductian of past sevice costs of £03 millon {2013 nif)
The Group expects to make contnbutions totalling £2 5 million 1 the Scheme in the next financial year
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit penston schemes
2014 2013
£m £m
Fair value of Scheme assets 61.9 584
Present value of Scheme obligations (89.4) (796)
(27.5) 212
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations (5.4) (51)
Present value of US unfunded defined benefit obligations (6.9) 66)
Net pension liability (39 8) (329)
Analysed as.
Current habilities Other payables (0.8) ©7n
Non-current habilities (39.0} (322
(39 8} (329)

The present value of defined benefit obligations has been calculated by an external actuary This was taken as the present value of accrued
benefits and pensions in payment calculated using the projected unit methed

Alldefined benefit pension scheme assets are investrments with target returns finked 1o LIBOR

Experience gans and losses

2014 2013
Em £m

Expenence gains/(iosses) on plan habilities 0.9 05

Experience gans on plan assets - 11

www hammersencom 123

SLNIWILYLS TYIDONYNIL




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

6: Pensions (continued)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit pension scheme obligations

2014 2013
£im im
At 1 January 91.3 855
Service cost - current 0.5 12
Curtallment gan’ (2.5} -
{2.0) 12
Interest cost 4.0 36
Net actuanal losses - expenence on plan habilities (0.9) 05
- changes in financial assumptions 12.4 14
- changes in demographic assumptions - 16
11.5 35
Benefits (3.2) (25
Exchange gains 0.1 -
At 31 December 101.7 913
*  Curtailmeni gain includes past service costs of £0.3 midbon {2013 ril)
Changes in the fair value of defined benefit pension scheme assets
2014 2013
£m £&m
At 1 January 58.4 550
Interest on assets 27 25
Actuarial gains - 11
Contributions by employer 3.2 15
Benefits (2.4) (17
At 31 December 619 584
7: Netfinance costs
2014 2013
im im
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 9.5 118
Interest on other borrowings 103.3 948
Interest on obligatons under finance leases 1.1 -
Other interest payable 16 15
Gross Interest costs 115.5 1081
tess Interest capitalised (8.8) (13m
Finance costs 106.7 950
Bond redemption - premium and costs 8.7 39
Change in fair value of Interest rate swaps {13.1) 168
Change n fair value of currency swaps outside hedge accounting designation (0.3) -
Change n fair value of dervatives {13.49) 168
Finance income {9.0) 64)
Net finance costs 93.0 1093
Underlying finance costs
Gross interest costs 115.5 1081
Finance income (9.0} ©64)
Net underlying finance costs 106.5 107
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8: Tax
A. Taxcharge

2014 2013
m £Em
UK current tax 0.1 03
Foreign current tax 0.8 05
Current tax charge 0.9 08
Deferred tax charge/{credit) 0.1 oD
Tax charge 1.0 Qa7
Current tax 15 reduced by the UK REIT and French SIIC tax exemptions
B: Tax charge reconaliation
2014 2013
Notes fm £m
Profit before tax - continuing operations 2 703. 3263
Profit before tax - discontinued operations 9 - 149
Profit before tax 703.1 3412
Less Profit after tax of joint ventures 13A (279 0) {1382)
Less Piofit after tax of associate 14 (109.9) (1015)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 314.2 1015
Profit multiplied by the UK corporation tax rate of 21 5% (2013 23 25%) 67.6 236
UK REIT tax exemption (42.8) (12)
French SIIC tax exerption (24.0) (238
Non-deductible and other nems 0.2 21
Tax charge 1.0 07
C. Current and deferred tax movements
| January Recognised in 31 Decermnber
2014 inceme Tax paid 2014
£m £m £m £m
Current tax 08 09 (15) 0.2
Deferred tax 04 01 - 0.5
12 10 (15} 0.7
Analysed as:
Current assets Corporation tax (02} ©1)
Current liabilities Tax 10 03
Non-current habihties Deferrad tax 04 0.5
12 07

D Unrecognised deferred tax

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unrecogrised deferred tax assets calculated at a tax rate of 209 (2013 20%) of £64 million
{2013 £68 millon) for surplus UK revenue tax losses carned forward and £90 million (2013 £90 mullion) for UK capital losses

Deferred tax 15 not provided on potenual gains on investments in subsidianes and joint ventures when the Group can contrel whether gains
crystallise and 1t 1s probable that gains will not anse in the foreseeable future At 31 Decermnber 2014 the total of such gains was £250 miflion
{2013 £235 million) and the potental tax effect before the offset of losses was £50 milion (2013 £47 mulhon) If a UK REIT sells a property within
three years of completion of development, the REIT exemption will not apply There were no such properties at 31 December 2013 or 2014

E. UKREIT status

The Group elected to be treated as a UK RET with effect from 1 fanuary 2007 The UK REIT rules exempt the profits of the Group's UK property
rental business from corporation tax Gains on UK properties are also exempt from tax, provided they are not held for trading or sold in the three

years after complenon of development The Group 1s otherwise subject 1o UK corporation tax

As a REIT, Hammerson plc is required to pay Property Income Distributions equal to at least 90% of the Group's exempted netincome To reman
a UK REIT there are a number of conditions to be met in respect of the pancipal company of the Group, the Group's qualifying activity and its

balance of business The Group continues to meet these conditions
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

8: Tax({continued)

F. FrenchSIIC status

Hammerson plc has been a French SIIC since 1 January 2004 and all the major French properties are covered by the SIC tax-exempt regime
Incorne and gains are exemnpted from French tax but the French subsidianes are required to distrbute a proportion of their profits to Hammerson
ple, which then designates UK dividends paid to its shareholders as SIC distributions Dividend obligations will anse principally after property
disposals but for the Hammerson Group there will be a penod of around four years after a disposal for dvidends to be paid to shareholders

Qutstanding SIC dividend obligations ansing on disposals and earnings prior to 31 December 2014 amount te £26 malion {2013 £30 million)
and are expected to be settled withuin dividends paid by Hammerson plc over the following four years A further £400 million (2013 £300 milion)
of dividends would be payable if the properties were realised at their 31 December 2014 values Since 1 July 2009, qualifying foreign dividends
have been exernpt from UK tax and therefore no deferred tax provision 1s recognised To remain a SIC, at least 80% of assets must be employed
In property investment and, with imited temporary exceptions, no shareholder may hold 60% or more of the shares The Group continues to
meet these conditions

9: Discontinued operations

As part of the Group's strategy to focus on the retait sector, a number of office properties, and related entities, were disposed of between July
2012 and June 2013 The income and expenditure was classified as discontnued operations in 2012 and 2013, and the summarsed income

statemnent far 2013 allocated between 'Adjusted” and ‘Capital and other’ for the purposes of calculating figures in accordance with EPRA best
practice 1s shown below

Profit for 2013
2043
Total
Reported Share of joint Capital and
Group ventures Total Adusted ather
Note £m £m fm £ £m
Grossrental income 46 28 74 74 -
Net rental income 46 28 74 74 -
Administration expenses - 02 @2 02 -
Operating profit before other netgains 46 26 72 72 -
Gain on the sale of properties - 75 75 - 75
Revaluation gains on properties 15 - 15 - 15
Other net gans 15 75 90 - 90
Net finance costs on {06) (13 ()] 06
Profit for the year 2 54 95 149 53 96
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10: Dividends

The proposed final dmdend of 116 pence per share was recommended by the Board on 13 February 2015 and, subject to approval by
shareholders, ts payable on 24 Aprit 2015 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 13 March 2015 20 pence per share will

be paid as a PID, net of withholding tax at the basic rate {currently 20%) if applicable, and the remainder of 96 pence per share will be paid as

a normal dvidend There will be no scnp alternative The aggregate amount of the 2014 final dividend 15 £61 0 million This has been calculated

using the total number of eligible shares outstanding at 31 December 2014

The interm dividend of 8 8 pence per share was paid on 2 October 2014, as a PID, net of withholding tax where appropriate

The total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 would be 204 pence per share (2013 191 pence per share)

Equity Equity
FID Non-Fib Total  dividends dradends
pence pence pence 2014 2013
per share per share per share £m £m
Current year
2014 final dvidend 2.0 9.6 11.6 - -
2014 intenm dividend 88 - 8.8 62.6 -
10.8 9.6 20.4
Prior years
2013 final dvidend 36 72 108 76.9 -
2013 intenm dividend 83 - 83 - 590
i19 72 191
2012 final dvidend 40 60 100 - 711
Dividends as reported in the consolidated statement of changes in equity 139.5 1301
201 2 intenm dmvidend withholding tax (paid January 2013} - 87
2013 intenm dividend withholding tax {paxd January 2014} 9.4 94
2014 intenm dividend withholding tax {paid January 2015) {9.8) -
Dividends paid as reported in the consolidated cash flow statement 139.1 1294
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NOTES TO THE

11: Earnings per share and net asset value per share

ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

The European Public Real Estate Association (EPRA} has 1ssued recommended bases for the calculavon of certain per share information and
these are included in the following tables A and B

A Earnings per

The calculations for earnings per share use the weighted average number of shares, which excludes those shares held in the Hammerson

share

Employee Share Ownership Plan {note 24), which are treated as cancelled

2014 2013
Earnings Shares Pence Earnings Shares Pence
Notes £m milllon per share £m milign  per share
Basic — continuing operations 2 699,17 730.6 957 3225 7118 453
Basic - discontinued operations 2 - - 149 21
Basic - total 2 699.1 7306 957 3374 474
Dilutive share options - 0.2 - - 02 -
Diluted 699.1 730.8 95.7 3374 7120 474
Adjustments’
Revaluation gains  Reported Group 2 (271.2} {37.1) (837) (118
on properties Joint ventures 138 (164.3) {22.5) {51} (]
Associate 144 {111.1) {15.2) 855) (120)
(546.6) (74.8) (1743) (245)
Change in farr Reported Group 7 (13 1) (1.8) 168 23
value of denvatives - joint ventures 138 {0.3) - 23) ©3)
Joint ventures — discontinued operations 138 - - {06) ©on
Associate 144 29 1.3 (50) ©7
(3.5) (0.5) 89 12
Deferred tax Reported Group 2 0.1 - ©on -
Jont ventures 138 0.4 0.1 - -
Associate 14A 119 1.6 G0 13
12.4 17 89 13
Other adjustments
Reported Group  Gain on sale of properties 2 (0.6) {0.1) (26) {04)
Gan on sale of properties — discontinued
operations 9 - - (15) 02
Loss on sale of joint ventures 2 40 0.5 - -
Joing venture formation costs written off 2 341 0.4 - -
Non-controlling interests 2 07} (0.1) {05) 01)
Bond redemption — preémium and ¢osts 7 87 1.2 39 05
Jont ventures Gain on sale of properties 138 - - (16} 02
Gain on sale of properties - discontinued
cperations 138 - - (75) {10)
Associate Changes in fair value of participative loans 14A {4.6) (0 6) (71 a0
Capitalised loan finance fees written off 14A - - a5 Gl
9.9 1.3 {164) (23)
Total adjustments {527.8) {72.3) (1729 (24 3}
EPRA 171.3 7308 234 1645 7120 231
Net one-off restructunng charge 3.0 0.5 - -
Adjusted earnings 1743 7308 239 1645 7120 231

= Adjustments relate to continuing operations unlass otherwise stated

See page 52 for further details of the restructunng charge of £30 milhon incurred In 2014
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B: Net asset value per share

2014 2013
Equity Net asset Equity Net assel
shareholders’ value shareholders’ value
funds Shares per share funds Shares per share
Notes £Em mithon £ Em million f
Basic 4,973.7 784.3 6.34 40599 7129 570
Company's own shares held in Employee Share
Ownership Plan - {1.2) n/a - (10} n/a
Unexercised share options 1.9 0.4 n/a 23 05 na
Diluted 49756 783.5 6 35 40622 7124 570
Fair value adjustment to berrowings® 200 (306 3) (0.39) (2109) {029
EPRA tniple net 4,669.3 596 38513 541
Farr value of dervatives 200 (13.1) {0.02) 08 -
Fair value adjustment to borrowings’ 201 306.3 0.39 2109 029
Adustrnent for associate 148 3.9 0.04 197 003
Adjustment for joint venture 13C 4.0 0.01 - -
Deferred tax 8c 0.5 - 04 -
EPRA 4,998.9 7835 6.38 40831 7124 573
Nole
1 Adustments nclude amounts relating 10 the Group s share of joint ventures
Cammentary on earnings and net asset value per share s provided in the Financial Review on pages 51 to 54
12: Investment and development properties
Investment Developmaent
properties propertles Total
Valuation Valuation Valuation
£im £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 29887 459.1 3,447.8
Exchange adjustment (72.1) 27 1) {99.2)
Additions
- caprnial expenditure 70.0 153.5 2235
- asset acquisitions 302.7 - 302.7
3727 153.5 526.2
Transfer from investment In joint venture 2791 - 279.1
Disposals (6.6) - (6.6)
Transfers 453.4 {(453.4) -
Capitalsed interest 0.5 8.3 8.8
Revaiuation 257.5 13.7 271.2
Balance at 31 December2014 4,2732 154.1 4,427.3
Investment  Development
properues properies Total
Valuation Valuation Valuation
Restated £m im £
Balance at 1 January 2013 28962 2442 31404
Exchange adjustrent 262 57 319
Additions - capital expenditure 519 1233 1752
Disposals (34) 06} {40)
Transfers (48 5) 485 -
Caprtalised interest 11 120 131
Revaluation 578 260 838
Transfer from assets held for sale 743 - 74
Balance at 31 December 2013 29887 4591 34478
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

12: Investment and development properties {continued)

Properties are stated at fair value as at 31 December 2014, valued by professionally qualified external valuers, OTZ Debenham Tie Leung, Chartered
Surveyors The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Professional Standards 2014 based on certain assumptions
as set outin note |

In the case of leasehold properties, valuations are net of any obligation to freeholders or supernor leaseholders To comply with IAS 40 andg IAS
17 these obligations and the related feasehold assets are included in the balance sheet within ‘Obligations under finance leases’ (note 21) and
‘Interests in leasehold properties’ respectively Fusther information 1s provided In "Significant accounting policies’ on page 115

Valuation fees are based on a fixed amount agreed between the Group and the valuers and are ndependent of the portfolio value Summarnies
of the valuers’ reports are available on the Company’s website www hammerson com

As noted In ‘Significant Judgemenits and key estimates’ an page 114, real estate valuations are complex, denved from data which is not widely
publicly avaiiable and involve a degree of judgement For these reasons, and consistent with EPRA’s guidance, we have classified the vatuations
of our property portfolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13 Inputs to the valuations, some of which are ‘unobservable’ as defined by IFRS 13, include
nominal equivalent yteld and rental Income These inputs ta the valuations are analysed by segment in the valuation and renial data tables on
pages 158 and 162 All other factors remaining constant, an increase In rental Income would increase valuations, whilst increases in nomnal
equivalent yield and discount rate would result in a fall in values and vice versa However, there are Interrelationships between uncbservable
INputs as they are determined by market conditions The existence of an increase of more than one unobservable input would augment the
impact on valuation The impact on the valuaton would be mitigated by the interrelationship between unobservable Inputs moving in opposite
directions For example, an increase in rents may be offset by an increase in yield, resulting 1nno net impact on the valuation

The tota! amount of interest included in development properties at 31 December 2014 was £24 million (2013 £24 6 milion) Capitahsed interest
15 calculated using the cost of secured debt ar the Group's average cost of borrowings, as appropniate, and the effective rate apphed in 2014 was
47% (2013 4 8%) At 31 December 2014 the historic cost of investment and development properties was £3,93C 1 million {2013 £3,124 7 million)

Freehaold Long leasehold Total

Analysis of properties by tenure £Em £m £m
Balance at 31 December 2014 3,365.0 1,0623 4,427.3
Balance at 31 December 2013 25578 8900 3,447 8
2014 2013

£m im

Caprtal commitments 2371 1421

130 Hammerson plc Annual Report 2014




13: Investment in joint ventures

As at 31 December 2014 certain property and corporate Interests, being jointly controlled entities, have been equity accounted, and the significant

interests are set out in the following table

Group share
Parthner Property interest’ %
United Kingdom
Bishopsgate Goodsyard Regeneration Limited Ballymore Properties The Goodsyard 50
Brent Cross Shopping Centre Standard Life Brent Cross 412
Brent South Shopping Park Standard Life Brent Cross 406
Bristol Alhance Limited Partnership AXA Real Estate Cabot Circus 50
Croydon Limited Pantnership/Whitgift Limsted Partnership Westfield Centrale/Whitgift 50
Retail Property Holdings Limited CPPIB Silverburn 50
The Bull Ring Limited Partnership TH Real Estate, CPFIB Bullring 50
The Martineau Gallenes Limited Partnership Land Secunties, Phoenix Group Martineau Galleries 3333
The Oracle Limited Partnership ADIA The Qracle 50
The West Quay Limited Partnership GIC WestQuay 50
Vanous European
VIA Limited Partnership APG, Meyer Bergman, Value Retall Qutlet centres 47
France
SCIESQ Allanz  Espace Saint Quentin 25
Chient of Rockspring Property
SCHRC Aulnay 1 and SCHRC Aulnay 2 Investment Managers O'Paninor 25

In July 2014 the Group acquired a 47% interest n VIA Qutlets

In September 2014, the Group acquired an additional 40% stake in The Highcross Limrted Partnership, and an additional 509 stake in SCl Espace
Plus, a Company which owned SQY Cuest, increasing Hammerson's interest in both partnerships te 100% The revaluation gains during the year
up 1o the date the Group acquired the additional stakes in these entities totalled £50 mullion, which has been treated as a property revaluation

gan within other net gaing/ilosses) shown in the summarised income statement on page 132

The Group sold its 50% interests In Queensgate Limited Partnership and The Grosvenor Street Limited Partnership in January 2014 and September

2014 respectively

1 The names of the pnapal property operated by each partnership have been used in the summary income statements and balance sheets on pages 132 to 135 The resulis for Higheross

and Queensgate for the perod until cisposal have been classified as Other in 2014
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

13: Investment in joint ventures (continued}

Hammerson's total proportional share of joint ventures 15 split between Property joint ventures and VA Outlets as the Property joint ventures are
incfuded in the Group's management reporting on a proportional consolidated basis As explained in note 3, management reviews the business
principally on a propeortionally conschidated basis, except for its premium outlet investments in Value Retall and VIA Qutlets

A Summary financial statements of joint ventures

The summarnised income statements and balance sheets below and on the adjacert page show 1009 of the results, assets and habilities of joint
ventures, and where necessary has been restated to the Group’s accounting policies and exclude all balances which are ehminated on consolidation

Share of results of joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2014

See page 134 for notes
Brent Cross' Cabot Circus Bullring The Oracle WaestQuay
£m £m £m £m £m
Crwnership (96) 412 50 50 50 50
Gross rental income 47.5 37.7 56.5 314 31.3
Net rental ncome 43.9 32.0 50.3 26.2 25.2
Administration expenses - (0.7} (0.2) - -
Operating profit before other net gains/({losses) 439 31.3 50. 26.2 25.2
Other net gains/(losses)? 436 39.5 1257 55.3 25.2
Net finance costs - (0.8) - - {0.4)
Tax charge - - - - -
Profit for the year 87.5 70.0 1758 81.5 50.0
Hammerson share of profit for the year 3641 35.0 87.9 40.7 25.0
Hammerson share of distributions payable - 15.8 23.0 5.9 0.6
Share of assets and habilities of joint ventures as at 31 December 2014
Brent Crass' Cabot Circus Bullring The Oracle WestQuay
£m £m im £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment and development properties 967.2 575.6 1,085.0 6126 532.7
Goodwill - - - - -
Interests in leasehold properties - 14.6 - - 42
Recervables - - - - -
962.2 590.2 1,085.0 612.6 536.9
Current assets
Receivables 33.2 5.7 4.2 7.2 4.2
Cash and deposits 4,0 9.6 18.9 5.7 5.0
37.2 153 23 12.9 9.2
Current habilities
Payables (47.6) (13.3) (14.9) {13.5) (10.4)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings — secured - - - - -
Obligations under finance leases - (14.6} - - {4.2)
Payables (2.4) (0.5) (1.1} {0.4) (0 8)
Deferred tax - - - - -
(2.4) (15.1} {1.1) {0.4) (5.0)
Net assets 954.4 5771 1,0921 611.6 530.7
Hammerson share of net assets’ 393.2 2886 546.0 305.8 2654
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Hammerson share

Total Property joint
Silverburn  Centrale/Whitgift O'Parinor Other 2014 ventures VIA Outlets Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
50 50 5 n/a 47
20.8 12.4 19.0 56.0 3126 1376 44 142.0
18.5 8.3 17.9 39.7 2620 1175 27 120.2
{0.1) (0.6) 0.1) {(3.0) 4.7) (0.9) (0.6) {1.5)
18.4 7.7 17.8 36.7 257.3 1166 2.1 118.7
8.4 1.8 3.6 174 320.5 165.6 (1.3) 1643
- - (5.5) (72) (13.9) (2.1) (1.4) (35
- - - (1.1} (1.7) - (05) (0.5)
26.8 9.5 15.9 458 562.8
134 4.8 4.0 321 279.0 2801 (1.7) 279.0
- - - 13.9 59.2
Hammerson share
Total Property joint
Silvarburn  Centrale/Whitgift O'Parinor Other 2014 ventures VIA Qutlets Total
£m £m Em £m Em £m £m £m
3793 183.0 3569 7269 54192 2,279.2 1429 2,422
- - - - - - 31 3.1
- - - 1.2 200 9.8 - 9.8
- - - 0.1 01 - 0.1 04
379.3 183.0 3569 728.2 54393 2,289.0 146.1 2,435.1
6.0 21.9 1.0 7.3 100.7 421 1.4 43.5
6.1 9.0 29 238 85.0 30.8 7.0 37.8
12.1 30.9 13.9 311 185.7 729 8.4 81.3
(9 5} {25.8) (7.7) (18.1) (160.8) (66.5) (51) (71.6)
- - {168.7) {102.3} (271.0) (42.2) (37.2) (79.4)
- - - (1.2} (20.0} {9.8) - (9.8)
- - (11.9) (13.6) (30.7} {6.1) (4.0) (10.1)
- - - (11.1) (11.1) - {4.0) (40)
- - (180 6) (128.2) (332.8) (58.1) (45.2) (103.3)
389 1881 182.5 613.0 51314
1909 94.1 45.6 2119 2,341.5 2,2373 104.2 2,3415
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

13: Investment in joint ventures(continued)
Share of results of joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2013

Srent Cross' Cabot Circus Bullnng? The Qracle Queensgate
im fm £m £m im
Qwnership (%) 412 50 50 30 50
Gross rental income 492 344 537 318 163
MNet rental income 456 291 481 266 125
Administration expenses - 08) - - 02
Operating profit before other net gains/{losses) 456 283 481 266 123
Other net gains/{losses)? 22) 38 326 194 (184)
Net finance costs - 08) - - -
Profit before and after tax ~ continuing operations 434 313 BO7 460 61)
Profit before and after tax - discontinued operations - - - - -
Profit before and after tax 434 N3 807 460 61)
Hammerson share of profit 179 156 383 230 (ER)]
Hammerson share of distributions payable - 168 204 71 73
Share of assets and habilities of joint ventures as at 31 December 2013
Brent Cross' Cabot Circus Bulinng The Oracle Queensgale
£m fm fm im im
Non-current assets
Investment and development properties 8896 5384 9551 5521 2021
Interests in leasehold propernies - i16 - - -
Owner-occupied property - - - - -
Recevables - - - C1 -
8896 5530 955 1 5522 2021
Current assets
Recevables 269 34 62 30 35
Cash and deposits 16 113 156 78 50
285 147 218 108 85
Current habilities
Payables (520} (150} (176 92 (58
Non-current habilities
Borrowings — secured - - - - -
Qbligations under finance feases _ (146} _ - -
Payables (05) 03) 08 03 02
(0 5) {149} 08 03) 02
Net assets 8656 5378 9585 5535 2046
Hammerson share of net assets® 3561 2690 4793 2768 1023

1 Includes the results of Brent South Shopping Park in which Hammerson has a 4069 interest.

2 Reflects the Group's acquisiuon in May 2013 of an additional 16 7% stake in The Bull Ring Limited Partnership increasing Hammerson's interest to 509

3 The joint ventures are generally funded by lcans from the Company and the relevant partners and this funding has been excluded as it 1s propertionally eliminated upon consolidation

‘Other net gains/(losses) principally represent valuation changes on investment properties
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Total

Hammerson share

Highcross WestQuay Siverburn Centrale/Whitgift OPaninor Other 2013 2013
£m im £m £m £m im £m £m
60 50 50 50 25 n/a
284 291 198 i18 204 219 3168 1452
222 246 180 80 182 159 2688 1226
- - @an 08 cn 02 (22) (10
222 246 179 72 181 157 2666 1216
(56) 174 91 (240) (213} (2] 13 67
- (C4) - - 37 02 27 04
166 416 270 (168) 05 64 2706 1287
- ~ - - - 150 190 85
166 416 270 (168) 05 254 2896
100 208 135 184) 02 104 1382 1382
60 06 - - - 27 609
Hammerson share
Total —————
Highcrass WestQuay Siverburn Centrale/Whitg ft C'Parinor Qther 2013 2013
im fm £m Em £m Im im fm
4324 5065 3527 1680 3682 3828 53479 24824
- 42 - - - 12 200 98
- - - - - 664 664 332
09 - 01 - - - 11 05
4333 5107 3528 1680 3682 4504 54354 25269
47 38 45 21 1S 119 81¢ 350
90 98 65 53 74 55 858 410
137 136 Mo 84 193 174 1677 760
09 99) (79) 8n 66) (126) (154 6) (710
- - - - (1802) - (1802) (450}
- (42) - - - (12) (2000 (98
02} {06 - - (156} (34) {219) (63)
02 48) - - (1958) 46) (222 1) 611
4369 5096 3559 1683 1851 4506 52264
2622 2548 1780 841 463 1619 24708 24708
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

13: Investment in joint ventures (continued)
B. Reconahation to EPRA adjusted earnings

Property joint Total Total
ventures ViA Outlets 2014 2013
£m £m £m im
Profit for the year 280.1 (1.1} 279.0 1382
Other net (gans)/losses
Continuing operations (165.6) 1.3 (164.3} 67)
Discontinued operations - - - 75
{165.6) 1.3 (164.3) (14 2)
Change n fair value of dervatives
Continuing operations (0.6) 0.3 {0.3) 23
Discontinued operations - - - 0e)
(0.6} 03 {03) 29
Deferred tax - 04 0.4 -
Total adjustments (166.2) 2.0 {164.2) n71
EPRA adjusted earnings of joint ventures 113.9 0.9 114.8 1211
C. Reconalliation to EPRA adjusted investment in joint ventures
2014 2013
£m £m
Investrment In joint ventures 2,341.5 24708
Fair value of dernvatives 3.1 -
Deferred tax 4.0 -
Goodwall as a result of deferred tax (3.1) -
EPRA adjustments 40 -
EPRA adjusted investmentn joint ventures 2,345.5 24708
D. Reconciliation of movements in iInvestment in joint ventures
2014 2013
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 2,4708 22509
Acquisiticns 110.8 2451
Joint venture formation costs written off (32) -
Transfer of investment property on acguisition by Reported Group {279 1) -
Disposals {151.8) (76 3)
Share of results of joint ventures 279.0 1382
Distrbutions and other receivables {100.4) (1034)
Revaluation gains on owner-occupied property - 32
Other movements 26.0 99
Foreign exchange translation differences (10.6) 32
Balance at 31 December 2,341.5 24708
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14: Investment n associate

The Group has significant iInfluence over Value Retail PLC and associated entities {"VR") and equity accounts for its investment

A: Share of results of associate

2014 2013
Hammaearson Hammerson
100% share 100% share
im £Em £m £m
Gross rentat income 2431 751 2276 654
Net rental Income 157.3 49.6 1471 435
Admirustration and gther expenses (73.1) (20.0) (71 1) (178)
Operating profit before other net gains 84.2 29.6 760 257
Revaluation gains on properties 3142 111.1 2736 855
Operating profit 3984 140.7 3496 12
Net finance costs {39.2) (14.0) (44 2) (120)
Change in farr value of financial instrurnents (34.8) (9.9) 83 50
Change in farr value of participative loans - revaluation movermnent - 4.6 - 71
Change In fair value of participative loans — other movement - 2.1 - 08
Profit before tax 3244 123.5 3137 121
Current tax charge (7.4) (1.7) (73) (16)
Deferred tax charge (47.4) {11.9} {(438) (50)
Profit for the year 2696 109.9 2626 1015
Foreign exchange translation differences (49.7) (15.7) 86 04
Total comprehensive income 2199 94.2 2712 1011
Reconalhation to EPRA adjusted earmings
Profit for the year 269 6 109.9 2626 1015
Revaluation gains on properties (314.2) 111.1) (2736} (855}
Change n far value of financial Instrumenis 348 9.9 (83) (50
Change In fair value of participate loans - revaluation movement - (4.6) - (7 1)
Capitalised loan finance fees written off - - 12 0.5
Deferred tax charge 47.4 1.9 438 90
EPRA adjustments (232.0) (93 9) {2369) (881)
EPRA adjusted earnings of associate 376 16.0 257 134

When aggregated, the Group's share of VR's operating profit before other net gains amounted to 35 2% for the year ended 31 December 2014

{33 8% for the year ended 31 December 2013)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

14: Investment in associate (continued)
B- Share of assets and habilities of associate

2014 2013
Hammerson Hammerson
100% share 100% share
£m £m im £m
Goodwill on acquisition of associate - 65.7 - 657
Investment properties 2,702.6 884.7 246528 7879
Other non-current assets 811 18.6 840 186
Non-current assets 2,783.7 969.0 2,5468 8732
Cther current assets 164.8 302 1696 334
Cash and deposits 103.9 28.4 1103 300
Current assets 268.7 586 279% 634
Total assets 3.052.4 1,027.6 28267 9366
Current habilities (214.1) {52.0) {132 5) (327
Borrowings (789.5) (253.6) 9126) (2814)
Other liabilities (226.9) (83.6) {190 8) 731
Deferred tax (346.6) (80.8) {322 6) 7500
Non-current liabilities (1,363.0) (418.0) (14260} (4295)
Total habilities (1.577.1) (470.0) (1,5585) (462 2)
Net assets 1,4753 557 6 1,2682 474 4
Participative lcans’ 71.2 710
Investment in associate 628.8 5454
The analysis in the table above excludes liabilites in respect of distnbutions recerved in advance from VR amounting to £126 million
(2013 £13 4 million) which are included within non-current liabilities in note 22
Hammerson's investment in associate excluding goodwill as a proporiion of VR's net assets 1s 38 23 at 31 December 2014 (2013 37 8%)
* The Group's total iInvestment in associate includes long term debt which in substance forms part of the Group s investment These participative loans are not repayable in the
foreseeable future
Reconciliation to EPRA adjusted investment in associate
2014 2013
Hammerson Hammerson
share share
£m Em
Investrnent (n associate 628.8 5454
Fair value of derwvatives (1.9} (8 3}
Deferred tax 80.8 750
Goodwill as a result of deferred tax (47.0) 470
EPRA adjustrments 31.9 197
EPRA adjusted investment in associate 660.7 5651
C* Reconcliation of movements in investment in associate
2014 2013
Nota £im fm
Balance at 1 January 545.4 4284
Acquisitions - 594
Share of results of associate 109.9 0s
Distributions {11.5) (46 4)
Revaluation movement on participative loans 0.6 29
Foreign exchange translation differences {15.6) 104)
Balance at 31 December 148 6288 5454
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15: Receivables: non-current assets

2014 2013

£m fm

Loans recevable 63.5 687
Other recevables 08 i1
Fair value of Interest rate swaps 15.0 20
793 718

Loans receivable includes a loan of €58 0 million {£45 0 miliion) (2013 €58 0 miflion, £48 2 million) to Value Retall European Holdings BV
bearing interest at 1096 and maturning on 11 September 2016, except a residual €2 million tranche which matures on 30 November 2043

Loans recevable also includes aloan to VR Milan SRL of €25 0 million granted on 30 July 2013 beanng interest at Euribor plus a 5% margin
and matuning on 13 Decembser 2017 This loan 1s repayable in quarterly instalments and the balance outsianding at 31 December 201415
€239 million (£185 milhon) 2013 €246 million, £205 million) Both loans are classified as available for sate and held at fair value

16: Receivables: current assets

2014 2013
£m £m

Trade recevables 47.7 249
Other recevables 411 509
Corporation tax 0.1 02
Prepayments 38 21
Fair value of currency swaps 5.1 -
97.8 781

Trade receivables are shown after deducting a provision for bad and doubtful debts of £116 million (2013 £8 5 millien), as set out in the table
below The movement in the provision during the year was recognised entrely in income Credit nskis discussed in note 20F

Gross 2014 Gross 2013
raceivable Provision Nat receivable recevable Provision Netrecevable
£im £m £im £m im Em
Not yet due 311 - 311 137 - 137
1-30 days overdue 100 0.3 9.7 57 02 55
31-60 days overdue 02 - 0.2 13 05 08
61-90 days overdue 09 0.2 0.7 05 01 04
91-120 days cverdue 3 0.5 2.6 21 06 15
More than 120 days overdue 14.0 10.6 34 101 71 30
59.3 11.6 477 334 85 249

17: Cash and deposits
2014 2013
£m £m
Cash at bank 28.5 157
Short-term deposits 0.1 -
28,6 157

Currency profile

Sterling 101 88
Euro 18.5 69
28.6 157
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

18: Payables: current liabilities

2014 2013
im im
Trade payables 18.3 110
Other payables 1334 1184
Accruals 27.5 194
Deferred income 25.2 207
204.4 1695

19: Borrowings

A: Matunty

Bank loans and Other Tota! Bankloans and Other Tota!
overdrafts borrowings 2014 overdrafts borrowings 2013
£m £m £im £m £m im
After five years - 1,399.0 1,399.0 - 1,1601 1,1601
From twa 1o five years 729 384.8 452.7 1658 2928 4586
From one to two years 164 6 265.8 430.4 - 3991 3991
Due after more than one year 237.5 2,049 6 2,287.1 1658 18520 20178
Due within one year - - - 2499 (37) 2462
2375 2,049.6 2,287.1 4157 18483 22640
Current assets Farr value of currency swaps - (5.1) (5.1) - - -
237.5 2,044.5 2,282.0 457 18483 22640

At 31 December 2013 and 2014 no borrowings due after five years were repayable by instalments

At 31 December 2014, the farr value of currency swaps was an asset of £16 1 million of which £5 1 million 1s due within one year and 15 included
in current receivables (see note 16) At 31 December 2013, the far value of currency swaps was a hability of £22 6 million

B: Analysis
2014 2013
£m £m

Unsecured

£200 million 7 25% sterling bonds due 2028 198.0 1979
£300 mullion 6% sterling bonds due 2026 297.4 2972
€500 mullion 2% euro bonds due 2022 383.4 -
£250 milhon 6 875% sterhng bonds due 2020 248.4 2482
€500 million 2 75% euro bonds due 2019 384.8 4122
£272 milhon 5 25% sterling bonds due 2016 271.5 2711
€480 million 4 875% euro bonds due 2015 - 3991
Bank loans and overdrafts 2375 4157
Senior notes due 2026 23.2 -
Senior notes due 2024 1311 -
Senior notes due 2021 122.8 -
2,298.1 22414
Fair value of currency swaps (16.1) 226
2,282.0 22640

Financing activities during the year are detailed in the Business Review on pages 49 and 50 Semior notes comprnise £185 6 millon denominated
in US dollars, £46 5 million in euro and £45 0 million in sterling
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C: Undrawn committed facilities

2014 2013

Expiry tm £m
Within two to five vears 250.0 6590
Within one to two years 339.0 -
589.0 6590

D' Interest rate and currency profile

Other variable 2014

Fixed rate borrowings rate borrowings Total

Y% Years £im Em £m

Sterling 6.2 15 425.4 74.8 500.2
Euro 33 5 1,375.3 4133 1,788.6
UsS Dollar - - - (6 8) (6.8)
4.0 7 1,800.7 481.3 2,282.0

Other vanable 2013

Fixed rate borrowings rate barrowings Total

% Years £m £m £m

Sterling 65 13 4750 4106 8856
Euro 41 3 1,1270 2514 13784
49 6 1,602 0 6620 22640

The analysis above reflects the effect of currency and interest rate swaps in place at 31 December 2013 and 2014, further details of which are
set out In note 20 The interest rates shown are the weighted average for fixed rate borrowings Variable rate borrowings bear interest based
on LIBOR, with the exception of certain euro borrowings whose interest costs are inked to EURIBOR

20: Finanaal instruments and risk management

Exposure to credt, interest rate and currency nsks anses in the normal course of the Group's business Dervative financial instruments are

used Lo manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, but are not employed for speculative purposes
Further discussion of these issues 15 set outin Pnincipal Risks and Uncertainties an page 55 The Group's risk management policies and practices
with regard to financial Instruments are as follows

A: Debt management

The Group generally borrows on an unsecured basis on the strength of 1ts covenant in order to maintain operational flexibility Borrowings are
arranged to ensure an appropriate matunty profile and to matntain short-term iquidity Acguisitions may be financed intually using short-term
funds before being refinanced for the longer term when market conditions are appropriaie Short-term funding 1s raised principally through
syndicated revolving credit faciiies from a range of banks and financial institutions with whom Hammerson maintains strong working
relationships Long-term debt mainly comprises the Group's fixed rate unsecured bonds

B. Interest rate management

Interest rate swaps are used 1o alter the interest rate basis of the Group's debt, allowing changes from fixed 1o vanable rates or vice versa

Clear guidelines exist for the Group's ratio of fixed 1o vanable rate debt and management regularly reviews the interest rate profile against these
guidelines

At 31 December 2014, the Group had interest rate swaps of £2500 milion (2013 £250 0 milliony, matunng in 2020 under which the Group
pays interest ai a rate linked to LIBOR and receives interest at 6875% At 31 December 2014, the fair value of interest rate swaps was an asset of
£150 million (2013 £20 miffion asset) The Group does not hedge account forits interest rate swaps and states them at fair value with changes
in fair value included in the income statement

C: Foreign currency management

The impact of foreign exchange movements 1s managed by financing the cost of acauinng euro denominated assets with euro borrowings
The Group borrows in euros and uses currency swaps to match foreign currency assets with foreign currency hatilities The Group also hedges
the impact of foreign exchange movements in debt raised in foreign currencies through the use of dervatives to swap the cash flows back to
either sterling or euros

To manage the fareign currency exposure on 1ts net investments 10 subsidiaries in Continental Europe, the Group has designated all euro
borrowings, Including euro-denominated bonds and currency swaps, as net investment hedges The carnying amount of the bonds at

31 December 2014 was £7758 miltion (2013 £811 3 million) and their fair value was £829 8 milon (2013 £8457 million) Included in the
seror notes (USPP) due in June 2021, 2024 and 2026 15 2 eura-denominated borrowings element of €60 0 million which had a carrying
amount of £46 5 million
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

20: Financial instruments and risk management {continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had currency swaps of £987 3 milhon, being €121 0 mullion sold forward against sterling for value in January
2015 at arate of £1 = €1 273, €4120 million scld forward against sterling for value 1n March 2015 at a rate of £1 = €1 272, €3796 million of cross
currency swaps to swap the £3000 million, 5 25% sterling bond maturning in 2016 into euro at a rate of £1 = €1 265 and a coupon of 4 76%,

and cross currency swaps to swap US$291 mullion of Senior notes (USPP} matuning in June 2021 and 2024, Into euro at a rate of €1 =US51 3415
At 31 December 2013, the Group had currency swaps of £7359 million, being €302 5 million sold forward against sterling for value in February
2014, atarate of £1 =€1 184 and the €379 6 millicn and US5291 million of cross currency swaps as described above The farr value of currency
swaps 1s shown in note 201

The exchange differences on hedging insiruments and on net Investments in foreign subsidianes are recogrised m equity

D: Profit and loss account and balance sheet management
The Group maintains internal guidelines for interest cover, geanng and other ratios Management moniters the Group’s current and projected
financial position against these guidelines Further details of these ratios are provided in the Financial Review on pages 51 to 54

E. Cash management and hguidity

Cash levels are monitored to ensure suffioent resources are available to meet the Group's operational requirements Short-term money market
deposits are Lsed to manage liquidity white maximising the rate of return on cash resources, giving due consideration to sk Longer-term
liguidity requirements are met with an appropnate mix of short and longer-term debt as explained in note 20A

F. Creditnsk
The Group's principal financial assets are bank and cash balances, short-term deposits, trade and other recevables and investments
The Group's credit nisk 1s attnibutable to its trade and other recevables, cash and short-term deposits and denvative financial instruments

Trade receivables consist principally of rents due from tenants The balance 1s low relative o the scale of the balance sheet and the Group's
tenant base is dversified geographically, with tenants generally of good financial standing The majonty of tenant leases are long-term contracts
with rents payable quarterly in advance and the average unexpired lease term at 31 December 2014 was 8 1 years (2013 80years) Rent deposits
and personal or corporate guarantees are held in respect of some leases Taking these factors into account, the sk to the Group of indvidual
tenant default and the credit nsk of trade recevables are considered low The Group’s most significant tenants are set out in the Portfolio
Analysis on page 161

Loans recetvable and other recevables include available for sale investments and VAT receivables These items do not give nse to significant credit
1sk The recervables in notes 15 and 16 are presented net of allowances for doubtful recevables and allowances for mpairment are made where
appropriate An analysis of trade recevables and the related provisions 15 shown in note 16

The credit nsk on short-term deposits and denvatwe financial instrurnents 1s imited becatse the counterparties are banks, who are commutted
lenders to the Group, with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agenctes At 31 December 2814, the Group’s maximurn
exposure 1o credit nsk was £205 7 million (2013 £1656 rmillion)

G. Financal maturity analysis
The following table 1s a matunty analysis for Income-earning financial assets and interest-beanng financial labilives

2014 Maturity

Less than One to two Two to five More than five

Total one year years years years

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash and deposits (28 6} (28.6) - - -

Unsecured bonds

- Sterfing fixed rate bonds 1,015.3 - 271.5 - 743.8
- Euro fixed rate bonds 768.2 - - 3848 383.4
Senior notes 2771 - - - 2771
Interest rate swaps (vaniable) 250.0 - - - 250.0
Interest rate swaps (fixed) (250.0) - - - (250.0)
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 2375 - 164.6 729 -
Fair value of currency swaps (16 1) (5.1) (5.7} - {5.3)
Net debt 2,253.4 (33.7} 4304 457.7 1,399.0
Loans recevable (63 5) - (45.0) {18.5) -
2,189.9 (33.7) 385.4 439.2 1,399 0
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2013 Matunty

Less than One to two Twa to five More than five

Total one year years years years

fm im £m im £m

Cash and deposits {157) {157) - - -

Unsecured bonds

- Sterling fixed rate bonds 10144 - - 2711 7433
- Euro fixed rate bonds 81t3 - 3991 - 4122
Interest rate swaps (vanable) 2090 - - @0 2500
Interest rate swaps {fixed) {2090) - - 410 (2500}
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 4157 2499 - 1658 -
Fair value of currency swaps 226 (37 - 217 46
Net debt 22483 2305 3991 4586 1,1601
Loans recewvable 687 - - 687) -
21796 2305 3991 3899 1,1601

Borrowings are stated net of unamoriised fees Where facilities are undrawn, unamorused fees appear in the analysis above as negative amounts

in the penod in which the facility matures

H. Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate and currency nsks the Group aims to reduce the iImpact of short-term fluctuations on the Group's earmings Over the
longer term, however, permanent changes In foreign exchange and interest rates may have an impact on consolidated earnings The tables

below provide indicative sensitiity data

2014 2013
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
interest rates interest rates interest rates Interest rates
Effect on profit before tax by 1% by 1% by 1% by 1%
(Decrease)/Increase (Em) (17.2) 17.9 (184) 191
There would have been no effect on amounts recognised directly in equity The sensitivity has been calculated by applying the interest rate
change to the vanable rate borrowings, net of interest rate swaps, at the year end
2014 2013
Strengthening of Weakening of  Strengthening of Weakening of
sterling against  sterling against sterling against sierling against
Effect on financial instruments euro by 10% euro by 10% euro by i0% euro by 10%
Increase/{Decrease) in net gan taken to equity (£m} 166.9 (204.0) 1294 (1581)

These effects would be more than offset by the effect of exchange rate changes on the euro denominated net assets Included in the Group's

financial statements

In relation 1o financial Instrurnents alene, there would have been no impact on the Group's profit before tax This has been calculated by
retranslating the year end euro denominated financial instruments at the year end foreign exchange rate changed by 10% Forward foreign

exchange centracts have been included in this estmate
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

20: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
I: Fair values of financial instruments
The fair values of borrowings, currency and interest rate swaps, together with their book value included in the balance sheet, are as follows

Reported Group
2014 2013
Book value Farr value Book value Fan value
£m £m fm £m
Borrowings, excluding currency swaps 2,298.1 2,604.1 22414 24517
Currency swaps (16.1) (16.1) 226 226
Total 2,282.0 2,588.0 22640 24743
Interest rate swaps (15.0) (15.0) (20 20)
Reported Group including share of Property Joint ventures
2014 2013
Book value Fair value Book value Farvalue
£m £m £m £m
Borrowings, excluding currency swaps 2,340.3 2,646 6 22864 24973
Currency swaps (16.1} (16.1) 226 226
Total 2,324.2 2,630.5 23090 25199
Interest rate swaps (13.1) (13.1) 08 08

At 31 December 2014, the fair value of financial instruments, ncluding the Group's share of Property joint ventures, exceeded their book value
by £306 3 million (2013 £2109 million), equivalent to 39 pence per share (2013 29 pence per share) on an EPRA net asset value per share basis

The farr values of the Group's borrowings have been estmated on the basis of quoted market prices, representing Level 1 and Level 2 farr
value measurements as defined by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures The fair values of the Group's outstanding interest rate swaps have
been estimated by calculating the present value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, representing Leve! 2 fair value
measurements as defined by IFRS 7 The fair value of the Group's currency swaps has been estimated on the basis of the prevailing forward
rates at the year end, representing Level 2 fair value measurements as defined by IFRS 7

Details of the Group's cash and short-term deposits are set cut in nete 17 Therr fair values and those of cther financial assets and liabilities equate
to their book values Detalls of the Group's receivables are set out In notes 15 and 16 The amounts are presented net of allowances for doubtful
recervables and allowances for impairment are made where appropniate The table below reconciles the opening and closing balances for

Level 3 fair value measurements of available for sale investments and loans

2014 2013
Avaltable for sale loans and investments £m £m
Balance at 1 January 1411 912
Total gains/(losses)

—In profit and loss 7.9 138
—In other comprehensive Income (4.4) 34
Other movements

- settlement of interest (5.8) (56}
- loan (repayment)/issue (0.6) 214
Net movements In participative loans to associate recognised as avallable for sale (2.1) 169
Balance at 31 December 136.1 1411
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J  Carrying amounts, gains and losses of financial Instruments

2014 2013
Gamn/ Gain/ Gain/ Gawn/
Carrying (Loss) to fLoss}to Cartying (Loss) o {Loss) 1o
amount income equity amount Income equity
Notes £m Em £m im £m £m
Trade recevables 6 47.7 {3.2) - 249 06) -
Cash and deposits 7 286 0.5 - 157 01 -
Loans and receivables 76.3 {2.7) - 406 05) -
Other investments 1.4 - -~ 14 - -
Loans recevable 15 63.5 1.2 - 687 59 -
Participative loans to associate 148 7.2 6.7 (4.4) 710 79 34
Available for sale loans and investments 136 1 7.9 (4.4) 1411 138 34
Interest rate swaps 15 15.0 16.4 - 20 (142 -
Assets at fair value (held for trading) 15.0 16.4 - 20 (14 2) -
Currency swaps 198 16.1 3.5 55.4 (226) 07 (118}
Derivatives in effective hedging
relationships 16.1 3.5 55.4 (226) 07 (118}
Payables 18,22 (276.9) - - (2355) - -
Borrowings, excluding currency swaps 198 (2,2981) (122.3) 469 {2,241 4) (1146) (201)
Obligations under finance leases 7 (330) (1.1 - (349 {02) -
Liabilities at amortised cost {2,608.0) (123.4) 46.9 (2511 8) (114 8) (201)
Total for financial instruments (2,364.5) {98.3) 97.9 (2,3507) (1150) (285)
The table below reconciles the net gan or loss taken through income to net finance costs
2014 2013
Notes im £m
Total loss on financial instruments to Income (98.3) (M50
Addback  Trade recevables loss 3.2 05
Interest capralised 7 8.8 131
Deduct Change in participative loans to associate shown in share of results of associate 6.7) 79
Net finance costs 7 (93.0) (109 3)

No financial insturments were designated as at fair value through profit and loss on initial recognition, nor classified as held to maturity

Financial instruments classified as held for trading are hedging instruments that are not designated for hedge accounting

The total of the equity gains In relation to currency swaps of £554 million {2013 £11 8 million loss) and borrowings of £469 million
(2013 £201 million loss} s £102 3 milhon {2013 £31 9 million loss) and 1s shown in the movement in the hedging reserve in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

20: Financial instruments and risk management (continued)
K. Matunty analysis of financial habilities
The remaining contractual maturiues are as follows

Financial
Currency lizbility Finance Total
Payables swaps cash flows leases 2014
2014 £m £m £m £m £m
Notes 20L
After 25 years - - - 697 69 7
From five 1o 25 years 25.2 181.4 1,753.9 373 1,997.8
From two to five years 33 - 703.6 5.6 712.5
From one to two years 51 394.3 529.1 1.9 930.4
Due after more than one year 33.6 575.7 2,986.6 1145 3,710.4
Due within one year 179.2 420.7 89.0 1.9 650.8
212.8 996 4 3,075.6 116.4 4,401.2
Financial
Currency hability Finance Total
Payables SWaps cash flows leases 2013
2013 im im £m im £m
Notes 20L
After 25 years - - - 768 768
From five to 25 years 246 - 15199 400 15845
From two to five years 33 3158 6628 60 9879
From one to two years 59 - 4977 20 5056
Due after more than one year 338 3158 26804 1248 31548
Due within one year 1325 2516 3470 14 7325
1663 567 4 30274 1262 38873

At 31 December 2014, the currency swap liability 1s offset by an asset of £1,012 5 million (2013 £544 8 million), so that the farr value of the currency
swaps 1s an assetof £16 1 million (2013 £22 6 million hability), as reported in note 198

L: Reconaliation of matunty analyses in notes 19A and 20K

The maturity analysis in note 20K shows contractual non-discounted cash flows for all financial liabilities, ncluding interest payments, but
excluding the fair value of the currency swaps, which is not a cash flow item The following table reconailes the total borrowings column in
note 19A with the financial matunty analysis in note 20K

Borrowings Unamortised Financial

including borrowing liability

CUrrency swaps Interest costs cash flows

2014 im £m £m £m
Notes 19A 20K
From five to 25 years 1,399.0 343.0 19 1,753.9
From two to five years 457.7 240.7 5.2 703.6
From one to two years 430.4 970 1.7 529.1
Due after more than one year 2,287.1 680.7 18.8 2,986.6
Due within one year {5.1) 94.1 - 89.0
2,282.0 774.8 18.8 3,075.6
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Borrowings Financial

including Unamaortsed hability

currency swaps Interest  borrowing costs cash flows

2013 £m £m £m £m
Nozes 19A 20K
From five to 25 years 1,1601 3493 105 1,5199
From two to five years 4586 1982 60 6628
From one to two years 3991 983 03 4977
Due after more than one year 20178 6458 168 26804
Due within one year 2462 1007 01 3470
22640 7465 169 30274

M. Capital structure

The Group's financing policy 1s 1o optimise the weighted average cost of capital by using an appropnate mix of debt and equity, the latter in the
form of share caprtal Further information on debt is provided in the Business Review on pages 49 and 50 and information on share capital and
changes therein is set out in note 23 below and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equrty on page 109

21: Obligations under finance leases

Finance lease obligations In respect of rents payable on leasehald properties are payable as follows

2014 2013

Present value Present value

Minimum of minimum Minimum of minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments payments Interest payments

£m £m £m im Em im

After 25 years 69.7 (40.1} 29.6 768 (447) 327
From five to 25 years 373 (34.3) 3.0 400 (370) 30
From two to five years 5.6 (5.4} 0.2 60 (58) 02

From one to two years 1.9 (1.8} 01 20 (19 a1
Within one year 19 (18) 0.1 14 {19 (05)
116.4 (83.4) 33.0 1262 (913} 349

22: Payables: non-current liabihties

2014 2013

£m £m

Net pension liability {note 6} 39.0 322
Other payables 335 338
725 660

23: Share capital

Called up allotted and fully paid

2014 2013
£m £m
Ordinary shares of 25p each 196.1 1782
The Authonsed share capital was removed from the Company’s Articles of Association in 2010
Number
Movements in number of shares in issue
Number of shares in issue at 1 January 2014 712,876,870
Issue of shares 71,297,452
Share options exercised — Executive Share Option Scheme 40,708
Share options exercised — Savings-related Share Option Scheme 80218
Number of shares in Issue at 31 December 2014 784,295,248
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

23: Share capital (continued)

On 25 September 2014, the Company completed a placing of shares which resutted in the 1ssue of 71,297,452 new ordinary shares of 25 pence
each at a price of 560 pence per placing share, raising proceeds of approximately £399 3 million (before expenses) The placing of shares was
effected by way of a cashbox placing The proceeds of the placing were used to acquire the remaining 409 nterest in Highcross Shopping
Centre In Leicester, make further investments in the fast-growing premium outlet sector and provide additional capital for our development
pipeline For further details of the share 1ssue and the associated merger reserve, see note H to the Company balance sheet

Share options
At 31 December 2014, the following options granted to staff remained outstanding under the Company's Executive Share Option Scheme
Number of
Exercise price ordinary shares
Expiry year {pence) of 25p each
2015 583 14449
2016 839 88486
102,935

UK eligitle employees may partctpate in the Company’s Savings-related Share Option Scheme by choosing to enter Into one or more contracts
for a three or five-year term and save a fixed amount from £5 to £250 each monith for three years (for a three year contract) or five years (for a
five-year contract) For contracts entered into prior to 2013, a seven-year term, was also availlable Atthe end of the contract, employees may
exercise an option to purchase shares in the Company at the opuion price, which is set at the beginning of the contract at a discount of up

to 20% of the prevalling share price at the time that the nvitation 1s launched

At 31 December 2014, the following options granted to Executive Directors ang staff rematned outstanding under the Company’s Savings-related
Share Option scheme

Number of
Exercise price ordinary shares
Expiry year {pence) of 25p each
2015 31224-32904 111,206
2016 2172-4200 72,500
207 31224 - 4624 67,695
2018 368 -420 12438
2019 32904 - 4624 17,481
281,320

The number and weighted average exercise pnces of share opucns under the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme are as follows
2014 2043
Werghted average Weighted average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
of options £ of options £
Quistancing at 1 january 167,732 7.26 205211 706
Forfeited during the year (24,089) 7.59 (18,779) 819
Exercised duning the year (40,708) 5.10 (18,700) 416
Qutstanding and exercisable at 31 December 102,935 8.03 167,732 726

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised duning the year was £5 83 (2013 £5 26) The options
outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a weighted average remaining contractual hfe of 1 year (2013 2 years) The number and weighted
average exercise price of share options under the Company’s Savings-related Share Option Scheme are as follows

2014 2013

Weighted average Werghted average

Number exercise price Number exercise prce

of options £ of options £

Outstanding at 1 January 316,708 3.39 316173 323
Granted during the year 65,808 4.62 54,102 420
Forfeited dunng the year {4,006} 3.64 (16,575) 372
Expired duning the year (16,972) 356 {5,781) 319
Exercised during the year (80,218) 300 (27.211) 300
Qutstanding at 31 December 281,320 3.78 316,708 339
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The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised durning the year was £580 (2013 £515) No options
outstanding under the Company's Savings-related Share Option Scheme were exercisable at 31 December 2014 or 31 December 2013
The weighted average fair value of options granted dunng the year was £1 56 (2013 £1 30}

At 31 December 2014, the following shares remained outstanding under the Company’s Restricted Share Plan and Long-Term Incentive Plan

Number of ordinary shares of 25p each

Restricted Share Plan

Long-Term Incentive Plan

2014 2013 2014 2013

Outstanding at 1 January 901,194 1002236 2,832,739 277814
Awarded dunng the year 258,244 303,790 356,892 766,408
Noticnal dividend shares accrued durng the year 25,651 36,927 72,363 79,578
Vested during the year (314,224) (351,329 (89,565) (648,466)
Forfeited dunng the year (147,708) {90.434) - -
Lapsed dunng the year - - (514,571} (142,922
Qutstanding at 31 December 723,157 901,194 2,657,858 2832739
Number of ardinary shares of 25p each

Restricted Share Plan Long Term Incentive Plan

Year of grant 2014 2013 2014 2013
20N - 311,251 600,988 1,179,503
2012 261,618 301,553 889,928 866,268
2013 232,940 288,390 806,586 786,968
2014 228,599 - 360,356 -
723,157 901,194 2,657,858 2832739

24: Investment in own shares

2014 2003

At cost £m im
Balance at 1 January 49 60
Purchase of own shares 5.5 49
Cost of shares awarded 10 employees (3.6) GIn)}
Balance at 31 December 6.8 49

The Trustees of the Hammerson Employee Share Ownership Plan acquire the Company’s own shares to award to participants in accordance
with the terms of the Plan The expense related to share-based employee remuneration $ caleulated in accordance with IFRS 2 and the terms
of the Plan and is recogrised in the iIncome statement within administration expenses The corresponding credst 1s Included i other reserves

When the Company’s shares are awarded to employees as pari of their remuneration, the cost of the shares is transferred to other reserves
Should this not equal the credit previously recorded against other reserves, the balance 1s adjusted against retained earnings

The number of shares held as at 31 December 2014 was 1,163,523 (2013 584,463) following awards to participants durning the year of 720,940

shares (2013 1,353,344), and the purchase of 900,000 shares {2013 1,000,000)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

25: Impact of change in accounting policy

Following the adoption of IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements wath effect from 1 January 2014, the Group's interests In jomnt ventures are presented on an
equity accounting rather than a praportionally consolidated basis Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the change in accounting
policy The impact of these changes on the bialance sheet and net debt are shown in the tables below Further details of the impact of adopung
IFRS 11 are set out In note 1 on page 113

A. Balance sheet

2014 2013
Proportionally Propartionally
Reported consolidated Reported consolidated
Group Adjustment basis Group Adjustment basis
£im £m £m £m im £m
Notes A B C A B b
Non-current assets
Investment and development properties 4,427.3 2,279.2 6,706.5 34478 24834 58312
Interests i leasehold properties 33.2 9.8 43.0 351 98 440
Plant, equipment and owner-occupled property 5.0 - 5.0 63 332 365
Investment In Joint ventures
Property joint ventures 2,237.3 (2,237.3) - 24708 {24708) -
VIA Cutlets 104.2 - 104.2 - - -
2,341.5 (2,232.3) 104.2 24708 (24708 -
Investment In associate 628.8 - 628.8 5454 - 5454
Cther non-current assets 807 - 80.7 732 05 737
7.516.5 51.7 7,568.2 65786 561 66347
Current assets
Recetvables 97.8 421 1399 781 350 1131
Cash and deposits 28.6 30.8 59.4 157 410 567
126.4 72.9 199.3 938 760 1698
Total assets 7,642.9 124.6 7,767.5 66724 1327 6,804 5
Current liabilities
Payables 204.4 66.5 270.9 1695 71a 2405
Tax 0.3 - 0.3 10 - 10
Borrowings - - - 2462 - 2462
204.7 66.5 2712 4167 710 4877
Non-current habthities
Borrowings 2,287 422 2,329.3 20178 450 20628
Deferred tax 0.5 - 0.5 04 - 04
Obligations under finance leases 33.0 9.8 42,8 349 S8 447
Payables 72.5 6.1 78.6 660 63 723
2,393 58.1 2,451.2 2,191 611 21802
Total liabilities 2,597.8 124.6 2,722.4 25358 1321 26579
Net assets 5,045.1 - 5,045.1 41366 - 41366

Notes

A Reported Group results as shown in the consolidated balance sheet on page 108

B Adjustment required to present the results on a properticnally consolidated basis

C 2014 results presented on a propartionally consolidated basis with the exception of the presentaiion of the investment n VIA Gutlets
D 2013 results previously reported on a proportonally consolidated basis
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B Netdebt

2014 2013
Reported Reponed

Group Adjustment Total Group Adjusiment Total

£m £m £im Em £m Em

Notes A B o A B D
Cash at bank 28.5 27.7 56.2 157 298 455
Short-term deposits 01 343 3.2 - 112 12
Cash and deposits 28.6 308 59.4 157 410 567
Current borrowings including currency swaps 51 - 5.1 (2462) - (2462)
Non-current borrowings {2,287.1} {42.2) (2,329.3) (20178} (450 (2,062 8)
Net debt (2,253.4) {11.4) (2,264.8) (2,248 3} @0 (2,252 3)

26: Adjustment for non-cash items in the cash flow statement

2014 2013

Em fm

Amortsation of lease incentwes and other costs 47 54
Increase In accrued rents recevable (6.3) 27
MNen-cash items included within net rental Income (1.6) 27
Depreciation 1.4 15
Share-based employee remuneration 5.1 39
Exchange and other items 7.3 (20

12.2 61

27: The Group as lessor - operating lease receipts
Al the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the future minimum lease receipts as shown in the table below The data

is for the peried to the first tenant break option An overview of the Group's leastng arrangements 15 included in the Property Analysis section on
page 159 and credn nsk related to the trade recevabies is discussed in note 20F

2014 2013
£m £m

Within one year 1315 939
From one to two years 129.6 1157
From two to five years 315.2 2718
After five years 861.4 5222
1,437.7 1,0036

28: Contingent liabilities

There are contingent liabilives of £316 million (2013 £31 1 million) relating 1o guarantees given by the Group and a further £123 milion (2013
£105 million) relating to claims against the Group ansing tn the normal course of business, which are considered to be unlikely to crystathse

In addition, Hammerson's share of contingent liabiities ansing within Property joint veniures, which is not included in the figures shown above,
15 £16 2 millkon (2013 £37 0 milion} Prncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group are detailed on pages 55 to 59
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

29: Related party transactions and non-controlling interests

A Joint ventures and associates

Related party transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates primanly compnse management fees, interest recewvable and

loan balances The amounts shown below represent the Group's transactions and balances wath its related parties and are shown before any
consolidation adjustrments

2014 2013
im im

Management fees from joint ventures 9.3 115
Interest recevable from joint ventures 327 316
Interest recewvable from associate 5.8 56
Loans owed by associate 63.5 687
Amounts owed by joint ventures 1,156.8 14393
Amounts cwed to joint ventures (3.2) (39

B. Keymanagement

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management of the Group, 15 set out below in aggregate Further information about the
Directors’ remuneration, as required by the Companies Act 2006, 1s disclosed in the audited sections of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 7510 93

2014 2013

£m fm
Salanes and short-term benefits 39 37
Post-employment benefits 01 04
Share-based payments 28 15
Total remuneration 68 56

C. Non-controlling interests

The Group's non-controlling interest represents a 35 5% interest In Place des Halles, Strasbourg held by Assurbail During 2014, the property
generated gross rental income of £124 million (2013 £120 midhion) ang the property valuation at 31 December 2014 was £2064 million
(2013 £222 4 million} The non-controlling interests’ share of the gross rental income was £4 4 mithon (2013 £4 3 million) and of the property
valuation was £73 3 milhon {2012 £79 0 million) The balances and movements during the year associated with the non-controlling interest
are shown on the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 109 and 110
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

2014 2013
Notes im £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary companies C 3,576.7 29486
Recevables D 51802 45450
8,756 9 74936
Current assets
Recevables E 86 56
Cash and short-term deposits 15 08
10.1 64
Total assets 8,767.0 75000
Current liabilities
Payables F 1,434.8 11761
Borrowings G - 2462
1,434.8 14223
Non-current {iabilities
Borrowings G 2,287.1 20178
Total habilities 37219 3,4401
Net assets 50451 40599
Equity
Called up share capital 23 196.1 1782
Share premium H 1,222.9 12224
Merger reserve H 374.2 -
Other reserves H 7.3 73
Revaluation reserve H 1,981.1 13530
Retained earnings H 1,2703 1,3039
Investment In own shares I (6.8) (49
Equity shareholders’ funds J 5,045.1 40599

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2015

MM N T Deohomh

David Atkins Timon Drakesmith
Director Director

Registered in England No 360632
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS

A: Accounting policies

Although the consolidated Group accounts are prepared under IFRS, the Hammerson plc company accounts presented in this section are
prepared under UK GAAP The accounting policies relevant to the Company are the same as those set out in the accounting policies for the
Group In note 1, except as set out below

Investrnents in subsichary companies are included at valuaton The Directors determing the valuations with reference to the underlying net
assets of the subsidianes In accordance with UK GAAP, in calculating the underlying net asset values of the subsicianes, no deduction is made
for deferred 1ax relating to revaluation surpluses on investment properties

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 29 Financial Instruments - Disciosure Section 2D not to present the disclosures
required in respect of the Hammerson plc company accounts as the Company 1s Included in the consolidated Group accounts The
conselidated accounts of Hammerson plc comply with IFRS 7 Financial fnstrurments — Disclosure which 1s matenially consistent with FRS 29

The Company dees not utthse net investment hedging under FRS 26 Financial Instruments — Recognition and Measurement

B. Profit for the year and dividend

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the income statement of the Company 15 not presented as part of these financial
statements The profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was £1059 million
(2013 £57 1 million)

Dividend information is provided In nate 10 1o the consolidated accounts

C: Investments in subsidiary companies

Cost less provision
for permanent

diminution in value Valuation

£m £m

Balance at 1 January 2014 1,561.7 2,948.6
Revaluaticn adjustment - 628.1
Balance at 31 December 2014 1,561.7 3,576.7

Investments are stated at Directors’ valuation A list of the principal subsidiary companies at 31 December 2014 1s included in note L

D: Receivables: non-current assets

2014 2013
£im £m

Amounts owed by subsidianes 51017 44743
Loans recevable (see note 15) 63.5 687
Fair value of interest rate swaps 15.0 20
5,180.2 45450

Armounts owed by subsidianes are unsecured and interest-beanng at vanable rates based on LIBOR These amounts are repayable on demand,
however, it is the Company's current intention not to seek repayment before 31 December 2015
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E. Receivables. current assets

2014 2013
£m £m
Other recevables 3.5 56
Farr value of currency swaps 5.1 -
8.6 56
F- Payables
2014 2013
£m £m
Amounts owed to subsidianes 1,377.9 11129
Cther payables and accruals 56.9 632
1,434 8 1,1761
The amounts owed to subsidiaries are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest bearing at vanable rates based on LIBOR
G' Borrowings
Bank loans and Other 2014 2013
overdrafts borrowings Total Total
Em £m im £m
After five years - 1,399.0 1,399.0 1,601
From two to five years 72,9 384.8 457.7 4586
From one to two years 164.6 265.8 4304 3991
Due after more than one year 237.5 2,049.6 2,287.1 20178
Due within one year - - - 2462
237.5 2,049.6 2,287 22640
Current assets Fair value of currency swaps - (5.1) (5.1} -
237.5 2,044 5 2,282.0 22640
Detalls of the Group's borrowings and financial instruments are given innotes 19 and 20 to the consolidated accounts The Company's
borrowings are unsecured and comprise sterling and euro denominated bonds, bank loans and overdrafts
H. Equity
Share Merger Other Revaluation Retained
premium resarve reserves reserve earntngs
Note £m Em £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2014 12224 - 73 1,3530 13039
Issue of shares 05 3814 - - -
Share 1ssue costs - (72 - - -
Drvidends 10 - - - - (13¢5)
Revaluation gains on investments In subsidiary
companies - - - 6281 -
Profit for the year - - - - 1059
Balance at 31 December 2014 1,222.9 374.2 7.3 1,981.1 1.270.3

The merger reserve comprises the premium en the share placing in September 2014 With regard to this transaction, no share premium is
recorded In the Company’s financial staternents, through the operation of the merger relief provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The batance of £7 2 million on the capital redemption reserve has been aggregated within other reserves as at 1 January 2014
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

I:  Investmentin own shares

2014 2013
At cost £m im
Balance at 1 January 49 60
Purchase of own shares 55 49
Transfer to employing subsidiaries — cost of shares awarded to employees (3 6) 60
Balance at 31 December 6.8 49

The Trustees of the Hammerson Employee Share Ownership Plan acquire the Company's own shares to award to participants (n accordance

with the terms of the Plan

The Company has no employees When the Company's own shares are awarded to Group employees as part of their remuneration, the
cost of the shares is transferred by the Company through intercompany accounts to the emiploying subsidianes, where the related credit

15 recognised In equity

Further details of share options and the number of own shares held by the Company are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated accounts

J. Reconcilhation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

2014 2013
£m fm

Balance at 1 January 4,059.9 38512

Issues cf shares 392.6 o1
Dividends (139.5) (13010
Revaluation gains on Investments in subsidiary companies 628.1 2805
Cost of shares awarded to employees 3.6 60
Purchase of own shares (5.5) 49

Profit for the year 105.9 571
Balance at 31 December 5.045.1 40599

K: Farrvalue of financial mstruments

2014 2013

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

£m £m £m £m

Borrowings, excluding currency swaps 2,298.1 2,604.1 22414 24517
Currency swaps {16.1} (16.1) 226 226
Total 2,282 0 2,588.0 2,2640 24743
Interest rate swaps 15.0 150 20 20
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L. Principal Group entities

in the opinion of the Directors the disclosure of all of the Graup's undentakings would be excessive so, as permutted by section 410 of
the Companies Act 2006, a complete listing of all the Group's underntakings has not been provided below A complete list of the Group's
undertakings will be filed with the Annual Return at Compantes House

The Drrectors consider the entities histed below to be the pnnapal undertakings affecting the Group’s financial results, which are engaged

In property Investment and development, investment holding or management Unless otherwise stated, the companies are 100% owned
subsidiaries through investment In ordinary share capital and are incorporated/registerad and operate 1n the countries histed below No Group
entites have been excluded from the consolidated financial results

UK

France The Netherlands

Hammerson International Holdings Ltd
Hammerson UK Properties pic
Grantchester Holdings Ltd

Hammerson (Brent Cross) Ltd

Brstol Allance Limited Partnership (5096}
The Bull Ring Limited Partnership (50%)
Hammerson (Cramlington 1) Ltd
Croydon Limited Partnershup (50%)
Hammerson Group Management Ltd
The Highcross Limited Partnership
Hammerson Operations Ltd

The Cracle Limited Partnership (50%)
Retail Property Holdings Limited {50%6)°
Hammerson (Value Retail Investments) Ltd
Hammerson {Victona Quarter; Limited
Whitgift Limited Partnership (50%)

Unien Square Developments Ltd

The West Quay Limited Partnership {50%)
VIA Limited Partnership {47%)

Hammerson SAS Hammerson Europe BV
Hammerson Holding France SAS

Hammerson Centre Commercial ltalie SAS

Societe Cvile Immobiliére ESQ (25%)

Sociéte Cvile Immiobilieres RC Aulnayl and RC Aulnay 2 (25%)

Société Crvle de Développement du Centre Commercial de la
Place des Halles SOPH (64 5%}

SAINIWILYLS TVIONVNIA

1 Incorporated/registered and reskdent in the ksle of Man
2 Incomorated/registered and reskdent in Jersey
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PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS

Unaudited

Our portfolio provides a secure income stream, with a weighted average unexpired lease term of
eight years, and opportunities for growth The portfolio was 3 6% reversionary at 31 December 2014,
with reversion at the UK and French portfolios of 1 2% and 10 0% respectively Assuming that leases
are renewed or re-let and rent reviews are agreed at current ERVs an estimated £17 0 million of
additional annual iIncome could be secured from the portfolio by the end of 2017

As explained in the Finanaal Review on page 51, management reviews the performance of the business inciuding the Group's share of joint

ventures on a proportionally consolidated basis, but excludes the Group's interest In premium outlets through investments inValue Retail and
VIA Qutlets This s because the Group has less day-to-day invelvernent and the outlets centre sector has different operational characteristics

compared with the Group's property portfolio The information in the following tables has been prepared on this basis

Table Fig 83
Rental information

Rental data for the year ended 31 December 2014

Gross rental Net rental Average rents Rents Estimated Reveision/
income income  Vacancy rate passing passing rental value  [over rented)

Proportuionally consolidated excluding premium outlets m &m % £/ £m m %
Notes 1 2 3 4 5
United Kingdom
Shopping centres 1494 1279 19 535 1542 1608 26
Retail parks 862 830 15 190 868 874 09
Other 145 113 87 180 124 134 (04)
Total 2501 2222 21 335 2534 2616 12
France 918 824 34 360 935 107 0 100
Total investment portfolio 3419 3046 25 340 3469 3686 36
Developments 22 10
Total property portfolio 344 1 3056
Selected data for the year ended 31 December 2013
[continuing portfohc only)
Group
UK 2466 2185 22 330 2503 2582 10
France 716 632 26 335 697 751 49
Total investment portfolio 3182 2817 23 330 3200 3333 18

Notes

1 The ERV of the area in a property or portfolio excluding developments which is currently available for leting expressed as a percentage of the ERV of that property or portfolio

Average rents passing at 31 December before deducting head and equity rents and excluding rents passing from anchor units and car parks

2
3 Theannual rental income recewvable from an investment property at 31 Decernber after any rent free periods and after deducting head and equity rents
4

The estimated market rental value of the total lettable space in a property at 31 December after deducting head and equity rents calculated by the Group's valuers ERVs in

the above table are included within the unobservable inputs to the portfolio valuatiens as defined by IFRS 13

5 The percentage by which the ERV exceeds, or falls short of, rents passing together with the estmated rental value of vacans space all at 31 Decernber
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Table Flg 84

Lease expiries and breaks as at 31 December 2014

Weighted average
Rents passing that expire/break in ERV of leases that expire/breakin unexpired lease term

2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 puly) tabreak  toexpiry
Proporuonally consohdated excluding premium outlets £m fm fm £m fm {m years years
Notes i i i 2 2 2
United Kingdom
Shopging centres 218 79 89 269 75 g1 65 82
Retail parks 77 10 20 81 11 16 88 a8
Other 34 Q7 09 42 06 09 70 83
Total 329 9.6 118 39.2 92 119 74 88
France 13.8 44 55 149 44 58 38 64
Total investment portfolio 467 140 17 3 541 136 177 63 81
Notes

1 The amgunt by which rental income based an rents passing at 31 December 2014, could fall in the event that occupational leases due to expire are not renewed or replaced
by new leases For the UK (tincludes tenants' break oprens For France 1tis based on the date of lease expiry

2 TheERV at 31 December 2014 for leases that expire or break 1n each year and ignoring she impact of rental growth and any rent free penods

Table Fig 85
Rentreviews as at 31 December 2014

Rents passing subject to review in

Projected rents at current ERY of leases subject tareview in

Quistanding 2015 2016 2017 Outstanding 205 2016 2017
Proportionally consolidated excluding premium outlets £m £m £m £m fm fm im im
Notes 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2
United Kingdom
Shopping centres 379 94 92 132 418 103 104 141
Retail parks 236 230 154 118 245 237 159 121
Other 30 21 08 08 32 22 08 08
Total 645 345 25.4 258 69.5 36.2 27.1 27 0
Notes

1 Rents passing at 31 December 2014 after deducting head and equity rents which are subject 1o review in each year

2 Projected rents for space that are subject 10 review in each year based on the higher of the current rental income and the ERV as at 31 December 2014 and ignorning

the impact of changes in rental values before the review date
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PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Table Fig 86
Net rental thcome
Net rental income for the year ended 31 Decernber 2014

Increase/
(Decrease}
Properties | for properties
owned owned
throughout throughout Total net
201314 2013114 Acquisitions Disposals  Developments  rental income
Proportionally conschdated excluding premium outlets £m % £m fm £m £m
United Kingdom
Shopping centres 1150 22 105 03 21 1279
Retail parks 801 24 - 10 19 830
Other 93 (1.2) 09 07 i3 122
Total 2044 21 114 20 53 2231
France 620 20 49 - 156 B25
Total property portfolio 2664 27 163 20 209 3056
Table Fig 87
Net rental income for the year ended 31 December 2013
Praperties
owned
throughout Total net
201314 Exchange Acquisitions Disposals  Developments  rental income
Proporuonally consolidated excluding premum outlets £m £m £m £m fm £m
United Kingdom
Shopping centres 1126 - 55 62 04 1247
Retail parks 782 - - 15 24 821
Other 95 - i1 22 12 140
Total 2003 — 66 99 40 2208
France 607 32 (1) 01 ©2) 627
Total property portfolio - continuing operations 2610 32 55 100 38 2835
Discontinued operations - - - 67 - 57
Total property portfolio 2610 32 55 167 38 2902
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Table Fig 88

Cost ratio

Year ended Year ended

31 Decembar 31 December

2014 2013

Praporuonally consolidated excluding premum outlets Notes £m £m
Net service charge expenses — non-vacancy 3.0 20
Net service charge expenses - vacancy 74 79
Net service charge expenses - total 2 104 99
Other property outgoings 2 262 266
Employee and corporate costs 2 52.1 488
Management fees receivable 2 {(56) 67
Net one-off restructuning charge 2 {30) -
Total operating costs 801 786
Gross rental income, after rents payable 2 3422 3193
Cost ratio iIncluding net service charge expenses ~ vacancy (%) 23.4 246

Cost ratio excluding net service charge expenses — vacancy (36) 212 221

2013 figures are for continuing operations anly

Staff costs amounting to £1 5 mullion (2013 £1 5 mulion) have bheen capitalised as development costs and are excluded from the table above
Our business model for developments is to use a combination of INn-house staff and external advisers The cost of external advisers Is capitalised
to the cost of developments The cost of staff working on developments is generally expensed, but may be capitalised subject to meeting certain

critena related to the degree of ume spent on and the stage of progress of specific projects

Including the net one-off restructuring charge of £3 0 milkon shown above as operating ¢osts Increases the cost ratio to 24 3% Further detalls

on the restructuning ¢harge are in the Financial Review on page 52

Table hg 89
Top Ten Tenants

Tenants ranked by passing rent at 31 December 2014

Passing rent
Proporuonally consolidated excluding premium ouilets im 9% of 1otal passing rent
B&G 121 35
Next 71 20
Dixons Carphone 67 19
H&M 67 19
Inditex 66 19
Arcadia 60 18
Home Retall Group 60 18
Bocts 52 15
New Look 50 14
Debenhams 45 13
Total 65 9 190
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PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Table Fig 90
Valuation analysis
Valuation data for property portfolio for the year ended 31 December 2014

Normunal
Properties Revaluation Capunal Total Inial  True equivalent equivalent
at valuation in the year return returm yeld yield yeld
Proportionally consolidated £m £m % % % % %
Notes 1 2 3
United Kingdom
Shopping centres 28639 2374 96 150 47 54 52
Retall parks 1,644 1349 90 150 48 56 54
Other 1927 51 34 89 61 72 71
Total 4,700.7 377 4 90 147 48 56 54
France 1,797 7 41.1 24 77 46 53 51
Total iInvestment portfolio 6,498 4 4185 74 131 47 55 53
Developments 2081 183 91 98
Total property portfolio 6,706 5 436 8 74 127
Prernium outlets* 1,027 6 1098 128 199
Total Group 7,734 1 546 6 8.0 136
Notes

1 Annual cash rents recevable, net of head and equity rents and the cost of vacancy as a percentage of gross property value as provided by the Group's external valuers

Rents recewable following the expiry of rent free penods are not included Rent reviews are assumed to have been settled at the contractual review date at ERV

2 The capitalisation rate applied o future cash flows 1o calculale the gross propeity value The cash flows teflect the tming of future rents resuliing from lettings lease
renawals and rent reviews based an current ERVs and assuming renis are received quarterly in advance The preperty true equivalent yields are determined by the Groups

external valuers

3 Nominal equivalent yields which are similar to the true equivalent yields but assume rents are received annually in arrears are included within the unobservable inputs 1o

the portfolio valuations as defined by IFRS 13
4 Represents the returns for the Groups share of premium outlets through its interests in Value Retail and VIA Qutlets

5 The werghted average remaining rent-free period 15 0 5 years
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Table Fig 91
Yield analysis
Investment portfolio at 31 December 2014

Income Gross value  Net book value
Propor tionally consolidated excluding premium outlets im £m £m
Portfolio value (net of cost to complete) 6,849 6,849
Purchasers' costs’ (350)
Net investment portfolig valuanon as reported in the financial statements 6,499
Income and yields
Rent for valuers imitial yield (equivalent to EPRA Net Initial Yield) 3234 47% 50%
Rent-free penods (including pre-lets) 133 02% 02%
Rent for topped-up Inial yield? 3367 49% 52%
Non-recoverable costs (net of putstanding rent reviews) 102 02% 02%
Passing rents 3469 51% 54%
ERV of vacant space 88 01% 01%
Reversions 129 0 2% 0 2%
Total ERV/Reversionary yield 3686 5 4% 57%
True equivalent yield 55%
Nominal equivalent yield 5 3%

Notes
1 Purchasers Costs equate 1o 5 4% of the net portfolo value

2 The yreld of 4 9% based on passing rents and the gross portfoho value 15 equivalent 1o EPRA's topped-up’ Net Initial Yield
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PROPERTY DETAILS

Unaudhted

UK SHOPPING CENTRES

Our 11 major UK shopping centres attract nearly 160 million visizors each year The portfolio includes internationally recogrused city
centre schemes such as Bulling, Birringham, Brent Cross in Narth London and The Oracle, Reading

BRENT CROSS BRISTOL INVESTMENT BULLRING,
LONDCON NwW4 PROPERTIES BIRMINGHAM
N PARTNER. Standard Life (59%) N PARTNER AXA Real Estate {509%) N PARTNER CPPIB (16 7%) Henderson
KEY DATES 1976 developed KEY DATES 2000 2006 2cquired g:gg?ggg;""e
1998 relurbished TENURE Leasehold KEY DATES 2003 developed
TERLRE Leasenold PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS BHS Sporis Direct TENURE Leasehold
PRINCIPAL OCCLUPIERS Ferwnck John Lewrs Samsourys
Marks & Spencer HMV Superdrug PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Apple Debenhams
Wairose Forever 21 Selindges
NO GF TENANTS W NG OF TENANTS 80 NO OF TENANTS 162
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 7 years UNEXPIREDLEASETERMTO EXPIRY 10 years UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 6 years
OCCUPANCY RATE 95%, QCCUPANCY RATE 549% OCCUPANCY RATE )
RENTS PASSING £175 milion pa RENTS PASSING £37mikon pa RENTS PASSING £258 milon pa
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £1065per m AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £265 per m’ AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £535 per m
ENVIRONMENTAL 15014001 OWNERSHIP 0% ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 150 14001
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 33 B0ONY SYSTEM
ENERGY INTENSITY* 127 ENERGY INTENSITY* 127
OWNERSHIP 4% QWNERSHIP- 0%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 84 900! PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA, 127 600
CABQOT CIRCUS, CENTRALE, HIGHCROSS,
BRISTOL CROYDON LEICESTER
1 PARTNER. AXA Real Estate(50%) TV PARTNER Westheld (50%) N PARTNER
KEY DATES September 2008 opened KEY DATES 1988 developed KEY DATES 2008 developed
TENURE Leasehold 2011 ecqurred TENURE Freehold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Harvey Michols TENLRE Freehold PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Cinema ce Lux
House of Fraser PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Debenhams Debenhams House of
Cinema de Lux House of Fraser Fraser John Lewis
NO OF TENANTS 129 HAM Next, Zara NO OF TENANTS 135
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 8 years NO OF TENANTS 5 UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 13 years
OCCUPANCY FATE pryry UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 7 years OCCUPANCY RATE popy
RENTS PASSING £151 milion pa OCCUPANCY RATE 3% RENTS PASSING £27 4 milhon pa
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £370 per m? RENTS PASSING f4gmilion pa AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £455 per m
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 15D 14001 AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £260 perm ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (SO 14001
SYSTEM ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT - SYSTEM
ENVIRONMENTAL RATING Excellent SYSTEM ENERGY INTENSITY* 95
OWNERSHIP 50% ENERGY INTENSITY” 204 OWNERSHIP 100%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA, 109 600m OWNEASHIP 50% PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 105 600m?
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 64 700m?
MONUMENT MALL, SILVERBURN, THE ORACLE,
NEWCASTLE GLASGOW READING
I PARTNER N N PARTNER CPPIB (50%)  PARTNER ADIA {50%)
KEY DATES 2011 acquired KEY DATES 2007 opened KEY DATES 1999 developed
2013 redeveloped 2009 acquired TENURE Leasehaid
TENURE Freehold TENURE. Freehold PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Debenhams
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Jamies ltahan Living PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Debenhams Marks & House of Fraser Hugo
Venziures, Michae! Kors, Spencer Tesco Extra Boss, Vue Cinena
TK Maxx Sports Direc* NO OF TENANTS 99 NO OF TENANTS 110
O OF TENAATS 15 UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 8 years UNEXPIRFD LFASE TERM TO EXPIRY 8 years
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 12 OCCUPANCY RATE. 5% QCCUPANCY RATE 08 5%
OCCUPANCY RATE 936 BENTS PASSING £103millonpa RENTS PASSING f143milonpa
RENTS PASSING £33millonpa AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £355 per m? AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £565 perm
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £375 perm IO AENTAL MANAGEVENT 150 14007 ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 15O 14001
ENERGY INTENSITY® 238 SYSTEM SYSTEM
OWNERSHIP 100% ENERGY INTENSTY* 93 ENERGY INTENSTTYT" 54
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 9,500m OWNEFGHP o OWNERSHIP 0%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 92 100m? PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 70 400m

*  Measured by kg/COse/m? Common Parts
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UK SHOPPING CENTRES

UNION SQUARE, VICTORIA QUARTER, WESTQUAY,
ABERDEEN LEEDS SOUTHAMPTON
N PARTNER - JV PARTNER - M PARTNER GIC (5096)
KEY DATES 2003 developed KEY DATES 2012 acguired KEY DATES 2000 developed
TENURE Freehaold TENURE Freehold TENURE. Leasehald
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Appie Cineword PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Harvey Nichols PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS John Lewns
Marks & Spencer Paul Smuth Marks & Spencer
Next Zara Vivienne Westwood Superdry Zara
NO OF TENANTS 80 NC OF TENANTS &7 NO OF TENANTS 98
UNEXPIREE LEASE TERM TQ EXPIRY 12 yeors UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TQ EXPIRY & years UNEXPIREC LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 4 years
OCCUPANCY RATE 96 9% OCCUPANCY RATE 96 5% OCCUPANCY RATE 99 3%
RENTS PASSING 175 millon pa RENTS PASSING £73millienpa RENTS PASSING 146 millien pa
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £480 per m AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £540 per m? AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £660 per m
ENVIRGNMENTAL RATING BREEAM Very Good ENERGY INTENSITY 62 ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT 150 14001
ENERGY INTENSITY" 17 QWNERSHIP 100% SYSTEM
OWNERSHIP 100% PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 19 100m? ENERGY WTENSITY® 0
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 51,600m7 OWNERSHIP 0%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 76 400m¢?

* Measured by kg/COe/m? Common Parts

UK RETAIL PARKS

Hammerson owns 21 retail parks in the UK, which together provide over 500,000m? of floorspace The easily accessible parks, located on the edge
of town centres, are let to both bulky goods and fashion retallers They offer large-format modern stores with ample parking

ABBEY RETAIL PARK,

ABBOTSINCH RETAIL PARK,

BATTERY RETAIL PARK,

BELFAST PAISLEY BIRMINGHAM
v/ PARTNER - JV PARTINER - IV PARTNER -
KEY DATES 2006 acquired KEY DATES 2012 acquired KEY DATES Bunit 1990 2002 acquired
TENURE Freehold TENURE Freehold 2010 bought out partner
TENURE Leasehold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS BEQ, Tasco PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS BEQ, Pets at Home
Harveys DFS PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Currys Halfords
NO OF TENANTS 4 NO OF TENANTS n Homebase Mext PC
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 15 years World
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 11
OCCUPANCY RATE 100% yeors NO OF TENANTS 6
PLANNING Pert open Al OCCUPANCY RATE 100% UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 10 years
part bu'ky goods PLANNING Bulky goods OCCUPANCY RATE 100%
RENTS PASSING £33millien pa RENTS PASSING £41 millenpa PLANNING Al and restaurants
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £145 per m? AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £195 per m? RENTS PASSING £23millonpa
ENERGY INTENSITY® 54 ENERGY INTENSITY® 43 AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £330 per m?
OWNERSHLP 100% OWNERSHIP 100% ENERGY INTENSITY 8
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 26 200m PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 209000 VRSP 100%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 69500my
BRENT SOUTH SHOPPING PARK, CENTRAL RETAIL PARK, CLEVELAND RETAIL PARK,
LONDON NW2 FALKIRK MIDDLESBROUGH
IV PARTNER. Standard Life {(59%) IV PARTNER - JV PARTNER. -
KEY DATES 2004 developed KEY DATES 2002 acquired KEY DATES 2002 acquired
2003 extended 2006 exterded,
TEMURE. Freehold
TENURE Leaseholg 2008 reconfiguraton
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS DFS Next, TENURE Freehotd
T¥ Maxx PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Boots Homebase
Mothercare Next Tesco PRINCIFAL OCCUPIERS Argos, Boots B&Q Currys,
NO OF TENANTS o o Or TR = Malalan MES Simply
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY  Byears A food Mext Ou it
WEIGHTED AVERAGE UNEXPIRED 9 yerars
GCCUPANCY RATE 100% LEASE TERM EXPIRY ¥ NO OF TENANTS n
PLANNING Mainly cpen Al OCCUPANCY RATE 56 2% UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 10 years
RENTS PASSING 1 7millionpa PLANNING Mixed QCCUPANCY RATE 100%
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £465 per m? RENTS PASSING £58milkonpa PLANNING Part open Al
& part bulky goods
ENERGY INTENSITY 8 AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £200 per m’
RENTS PASSING fdémillonpa
OWNERSHIP- 41% ENERGY INTENSITY 41 Py ————— ) n
PROPEATY NET INTERNAL AREA. 8700m? OWNERSHIP 00 iadd perm
ENERGY INTENSITY® 37
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 16:900m-
QWNERSHIP- 100%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 27 800m

& Measured by kg/COhe/car parking space
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PROPERTY DETAILS CONTINUED

UK RETAIL PARKS CONTINUED

CYFARTHFA RETAIL PARK, DALLOW ROAD, DRAKEHOUSE RETAIL PARK,
MERTHYR TYDFIL LUTON SHEFFIELD
IV PARTNER. - IV PARTNER. - N PAATNER -
KEY DATES 2005 developed KEY DATES 2002 acqured KEY DATES 2003 acquured
TENURE Frechold 2006 redeveloped TENURE Freehold
TENURE Freehold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Argos B&Q, Boots Currys. PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS BAM Home Siore
Debenhams, OW Sports, PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Aldi BRQ Carpetnight Currys,
New Look, Next TK Maxx NO OF TENANTS 3 Homebase JD Sports
NO OF TENANTS 18 Qak Furnitureland
UNEXPIRED L EASE TERM TO EXPIRY 15 years Smyths Toys Wickes
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 9 years SeCUPANCY FATE o O OFTENANTS "
QCCUPANCY RATE 521% PLANNING food and bulky goods UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY O years
PLANNING Mixed (open A1 bulky
goads restaurant) RERTTS PASSING £20 lT""lOﬂ’D 2 OCCUPANCY RATE 100%
RENTS PASSING £50 milhon pa AVERAGE RENTS PAiS\NG £195 perm PLANNING Restncted open Al
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £225 per i ENERGY WNTENSITY 2 RENTS PASSING £4 2 million p.a
ENERGY INTENSTYS 75 QWNERSHIP 100% AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £200 pec m?
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AR 10 100m’ Iy
OWNERSHIP 00 OPE| INTERNAL AREA m ENERGY INTENSITY 50
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 23 500m? OWNERSHIP 100%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 21 000m?
ELLIOTT'S FIELD, FIFE CENTRAL RETAIL PARK, IMPERIAL RETAIL PARK,
RUGRY" KIRKCALDY BRISTOL
N PARTNER. - IV PARTNER - N PARTNER -
KEY DATES 2011 acquired KEY DATES 2005 acquired 2009 KEY DATES 2012 acquired
TENURE Freehotd sxtension TENURE Frechold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS HaFords Preza it TENURE Freehold PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS BRQ, Boats MES Simpiy
TK Maxx PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Argos B&Q, Boots Food Tesce Home Plus
Homebase Mothercare NO OF TENANTS 13
NO OF TENANTS 3 Next Saunsbury’s
UNEXFRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 1 yoars T = UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 11 years
: OCCUPANCY RATE. $00%
OCCUPANCY RATE. 100% UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTQ EXPIRY 9 years
PLANNING Qpen Al DCCUPANCY RATE oo PLANNING Restricted open Al
RENTS PASSING £5 3 mill
RENTS PASSING £05milkonpa PLANNING Part open A1 part butky miien pa
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £3190 per m? gaods AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £185 perm
ENERGY INTERSITY® p RENTS PASSING 50 milenpa ENERGY INTENSITY® 50
ENVIRONMENTAL RATING BREEAM Excellent AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £210 per m? OWNERSHIP 100%
targeted ENERGY INTENSTY® = PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 32 200m?
QWNERSHIP 100% QWNERSHIP 100%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 2.400m! PROPERTY NET iINTEANAL AREA 28 200m*
*  Excludes area currently under development
MANOR WAILKS, PARC TAWE, RAVENHEAD RETAIL PARK,
CRAMLINGTON SWANSEA ST HELENS
IV PARTNER - IV PARTNER, - KEY DATES 2007 acguired
KEY DATES 2006 acquired KEY DATES 2006 acquued TENURE. Freehoid
TENURE Freehald TENURE. Leasehold PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Argos. B&Q, Boots
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Argos Boots PRINCIPAL QCCUPIERS Maothercare Odeon, Currys, Next PC World
Next Sainsbury's Yue Toys RUs Smyths Toys
NO OF TENANTS 122 NO OF TENANTS il NO OF TENANTS 9
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 7 years UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TQ EXPIRY 3 years UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 9 yeers
CCURANGY FATE ey OCCUPANCY RATE 100% OCCUPANCY RATE 100%
PLANNING Open Al PLANNING Open Al PLANNING Part open A1 part bulky
gocds
RENTS PASSING 81 millon pa RENTS PASSING ft4 milhonpa
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £75 per m? RENTS PASSING fa8millonpa
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING 145 perm AVERAGE
ENERGY INTENS(TY® 130 RENTS PASSING £175 per m
ENERGY INTENSITY! 220 Y
oWN OWNERSHIP 100% ENERGY INTENSITY 02
ERSHI. 100% PROPERTY NET OWNERSHIP 100%
NET INTERNAL AREA 20 600m’
2
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA §7,600m PROPERTY NET INTERNAL ARER 27 600

A Measured by kg/COze/car parking space
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ST OSWALD'S RETAIL PARK,

TELFORD FORGE SHOPPING

THE ORCHARD CENTRE,

GLOUCESTER PARK, TELFORD DIDCQT
IV PARTNER - N PARTNER - N PARTNER. -
EY DATES 2005 developed KEY DATES 2012 acauled KEY DATES 2006 acauted
TENURE. Leasebold TENURE. Freeholg TENURE. Leasehold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS B3O, OW Sports, PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Sainscury s Outfi, PRINCIPAL GCCUPIERS Argos. Nexr, Sainsbury s
Homeserse Mothercare TK Maxx, Boots, Next NO OF TENANTS 57
NO OF TENANTS 15 NO OF TENANTS 2! UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTQ EXPIRY 13 years
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 13 years UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 10 years OCCUPANCY RATE T00%
OCCLPANCY RATE 100% OCCUPANCY RATE 95 1% BLANNING Open Al
PLANNING M;:%d {apen Aln:;;ulky PLANNING Cpen Al RENTS PASSING 8 mibon o
goods restaura RENTS PASSING £4 7millonpa AVERAGE RENTS PASSING 745 per
RENTS PASSING £45 milonpa - pe
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £215 per m ENERGY INTENSTY® 7
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £215 perm® y
ENERGY INTENSITY 39 OWRERSHIP oo
ENERGY INTENSITY S a8 OWIERSHP Py
p—— ; PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA, 25 800m?
0% PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 29100’
PROPEATY NET INTERNAL AREA 20 800m
THURROCK SHOPPING PARK, WESTWOOD & WESTWOQOD WREKIN RETAIL PARK,
THURRQCK GATEWAY RETAIL PARKS, THANET TELFORD
IV PARTNER - IV PARTNER - IV PARTNER -
KEY ATES 2012 acquired KEY DATES 2002 acquired KEY DATES 1996 development
TENURE Froehold 2009 extended 01D acquired
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Decathlon Dunelm TENURE Freehold TENURE Freehold
Marks & Spencer TK Maxx, PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Homebase Matalan PAINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Asda Living Boots
Gap Asda Living Boots Sports Direct Wren Living Homebase Matalan
Smyths Toys Mike NG OFTENANTS 19 NO OF TENANTS V2
NGO OF TENANTS 2
R A UNEXPIRED LEASETERM TO EXPIRY 10 years NEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 7 years
years
OCCUPANCY RATE 1% OCCUPANCY RATE 100%
OCCUPANCY RATE. 100% PLANNING Cren
PLANNING Part open Al Pe
PLANNING Open Al RENTS. PASSING £2.6 mill
RENTS PASSING £49 millon pa onpa
RENTS PASSING 59 milonpa AVERAGE AENTS PAsSl p” S
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £200 per m? t NG £195 per m
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £190 par m ENERGY ITENSITYE o6
ENERGY INTENSITYS &5
ENERGY INTENSITY S 74 OWNERSHP 0%
OWNERSHIP 100% OWNERSHIP 100%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 24700 PROPERTY INET INTERNAL AREA 13 400m
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 0 300m

In France, we own and manage some of the top shopping centres in the lle-de-France region, including Iltalie Deux and O'Parinor, together
with high-quality centres in Marseille, Strasbourg and Angers Our French shopping centres attract over 80 mullion visitors each year

BERCY 2, ESPACE SAINT QUENTIN, GRAND MAINE,
CHARENTON-LE-PONT SAINT QUENTIN-EN-YVELINES ANGERS
CO OWNERSHIP Carrefour Darty PARTNER Allianz (75%) CO OWNERSHIP Carrefour
KEY DATES 2000 acauired O OWNERSHP Butfalo Gull C&A, KEY DATES 1983 apened
TENURE Freehold Canefour Darty 2007 acguired
McDonalds TENURE Freehold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Go Sport HEM T T
La Grande Récsé p a‘q”"ﬁ o PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Carrefour Cebo Etam
2007 reconfigure: Naf Naf Paul ‘fves Rocher
NG OF TENANTS 64
TENURE Freehold NO GF TENANTS 57
UNEXPIREDLEASETERM TO EXPIRY 6 years
PAINGIPAL OCCUPERS C&A Canrciour Go Sport
Ty o S o UNEXPIREC LEASE TERMTOEXPIRY 5 years
RENTS PASSING £39 milion pa NO GF TENANTS 122 GCCUPANCY RATE 54 8%
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £285 per m’ UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXFIRY 5 years RENTS PASSING {25 milon pa
ENERGY INTENSITY 2 OCCUPANCY RATE 95 9% AVERAGE RENTS PASSING 815 perm
OWNERSHI> 20200m? RENTS PASSING £29 milien pa ENERGY INTENSTTY il
;
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 35 200m? AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £465 per m? OWNERSHIP: 8 600
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 21 5007
ENERGY INTENSITY" 7
CWNERSHIP 25%
PRCPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 60 300m

[of which IV ownership 15 29 500m%)

4 Measured by kg/COse/car parking space
*  Measured by kg/COe/m? Common Parts
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PROPERTY DETAILS CONTINUED

FRANCE RETAIL CONTINUED

ITALIE DEUX, LES 3 FONTAINES, LES TERRASSES DU PCRT,
PARIS 13EME CERGY PONTOISE MARSEILLE
IV PARTNER - CO-OWNERSHIP Auchan KEY DATES Developed 2014
KEY OATES 1976 opened KEY DATES 1972 opened TENLRE Leasehold
1998 acquired 1995 acquired
2013 refurished 1996 refurbished PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS ;:;:e:;ﬁ. mg:;gm
TENURE. Freehold TENURE Freehold NO OF TENANTS 177
PRINCIPAL OCCUPERS Carrefour Market, PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Auchan C&A, Darty
Darty Friac Go Sport, HEM Mango New Look UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 10 years
l;;:,ir:,:c:: l-‘;::;ﬁma NO OFTENANTS 36 OCCUPANCY RATE 98 3%
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPRY 6 years SENTS PASSING £218millonpa
NO OF TENANTS 127 OCCUPANCY RATE P AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £390 per m®
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TOEXPIRY  Gyears ENVIRONMENTAL RATING BREEAM Excellent
RENTS PASSING £120 milhon pa
OCCUPANCY RATE 98 5% OWNERSHIP 100%
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £560 perm’
RENTS PASSING £189millonpa P — pr PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 62800m?
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £500 per m -
ENERGY INTENSITY* 7 OWNERSHIP 25 500m
GWNERSHIP 57 300 PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 61 500m
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 57 300m’
NICETOILE, O'PARINCR, PLACE DES HALLES,
NICE AULNAY-50US-BOIS STRASBOURG
IV PARTNER. Allianz ¥ PARTNER. Chent of Rockspring MINORITY INTEREST Assurbail (35 5%}
Property Investment
KEY GATES Acquired Jan 2015 Managers LLP (75%) KEY DATES :g;g gcp::::d
TENURE Leasehold CO OWNERSHIP Carrefour and Redevco 2007 refurbished
PRINGIPAL OCCUPIERS Habitat Sephoera Hollister KEY DATES 1574 opened TENURE Fieehold
Maison du Monde Larcel 2002 acquired
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS L&A, Darty Go Sport,
NO OF TENANTS o7 zo:)a 'ede"e“’p‘;d‘zz" H&M, Mango New Look
extension complete:
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 5 years TR p— Sephora Toys R Us Zare
OCCUPANCY RATE 56 0% PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS C&A Carrefour Darty NO OF TENANTS L
RENTS PASSING £13million pa Frac HAM Satumn UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 4 years
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £600 per m? Primark UGC. Zara OCCUPANCY RATE 92 g%
OWNERSHIP- 10% NO OF TENANTS V84 RENFS PASSING £109millicr: pa
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 17 600 mt UNEXPIREG LEASE TERMTO EXPIRY 5 years AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £355 per m?
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 17600 m’ OCCUPANCY RATE %4 6% ENERGY INTENSITY* 59
RENTS PASSING £S4amilhonpa OWNERSHIP 40 D00y
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £360 perm? PROPEATY NET INTERNAL AREA. 41 300m?
ENERGY INTENSITY* 75
OWNERSHIP 25%
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA. 100 700m?
{of which IV ownership is 67 300m?’)
SAINT SEBASTIEN, SQY QUEST. VILLEBON 2,
NANCY SAINT QUENTIN-EN-YVELINES VILLEBON-SUR-YVETTE
CO OWNERSHIP AXA Redevco Natixis N PARTNER KEY DATES 2005 acquired
KEY DATES Acquired 2014 KEY DATES 2005 opened 2007 extension
TENURE. Freehold 2011 acquired TENURE Freehold
PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS Monoprx Intersport, CBA TENURE Freehold PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS g&‘:‘g;?;':y Fnac
arxt Sephora PRINCIPAL OCCUPIERS uGC - ki
NO OF TENANTS 4
NO OF TENANTS 81 NG OF TENANTS 13 -
UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY 5 e ———— 3 UNEXPIRED LEASE TERM TO EXPIRY & years
year OCCUPANCY RATE 100%
OCCUPANCY RATE. 97 1% OCCUPANCY RATE. 740%
RENTS PASSING {67 milhenpa
RENTS PASSING f62millonpa a
ENTS PASSING £23milionpa AVERAGE RENTS PASSING 145 per m
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £385 per m pel
AVERAGE RENTS PASSING £145 perm ENERGY INTENSITY" s
ENERGY INTENSITY* 3
ENERGY INTENSITY" 9 OWNERSHIP 47 400
OWNERSHIP 18 300m OWNERSHIP 18 300m? =
S PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 47 400rn*
PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA, 24 000m PROPERTY NET INTERNAL AREA 1

* Measured in kg/CChe/m? Commen Parts
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Unaudited

2014 2013* 2012° 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m tm £m £m Em £m £m

Income statement
Net rental income 305.6 2902 2829 2960 2847 2936 2998 2757 2374 2103
Operaung profit before other net
gains/{losses) 259.1 2479 2396 2491 2488 2526 2575 2345 2013 1789
Other net gains/(losses) 430.3 1020 (7 3} 2098 4699 (5904) (1,6983) 252 7480 607 6
Share of results of joint venture (1.1) - - - - - - - - -
Share of results of associate 1099 1015 475 - 15 o8 - - - -
Cost of finance {net) (95.1) (011020 (1376) (1126} (3000} (1145  (1707) {1493} {1569) (879)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 7031 3412 1422 3463 6202 4531) (1,6115) 1104 7924 6986
Current tax 0.9) 08 () ©n 08 09) (08 (164) (994} 10
Deferred tax ©1) 01 - - ©n 1036 383 176 3338 {1339)
Non-controlling interests (3.0) (3n (34} 99 4n 59 12 (106) (99) (113)
Profit/{Loss) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders 699.1 3374 1384 3337 6154 {3445) (1,5726) Mo 10169 5544
Balance sheet
Investrnent and development properues  6,706.5 59312 54584 57196 53311 51415 64568 72750 67160 57317
Investment in joint ventures 104.2 - - - - - - - - -
Investment In associate 628.8 5454 4284 - - 104 - - - -
Cash and short-term deposits 59.4 567 571 1607 1262 1829 1159 286 394 455
Borrowings (2,329.3) (23090) (20381) (20799} (1,9206) (23190) (3,4526) (25242) (22826) (2,0948)
Other assets 2686 2712 4623 4356 231 3316 3195 3187 3011 2781
Other liabilities (392.6) (3585) (4419 (3271)  (3076) (3239) (4253) (5735) (4489 (3784)
Net deferred tax provision (0.5) 04) @5) (@5} (©5) 04 (1084 (996) (1033}  (4064)
Non-controlling interests (71.4)  (767) (745} (76 5) 717 (734) (893) (704) (566) (499)
Equity shareholders’ funds 4,973.7 40599 38512 37719 34800 29497 28206 43546 41651 31258
Cash flow
Operaung cash flow after tax 149.6 1294 1399 1478 1327 1053 298 (292 55 449
Dwidends (139.1) (1294) (1184) 861) (954) {64 5) (867) (731) (577 (510}
Property and corporate acquisitions {4135) (1911) (3973) (3741} (2186) (395 (1235}  (1633) {2195  (3081)
Developmenits and major
refurtishments (193.1) (1844) (1229 (912} 08) (1647 (3767)  (3355) (2505) {1863)
Other capital expenditure (504) (175 (480Q) (238) (255) (237 {139 (44 6) (296) (369
Disposals 1554 2563  SB5C 2718 5546 3942 2453 5372 6280 2244
Other cash flows 127 (308 (724) (349 ©8) - - {109) (102) 177
Net cash flow before financing (4784) (16750 (341) (103) 2862 2077 (32577 (1194 660 {2953)
Per share data™
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 957p 474p 194p 473p 872p (541)p (3689 237p 2426p 1344p
Ad)usted earmings per share 239p 231p 209p 193p 199 197p 258p 273p 223p 212p
Dividend per share 204p 191p 177p 166p 1595p 1545p 189p 185p 147p 134p
Diluted net asset value per share £635 £570 1541 £530 £493 £420 £661 £1022 £99i £744
EPRA/Adjusted net asset value per share £638 573 £542 £530 £495 421 £703  £1049 £1018 £839
Financial ratios
Return on shareholders' equity 16.3% 88% 53% 112% 271% -169%  -325% 4 5% 253% 34 0%
Geanng 46% 569 53% 52% 52% 72% 118% 57% 54% 669
Interest cover 28x 28x 28% 26x 26x 22x 17x 19x 18x 19x
Dvidend cover 1.2x 12x 1.2 12x 12x 13x 1 4x 15x 15x 16x

*  Cormpnises continuing and discontinued operatons

** Comparative per share data was restated following the nghts 1ssue in March 2009

The 2014 results have been presented on a proportionally consolidated basis excluding the Group's Investment in VIA Gutlets
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

This 1s an extract from the 2013 Annual Report and sets out the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
{Policy) approved at the 2014 annual general meeting held on the 23 April 2014 and is effective

from that date for all payments made to Directors

The Policy 1s reproduced here for ease of reference only and the table below must be read
alongside 1ts footnotes, which together set out and explain the Policy

Page number references relating to the 2013 Annual Report have been removed

FIXED REMUNERATION

Purpose, policy and role in supporting

Element the Company’s strategic objectives Operation and opportunity
Base salary + Ensure the Company continues to attract + Paid monthly in cash
and retain quality leaders . Pensionable
+ Recognise + Reviewed annually by the Committee
- Accountabilities
- Skills
+ Experience
- Value

+ Benchmarked against the main markets in
which Hammerson competes for talent.

Pension Ensure the Company continues to attract
and retain quality leaders

+ Provide market-competitive retirement
benefits

+ Executive Directors may receive an allowance (Pension Choice) to
be paid exther (i) as an employer contribution to the Company's
defined contnbution pension plan or (i) as a payment to a SIPP
personal penston plan or (in) as a salary supplement or (v} a
combination of all three The Pension Choice 1s up to an aggregate
limit of 30% of base salary

« The salary supplement is non-pensionable and does not qualify for
AIP or LTIP entitlements

+ No compensation for public policy or tax changes
+ Non-contnbutory for Executive Directors

+ The Company keeps the penston arrangements for Executive
Directors under review to ensure they remain appropriate
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APPROACH TO REMUNERATION POLICY

The overall obyjective of the Remuneration Commuttee (Committee)

15 to determine an appropriate remuneration policy for
recommendation 1o the Board that ensures that the Company can
continue to attract, retain and motivate quality leaders who are
capable of making a major contnbution to the Company’s success
whilst avoiding paying more than the Committee considers necessary
In implementing the Policy, the Committee takes into account vanous
factors, Including remuneration packages available within other
comparable companies, the Cornpany's overall performance, internal
relativities, achievermnent of corporate objectives, individual
performance and expenence, published views of instituticnal Investors
and general market trends/performance

Generally, two-thirds of the Executive Directors’total target
remuneration {excluding pension and benefits) is performance
related, through an annual performance-related bonus plan
{Annual Incentive Plan or AIP) and a long term incentive plan
{Long Term Incentive Plan or LTIP}, and this is considered

to be appropriate

The Committee has received clear advice that formal imits are
required in the Policy and has retained sufficient flexibility to
enable it to continue to act In the interests of the Company and its
sharehclders The limuts will not lead to pressure on rewaid levels
and the Commuittee 15 sausfied that it has adopted a suitably
conservative approach to date and will continue to do 5o

+ In undertaking reviews, the Committee will take Into account
factors Including market conditions and the level of salary
increases awarded to other employees of the Group, and a
compansen against both a relevant property peer group and
a market cap group as selected by the Committee (currently
the largest REITs and an approprate pan-sector group of .
companies with a comparable market capitalisation)

Benchmarking considered at both base salary and total remuneration
level, and the Committee generally considers that pay wili be within
arange of +/- 109 of median benchmark but also takes into account
such other factors as it considers appropriate and 1s not constrained
by this default

The base salary for any Executive Director shall not exceed £850,000
per annum (or the equivalent f denominated In a different currency)

Arrangements for Executive Directors who participate in the
Hammerson Group Management Pension and Life Assurance .
Scheme (Scheme)

The Scheme closed to new joiners at the start of 2003

Peter Cole and Dawvid Atkins participate in the Scheme instead

of the arrangements described opposite

+ Scheme members affected by the UK annual allowance may
choose to mit their benefit and recewve a salary supplement
of the actuanally assessed balance, which s paid shortly after
the end of the relevant tax year

The maximum benefit (ncluding 1n respect of any salary
supplernent i heu of accrual) wall rerain 2/3 of inal
pensionable salary although the costs of such provision will
change depending on, for example, actuanal assumptions

Entilement to receive Pension Choice of 30% of base salary
if the Executive Director chooses to cease accruing service in
the Scheme, payable only whilst employment continues

Other

In additicn to receving a salary supplement, Jean-Philippe Mouton
participates In the collective supplementary defined contributions
retrement plan operated by his French employing company, and
employer contributions are made at the annual statutory imit

The contractual pension entitlements of exsting Executive Directors
are set outin the surnmary of Executive Directors’service agreements
produced later in this policy

The Company will comply with any local legal obligations in respect
of pensions
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

FIXED REMUNERAT{ON CONTINUED

Purpose, policy and role in supporting

Element the Company’s strategic objectives

Operation and opporturity

Benefits + Provide a range of benefits in line with

general practice
+ Ensure the Company continues to attract
and retain quality leaders

- Executive Directors may recewve such contractual and non-
contractual benefits as the Cornrmittee considers to be appropriate
and consistent with market practice in the relevant market in
which the Executive Director 1s based

+ These benefits currently include a car allowance or a company car,
private medical insurance {for the Executive Director and thewr
spouse/life partner), and permanent health insurance and
hfe assurance

Benefits additionally available to employees of Hommerson France
currently include seniority allowance and an employer's
contribution of up to €2,000 per annum {0 an employee

savings scherne

VARIABLE, PERFORMANCE RELATED REMUNERATION

Purpose, policy and role in supporting

Element the Company'’s strategic objectives

Operation and opportunity

Annual Incentive
Plzn (AIP}, with
deferral under the

+ Align Execuuve Director remuneration
with annual financial and Company
strategic targets as determined by the

+ The current maximum bonus opportunity 1s 200% of base salary

+ The Commuttee reserves the power to increase the maximum
bonus opportunity te up to 300% of base salary, although there 1s
no currentintenuon to do so The Committee would only increase
the maximum bonus level above the current 200% of base salary
after approprate consultation with shareholders
Awards are subject to continued employment, save in the leaver
arcumstances described in the Payment for Loss of Office section
of this Policy

Awards are paid in a mix of cash and deferred shares, with the
deferred shares element being at least 409% of the total award

Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal
misconduct and/or where accounts or information relevant to
performance are shown 1o be matenally wrong and the bonus
paid was higher than should have been the case

Non-pensionable

Deferred Bonus Company’s Business Plan for the relevant
Share Scheme financial year
(DBSS) + In the view of the Committee, to
differentiate appropnately on the basis
of performance
+ Partial award in shares aligns interests
with shareholders and supports retention
Long Term + Incentivise the creation of long-term
Incentive Plan returns for shareholders
(LTIP) Algn interests of Executive Directors with
shareholders
« Support retention

The performance penod 15 set 1o reflect
the capital Intensive and cyclical nature
of Hammerson's business

The choice of performance measures Is
determined by those dnivers which deliver
value to shareholders in the fonger term

A discretionary annual award up to a value of 200% of base salary
The Committee reserves the power 1o Increase the maximum award
to 300% of base salary in exceptional circumstances, although there
IS NO current intention to do so The extent of vesting I1s determined
by the performance conditions

Awards are subject to continued employment, save in the leaver
arcurnstances described in the Payment for Loss of Office section
of this Policy

+ Awards are normally structured as nid-cost share aptiens but can
take other forms — for example, awards made to France-based
employees may be made in the form of a condtional award
of shares
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Benefits are non-pensionable

Where benefits are provided by a third-party prowider, the
Company covers the cost at market rates

The aggregate value of contractual and non-contractual
benefits receved by each Executive Director (based on the
value included in the indmiduals annual PID tax calculation
or a broadly equivalent basis for a non-UK based Executive
Director) shall not exceed £100,000 per annum {with this
maximum increasing annually at the rate of RPI)

In addition to the benefits outhned

Where Executive Directors are relocated to work in a different country
the Company may (i} pay global relocation support {up to a maximum of
£400,000), and/or (n} provide tax equalisation arrangements in relation to
all elemenis of remuneration

While the Committee does not consider 1t to form part of benefits in the
normal sense, Executive Directors ¢an parucipate in corporate hospiiality
(including travel and where appropnate, with a family member), whether
paid for by the Company or another, within (ts agreed policies

Performance

Deferred shares elerment

The deferred shares elemnent Is currently awarded under the
DBSS (but may be delivered under a different plan with
equivalent terms)

The deferral penod 1s currently two years, and may not

be shorter

The deferred shares are subject to the leaver conditions as
set out In the Payment for Loss of Office section of this Policy

No further performance targets apply to the deferred shares
as these represent previously earned bonuses

The awards are structured as nii-cost share options
Participants are entitted to a dividend equivalent for the
period from grant until the vesung date, delivered as
addinional shares when the shares are transferred

to the participant

+ The performance measures and conditions will be set by the Comminttee
on an annual basis

The performance conditions will be assessed over a penod of one year,
and may consist of a combination of

- Financial measures (at the group or divisional level),
» Qperational measures, and
« Indmvidual performance objectives

The Committee reserves the nght to include such other measures as It
considers to be an appropnate means of assessing the performance of
the Executive Directors

The Committee retains discretion to amend the vesting levet (up or down)
where 1t considers it to be appropriate, but not so as to exceed the
rmaximum bonus potential

.

Once set, performance measures and conditions will generally remain
unchanged for the year, except in exceptional crcumstances

Parucipants are entitled to a dwvidend eguivalent for the
penod from grant until the vesting date, delivered as
additional shares when the shares are transferred

1o the participant

The Committee has discretion to settle awards as a cash
payment In place of the transfer of shares
Non-pensionable

Subject to dawback and malus provisions In situations of
personal miscenduct and/or where accounts or information
relevant to performance are shown to be matenally wiong
and vesting was higher than should have been the case

.

The performance measures may consist of a combination of financial
and non-financial measures

Vesting under each condition 1s on a straight line basis with no more
than 25% vesting at threshold performance

The LTIP rules impose & mirurmum performance perod of three years
However, the Committee has determined that the performance penod
should be four years

The Committee retains the discretion to amend the performance measures
and/or conditions used, and/or the weighting of each for future awards and/
¢r the performance measurement periods Itis the current intention of the
Commuttee that future awards be granted with the same performance
measures and conditions as for the 2014 awards

Once set, the Cormmittee may only amend the performance condions in
respect of outstanding awards in the event that exceptional circumstances
occur which make it appropriate to do so, provided that the amended
condition 15 not, in the vew of the Commitiee, materially less difficult to satisfy
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

OTHER

Purpose, policy and role in supporting
Element the Company's strategic objectives

Operation and opportunity

Share ownership
guidehnes

- To encourage share ownership by the
Executive Directors, in order to ensure
algnment with sharehelders

- The Chief Executive 1s expected to accumulate and mantain a
holding in ordinary shares in the Company equivalent 1o no less
than 150% of base salary

Other Executive Directors are expected to accumulate and
mamntain a holding in ordinary shares in the Company equivalent
in value to no less than 100% of base salary

-

Shares to be included in the calculation are

. Shares held beneficially by the Executive Director and the
Executive Director's spouse/life partner

Shares held by the Executive Director under the Share
Incentive Plan

.

Executive Directors are normally required to achieve the
rminimum shareholding requirement within five years of the date
of appointment

The share price 1o be used for annual calculation of shareholdings
as a percentage of salary 1s the closing middle market quotation
on the last business day in December

No farmal sanctions exist for non-compliance

All-employee
arrangements

+ Inorder 1o be able to offer participation
i these plans to employees generally,
the Company is either required by the
relevant UK and French legsslation 1o
allow Executive Directors 1o participate
on the same terms, or chooses o to do

UK based Executive Directors

- Ebgible UK employees may participate in the Sharesave and Share
tncentive Plan, and the Executive Directors will be entitled to
participate on those same terms Maximum participation levels
for all staff, iIncluding Executive Directors are set by relevant
UK legislation

France based Executive Director

All employees of Hammerson France are eligible to participate in
a profit share plan, which rewards performance against such
measures as the Commitiee considers to be appropriate

- Awards are subject to an annual imit determined by
French legisiation

MNotes

i The Commuttee considlers the performance measures currently applied to the AIP and LTIP to be appropriate measures of performance It recognises the need to balance
the enhancement of the portfolic Gncluding increasing net rental Income) and the efficiert management of capial and over the longer term, should be aligned to the

interests of sharehoiders

2 Fordetails regarding remuneration of other Company employees, please refer to the section on Employee Pay and Canditions elsewhere in the Group

3 Allawards granted pnor 1o this Palicy coming into force together wath any awards outstanding on the appontment of an existing employee as a new Executive Director
will coniinue on their existing terms, including as 1o the exercise of discretion 1o amend such awards Those Awards granted as ril cost opuions priot 1o this Policy coming
into force entitle participants to a dividend equnvalent for the period from grant until exercise of the option rather than only unul vesting as 1s the Company’s future policy

4 Plaase refer 1o the section on Payment for Loss of Office for details regarding impact on the AIR the DBSS and the LTIP following a change of control
5 The Cemmittee will determine components of remunerauon for new Executve Directors as outhned in the section on Recrutment
6 For the AIP DBSS and LTiP clawback and malus provisions were introduced for awards made from 2012 onwards
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SCENARIOS

Dawvid Atkins Peter Cole Tirnon Drakesmith Jean-Philippe Mouton

ASSUMPTIONS

Fixed Consists of base salary, benefits, pension and participation in the UK all-employee share plans
+ Base salary 15 that to be paid in 2014

Benefits are as shown in the Single Figure Remuneration Table for 2013 (except for Jean-Philippe Mouten where the amount
he received under the profit sharing plan has been excluded from his 2013 benefits figure for these purposes See On-Target
and Maxirmum below)

+ Pensions are as shown in the Single Figure Remuneration Table for 2013 in the 2013 Annual Report
+ Jean-Philippe Mouton's data has been converted at a rate of £1 €1178

Base Salary Benefits Pension Total Fixed

£000 £000 £000 £000

David Atkins 597 16 160 773
Peter Cole 435 16 90 541
Timon Drakesmuth 408 19 80 507
Jean-Philippe Mouton 346 12 78 436

On-Target  Based on what the Executive Director would recerve if performance was in line with expectation {excluding share price
appreciation and dividends)

- AP consists of on-target levels {(equal to 50% of bonus maximumj
+ LTIP consists of the threshold level of vesting, being 25% of the face value of the award

- France prafit shanng (Jean-Philippe Mouton anly) consists of on-target levels (equal to 50% of the current capped
vesting level of €18,186)

Maximum  Based on the maximum remuneration receivable {excluding share price appreciation and dividends)
- AIP consists of the maximum bonus (2009 of base salary)
- LTIP- assumes maximum vesting of awards (100% of base salary for 2014 onfy}
- France profit sharing (fean-Philippe Mouton only} assumes maxmum vesting at the current capped vesting level of €18,186

www hammerscncom 1795




DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

RECRUITMENT
Approach to recrutment for Executive Orrectors

Staterment of Principles
The Company will pay total remuneration for new Executve Directors that enables the Company to attract appropriately skilled and experienced
individuals, but 1s not, in the opinion of the Committee, excessive

The Company will not pay new Executive Directors any inducements to join the Company over and above buy-outs of existing forfeited awards,
as outhned below

The Company may provide a new Executive Director with global relocation support and/or tax equalisation arrangements as set out in the Policy
although, to date, the Company has not had occasion to do so Additionally, the Company may make a contribution towards legal fees In
connection with agreeing employment terms

Approach and s

Annual salary, pension, benefits, annual bonus and long-term incentive arrangerments (including performance measures and/or conditions and
maximum award levels) as described in the Policy will be the starttng point for the structure of any package The level of vanable remuneration
that may be awarded 10 a new Executive Director will nct exceed the maximum AIP and LTIP imits that can be awarded in line with the principles
set out In the Policy, with the exception of any compensation for vanable remuneration forfeited The imits contained within the Policy for base
salary do not apply to a new Executive Director erther on joiring or for any subsequent salary review within the period of this Pohcy, although the
Commmittee would seek to avoid exceeding those limits in practice

For a new Executive Director who 1s an internal appointment, the Company may also continue to honour contractual commitrments made pnor
to the internal 2ppointment even If thase commitments are ctherwise Inconsistent with the Policy in force when the commitments are satisfied
Any relevant incentive plan participation may ether continue on its onginal terms or the performance conditions and/or measures may be
amended to reflect the individual’s new role, as the Committee considers appropriate

Compensation for variable remuneration forferted by a new Execunive Director

The Company may, where appropriate, compensate a new Executive Director for vaniable remuneration that has been forfeited as a result of
accepting the appeintment with the Company Where the Company compensates a new Executive Director n this way, it will seek 1o do 50
under the terms of the Company’s existing variable remuneration arrangements, but may compensate on terms that are more bespoke than the
existing arrangements where the Committee consicders that 1o be appropnate In such instances, the Company will disclose a full explanation of
the detail and rationale for such recruitment related compensation In making such awards the Commuttee will seek to take into account the
nature (iIncluding whether awards are cash or share-based), vesting pencd and performance measures and/or conditions for any remuneration
forferted by the individuat when leaving a previous employer Where such awards had outstanding performance or service conditions (which are
not significantly completed) the Company will generally impose equivalent conditions [n exceptional cases, the Committee may relax those
requirements where it considers this to be in the interests of shareholders, for example through a significant discount to the face value of the
replacement awards
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SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Service agreements New Executive Director appointments from 23 Apnl 2014
The Committee’s approach 1s for new Executive Directors to have service agreements that have regard to market practice at the

date of appointment

The key efements for service agreements for newly appointed Executive Directors will be

Natice period

12 menths notice {(both notice to and from the Executive Director)

A longer penod of notice from the Company may apply 1o new appointments for a imited ume if the
Committee constders this 1s appropriate, but would then reduce to no more than 12 months

Retirement date

There i1s no default retirement age Requests for retirement are considered on a case-by-case basis
At Executive Director level, it 1s anuicipated that 12 months’ notice will be provided

Post-termination restrictions

To protect the Group’s confidentiat information for an approprate pencd for that iInformation, and to
prevent poaching of its senior workforce and its customer and suppler connections for 12 months
after termination

Payment in lieu of notice
(PILON)

Employment can be terminated with immediate effect by paying a PILON comprising base pay, pension,
medical insurance and car allowance A PILON will not apply on termination for gross misconduct, in
which situation no compensation will be due The Company will have discretion 10 pay on a phased basis,
subject to mitgation

Expiry date

There will be no fixed expiry date The appointment of new Executive Directors will be terrminable in
accordance with the notice penod

Change of contro! and
liquidated damages

The Executive Director will not have a nght to lquidated damages

The terms summansed above will be subject to any local statutory (or collective bargatning) requirements where applicable

OTHER APPOINTMENTS

Executive Directors are able to accept, with the consent of the Company’s Board of Directors, non-executive appomntments outside the Company
(provided that such appointments do not lead to a conflict of interesis) on the basis that such external appointments can enhance thew
expenence and skills and add value to the Company Any fees received by an Executive Director for such external appointments can be retained
by the individual (except where the Executive Director 1s appointed as the Company's representative)
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

SERVICE AGREEMENTS CONTINUED
Service agreements Executive Directors in office as at 31 December 2013

The following table sets out a description of any obligations contained in the UK Executive Directors' service agreements which could give rise to,
or Impact upon, remuneration payments or payments for loss of office

Peter Cole David Atkins Tirmon Drakesmith
Date of service contract 28 February 2002 11 January 2008 18 January 2011
Expiry date Ralling service cantracts with no fixed expiry date
Notice period 12 months'notice to the 12 months'notice (both notice to and from the Executive Director)

Executive Director and six
months notice from the
Executive Director

Base salary/fee Base salary, subject 1o annual review (save where the Executive Director 1s under notice of termination)
There 1s no obligation to Increase base salary following a review

Incentive plans Participation in the annual bonus arrangements and the LTIP

The rules of the annual bonus arrangements and the LTIP that apply on cessation of employment are
set out In the Payment far Loss of Office section of this Policy In addion, Tmen Drakesmith's service
agreement provides that he will be treated as a good leaver in respect of the bonus arrangements in
the event of a successful claim for constructive dismussal

Pension contributions Enttled to parucipate in the Scheme, subject toits rules! Entitled to a Pension Choice? of
Entitled 10 have benefits of the Scheme maintaned or, on three 20% of base salary
manths’ notice, to be provided with alternative arrangements
which are actuanally no worse

Contractual Insurance + Permanent disability insurance

benefits
Personal accident and Iife insurance

« Private medical insurance (for the Executive Director and his spouse/life partner)

Car Each Executive Director receives a car allowance
Sick pay Base salary plus contractual benefits for up to 26 weeks in any 12 month perod
Terrmination Notice Entitled te 12 months'base pay and centractual benefits
payments
Paymentinheu Employment can be terminated with immediate effect by paying a Employment can be terminated
of notice lurnp sum PILON comprising base salary, contractual benefits and a with immediate effect by
{PILON) bonus based on the Executive Director’s average bonus over the paying a PILON compnsing
previous three years (but pro-rated to reflect the part of the bonus base salary, pension, medical
year actually worked) insurance and car allowance
PILON will not apply on termination for gross misconduct PILON wll not apply on
termination for
The Company has discretion t© gross misconduct
pay on a phased basis, subject The Company has discretion to
to ritigation pay on a phased basis, subject
to mitigation
Liguidated Entitlement to iquidated damages calculated by reference to PILON if the Company terminates the
damages/ employment In breach of the service agreement or If, within 12 months after a change of control, the
Change of Company terrminates the employment or the Executive Director terminates the employment because of
Control a fundamental breach by the Company
Liguidated damages are subject to deductions for new earnings
Notes

1 Fordetatls of Scheme partiopation please see the Pension section in the 2014 Directors Remuneration Repon on page 82
2 Pension Choice is explained in the Fixed Remuneration section of this Policy
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Jean-Philippe Mouton has been employed by Hammerson Asset Management SAS (HAM) since 14 April 2003 as Divisional Director (France)

He 15 based and waorks in France and, as a result, it was considered appropriate for him ta continue to be employed under a French law governed
employment contract with HAM upon his appointrent as Executive Director His employment contract with HAM means that French law applies
to his terms and conditions of employment as Drvisional Director (France) Jean-Philippe Mouton entered into a separate English law letter of
appomtment, which governs his directorship of the Company Jean-Philippe Mouton alse holds French corporate offices, including Chairman and
Unique General Director of Hammerson France SAS and General Manager of Hammerson SAS, to which he was appointed by written resolution
of the board of Hammerson France SAS

As at 1 January 2013, his aggregate “global“gross base salary in respect of his directorship of the Company, his role as Divisional Director (France)
and his French corporate offices 15 €400,000 per annum [n addition, he 1s paid a supplementary pansion benefit While, of necessity, to comply
with French law, his termination provisions are more complex than the UK based Executive Diectors and sphit between three distinct parts as
summarised below, the overall financial mplications, before the impact of any collective bargaining agreements, are very similar and 1n
aggregate the cutcome would broadly equate to one times his global base salary

Jean Philippe Mouton

Date of service agreementand  + French employment 25 March 2013
appointments + UK directorship 25 March 2013
French corporate offices 9 February 2014
Expiry date Rolling service contract (French employment) with no fixed expiry date
Notice period Three months'notice (both notice to and from the Executive)
Base salary/fee - French employment base salary

« UK drrectorship basic annual fee, subject to annual review
- French corporate cffices basic annual fee

Incentive plans Participation in the annual bonus arrangements and the LTIP

Pension contributions Eligibility to benefit from the statutory retirement regimes in force from time to time in France, and the
collective supplementary defined contribunions retirement plan, which was put in place at HAM level
(subject to the annual statutory limits on contributions)

Entitlernent to receve an annual salary supplement of €80,000 per annum in heu of any other
supplementary pensian henefit

Contractual Insurance Insurance benefits are provided under a French collective scheme applicable to all employees of HAM
benefits

Car Recelves a company car

Sick pay Enttlement to receive the minimum benefits set out in the collective bargaining agreement ~ currently

90% of his global base salary, contractual remuneration and benefits (less statutory sick pay) for a
duration determined by the length of his continuity of service Thereafter any global base salary,
contractural remuneration and benefits are payable under the health insurance (prevoyance) scheme!

Termination Natice French employment entitlerent te three months'fixed and variable remuneration
payments + UK directorship entitlerent to three months'fees
« French corporate offices no notice

Severance Entitlement to a severance payment equal to 25% of average global base salary and contractual

payment remuneration over the 12 months preceding termination multiplied by years of service {capped at
six months If termenated on grounds of redundancy and 1f in excess of the legal mimirmur
termination payment}

Restrictive Envtlement to 30% of global base salary for the duration of the 12 month non-competiion covenant
covenants (to the extent such covenant Is enforced]

Notes

1 Asaseniorexecutive Jean-Philippe Moutan may also be entitled to receive enhanced benefits under the prévoyance which applies on a mandatory basis to executive level
employees pursuant to the terms of the collective bargaining agreement
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

PAYMENT FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

Notice peniods and contractual nghts

The notice penods and contractual ights on terminabion of each of the Executive Directors, and the key terms that will apply under service
agreements for new recruits, are set out In the section on Service Agreements

Annual bonus and long-term incentives

The foflowing table describes the provisions which apply to leavers and the discretions avallable under the annual bonus arrangements and the
LTIP Further detail as to the potential exercise of discretion by the Committee s set out below the table

Arrangements Leaver provisions

AlP Under the rules of the AIF, where prior to the end of the performance penod an Executive Director gives or
receives notice, or ceases to be employed by the Group, due to death, ili-health, injury or disability, then the
Executive Director remains entitled to a bonus, subject to the performance conditions Any bonus payable will,
untess the Committee determines otherwise, be time pro-rated

Where the date of cessation or notice 15 after the end of the performance period but prior to payment, the
Executive Director will remain entitled to payment if the cessation is for any of the reasons above, orin addition
if the cessation 1s due to retirement, redundancy or the sale of the company or business for which he works

Where the cessation or notice does not fall within the above provisions, the bonus shall not be payable, unless

the Committee determines otherwise which it may do at its discretion Payment will be on the normal payment
date, unless the Committee decides to accelerate payment

DBSS (deferred share Share awards, which represent deferrals of previously earned bonus, lapse on the Executive Director resigning
element of AIP) or gvng notice of resignation, provided that the Committee may exercise its discretion ta treat the Executive
Director as a good leaver Share awards will also lapse on the Executive Director being dismissed for cause

In any other case the share award will continue and wall vest in full an the normal vesung date, uniess the
Committee decides to accelerate vesting

LTiIP An Executive Director who ceases to be a Director or employee of the Group by reason of death, retirement,
tl-health, injury or disability, redundancy, or the sale of the company or business for which he works will be a
good leaver

Where the cessation ts on any other grounds, awards will lapse, provided that the Commuttee has a discretion
to treat the Executive Director as a good leaver

Awards held by good leavers wili continue and will vest on the normal vesting date, unless the Committee
decides to accelerate vesting

Awards will remain subject to the perfermance conditions and, unless the Committee determines otherwise,
be time pro-rated

in exercising discretion i respect of the annual bonus arrangements or under the LTIP, the Committee will take into account all factors it
determines to be appropriate at the relevant time including, but not limited to the duration of the Executive Directors’ service and 1ts assessment
of the contribution towards to the success of the Company during that penod, whether the Executive Director has worked any notice period or
whether a PILON payment 1s being made, the need to ensure an orderly handover of duties and conuinurty In the business operations of the
Company and the need to compromise any claims which the Executive Director may have In exercising any discretion the members of the
Committee will take account of their duties as Directors

No discretion will be exercisable to treat an Executive Director as a good leaver where he 1s dismissed summantly for cause or following a formal
disciplinary process

In respect of the Company’s HMRC-approved, all-ernployee share plans, the Sharesave and the SIF, and the profit share plan for employees of
Hammerson France, the Executive Direciors are subject to the same leaver provisions as all other participants
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Other

If the Company terminates an Executive Director’s employment by reason of redundancy, the Company will make a redundancy payment to the
Executive Director in line with his service agreement, any applicable collective bargaining agreement and under statute, and reserves the right to
adjust for unfair dismissal

In additien, and consistent with market practice, the Company may pay a contribution towards the Executive Director’s legal fees for entering
INto a statutory settlement agreement and may pay a contributien of up to £50,000, plus VAT, towards fees for outplacement services as part of
a negotiated settlement

Payrment 10 a depariing Executive Director may be made in respeci of accrued benefit and untaken holiday

In connection with an Executive Direcior ceasing employment, the Company may, if the Commuttee beheves it necessary and in the best interests
of the Company, enter into approprate new contractual arrangements with the departing Executive Director ncluding (but not mited 1o}
settlement, confidentiality, restrictive covenants and/or consultancy arrangements on such terms as it considers approprate In such case, the
Company will make appropnate disclosures of such terms

A departing gift may be provided up 1o a value of £5,000 (plus related taxes) per Executive Director on termination of office

Change of control

On a corporate action affectung the Company, the rules of the AIP DBSS and the LTIP will apply In summary, on a change of control of the
Company awards under the LTIP will vest, subject to the performance conditions and, unless the Commuittee determines otherwise, be time
pro-rated Bonuses may be awarded under the AIP. based on performance to the date of the change of control and, unless the Committee
determines otherwise, be time pro-rated Awards under the DBSS, which represented deferrals of previousty earned bonus, will vest in full Under
the LTIR, the Committee may also determine that a demerger or simdar event shall constitute a corporate action On a vanation of share capital
or similar event, the Committee may rmake such adjustment to awards under the LTIP and DBSS5 as the Committee considers appropriate

EMPLOYEE PAY AND CONDITIONS ELSEWHERE IN THE GROUP
Employee remuneration packages

Remuneration packages for all Company employees may comprnise both fixed and variable elements The more senior the ndmvidual, the greater
therr general opportunity 10 impact directly upon Company performance, and therefore the remuneration packages of senior managers and
Executive Directors have a greater emphasis on vanable pay than those of more junior employees

Executive Directors are ehigibie to participate 1n the full range of Company benefits offered to employees In addition, they are eligible for certain
rermunaration 10 which other employees are not eligible Executive Directors may opt to receive a salary supplement in ieu of pension, which is
not available to other employees Executive Directors are eligible to participate in an LTIR, whereas senior managers across the Group participate
in other share and incentive plans Eligible employees, Including Executive Directors, may participate in the relevant all-employee share plans
{namely UK plans for employees in the UK and French plans for employees in France)

Considerations in setting Executive Director remuneration

When setung Executive Director remuneration, the Committee takes inio account Group-wide pay and employment conditions, along
with market and commercial factors

The Company strives to pay competitively and to ensure its reward structures recognise superior performance The Company therefore
undertakes externat benchmarking and internal moderation to ensure that, in1ts view, at all tevels the Company’s remuneration approach
reflects the appropriate market rate position When determining base salary increases for Executive Directors, the Commuttee reviews the
average Group-wide increase, paying particular attention to the senior manager population

The Committee reviews performance against the AlP’s performance measures Personal performance rating impacts bonus calculations for all
employees and these ratings are calibrated internally to ensure consistency Executive Director performance ratings are calibrated annually by the
Committee Having reviewed both Company and personal performance, and considenng payments being made 1o shareholders, the Committee
makes a Judgement as to what level of bonus payment, if any, 1s reasonable The Commuttee retains discretion to review bonus payments
upwards as well as downwards (subject to the over-nding limiis}

In accordance with prevailing commercial practce, the Commuttee did not consult with employees in preparing the Policy or the
implementation thereof
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED ) |

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Policy as relates to Non-Executive Directors

Elernent Approach 1o determining element of fees and operation

Fees The Chairman’s fee 1s determined by the Committee and those of the other Non-Executive Directors are determined by
the Board on the recommendation of the Executive Directors

Fee levels are reviewed penodically taking into account independent advice and the time commitment required of
Non-Executive Directors Aggregate total fees payable annually to all Non-Executive Directors 1s subject o the imit as
stated in the Company's Articles of Association from time to tme The Committee reserves the nght to prowide addmicnal
fees within the stated imit including for membershup of any additional commuittee the Board may establish

The fees paid to the Chairman and the fees of the other Non-Executive Directors aim to be competitive with other fully
listed companies which the Commuttee (in the case of the Chairman) and the Board (in respect of the Non-Executive
Directors) consicder 1o be of equivalent size and complexity but are not set by reference to a prescribed benchmark

Fees are paid monthly in cash in arrears and are not pensionable

Additionalfees  The Charman does not receive any addhtionat fee in respect of membership of any of the Commuttees

Other Non-Executive Directors may receive additional fees for membership and/or chairmanship of the Remuneration
and Audit Committees There s also an additional fee for the Sermior Independent Director The level of additional fees is
set 1o reflect the responsibilities of the role

Other benefits There are no other benefits currently available to any of the Non-Executive Directors Whilst the Company does not
consider that rembursing travel and accommaodation expense (including to the Company's London office) s a benefit in
the normal sense, should any assessment to tax be made on such retmbursement, the Company reserves the ability to
settle such hability on behalf of the Non-Executve Director

Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for performance-related bonuses or participation in the Company's share plans

While the Commuttee does not consider 1t to form part of benefits in the normal sense, Non-Executive Directars can
participate in corporate hospitality (including travel and, where approprate, with a family member), whether paid for by
the Company or another, within its agreed policies

A departing gift may be prowvided up to a value of £5,000 (plus related taxes) per Non-Executive Director on termination
of office

The Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors do not have service agreements with the Company Their appointments are governed by letters
of appointment, which are avallable for mspectuon on request The letters of appointrment of Non-Executive Directors are reviewed by the
Chairman and the Executive Directors every three years

Appointments of Non-Executive Directors are for a term of three years, subject to the nght of either party to terminate the appointment on not
less than three months' notice or immediately should a conflict of nterest anse if any Non-Executive Director 1s not re-elected at the Company's
Annual General Meeting, the appointment will cease automatically

Ontermination of an appointment, a Non-Executive Director 1s only entitled to such fees as may have accrued to the date of termination,
together with the rembursement in the normal way of any expenses properly incurred pnior to that date

The dates of the appointments of the Non-Executive Directors in office as at 31 December 2013 are set out below

Date of onginal appointment to Board Commencement date of current term Unexpired term as at Apnl 2014
Gwyn Burr 21 May 2012 21 May2012 1 year, 1 month
Terry Duddy 3 December 2009 3 December 2012 1 year, 8 months :
Jacques Espinasse 1 May 2007 1 May 2013 2 years, 1 month
Judy Gibbons' 1 May 2011 1 May 2011 1 month
John Hirst? 1 March 2004 1 May 2013 Retining at the end of 2014 AGM
David Tyler 12 January 2013 12 January 2013 i year, 10 months
Anthony Watson 1 February 2006 1 February 2012 10 months

Notes
1 Judy Gibbons appointment has been extended for three years with effect from 1 May 2014
2 John Hirsts appointment was renewed for a further penod to expire at the end of the 2014 AGM

SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Company welcomes chalogue with its significant shareholders and seeks their views when major changes are being made to remuneration
policy Recently, following feedback from representatives of shareholders, the accurmulatton perod for dividends on shares held in the LTIP and
DBSS schemes was shortened to cover only the penod from the date of grant of the award to vesting for awards from 2014 onwards
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Key contact detasls

Registered office and principal UK address
Hammerscn plc

10 Grosvenor Street

London WiK 4B}

Registered In England No 360632

Tel +44 (0)20 7887 1000
Fax +44 (0)20 7887 1010

tn June 2015 the registered office and principal UK address will
move to

Hammerson plc
Kings Place

90 York Way
London

N1 9GE

Principal address in France
Hammersan France SAS

48 rue Cambon

Paris 75001

France

Tel +33(0) 1 5669 3000
Fax +33 {0} 1 56 69 30 01

Registrar

For assistance with quenes about the administration of shareholdings,
such as lost share certificates, change of address, change of ownership
or dividend paymenits please contact the Regstrar

Capita Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Tel 0871 664 0300 (from the UK calls cost 10p per minute plus network
extras, ines are open 200 am to 5 30 pm Monday to Friday) or +44
{0120 8639 3399 (from overseas)

email shareholderenquines@capitacouk
website www capitashareportal com

Registering on the Hammerson Share Portal website enables
sharehaolders to view their sharehelding in the Company, Induding an
Indicative share price and valuation, a transaction audr trail and
dividend payment history Shareholders can also amend certain
standing data relating to their accounts

Advisors

Valuer DTZ Bebenham Tie Leung

Auditor Deloitte LLP

Solicitor Herbert Smith Freehtlts LLP

Joint Brokers and Financial Advisors J P Morgan Cazenove
and Deutsche Bank AG

Financial Adwisor Lazard Lid

Shareholder administration

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts
Shareholders who do not currently have their dvidends paid direct
to a bank or bullding society account and who wish to do so should
complete a mandate instruchion avalable from the Registrar or can
register at www capitashareportal com Under this arrangement, tax
vouchers are sent to the shareholder's registered address

Multiple accounts

Shareholders who receive more than one copy of communications
from the Company may have more than one account in their name
on the Company's register of members Any shareholder wishing to
amalgamate such heldings should contact the Registrar

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP)

Shareholders can reinvest drvidend payments in additional shates in
the Compary under the DRIP operated by the Registrar by completing
an application form onhne at www capitashareportal com or by calhng
Capita Asset Services on 0871 664 0381 {from the UK calls cost 10p per
minute plus network extras) or +44 (0) 20 8639 3402 (from overseas)
emall shares@capita co uk

Elections to participate in the DRIP {or cancellation of previcus
nstructions) in respect of the final dividend must be recerved by
the Company’s Registrar no later than 25 days before the dwdend
payment date

Further details can be found on the website at www hammerson com

The DRIP will continue to be avallable to those shareholders who have
already completed an application form Such shareholders should take
no action unless they wish to receive thew dividend in cash, In which
case they should contact the Registrar to cancel ther instruction

International payment service

The Registrar facilitates a service to convert sterling dividends into
certain local currencies For further information, please contact
the Registrar {address Iisted above) Tel 0871 664 0385 (calls cost
10p per minute plus network extras, ines are open 900 am to

5 30 pm Monday to Fnday) or +44 (0)20 8639 3405 (from overseas)
emall ips@capita co uk

Further detads can be found at

http.//international capitaregistrars com
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Capita share dealing services

An online and telephone dealing facility 15 available, providing
shareholders with an easy-to-access and simple-to-use service

There 1s no need to pre-register and there are no complicated forms
to fillin The online and telephone dealing service allows shareholders
1o trade‘real time’at a known price that will be given to them at the
time they give thewr instruction Ths s subject to a credit check for
shareholders dealing in shares valued at more than the sterling
equivalent of €15,000

For further information on this service, or to buy and sell shares,
please call Capita on 0871 664 0364 (calls cost 10p per minute plus
network extras, lines are open 8 00 am to 4 30 pm Monday to Friday),
or +44 (0)20 3367 2686 (from overseas)

email info@capitadeal com
website www capitadeal com

Discontinuation of Intennm Management Statements
Following recent changes to EU regulation on financial disclosure,

the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) has removed its requirement for
UK companies to pubhsh Intenm Management Statemenis (IMSs) Asa
result, and reflecting the long term nature of Hammerson's business,
the Board has taken the decision to cease publication of formal IMSs

in Aprl and Novermber The Group remains committed to full and
transparent disclosure and wilt continue with full-year and half-year
announcements as well as a comprehensive capital markets events in
the autumn

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which makes
it uneconomic 1o sell them, may wish to consider donating them to
charity through ShareGift, a registered chanty admintstered by The Orr
Mackintosh Foundation Limited {registered charnty nurnber 1052686,
registered company number 3150478) Further information about

ShareGift 1s avallabte at www sharegift org uk or by writing to ShareGift,

The Orr Mackintosh Foundation Limited, 17 Carlton House Terrace,
London, SW1Y 5AH or by telephone on +44 (0)20 7930 3737

Website

The Annual Report and other information that shareholders may find
useful are avaltable on the Company’s website www hammerson com
The Company operates a service whereby all registered users can
choose to receve via email notice of all Company announcements
which can also be viewed on the website
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UK Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) taxation

As a UK REIT, Hammerson plc 1s exempt from corporation tax on rentat
income and gains on UK investrment properties but 1s required to pay
Property Income Distributions (PIDs) UK shareholders will be taxed

on PIDs received at their full marginal tax rates A REIT may m addition
pay normal dividends

For most shareholders, PIDs will be paid after deducting withholding
tax at the basic rate However, centain categories of shareholder are
entitled to receive PIOs without withholding tax, principally UK resident
comparies, UK putsiic bodies, UK penston funds and managers of

ISAs, PEPs and Child Trust Funds Further information on UK RETs 15
avallable on the Company’s website, including a form to be used

by shareholders to certify tf they qualify to receve PIDs without
withholding tax

Unsohated mail

Hammerson 1s obliged by law to make 1ts share register available
on request to other orgarisations This may result in shareholders
recenng unsohicited mail To lirmit the receipt of unsohicited mail
shareholders may register with the Mailing Preference Service,

an independent organisation whose services are free, by visiting
www mpsonline org uk Once a shareholder’s name and address
detalls have been registered, it will advise the companies and other
bodies that subscribe to the service not to send unsohicited mail to
the address registered

Shareholder secunty

Share fraud includes scams where fraudsters cold-call investors offering
them overpriced, worthless or non-existent shares, or offer to buy
shares owned by investors at an inflated price We adwise shareholders
to be vigilant of unsclicited mail or telephone cals regarding buying or
selling shares For more information visit www fca org uk/scams or call
the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768




Financial Calendar and Share Analysis

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at 1100 am on 22 Apnl 2015 at 10 Grosvener Street, London, W1K 4BJ Detalls of the Meeting and the
resolutions to be voted upon can be found in the Nouce of Meeting which is available at www hammerson com/investors

Full-year results announced 16 February 2015
Recommended final dividend Ex-dividend date 12 March 2015
Record date 13 March 2015
Election {or cancellation} date for Dividend Reinvestment Plan 500 pm on 30 March 2015
Payable on 24 Apnl 2015
Annual General Meeting 22 April 2015
Anticipated 2015 intenm dividend October 2015

Analysis of Shares Held as at 31 December 2014

Number of 9% of total
Nurnber of shares held shareholders shareholders Holdng % of total capital
0-500 845 2885 158,317 002
501-1,000 372 1270 290,974 004
1,001-2,600 418 1427 620015 008
2,001-5,000 399 1362 1,279,142 016
5,001-10,000 153 522 1,064,613 014
10,001-50,000 285 973 6,762,375 086
50,001-100,000 98 335 7,084,617 090
100,001-500,000 192 656 44,483,158 567
500,001-1,000,000 59 201 42,009,567 536
1,000,001 and above 108 369 680,542,470 8677
Total 2,929 100.00 784,295,248 100 00

Chart Fig 93
Five year dividend history {(pence per share)

t The 2014 final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the 2015 Annual General Meeting
Where 3 shareholder elected 1o receve the senp alternative the dvidend was treated as a non-PID
The PID element of the dividend 1s paid net of a 209 withhelding tax unless a shareholder 1s eligible 1o receve the payment gross
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GLOSSARY

Adjusted figures {per share)

Reported amounts adjusted 1o exclude certain items as set out In note 11 to the accounts

Anchor store

A major store, usually a department, varety or DIY store or supermarket, occupying a large unit
within a shopping centre or retall park, which serves as a draw to other retallers and consumers

Average cost of borrowing

The cost of finance expressed as a percentage of the weighted average of borrowings during
the period

BREEAM

Buiiding Research Establishment’s Environmental Assessment Method

Capital return

The change n property value duning the penod after taking account of capital expenditure
and exchange translation movements, calculated on a monthly time-weighted basis

DTR

Disclosure and Transparency Rules, 1ssued by the United Kingdom Listing Authornity

Dwidend cover

Adjusted earnings per share divided by dwvidend per share

Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit for the penod attributable to equity shareholders divided by the average number of shares
inissue dunng the penod

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amariisation

EPRA

The European Public Real Estate Association, a real estate industry body This organisation
has 1ssued Best Pracuce Recommendations with the intention of improving the transparency,
comparability and relevance of the published results of histed real estate compantes In Europe

Equivalent yield (true and nominal)

The capitalisation rate apphied to future cash flows to calculate the gross property value The cash
flows reflect the uiming of future rents resulting from lettings, lease renewals and rent reviews
based on current ERVs The true equivalent yield assumes rents are received quarterly in advance
The nominal equivalent yield assumes rents are recesved annually in arrears The property true
and nomsnal equevalent yields are determined by the Group's external valuers

ERV The estimated market rental value of the total lettable space in a property, after deducting head
and equity rents, calculated by the Group's external valuers
Gearing Net debt expressed as a percentage of equity shareholders'funds

Gross property value or Gross asset
value (GAV)

Property value before deduction of purchaser's costs, as provided by the Group's externai valuers

Gross rental Income

Income from rents, car parks and cornmercial iIncome, after accounting for the net effect of the
amortisation of lease incentives

IAS International Accounting Standard

|ASB International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS Internattonal Finanaial Reporting Standard

Initral yield Annual cash rents recevable (net of head and equity rents and the cost of vacancy, and in the

{or netinitial yield (NIY))

case of France, net of an allowance for costs of approximately 5% primarily for management
fees), as a percentage of gross property value, as provided by the Group's external valuers Rents
recevable following the expiry of rent-free penods are not included Rent reviews are assumed
to have been settled at the contractual review date at ERV

Interest cover

Net rental ncome divided by net cost of finance before captalised interest and change n farr
value of dervatives

Interest rate or currency swap
{or dernvatives)

An agreement with anather party to exchange an interest or currency rate obhgation for a
pre-determined pertod of tme

IPD

Investment Property Databank An organisation supplying independent market indices and
portfolio benchmarks to the property industry

Joint venture

An entity in which the Group holds an interest and which 1s jointly controlled by the Group and
one or more partners under a contractual arrangement whereby decisions on the key financial
and operating policies of that entity require each partner’s consent

Like-for-ike/underlying net
rental income

The percentage change in net rental iIncome for completed investment properties owned throughout
both current and prior peniods, after taking account of exchange translation movernents

Loan to value ratio (LTV)

Net debt expressed as a percentage of the total value of investment and development properues

Net asset value (NAV) per share

Equity shareholders funds divided by the number of shares in issue at the balance sheet date

Net rental income (NRI)

Income from rents, car parks and commercial income, after deducting head and equity rents
payable, and other property related costs

Occupancy rate

The ERY of the area in a property or porifoho, excluding developments, which is let, expressed
as a percentage of the total ERV of that property cr portfolio
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Over-rented

The amount by which ERV falls short of rents passing, together with the estimated rental value of
vacant space

Passing rents or rents passing

The annual rental income receivable from an tnvestment property, after any rent-free penods
and after deducting head and equity rents This may be more or less than the ERV (see over-rented
and reversionary or under-rented)

Preet

A lease signed with a tenant prior 1o completion of a development

Property Income Distribution (PID)

A dividend, generally subject to withholding tax, that a UK REIT 1s required te pay from its tax-
exernpt property rental business and which 1s taxable for UK-resident shareholders at their
marginal tax rate

Property joint ventures

The Group's shopping centre and retall park joint ventures which management proportionally
consohdate when reviewing the performance of the business These exclude the Group's interest
in the VIA Qutlets joint venture

REIT

Real Estate Investment Trust A tax regime that in the UK exempts participants from corporation
tax both on UK rental tncome and gains ansing on UK investment property sales, subject to
certain reguirements

Return on shareholders’ equity (ROE)

Capital growth and profit for the year expressed as a percentage of equity shareholders' funds at
the begining of the year, all excluding deferred tax and certain non-recurnng items

Reversionary or under-rented

The amount by which the ERV exceeds the rents passing, together with the estimated rental value
of vacant space

Scrip dividend

A dividend receved in the form of shares

SiC

Sociétes d'Investisserents Immobiliers Cotées A tax regime in France which exempts
parucipants from the French tax on property income and gans subjeci to certamn requirements

Total development cost (TDC)

All capital expenditure on a development project, including capitalised interest

Total property return (TPR)
{or total return)

Net rental income and capital return expressed as a percentage of the opering book value of
property adjusted for capital expenditure and exchange translation movements, calculated on
a monthly ume-weighted basis

Total shareholder return (TSR)

Dividends and capital growth 1n the share price, expressed as a percentage of the share price at
the beginning of the year

Turnover rent Rental income that ts related to an occupler’s turnover
UK GAAP United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
Vacancy rate The ERV of the area in a property, or portfolo, excluding developments, which is currently available

for letuing, expressed as a percentage of the ERV of that property or portfolio

Value Retall (VR)

Owner and operator of luxury outlet Villages in Europe 1n which Hammerson has an investment

VIA Outlets (VIA) A premium outlets joint venture, in which the Group has an investment VIA owns and operates
premium outlet centres n Europe
Yield on cost Passing rents expressed as a percentage of the total development cost of a property
Disclaimer

This document contains cerian statements that are neither reported financial results nor other historical iInformation These statements are forward looking
n nature and are subject 1o nisks and uacertainues Actual future resuks may differ materialty from those expressed in or implied by these statements

Many of these nsks and uncertainties relate to factors that are beyond Harmmerson's ability to control or estimate precrsely such as fuiure market conditions,
currency fluctuations, the behawviour of other market participanits the actions of governmental regulators and ather risk factors such as the Company s abiity
to continue to obtain financing 1o meet its iquidity needs, changes in the pelitical, social and regulatory framework in which the Company operates ar in
economic or technological rends or conditions, Including inflation and consumer confidence, on a global, regional or national basis

Readers are cavtioned not te place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date of this document Hammerson does not
undertake any obligation 1o publicly ielease any rewisions to these forward-looking statements 10 reflect events or circumstances after the date of this document
Informaucn contained in this document relating to the Company should noi be relied upon as a guide 1o future performance
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Accounting palicies

Adjustrment for non-cash items in the cash
flow statement

Administration expenses

Analysis of movement in net debt
Audit Comrrutiee report

Auditor’s report

Board of Directors

Borrowings

Business model

Business review

Cash and deposits

Chairman's introducuien to Governance

Chief Executive’s Q&A

Company balance sheet

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code

Connected reporting framework
Consolidated balance sheet

Consohdated cash flow statement
Consolidated income statement
Consoldated statement of changes in equity
Consclidated statement of comprebensive iIncome
Contingent liabilities

Corporate governance

Developments

Directors’ icgraphies

Directors' remuneration report

Drrectors' report

Directors' responsibidities

Drversity

Divtdends

Equity

Fair, balanced and understandable

Financial instruments

Financial review

Glossary of terms

Investment and development properties
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Investment In associate
Investment 1n own shares
Investments in subsidiary companies
Joint ventures

Key performance indicators (KPts)
Market background

Net finance costs

Nomination Committee report
Notes to the accounts
Obligaticns under finance leases
Qur People

Operating 'ease receipts

Payables

Pensions

Per share data

Principal Group addresses
Principal nsks and uncertamnties
Principal subsidiary companies
Profit before tax

Property portfcho

Property portfeho information
Property returns

Receivables

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs)
Remuneration policy

Result for the year

Risk management

Segmental analysis

Share capital

Shareholder information
Shareholder return

Significant financial judgements
Sociétés d'investissermnents Immobiliers Cotées (SIC)
Sustainability

Tax

Ten-year financial summary
Treasury shares

Value Retall

VIA Qutlets
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